
GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2023
7:00 PM - LIBRARY

285 E. GRAND AVENUE
FOX LAKE, ILLINOIS 60020

AGENDA

I. Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance
III. Roll Call
IV. Consent Agenda **
V. Superintendent’s Report – Recognition and Informational Items

A. Student Recognition
B. Curriculum Changes for 2024/25
C. School Report Card Timeline
D. Calendar DRAFT – 2024/25
E. Homecoming – 2024
F. Illinois Association of School Board Recognition – Established Board Leader
G. Joint Conference Planning
H. Principal’s Report
I. Student Representative’s Report

VI. Public Comment
VII. Superintendent’s Report – Action Items

A. Course Changes 2024/25 **
B. Winter Coaches **
C. Personnel **

VIII. Business Affairs
A. 2023 Tentative Tax Levy
B. School Maintenance Project Grant **

IX. Other Business
A. FOIA

X. Closed Session
A. Student disciplinary cases 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(9) 
B. Other matters relating to individual students 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(10) 
C. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of 

specific employees. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) **
XI. Action items from closed session discussion

A. Potential Board action regarding personnel **
XII. Adjourn

** Indicates potential action item in open session
The next regular Board of Education meeting will be held on Thursday, November 9, 2023
 

2

60
61
105
364

365
382
385

388
389

393
396

399

1



GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124 
MINUTES OF BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Education of Grant Community High School District 124, 
County of Lake, State of Illinois, was held on Thursday, September 21, 2023 and called to order 
at 7:00 p.m. in the Auditorium of Grant Community High School, 285 E. Grand Avenue, Fox Lake.   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
All those in attendance stood to recite the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL 
On Roll Call, the following Members were found to be present: 

Mr. Steve Hill, President 

Mrs. Kathy Kusiak, Vice President 

Mr. John Jared, Secretary 

Mrs. Shelly Booth, Member 

Mrs. Ivy Fleming, Member 

Mr. Ed Lescher, Member 

Mr. Bob Yanik, Member 
 
Members absent:   
 
Administration present:  

Dr. Christine A. Sefcik, Superintendent 
Mrs. Beth Reich, Business Manager 
Dr. Jeremy Schmidt, Principal 

 
Student Representative: Ms. Julia Podgorski 
 

AUDIENCE 
Kushi Viramgami, Alpesh & Nandita Viramgami, family and friends of Howard “Bud” Scott, William 
Lomas, and Mark Barczak. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Minutes of regular meeting held August 17, 2023 
Minutes of closed meeting held August 17, 2023 
September Bills Payable 
August Treasurer’s Report 
Destruction of closed meeting audio recording from March 17, 2022 

** A motion was made by Mrs. Kusiak, second by Mr. Jared to approve the Consent Agenda, 
as presented. 

 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Kusiak, Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  2



Board of Education Meeting 
September 21, 2023 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT – Recognition and Informational Items 
Student Recognition 
Dr. Sefcik introduced Kushi Viramgami, in the presence of her parents, as the September Student 
of the Month.  She read Kushi’s profile of accomplishments, which included academic 
achievements, extracurricular activities, service to the community, what she enjoys in her spare 
time, and future plans.  Dr. Sefcik offered Kushi the opportunity to speak to the Board and she 
thanked the Board for the honor.  She also said thank you to not only her teachers, but other staff 
members and her parents for the support that she has had throughout her years at Grant.  The 
Board and audience applauded Kushi and Dr. Sefcik presented her with a certificate to 
commemorate being chosen as the September Student of the Month. 
 
Hall of Fame Induction 
Dr. Sefcik provided a brief overview of the Hall of Fame, which includes staff members and alumni.  
Board members made their way down to watch the video presentations for the Hall of Fame 
Inductees, Howard “Bud” Scott, William Lomas, and Mark Barczak.  After the videos, Dr. Sefcik 
and President Steve Hill invited Fritz Kazlausky and Kristina Kazlausky to the stage.  Mr. 
Kazlausky said that he’s known the Scott family for a very long time as their dads worked together. 
He provided details of the many ways that Mr. Scott impacted the school and the community.  
Kristina Kazlausky, Bud Scott’s daughter, thanked the Board for the honor and for moving it to 
this year so that more family could attend.  She also thanked Fritz for nominating her dad. She 
noted how her dad would fight for the things and people he believed in and had a way of making 
kids believe in their potential.  Dr. Sefcik then read the Resolution to Induct Mr. Scott into the Hall 
of Fame.  President Steve Hill presented Kristina with the award to commemorate Mr. Scott’s 
induction into the Hall of Fame. 
** A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mrs. Fleming to approve the induction of Mr. 

Howard “Bud” Scott into the 2023 Hall of Fame. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Kusiak 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 
Dr. Sefcik then invited Mr. Jeff Sefcik and Mr. William Lomas to the stage. Mr. Sefcik introduced 
his nominee, Bill Lomas.  He said that Mr. Lomas was his mentor and taught him the importance 
of love of family, loyalty, and kindness, and he has tried to emulate those traits.  He related a few 
student stories that showed how much Mr. Lomas cared about his students and others he worked 
with.  Mr. Lomas thanked Mr. Sefcik and noted how nervous but well-prepared he was.  He also 
thanked the staff, students, and parents for their support; his wife of 43 years, Mary and his kids, 
Brian and Amy and their families. He wanted to especially thank his Mom who stressed 
academics.  Additionally, he thanked Sheri Doran who encouraged him to go to college, Tom 
Maple, Fritz Kazlausky, Jack Rayburn, John Welter, Ralph Stanton, who also provided important 
life skills while at Grant, such as setting goals, having a professional manner, and your role within 
a team, work for your personal best, and how to best compete.  He also learned so much from 
Jeff Sefcik through his infectious energy and his work as the finest child advocate he has ever 
known. Dr. Sefcik read the Resolution to induct Mr. Lomas into the Hall of Fame.  President Steve 
Hill presented Mr. Lomas with the award to commemorate his induction into the Hall of Fame. 
  

3



Board of Education Meeting 
September 21, 2023 

Page 3 of 7 
 
** A motion was made by Mrs. Fleming, second by Mr. Yanik to approve the induction of Mr. 

William Lomas into the 2023 Hall of Fame. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Kusiak, Jared 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 
Dr. Sefcik invited Mr. Tom Evans and Mr. Mark Barczak to the stage.  Mr. Evans introduced Mr. 
Barczak as a humble man who had an influence on his students on the mat or field, and in the 
classroom.  His coaching legacy is the successful community he influenced.  Mr. Barczak said 
that he feels like Grant is his school after 36 happy years. He loves this school and feels his teams 
were his family.  He believes his success was due to the talented people he surrounded himself 
with, student-athletes, coaches, and others. It was important to him that his athletes were well 
equipped as other schools in our conference and started the golf outings to pay for things that 
students couldn’t afford.  Among the people that influenced and supported him, he named Don 
Rowden, Frank Cittadino, and the Booster Club. He thanked Superintendent Sefcik, Board 
President Steve Hill and the entire Board of Education, the community, players, coaches, teachers 
for the honor of allowing him to serve.  Dr. Sefcik read the Resolution to induct Mr. Barczak into 
the Hall of Fame. President Steve Hill presented Mr. Barczak with the award to commemorate his 
induction into the Hall of Fame. 
** A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mr. Lescher to approve the induction of Mr. 

Mark Barczak into the 2023 Hall of Fame. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Kusiak, Jared, Booth 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 
IASB Fall Dinner 
Dr. Sefcik informed the Board of the IASB Lake Division Dinner and Meeting that will be held on 
October 11, 2023 at Neal Math and Science Academy in North Chicago.  The meeting will feature 
Illinois State Superintendent of Education, Dr. Tony Sanders.  She said that anyone that was 
interested in attending, we will register them. Dr. Sefcik, Mrs. Reich, and Mrs. Kusiak were 
interested in attending. 
 
Principal’s Report 
Mr. Schmidt presented his monthly report which included information on Back to School Night, 
Homecoming, and the College Board National Recognition Program. 
 
Student Representative’s Report 
Julia Podgorski provided her report which included information on Activities: National Honor 
Society, Student Council, National Art Honor Society, Fall Play, Marching Band and Color Guard; 
and Sports: Fall Dance, Boys’ Soccer, Girls’ Golf, Cheer, Girls’ Volleyball, Cross Country, and 
Homecoming window painting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 
 

4



Board of Education Meeting 
September 21, 2023 

Page 4 of 7 
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT – Action Items 

School Board Policy Modifications – Second Reading   
Dr. Sefcik recommended approval of the following School Board Policies based on direction from 
the Illinois Association of School Boards and legal counsel: 

Section 400 Operational Services 
4:45         Insufficient Fund Checks and Debt Recovery 
4:100       Insurance Management 

Section 500 Personnel 
5:230       Maintaining Student Discipline 

Section 700 Students 
7:305       Student Athlete Concussions and Head Injuries 

** A motion was made by Mr. Yanik, second by Mrs. Booth to approve the Board policies, as 
presented.  

 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Kusiak, Jared, Booth, Fleming 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 
Tuition Reimbursement – Non-Certified Staff   
Dr. Sefcik proposed a new tuition reimbursement benefit for non-certified staff members.  She 
noted that we have staff members that have expressed interest in pursuing degrees and/or further 
developing their workplace knowledge and skills.  The fund of $20,000 would be dedicated 
annually, with individuals eligible for $2,000 in reimbursement each year for pre-approved 
courses, on a first-come, first-served basis. 
** A motion was made by Mr. Lescher, second by Mrs. Booth to approve the tuition 

reimbursement benefit for non-certified staff members, as presented.  
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Yanik, Hill, Kusiak, Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 
Overnight Travel 
Dr. Sefcik recommended approval of the overnight travel requests for the following: 

• The wrestling team to travel to a tournament in Kaukana, Wisconsin, January 5-6 for 
approximately 14-17 student-athletes and three coaches. Costs will be covered through 
fundraising and activity funds, with no cost to students. 

• The girls’ softball team to Pigeon Forge, Tennessee, March 23-27 to compete in six 
softball games at the Cal Ripken Fields, for approximately15 student-athletes and three 
coaches. Cost will be paid through activity funds. 

• The baseball team to Marion, Illinois from March 24-28 to compete in 4-6 baseball games 
at Mountain Dew Park, for approximately 27 student-athletes and 2 coaches. Costs will 
be paid through activity funds. 

• The theater department to the Illinois Theater Festival at the University of Illinois, January 
11-13, 2024, for approximately 24 students and 3 teachers.  Students will pay their festival 
fee, meals, and split their hotel costs. The District will cover teachers’ costs, estimated to 
be $891. 

  

5



Board of Education Meeting 
September 21, 2023 

Page 5 of 7 
 
** A motion was made by Mr. Yanik, second by Mr. Lescher to approve the overnight travel, 

as presented.  
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Hill, Kusiak, Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 
Personnel 
Dr. Sefcik made the following personnel recommendations: 
Employment of the following individuals: 

• Dulce Olmos Ocampo, EL Teacher, BA Step 2, starting 8/21/2023 

• Lily Wu, Accounting and Fiscal Coordinator, $80,000/yr., starting 9/11/2023 

• Michelle Jones, CIA/MTSS Admin. Asst., $28.00/hr., starting 9/25/2023 

• Kimberly Geiman, Asst. Transportation Director, $48.58/hr., starting 9/25/2023 

• Sheryl Dempsey, LOA position 9/25-11/10, salary $7,653.60 

• Marcy Wax, LOA position, 10/18-12/15, salary $9,192.00 

• Czara Trujillo-Wicinski, FT Paraprofessional, $18.07/hr., starting 10/2/2023 

• Kim Christesen, Fall Play & Spring Musical Costume Director 

• Amanda Jacobs, National Art Honor Society Sponsor 

• Martin Grum, Math Team Assistant Coach 

• Cassi Reid, Future Medical Professionals Sponsor 

• Austin Caraher, Assistant Marching Band Director 

• Emmy Diana, Gamers Club Sponsor 

• Laura Widenhoefer, Environmental Club Co-Sponsor 

• Meghan McKinney, Computer Science Club Sponsor 

• Lauren Becmer, Chess Team Co-Sponsor 
Accept the resignation letter from: 

• Tom DuBois, Transportation, effective 9/30/2023 
Notification of FMLA requests from the following: 

• Patricia Qasabian, September 29, 2023 - November 10, 2023 

• Katherine Sagritalo, September 27, 2023 - October 20, 2023 

• Corey Hutcheson, October 30 - November 10, 2023 and January 23 - February 15, 2024 
** A motion was made by Mr. Lescher, second by Mrs. Booth to approve the personnel 

recommendations, as presented. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Kusiak, Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 

BUSINESS AFFAIRS 
Public Act 97-0256 (105 ILCS 5/10-20.47) Sec. 10-20.47 
This report shows the base salary and benefits of the district superintendent, administrators and 
teachers employed by the school district. 
 
2022-2023 Compensation Over $75,000 Report 
This is the report for an IMRF-participating employer that shows the “total compensation package” 
for each employee exceeding $75,000 per year. 6



Board of Education Meeting 
September 21, 2023 

Page 6 of 7 
 
 
Administrative Salary/Benefits Report 2022-2023 
This report shows an itemized salary compensation report for every employee in the district 
holding an administrative certificate and working in that capacity. 
 
Mrs. Reich presented all of these reports together, informing the Board that they are required to 
be reviewed by the Board, presented at a Board meeting, and posted online for the public to view. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
None 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
** At 8:48 p.m. a motion was made by Mrs. Fleming, second by Mrs. Booth to go into closed 

session for the purpose of discussing student disciplinary cases 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(9); other 
matters relating to individual students 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(10); and the appointment, 
employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees 5 
ILCS 120/2 (c)(1). 

 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Kusiak 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 
** At 9:00 p.m. a motion was made by Mr. Lescher, second by Mr. Yanik to end closed session 

and return to open session.  
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Kusiak, Jared 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 

ACTION CLOSED SESSION 
** A motion was made by Mrs. Kusiak, second by Mr. Yanik to authorize the Notice to Remedy 

for Erin Smith, as presented. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Kusiak, Jared, Booth 
  Nay: None  
  Absent:  
 Motion – Passed  
 
 

  

7



Board of Education Meeting 
September 21, 2023 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 

ADJOURN 
** At 9:01 p.m. a motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mrs. Kusiak to adjourn the 

meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
Steve Hill, President 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
John Jared, Secretary 
 

8



Grant Community High School District 124 
AP Invoice Listing Report 

October 19, 2023 
 
 

 
 
 
Total Invoices:   348      $1,063,737.85 
 
 
 

9



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:1

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

A TO Z E000 A To Z Engraving Co., Inc. 143138 0000000000 mm1023 AP Name Badge B 09/20/2023 10/19/2023 R            $9.10

 23-24             $9.10

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1            $9.10

ACCURATE001 ACCURATE BIOMETRICS 198662309 0000000000 mm1023 AP Fingerprinting SEPT23 B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R          $411.50

 23-24           $411.50

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $411.50

ADAMEMAR000 Adamek, Mary E. 09142023 0000000000 mm091423 AP XCntry Gas/Meal allowance H 09/14/2023 09/14/2023 R          $310.02

 23-24     114587          $310.02

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $310.02

AIRGAS U000 Airgas Usa,  Llc 5501620906 0000000000 mm1023 AP Cylinder Rental AUG23 B 08/31/2023 10/19/2023 R          $142.65

 23-24           $142.65

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $142.65

ALARM DE000 Alarm Detection Systems, Inc. 160450-1045 0000000000 mm1023 AP Qtrly chrgs Oct-Dec23 B 09/10/2023 10/19/2023 R          $198.72

 23-24           $198.72

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $198.72

ALPHA BA000 Alpha Baking Co., Inc. SEPT2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Baking 090523-092923 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $7,517.63

 23-24         $7,517.63

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $7,517.63

ALSTONOA000 Alstott, Noah Webster 09222023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

ALVARNAT001 Alvarado, Nathan 10032023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G. Volleyball, V/JV B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

10



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:2

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

ALVARNAT001 Alvarado, Nathan 10032023 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

AMAZON C000 Amazon Capital Services 16HQ-6N99-13F6 0002400014 mm1023 AP Amazon purchases 2023-2024 B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R       $11,367.39

 23-24        $11,367.39

AMAZON C000 Amazon Capital Services CM#1WMY-W4J1-YXFN 0002400014 mm1023 AP Amazon purchases 2023-2024 B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R         $-185.87

 23-24          $-185.87

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2       $11,181.52

ANDERSON003 Anderson Lock 1128194 0212400005 mm1023 AP Lock Keys F B 08/25/2023 10/19/2023 R           $75.50

 23-24            $75.50

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $75.50

ANDROPET000 Androus, Peter 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

ANTIOCH 005 Antioch Community High School 09282023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G Golf Regional Tournament B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R          $300.00

 23-24           $300.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $300.00

APPLE IN000 Apple Inc. MA17983617 3002400047 mm1023 AP Apple iPad F B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R          $299.00

 23-24           $299.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $299.00

ARNDTKRI000 Arndt, Kristen EDCL504 0000000000 mm092823 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement H 09/25/2023 09/28/2023 R          $460.00

 23-24     114627          $460.00

11



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:3

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

ARNDTKRI000 Arndt, Kristen EDCL533 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $460.00

 23-24           $460.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $920.00

AT & T  001 AT & T 4386002805 0000000000 mm091923 AP 8310011444996 090723-100623 H 09/07/2023 09/19/2023 R          $367.98

 23-24     114590          $367.98

AT & T  001 AT & T 9562012800 0000000000 mm091923 AP 8310011444894 090723-100623 H 09/07/2023 09/19/2023 R          $378.69

 23-24     114590          $378.69

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $746.67

AT&T    002 AT&T 847587259709 0000000000 mm092823 AP 84758725975566 082023-091923 H 09/19/2023 09/28/2023 R        $9,923.24

 23-24     114628        $9,923.24

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $9,923.24

AUSTIJEF000 Austin, Jeffrey EDCL500 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $485.00

 23-24           $485.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $485.00

AVALON P000 Avalon Petroleum Co. 004002 0000000000 mm1023 AP RFG 10% Ethanol B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R        $5,269.58

 23-24         $5,269.58

AVALON P000 Avalon Petroleum Co. 009014 0000000000 mm1023 AP RFG 10% Ethanol B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,798.53

 23-24         $2,798.53

AVALON P000 Avalon Petroleum Co. 473088 0000000000 mm1023 AP RFG 10% Ethanol B 08/22/2023 10/19/2023 R        $4,328.03

 23-24         $4,328.03

AVALON P000 Avalon Petroleum Co. 473125 0000000000 mm1023 AP RFG 10% Ethanol B 09/01/2023 10/19/2023 R        $5,127.06

 23-24         $5,127.06

12



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:4

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 4       $17,523.20

BALANCED000 Balanced Environments Inc 125750 0000000000 mm1023 AP Landscape Maint OCT23 B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,427.00

 23-24         $6,427.00

BALANCED000 Balanced Environments Inc 125858 0000000000 mm1023 AP Mulch & Plants B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R        $3,381.00

 23-24         $3,381.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $9,808.00

BARTEERI001 Bartels, Erik 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Lunch Balance refund B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $26.00

 23-24            $26.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $26.00

BECMELAU000 Becmer, Lauren AMHI660 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $750.00

 23-24           $750.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $750.00

BENNY'S 000 Benny's Service Center Inc. 5023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Bus 15/7/8 Safety B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R           $81.00

     Inspections       

 23-24            $81.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $81.00

BILBRAMA000 Bilbrey, Amanda LEAD432 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,350.87

 23-24         $1,350.87

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,350.87

BLICK AR000 BLICK ART MATERIALS 1415265 0042400003 mm1023 AP Art Supplies F B 09/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $352.46

 23-24           $352.46

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $352.46

BMO     000 Bmo 5569350192989003 0000000000 mm091923 AP REICH SEPT23 STMT H 09/05/2023 09/19/2023 R        $9,983.24

13



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:5

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

BMO     000 Bmo 5569350192989003 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24     114591        $9,983.24

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $9,983.24

BOSCOJOH000 Bosco, John 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

BRASS BE000 Brass Bell Music 2196422 0000000000 mm1023 AP Sheet Music B 09/16/2023 10/19/2023 R          $127.20

 23-24           $127.20

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $127.20

BSN SPOR000 Bsn Sports 922659309 0502400028 mm1023 AP REPLACEMENT NETS FOR BAC F B 08/30/2023 10/19/2023 R          $448.80

     GOALS       

 23-24           $448.80

BSN SPOR000 Bsn Sports 922765738 0502400020 mm1023 AP CROSS COUNTRY COACHES GEAR F B 09/07/2023 10/19/2023 R          $303.07

 23-24           $303.07

BSN SPOR000 Bsn Sports 922920802 0502400026 mm1023 AP SOCCER COACHES GEAR F B 09/18/2023 10/19/2023 R          $320.36

 23-24           $320.36

BSN SPOR000 Bsn Sports 923048146 0972400000 mm1023 AP CROSS COUNTRY PANTS Booster F B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R        $4,023.73

     Wish       

 23-24         $4,023.73

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 4        $5,095.96

BUILDING000 Building Blocks For Kids Success 490 0000000000 mm1023 AP OT Svc Aug/Sept/Oct23 B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,444.00

 23-24         $6,444.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $6,444.00

BURRIS E001 Burris Equipment PS2012711-1 0000000000 mm1023 AP Fuel Filter B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $35.28

14



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:6

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

BURRIS E001 Burris Equipment PS2012711-1 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24            $35.28

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $35.28

CAMELOT 000 Camelot Therapeutic Schools LLC INV171652 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition AUG23 B 09/07/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,070.27

 23-24         $2,070.27

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $2,070.27

CARLSPAT000 Carlson, Patrick 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

CARRAMIL000 Carranza, Milton 10032023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $82.00

CARTHAGE000 Carthage College 914 0000000000 mm092823 AP Carrie Musical tickets H 09/15/2023 09/28/2023 R          $115.00

 23-24     114629          $115.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $115.00

CDW GOVE000 CDW Government, Inc. LF98536 3002400036 mm1023 AP Tripp Lite UPS Smart Online F B 08/09/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,400.95

     2200VA 1800W Rackmount 120V       

     LCD USB DB9 2URM - UPS -       

     1800 Watt - 2200 VA       

 23-24         $1,400.95

CDW GOVE000 CDW Government, Inc. LG60685 3002400036 mm1023 AP Tripp Lite UPS Smart Online F B 08/11/2023 10/19/2023 R          $540.07

     2200VA 1800W Rackmount 120V       

     LCD USB DB9 2URM - UPS -       

     1800 Watt - 2200 VA       

 23-24           $540.07

15



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:7

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $1,941.02

CENTER F003 CENTER FOR PSYCHOLOGICAL SVCS 00002455 0000000000 mm1023 AP Testing No-show B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R          $400.00

 23-24           $400.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $400.00

CERAMIC 000 Ceramic Supply Chicago 18426 0042400004 mm1023 AP Art Clay Order F B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $761.00

 23-24           $761.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $761.00

CHANGE A000 Change Academy at Lake of the Ozar INV076107 0000000000 mm1023 AP Rsdnt/Tuition SEPT23 B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R       $14,361.90

 23-24        $14,361.90

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $14,361.90

CINTAS 4000 Cintas 47P SEPT2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Towel Service B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R          $548.39

 23-24           $548.39

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $548.39

CITYWIDE000 Citywide Building Maintenance Inc 47972 0000000000 mm1023 AP Janitorial Srvc OCT23 B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R       $21,827.53

 23-24        $21,827.53

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $21,827.53

CLARKMAR003 Clark, Mark 09262023 4:30 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R           $65.00

 23-24            $65.00

CLARKMAR003 Clark, Mark 09262023 6:15 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $147.00

COMCAST 001 Comcast 181512579 0000000000 mm091923 AP 900023977 SEPT23 H 09/01/2023 09/19/2023 R        $2,975.05

16



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:8

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

COMCAST 001 Comcast 181512579 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24     114592        $2,975.05

COMCAST 001 Comcast 181882243 0000000000 mm091923 AP 960050207 SEPT23 H 09/01/2023 09/19/2023 R          $579.75

 23-24     114592          $579.75

COMCAST 001 Comcast 181882271 0000000000 mm091923 AP 974472148 SEPT23 H 09/01/2023 09/19/2023 R          $379.90

 23-24     114592          $379.90

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 3        $3,934.70

COMCAST 002 Comcast Cable 8771100240354868 0000000000 mm092823 AP Internet 091723-101623 H 09/13/2023 09/28/2023 R          $144.85

 23-24     114630          $144.85

COMCAST 002 Comcast Cable 8771101420419695 0000000000 mm091923 AP Internet 091223-101123 H 09/08/2023 09/19/2023 R           $40.54

 23-24     114593           $40.54

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $185.39

COMMUNIT005 Community Mechanical & Automation 2157 0000000000 mm1023 AP AUG23 Service Calls B 09/01/2023 10/19/2023 R       $19,497.00

 23-24        $19,497.00

COMMUNIT005 Community Mechanical & Automation 2233 0000000000 mm1023 AP Steam Boiler service B 10/11/2023 10/19/2023 R        $7,058.00

 23-24         $7,058.00

COMMUNIT005 Community Mechanical & Automation 2234 0000000000 mm1023 AP SEPT23 Service Calls B 10/11/2023 10/19/2023 R        $5,789.00

 23-24         $5,789.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 3       $32,344.00

COMPASS 004 Compass Group USA ORD236790 0000000000 mm1023 AP Coffee Bar supply B 09/07/2023 10/19/2023 R          $137.98

 23-24           $137.98

COMPASS 004 Compass Group USA ORD237234 CREDIT 0000000000 mm1023 AP Coffee Bar tax REFUND B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R           $-2.38

 23-24            $-2.38

17



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:9

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

COMPASS 004 Compass Group USA ORD237488 0000000000 mm1023 AP Coffee Bar supply B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R          $135.60

 23-24           $135.60

COMPASS 004 Compass Group USA ORD237903 0000000000 mm1023 AP Coffee Bar supply B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $135.60

 23-24           $135.60

COMPASS 004 Compass Group USA ORD239638 0000000000 mm1023 AP Coffee Bar supply B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R          $456.00

 23-24           $456.00

COMPASS 004 Compass Group USA ORD240557 0000000000 mm1023 AP Coffee Bar supply B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R          $339.00

 23-24           $339.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 6        $1,201.80

CONNECTI002 Connections Day School 35275 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,298.31

 23-24         $6,298.31

CONNECTI002 Connections Day School 35276 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,298.31

 23-24         $6,298.31

CONNECTI002 Connections Day School 35277 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,298.31

 23-24         $6,298.31

CONNECTI002 Connections Day School 35278 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,298.31

 23-24         $6,298.31

CONNECTI002 Connections Day School 35279 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,298.31

 23-24         $6,298.31

CONNECTI002 Connections Day School 35280 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,298.31

 23-24         $6,298.31

CONNECTI002 Connections Day School 35281 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R          $662.98

 23-24           $662.98

18



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:10

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

CONNECTI002 Connections Day School 35326 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,657.45

 23-24         $1,657.45

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 8       $40,110.29

CONNECTI004 Connections Academy East 11651 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,290.90

 23-24         $6,290.90

CONNECTI004 Connections Academy East 11652 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,290.90

 23-24         $6,290.90

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2       $12,581.80

CONSERV 000 Conserv Fs 65162825 0000000000 mm1023 AP Bldg & Grnds supply B 09/15/2023 10/19/2023 R           $90.68

 23-24            $90.68

CONSERV 000 Conserv Fs 65163833 0000000000 mm1023 AP TruStripe paint B 10/05/2023 10/19/2023 R           $88.00

 23-24            $88.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $178.68

CONSTELL000 Constellation New Energry, Inc 66386708601 0000000000 mm1023 AP 2857041-0 SEPT23 B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $86.21

 23-24            $86.21

CONSTELL000 Constellation New Energry, Inc 66386841701 0000000000 mm1023 AP 764073-46291 SEPT23 B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R       $50,130.84

 23-24        $50,130.84

CONSTELL000 Constellation New Energry, Inc 66386894901 0000000000 mm1023 AP 764073-46292 SEPT23 B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R          $446.93

 23-24           $446.93

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 3       $50,663.98

CONSTELL001 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY-GAS DIVISI 3854907 0000000000 mm1023 AP BG-5862 Gas service B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,599.83

 23-24         $2,599.83

19



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:11

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

CONSTELL001 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY-GAS DIVISI 3854908 0000000000 mm1023 AP BG-11642 Gas service B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R          $161.25

 23-24           $161.25

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $2,761.08

COZZINI 000 Cozzini Bros Inc C13100093 0000000000 mm1023 AP Knife service B 04/25/2023 10/19/2023 R           $36.00

 23-24            $36.00

COZZINI 000 Cozzini Bros Inc C13993692 0000000000 mm1023 AP Knife service B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $36.00

 23-24            $36.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2           $72.00

DAVISJIM000 Davis III, Jim 09232023 0000000000 mm1023 AP XCntry B/G V/JV B 09/23/2023 10/19/2023 R          $164.00

 23-24           $164.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $164.00

DEFRAANN000 DeFranco, Anne 09252023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G. Volleyball, JV2B/2 B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $114.00

 23-24           $114.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $114.00

DEKALB H001 DeKalb High School Band 002 0000000000 mm091923 AP 2023 March Band Championship H 09/13/2023 09/19/2023 R          $200.00

 23-24     114594          $200.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $200.00

DIANAEMM001 Diana, Emmy LIT5363 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R          $705.00

 23-24           $705.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $705.00

DURHAM S001 Durham School Services 91993330 0000000000 mm1023 AP SpecEd Trnsprt SEPT23 B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 R       $33,076.83

 23-24        $33,076.83

20



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:12

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $33,076.83

ECS MIDW000 Ecs Midwest. Llc 1112177 0000000000 mm1023 AP Prjct# 16:7118-R B 10/08/2023 10/19/2023 R          $660.00

 23-24           $660.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $660.00

EI US LL000 EI US LLC INV152687 0000000000 mm1023 AP Hospital Tutoring B 08/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $236.40

 23-24           $236.40

EI US LL000 EI US LLC INV152785 0000000000 mm1023 AP Hospital Tutoring B 08/31/2023 10/19/2023 R          $315.20

 23-24           $315.20

EI US LL000 EI US LLC INV153107 0000000000 mm1023 AP Hospital Tutoring B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R          $236.40

 23-24           $236.40

EI US LL000 EI US LLC INV153533 0000000000 mm1023 AP Hospital Tutoring B 09/15/2023 10/19/2023 R          $157.60

 23-24           $157.60

EI US LL000 EI US LLC INV154110 0000000000 mm1023 AP Hospital Tutoring B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R          $315.20

 23-24           $315.20

EI US LL000 EI US LLC INV155037 0000000000 mm1023 AP Hospital Tutoring B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R          $315.20

 23-24           $315.20

EI US LL000 EI US LLC INV155039 0000000000 mm1023 AP Hospital Tutoring B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R           $78.80

 23-24            $78.80

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 7        $1,654.80

ELLIOLAW000 Elliott, Lawrence 10042023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Home Visit mileage B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R           $27.71

     reimbursement       

 23-24            $27.71

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $27.71

ERNIE PE000 Ernie Peterson Plumbing, Inc. 55811 0000000000 mm1023 AP Concession sink installation B 07/20/2023 10/19/2023 R       $13,900.00

21



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:13

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

ERNIE PE000 Ernie Peterson Plumbing, Inc. 55811 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24        $13,900.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $13,900.00

EXCEPTIO000 Exceptional Learners Collaborative 00024014 0000000000 mm1023 AP Physical Thrpy AUG23 B 10/05/2023 10/19/2023 R          $237.15

 23-24           $237.15

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $237.15

FEDEX   000 Fedex 9171409870 0000000000 mm1023 AP Delivery charge B 08/07/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $82.00

FLAKEAND000 Flaker, Andrew 10052023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed reimbursement B 10/05/2023 10/19/2023 R           $74.40

 23-24            $74.40

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $74.40

FOLLETT 009 Follett Content Solutions LLC 725067A 0000000000 mm1023 AP Library supply B 10/05/2023 10/19/2023 R          $428.53

 23-24           $428.53

FOLLETT 009 Follett Content Solutions LLC 740989 0000000000 mm1023 AP Library supply B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R          $495.54

 23-24           $495.54

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $924.07

FOUNTDUA000 Fountain, Duane 09282023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G. Volleyball, V/JV B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R          $119.00

 23-24           $119.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $119.00

FRANCMIC000 Francisco, Michael 09212023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $65.00

 23-24            $65.00

22



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:14

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

FRANCMIC000 Francisco, Michael 09262023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV2 B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R           $72.00

 23-24            $72.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $137.00

FRANK CO000 Frank Cooney Company 80238 (2) 0000000000 mm1023 AP Outstanding INV balance B 07/28/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,181.80

 23-24         $1,181.80

FRANK CO000 Frank Cooney Company 80798 0002400000 mm1023 AP Art Tables F B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R       $12,150.00

 23-24        $12,150.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2       $13,331.80

GBJ SALE000 GBJ Sales, LLC 5060 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 R          $264.45

 23-24           $264.45

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $264.45

GEBISWIL000 Gebis, William Gene 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $71.00

GEISTRYA000 Geist, Ryan OCT 2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Phone Reimbursement B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $100.00

 23-24           $100.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $100.00

GFC LEAS000 GFC Leasing I00855832 0000000000 mm1023 AP Copier Lease Pymt B 09/16/2023 10/19/2023 R        $7,270.76

 23-24         $7,270.76

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $7,270.76

GOLDBRIC001 Goldberg, Richard 09052023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/05/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

23



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:15

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $82.00

GORDON F000 Gordon Flesch Company Inc. IN14393450 0000000000 mm1023 AP per copy maint charges B 10/05/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,616.12

 23-24         $1,616.12

GORDON F000 Gordon Flesch Company Inc. IN14393451 0000000000 mm1023 AP per copy maint charges B 10/05/2023 10/19/2023 R          $175.23

 23-24           $175.23

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $1,791.35

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 229727514 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Lab supply B 08/31/2023 10/19/2023 R          $339.71

 23-24           $339.71

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 229857395 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Lab supply B 09/07/2023 10/19/2023 R          $477.32

 23-24           $477.32

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 229932239 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Lab supply B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R          $120.66

 23-24           $120.66

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 230006620 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Lab supply B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $366.36

 23-24           $366.36

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 230079022 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Lab supply B 09/19/2023 10/19/2023 R          $100.57

 23-24           $100.57

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 230149906 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Lab supply B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $67.50

 23-24            $67.50

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 230295590 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Lab supply B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R          $284.03

 23-24           $284.03

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 230434567 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Lab supply B 10/05/2023 10/19/2023 R          $170.59

 23-24           $170.59

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. CM#18507136 0000000000 mm1023 AP Kitchen CREDIT B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R          $-21.00

 23-24           $-21.00

24



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:16

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. SEPT23-100217416 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food SEPT23 B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R       $63,959.90

 23-24        $63,959.90

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 10       $65,865.64

GRAINGER001 Grainger 9820365188 0000000000 mm1023 AP Bldg & Grnds supply B 08/28/2023 10/19/2023 R           $44.36

 23-24            $44.36

GRAINGER001 Grainger 9822682838 0000000000 mm1023 AP Bldg & Grnds supply B 08/30/2023 10/19/2023 R          $105.88

 23-24           $105.88

GRAINGER001 Grainger 9829410845 0000000000 mm1023 AP Bldg & Grnds supply B 09/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $378.11

 23-24           $378.11

GRAINGER001 Grainger 9839821494 0000000000 mm1023 AP Bldg & Grnds supply B 09/15/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.97

 23-24           $116.97

GRAINGER001 Grainger 9841432330 0000000000 mm1023 AP Bldg & Grnds supply B 09/18/2023 10/19/2023 R          $156.34

 23-24           $156.34

GRAINGER001 Grainger 9849779203 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $152.74

 23-24           $152.74

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 6          $954.40

GRANT BO000 Grant Boosters 10022023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Booster Club memberships B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 S           $40.00

 23-24            $40.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $40.00

GRANT CH003 Grant Chsd 124 Activity Fund 10022023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Fees Pd SEPT23 B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 S        $1,230.00

 23-24         $1,230.00

GRANT CH003 Grant Chsd 124 Activity Fund 23/24 Start Up 0000000000 mm092823 AP 31 Clubs @ $500 H 09/22/2023 09/28/2023 S       $15,500.00

 23-24     114631       $15,500.00

25



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:17

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2       $16,730.00

GRANT CO001 Grant Community High School Distri Petty Cash SEPT23 0000000000 mm1023 AP Petty Cash reimbursement B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 S          $212.74

 23-24           $212.74

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $212.74

GREAT LA011 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DISTRIB 37571410007 0000000000 mm1023 AP Beverages-Vending B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R          $899.54

 23-24           $899.54

GREAT LA011 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DISTRIB 37571410008 0000000000 mm1023 AP Beverages-Vending B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R          $301.20

 23-24           $301.20

GREAT LA011 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DISTRIB 37684080007 0000000000 mm1023 AP Beverages-Vending B 09/20/2023 10/19/2023 R          $633.23

 23-24           $633.23

GREAT LA011 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DISTRIB 37795422006 0000000000 mm1023 AP Beverages-Vending B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R          $547.12

 23-24           $547.12

GREAT LA011 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DISTRIB 37906243008 0000000000 mm1023 AP Beverages-Vending B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R          $512.52

 23-24           $512.52

GREAT LA011 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DISTRIB 38013793006 0000000000 mm1023 AP Beverages-Vending B 10/11/2023 10/19/2023 R          $527.90

 23-24           $527.90

GREAT LA011 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DISTRIB CM#1600762324 0000000000 mm1023 AP Beverages CREDIT B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R          $-35.00

 23-24           $-35.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 7        $3,386.51

GUARDIAN001 Guardian 00 554362 0000000000 mm092823 AP Dental/Life OCT23 H 09/21/2023 09/28/2023 R        $4,519.77

 23-24     114632        $4,519.77

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $4,519.77

HANKEJAM000 Hanke, James 09192023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Cross Country, V B 09/19/2023 10/19/2023 R          $118.00

26



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:18

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

HANKEJAM000 Hanke, James 09192023 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24           $118.00

HANKEJAM000 Hanke, James 09232023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Cross Country V/JV B 09/23/2023 10/19/2023 R          $164.00

 23-24           $164.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $282.00

HARLEM H000 Harlem High School 09272023 0000000000 mm1023 AP B Golf Regional tournament B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R          $250.00

 23-24           $250.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $250.00

HEARTLAN006 Heartland Alliance Health 23629 0000000000 mm1023 AP Telephonic B 08/31/2023 10/19/2023 R           $57.35

 23-24            $57.35

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $57.35

HILLETIM000 Hillebrand, Timothy 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $71.00

HOME DEP001 Home Depot Commercial Credit 6035322531946634 0000000000 mm1023 AP Bldg & Grnds Supply B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,511.23

 23-24         $1,511.23

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,511.23

HOUGHTON001 Houghton Mifflin 955857262 0062400001 mm1023 AP French Workbooks F B 07/17/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,236.00

 23-24         $2,236.00

HOUGHTON001 Houghton Mifflin 955910503 0062400004 mm1023 AP French Workbooks F B 08/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,059.23

 23-24         $2,059.23

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $4,295.23

HUEMANN 000 Huemann Water Conditioning 196480 0000000000 mm1023 AP Softener installation B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,300.00

27



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:19

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

HUEMANN 000 Huemann Water Conditioning 196480 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24         $2,300.00

HUEMANN 000 Huemann Water Conditioning 196495 0000000000 mm1023 AP Softener inspection B 09/07/2023 10/19/2023 R          $132.00

 23-24           $132.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $2,432.00

HUNTLEY 000 Huntley High School 10032023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Math Team Invite 11/4/23 B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R          $100.00

 23-24           $100.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $100.00

ILLINOIS021 Illinois State University 68625 0000000000 mm092823 AP IL Theater Fest registration H 08/31/2023 09/28/2023 R        $1,725.00

 23-24     114633        $1,725.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,725.00

INTEGRAT000 Integrated Systems Corp 0735034 0000000000 mm1023 AP Skyward NOV23 B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,021.68

 23-24         $1,021.68

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,021.68

INTEGRAT001 Integrated Security Specialists 14788 0000000000 mm1023 AP Monitor Oct-Dec23 HS B 09/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $280.50

     building       

 23-24           $280.50

INTEGRAT001 Integrated Security Specialists 14789 0000000000 mm1023 AP Monitor Oct-Dec23 Fieldhouse B 09/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $231.00

 23-24           $231.00

INTEGRAT001 Integrated Security Specialists 14790 0000000000 mm1023 AP Monitor Oct-Dec23 District B 09/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $213.00

     Building       

 23-24           $213.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 3          $724.50

INTERQUE000 Interquest Detection Canines of Ch 2284 0000000000 mm1023 AP 1/2 day school visit B 08/31/2023 10/19/2023 R          $355.00

28



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:20

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

INTERQUE000 Interquest Detection Canines of Ch 2284 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24           $355.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $355.00

IPSENELL000 Ipsen, Ellen 10032023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G. Volleyball, V/JV B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

JACOBLIN000 Jacobs, Linda 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP CDL Reimbursement B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $61.35

 23-24            $61.35

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $61.35

JAKOBJOH000 Jakobsze, John 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

JEFFRLIN000 Jeffrey, Linda 09252023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G. Volleyball, V/Soph B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $119.00

 23-24           $119.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $119.00

JIMENPET000 Jimenez, Peter 09222023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

JOHNSSTE002 Johnson, Steven 10022023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Cross Country B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 R          $133.00

 23-24           $133.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $133.00

KAHOOT! 000 Kahoot! ASA 6661797 3002400039 mm1023 AP Kahoot Software Renewal F B 09/20/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,836.00

29



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:21

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

KAHOOT! 000 Kahoot! ASA 6661797 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24         $1,836.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,836.00

KLIPSMIK000 Klipstein, Mike 09282023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G Volleyball JV2/JV2B B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R          $114.00

 23-24           $114.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $114.00

KRIHA BO000 Kriha Boucek LLC 5550 0000000000 mm091923 AP AUG23 Legal Services H 09/05/2023 09/19/2023 R          $712.50

 23-24     114595          $712.50

KRIHA BO000 Kriha Boucek LLC 5648 0000000000 mm1023 AP SEPT23 Legal Services B 10/09/2023 10/19/2023 R          $912.00

 23-24           $912.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $1,624.50

KUSIAKEV000 Kusiak, Kevin 09212023 4:30 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer JV B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $65.00

 23-24            $65.00

KUSIAKEV000 Kusiak, Kevin 09212023 6:15 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer V B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $147.00

KUVSHALE000 Kuvshinikov, Alex 09122023 4:30 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $65.00

 23-24            $65.00

KUVSHALE000 Kuvshinikov, Alex 09122023 6:15 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $147.00

LAKE COU018 Lake County Health Dept & Communit 05042023 0000000000 mm1023 AP 2023-24 Counseling Services B 05/04/2023 10/19/2023 R       $55,672.00

 23-24        $55,672.00

30



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:22

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $55,672.00

LAKE COU033 Lake County Dept of Public Works 0347782-000004351 0000000000 mm1023 AP Sewer 073123-093023 Molidor B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R          $398.00

     Rd       

 23-24           $398.00

LAKE COU033 Lake County Dept of Public Works 0359060-000007247 0000000000 mm1023 AP Sewer 073123-093023 Old B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R          $286.20

     Grand Ave       

 23-24           $286.20

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $684.20

LAKES RE000 Lakes Region Co-Op OCT 2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP OCT23 Ins Premium B 10/11/2023 10/19/2023 R       $85,423.23

 23-24        $85,423.23

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $85,423.23

LAKESHOR004 Lakeshore Athletic Services, Inc. 2302930 0000000000 mm1023 AP Lake Co Invite services B 08/30/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,484.15

 23-24         $2,484.15

LAKESHOR004 Lakeshore Athletic Services, Inc. 2303027 0000000000 mm1023 AP JT XCntry services B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,228.40

 23-24         $2,228.40

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $4,712.55

LUKEMVER000 Lukemeyer, Veronica 10032023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Conference mileage B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R          $159.29

     reimbursement       

 23-24           $159.29

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $159.29

MAGEEDAV000 Magee, David 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

MAJOR AP000 Major Appliance Service 261144 0000000000 mm1023 AP Groen Steamer inspection B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R          $388.00

31



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:23

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

MAJOR AP000 Major Appliance Service 261144 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24           $388.00

MAJOR AP000 Major Appliance Service 261306 0000000000 mm1023 AP Groen Steamer repairs B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,633.23

 23-24         $1,633.23

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $2,021.23

MANKOFF 000 Mankoff Industries, Inc. 6475 0000000000 mm1023 AP 20day/45day/NFR reports B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R        $8,200.00

 23-24         $8,200.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $8,200.00

MARENGO 000 Marengo High School 09262023 0000000000 mm1023 AP JT XCntry Invite refund B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $300.00

 23-24           $300.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $300.00

MASURBLY000 Masura, Blythe EDCL518 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $460.00

 23-24           $460.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $460.00

MATTEDAV000 Mattes, David 09262023 4:30 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R           $65.00

 23-24            $65.00

MATTEDAV000 Mattes, David 09262023 6:15 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

MATTEDAV000 Mattes, David 10032023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV2 B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R           $72.00

 23-24            $72.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 3          $219.00

MCHENRY 010 McHenry Specialties 2023-747 0000000000 mm1023 AP Name Plate B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $32.00

 23-24            $32.00

32



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:24

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $32.00

MCHUGPET000 McHugh, Peter 09122023 4:30 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV2 B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $72.00

 23-24            $72.00

MCHUGPET000 McHugh, Peter 09122023 6:15 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $154.00

MCINTBIL000 McIntee, Bill 09282023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G. Volleyball, V/JV B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R          $119.00

 23-24           $119.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $119.00

MCQUEEN 000 McQueen Technology Group LLC 011380 0000000000 mm1023 AP IT Support SEPT23 B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R        $7,000.00

 23-24         $7,000.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $7,000.00

MEDCO SU001 Medco Supply Company IN96640077 0502400011 mm1023 AP 23 24 MEDCO SUPPLY ORDER P B 07/28/2023 10/19/2023 R           $14.34

 23-24            $14.34

MEDCO SU001 Medco Supply Company IN96802085 0502400021 mm1023 AP GATORADE PACKAGE F B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R          $165.00

 23-24           $165.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $179.34

MELENDAN000 Melendez, Daniel 202316 0000000000 mm1023 AP Choir Fall Concert A/V B 10/12/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,000.00

 23-24         $1,000.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,000.00

MENARDS 001 Menards 53233 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 08/29/2023 10/19/2023 R          $156.72

 23-24           $156.72

33



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:25

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

MENARDS 001 Menards 53325 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 08/30/2023 10/19/2023 R          $279.88

 23-24           $279.88

MENARDS 001 Menards 53419 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 08/31/2023 10/19/2023 R          $104.41

 23-24           $104.41

MENARDS 001 Menards 53954 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R           $51.15

 23-24            $51.15

MENARDS 001 Menards 53971 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R           $99.94

 23-24            $99.94

MENARDS 001 Menards 54254 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $12.99

 23-24            $12.99

MENARDS 001 Menards 54347 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R           $46.15

 23-24            $46.15

MENARDS 001 Menards 54419 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $149.39

 23-24           $149.39

MENARDS 001 Menards 54700 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed supply B 09/18/2023 10/19/2023 R           $92.55

 23-24            $92.55

MENARDS 001 Menards 54960 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $45.08

 23-24            $45.08

MENARDS 001 Menards 55011 0000000000 mm1023 AP Theater supply B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R          $225.94

 23-24           $225.94

MENARDS 001 Menards 55016 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed supply B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $40.24

 23-24            $40.24

MENARDS 001 Menards 55042 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R          $225.71

 23-24           $225.71

34



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:26

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

MENARDS 001 Menards 55398 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R           $30.89

 23-24            $30.89

MENARDS 001 Menards 55434 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed supply B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R           $74.32

 23-24            $74.32

MENARDS 001 Menards 55580 0000000000 mm1023 AP Theater supply B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R          $166.84

 23-24           $166.84

MENARDS 001 Menards 55626 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R           $10.98

 23-24            $10.98

MENARDS 001 Menards 55628 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed supply B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R           $58.13

 23-24            $58.13

MENARDS 001 Menards 55958 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed supply B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R           $34.41

 23-24            $34.41

MENARDS 001 Menards 56013 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed CREDIT B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R           $-6.99

 23-24            $-6.99

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 20        $1,898.73

MENTA AC000 Menta Academy North SESINV-031869 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $8,209.43

 23-24         $8,209.43

MENTA AC000 Menta Academy North SESINV-031870 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $7,083.20

 23-24         $7,083.20

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2       $15,292.63

MID-WEST000 Mid-West Truckers Association, Inc 27470 0000000000 mm1023 AP 2023 Annual Random Testing B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,295.00

 23-24         $2,295.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $2,295.00

MIKE'S B000 Mike's Brass & Woodwind 1266 0000000000 mm1023 AP Band supplies B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R          $898.24

35



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:27

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

MIKE'S B000 Mike's Brass & Woodwind 1266 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24           $898.24

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $898.24

MILOSMIK000 Milostan, Mike 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

MILOSMIK000 Milostan, Mike 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $142.00

MIP V ON000 MIP V Onion Parent LLC LR5402838 0000000000 mm1023 AP Roll-off WO#2293220 B 07/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $456.75

 23-24           $456.75

MIP V ON000 MIP V Onion Parent LLC LR5443586 0000000000 mm1023 AP Roll-off WO#2304032/2309261 B 08/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $900.00

 23-24           $900.00

MIP V ON000 MIP V Onion Parent LLC LR5481228 0000000000 mm1023 AP Roll-off WO#2324824 B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $456.75

 23-24           $456.75

MIP V ON000 MIP V Onion Parent LLC PS554279 0000000000 mm1023 AP Port-a-Potty rentals B 08/24/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,232.00

 23-24         $1,232.00

MIP V ON000 MIP V Onion Parent LLC PS560706 0000000000 mm1023 AP Port-a-Potty rentals B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,232.00

 23-24         $1,232.00

MIP V ON000 MIP V Onion Parent LLC WA1660845 0000000000 mm1023 AP Trash Service SEPT23 B 08/25/2023 10/19/2023 R           $69.00

 23-24            $69.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 6        $4,346.50

MOHAWK U000 Mohawk USA LLC 11930 3002400004 mm1023 AP Chromebook Cases F B 09/18/2023 10/19/2023 R        $7,645.00

 23-24         $7,645.00

36



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:28

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $7,645.00

MORALMIC000 Morales, Michael 09202023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, FA B 09/20/2023 10/19/2023 R           $72.00

 23-24            $72.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $72.00

MPS     000 Mps 31766552 0132400007 mm1023 AP Additional Economics F B 08/30/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,901.58

     Textbooks       

 23-24         $1,901.58

MPS     000 Mps 32936559 0132400008 mm1023 AP Economics Digital Licenses F B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,987.60

     for EL Students       

 23-24         $2,987.60

MPS     000 Mps CM#33806209 0132400008 mm1023 AP CREDIT-Economics Digital F B 09/19/2023 10/19/2023 R       $-2,987.60

     Licenses for EL Students       

 23-24        $-2,987.60

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 3        $1,901.58

MURPHPAT000 Murphy, Patrick 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

MUSIC & 000 Music & Arts Center, Inc. INV039561685 0122400008 mm1023 AP Band Supplies F B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R           $11.25

 23-24            $11.25

MUSIC & 000 Music & Arts Center, Inc. INV039826095 0122400009 mm1023 AP Band Supply Order F B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $149.85

 23-24           $149.85

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $161.10

N2Y LLC 000 N2Y LLC INV-1070545 3002400046 mm1023 AP New2You software F B 09/05/2023 10/19/2023 R          $239.99

     subscription       

37



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:29

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

N2Y LLC 000 N2Y LLC INV-1070545 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24           $239.99

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $239.99

NAATZRIC000 Naatz, Rick 09122023 4:30 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $65.00

 23-24            $65.00

NAATZRIC000 Naatz, Rick 09122023 6:15 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/12/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $147.00

NESTENAN000 Nester, Nancy 09252023 0000000000 mm1023 AP G. Volleyball, V/JV B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

NEWSELA 000 Newsela Inc INV32100 1242400001 mm1023 AP Online Current News & F B 07/01/2023 10/19/2023 R       $17,520.00

     Journal Articles for       

     Students       

 23-24        $17,520.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $17,520.00

NICOR   001 Nicor 08-78-68-1000 5 0000000000 mm1023 AP 082223-092123 ES Hawthorne B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $51.76

 23-24            $51.76

NICOR   001 Nicor 78-90-06-3769 1 0000000000 mm1023 AP Ingleside 081523-091423 B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $53.49

 23-24            $53.49

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $105.25

NITZ DAN000 Nitz, Daniel 09262023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Nintendo sub reimbursement B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R           $34.99

 23-24            $34.99

38



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:30

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $34.99

NOISESTA000 Noisey, Stacie OCT 2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Phone Reimbursement B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $100.00

 23-24           $100.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $100.00

NORTHSHO005 NorthShore University HealthSystem NS-124-16 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tutoring Services B 02/28/2023 10/19/2023 R          $624.00

 23-24           $624.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $624.00

NORTHWES024 Northwestern Med Occ Health 542883 0000000000 mm1023 AP Annual exams/DOT panel B 08/31/2023 10/19/2023 R          $715.00

 23-24           $715.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $715.00

ORKIN PE000 Orkin Pest Control 248883816 0000000000 mm1023 AP Pest Control Services B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R          $115.99

 23-24           $115.99

ORKIN PE000 Orkin Pest Control 250434102 0000000000 mm1023 AP Pest Control-285 E Grand Ave B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $158.99

 23-24           $158.99

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $274.98

PARTS TO000 Parts Town, Llc 2100572640 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R          $138.38

 23-24           $138.38

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $138.38

PEERLESS001 Peerless Network, Inc 32957 0000000000 mm1023 AP 091523-101423 B 09/15/2023 10/19/2023 R          $213.79

 23-24           $213.79

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $213.79

PERSPECT000 Perspectives LTD PER658-IN 0000000000 mm1023 AP EAP Services B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $405.00

39



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:31

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

PERSPECT000 Perspectives LTD PER658-IN ******CONTINUED******

 23-24           $405.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $405.00

POWER DI000 Power Distributors CM00004825 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed CREDIT B 02/24/2022 10/19/2023 R          $-21.22

 23-24           $-21.22

POWER DI000 Power Distributors INV101418197 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tech Ed supply B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R           $59.93

 23-24            $59.93

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2           $38.71

PRENDTIM000 Prendergast, Timothy 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $71.00

PRENDWIL000 Prendergast, Will 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $71.00

PRESLDAR000 Presley, Darryl 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $71.00

PROSPECT001 Prospect High School 10022023 0000000000 mm1023 AP B Golf Varsity Sectional B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 R          $100.00

 23-24           $100.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $100.00

QUEST FO000 Quest Food Management Services, LL IN119980 0000000000 mm1023 AP Food Service fee SEPT23 B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R       $17,821.48

 23-24        $17,821.48

40



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:32

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $17,821.48

RAY CHEV001 Ray Chevrolet VIN#LL218873 0000000000 mm091923 AP Deductible-2020 Equinox H 09/18/2023 09/19/2023 R        $2,500.00

 23-24     114596        $2,500.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $2,500.00

REICHBET000 Reich, Beth OCT 2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Phone Reimbursement B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $100.00

 23-24           $100.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $100.00

RESEARCH002 Research Press F638300 0052400012 mm1023 AP Stress Management Group F B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R          $151.80

     workbooks       

 23-24           $151.80

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $151.80

REYESSHE000 Reyes, Sheila 09172023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Credit Balance refund B 09/17/2023 10/19/2023 R          $393.00

 23-24           $393.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $393.00

RICHAGAY000 Richards, Gayle 10042023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Science Dept reimbursement B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R           $69.93

 23-24            $69.93

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $69.93

RIDDELL 000 Riddell 951944889 0502400027 mm1023 AP FOOTBALL ACCESSORY HELMET F B 08/31/2023 10/19/2023 R          $377.00

     KIT       

 23-24           $377.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $377.00

RITTECRA000 Ritter, Craig 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

41



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:33

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

ROHRBNIN000 Rohrbach, Ninfa EDUC960A 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R          $470.00

 23-24           $470.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $470.00

ROUNSWIL000 Rounsaville, Willie 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $71.00

SARIKDEM000 Sarikoudis, Demetre 10032023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R           $65.00

 23-24            $65.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $65.00

SCHMIMIC000 Schmickley, Michael 09262023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

SCHMIMIC000 Schmickley, Michael 10032023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $164.00

SCHROJOS000 Schroeder, Joshua 09222023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

SCHURING000 Schuring & Schuring, Inc. SEPT23 18192 0000000000 mm1023 AP Milk Delivery SEPT23 B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R        $3,988.29

 23-24         $3,988.29

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $3,988.29

SECTION 000 Section 8 Doors and Hardware Inc 10130 0000000000 mm1023 AP Wood door with Lite B 09/07/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,250.00

42



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:34

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

SECTION 000 Section 8 Doors and Hardware Inc 10130 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24         $1,250.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,250.00

SECURLY 000 Securly Inc 123079 3002400049 mm1023 AP e-hallpass software P B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,063.60

 23-24         $6,063.60

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $6,063.60

SEDOL   001 Sedol 10052023 0000000000 mm1023 AP OCT23 Billing B 10/05/2023 10/19/2023 R       $57,296.76

 23-24        $57,296.76

SEDOL   001 Sedol 24CONTR.1 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23-24 Contractual Bill B 10/11/2023 10/19/2023 R       $11,499.00

 23-24        $11,499.00

SEDOL   001 Sedol 24IMRF2 0000000000 mm1023 AP 2022 IMRF Levy FY23 2nd B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R       $26,525.00

     installment       

 23-24        $26,525.00

SEDOL   001 Sedol 35309 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $4,687.80

 23-24         $4,687.80

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 4      $100,008.56

SEFCICHR000 Sefcik, Christine OCT 2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Phone Reimbursement B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $100.00

 23-24           $100.00

SEFCICHR000 Sefcik, Christine OCT 2023. 0000000000 mm1023 AP Misc Expense Reimbursement B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $450.00

 23-24           $450.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $550.00

SHORELIN000 Shoreline Graphics 6092 0002400010 mm1023 AP Printed GCHS Envelopes F B 08/23/2023 10/19/2023 R        $3,435.48

 23-24         $3,435.48

43



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:35

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

SHORELIN000 Shoreline Graphics 6106 0000000000 mm1023 AP Business Cards B 09/13/2023 10/19/2023 R           $83.57

 23-24            $83.57

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2        $3,519.05

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0323 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-SKH B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $540.00

 23-24           $540.00

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0324 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-CM B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $135.00

 23-24           $135.00

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0325 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-SM B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $270.00

 23-24           $270.00

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0326 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-VM B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $135.00

 23-24           $135.00

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0327 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-KR B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $405.00

 23-24           $405.00

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0328 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-TS B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $405.00

 23-24           $405.00

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0329 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-RY B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $540.00

 23-24           $540.00

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0330 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-HS Consult B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $405.00

 23-24           $405.00

SILVER L000 Silver Lining Therapeutic Services 0331 0000000000 mm1023 AP Therapeutic Srv-TH B 09/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $135.00

 23-24           $135.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 9        $2,970.00

SNODGMIC000 Snodgrass, Michael 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

44



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:36

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $71.00

SONDETIN000 Sonders, Tina OCT 2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Phone Reimbursement B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R          $100.00

 23-24           $100.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $100.00

SPECTRUM004 Spectrum Center Inc. 07012023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition JUN23 B 07/01/2023 10/19/2023 R        $4,167.60

 23-24         $4,167.60

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $4,167.60

STEPHTER000 Stephenson, Terry 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, Soph B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R           $71.00

 23-24            $71.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $71.00

STRIVE F000 Strive For Independence Inc 1910 0000000000 mm1023 AP BTW/Readiness Eval B 09/19/2023 10/19/2023 R          $625.00

 23-24           $625.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $625.00

STUMPCAR000 Stump, Carrie LIS999-06 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,760.00

 23-24         $2,760.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $2,760.00

SULLISHA000 Sullivan, Sharon 09142023 0000000000 mm091423 AP XCntry Gas/Meal allowance H 09/14/2023 09/14/2023 R          $310.02

 23-24     114588          $310.02

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $310.02

SYNERGY 001 Synergy Education Consulting LLC 124-003 9/25/23 0000000000 mm1023 AP Wrkshp 9/25/23 prep/supplies B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,972.25

 23-24         $6,972.25

45



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:37

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $6,972.25

TEAM FIT000 Team Fitz Graphics 60991 0502400013 mm1023 AP SOFTBALL ALL STATE SIGNS F B 07/26/2023 10/19/2023 R          $989.00

 23-24           $989.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $989.00

TECHNOLO000 Technology Campus SEPT 2023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/15/2023 10/19/2023 R       $52,256.10

 23-24        $52,256.10

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $52,256.10

THE HOME001 The Home Depot Pro 765628698 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/15/2023 10/19/2023 R          $995.40

 23-24           $995.40

THE HOME001 The Home Depot Pro 766356299 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/20/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,343.60

 23-24         $1,343.60

THE HOME001 The Home Depot Pro 767525686 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/27/2023 10/19/2023 R        $2,069.30

 23-24         $2,069.30

THE HOME001 The Home Depot Pro 767985690 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R          $753.40

 23-24           $753.40

THE HOME001 The Home Depot Pro 768706400 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 10/04/2023 10/19/2023 R          $258.39

 23-24           $258.39

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 5        $5,420.09

THE HOPE000 The Hope School SINV005724 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition/Trnsprt SEPT23 B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R       $10,594.40

 23-24        $10,594.40

THE HOPE000 The Hope School SINV005787 0000000000 mm1023 AP Room & Board SEPT23 B 09/30/2023 10/19/2023 R       $17,184.30

 23-24        $17,184.30

46



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:38

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2       $27,778.70

THE OMNI000 The Omni Group 2310-7100 0000000000 mm1023 AP Compliance Oversight B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R            $3.00

 23-24             $3.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1            $3.00

TK ELEVA000 TK Elevator Corporation 3007449842 0000000000 mm1023 AP Elevator Svc Sept-Nov23 B 09/01/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,206.12

 23-24         $1,206.12

TK ELEVA000 TK Elevator Corporation 6000671294 0000000000 mm1023 AP Selector Board service B 08/22/2023 10/19/2023 R        $4,327.00

 23-24         $4,327.00

TK ELEVA000 TK Elevator Corporation 6000675156 0000000000 mm1023 AP Selector Board service B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R        $7,051.11

 23-24         $7,051.11

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 3       $12,584.23

TOMBAPET000 Tombasco, Peter 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

TOPLINE 000 TOPLINE TRANSPORTATION CO. 102782 0000000000 mm1023 AP Student Trnsprt SEPT23 B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R       $65,538.00

 23-24        $65,538.00

TOPLINE 000 TOPLINE TRANSPORTATION CO. 102783 0000000000 mm1023 AP Homeless Trnsprt SEPT23 B 10/01/2023 10/19/2023 R       $21,332.50

 23-24        $21,332.50

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2       $86,870.50

ULINE   001 Uline 168197224 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/08/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,315.00

 23-24         $1,315.00

ULINE   001 Uline 168658933 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/20/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,200.00

 23-24         $1,200.00

47



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:39

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

ULINE   001 Uline 169059676 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R          $159.57

 23-24           $159.57

ULINE   001 Uline 169170703 0000000000 mm1023 AP BLDG & GRNDS supply B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,335.00

 23-24         $1,335.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 4        $4,009.57

VANLUMEL000 VanLue, Melissa 09152023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Dawg Bowl reimbursement B 09/15/2023 10/19/2023 R          $134.24

 23-24           $134.24

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $134.24

VENDEMIC000 Vendegna, Michelle EDCL504 0000000000 mm1023 AP 23/24 Tuition reimbursement B 09/25/2023 10/19/2023 R          $460.00

 23-24           $460.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $460.00

VERIZON 000 VERIZON WIRELESS 9943701037 0000000000 mm091923 AP 942086720 080623-090523 H 09/05/2023 09/19/2023 R          $808.52

 23-24     114597          $808.52

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $808.52

VERNIER 000 Vernier 5469602 0032400022 mm1023 AP Chem capital order F B 09/18/2023 10/19/2023 R       $10,614.59

 23-24        $10,614.59

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1       $10,614.59

VERSION2000 VERSION2 HOSTING 11937 0000000000 mm1023 AP Veeam Backup B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,081.00

 23-24         $1,081.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,081.00

VIRTUAL 001 Virtual Connections Academy 4729 0000000000 mm1023 AP Tuition SEPT23 B 09/29/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,659.88

 23-24         $6,659.88

48



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:40

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $6,659.88

VISCITIM000 Viscioni, Timothy LEAD437 0000000000 mm091923 AP 23/24 Tuition Reimbursement H 09/15/2023 09/19/2023 R        $1,350.87

 23-24     114598        $1,350.87

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,350.87

VISION S000 Vision Service Plan IL  (VSP) 818792320 0000000000 mm092823 AP Vision Premium OCT23 H 09/17/2023 09/28/2023 R          $681.91

 23-24     114634          $681.91

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $681.91

WARD'S  001 Ward's 8813951824 0032400002 mm1023 AP Wards Dept order P B 09/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $148.55

 23-24           $148.55

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $148.55

WAUKEGAN011 Waukegan Roofing Co Inc 1964112 0000000000 mm1023 AP Roof Inspection/Repairs B 09/28/2023 10/19/2023 R        $1,651.01

 23-24         $1,651.01

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1        $1,651.01

WEIS JAY000 Weis, Jay 10032023 4:30 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R           $65.00

 23-24            $65.00

WEIS JAY000 Weis, Jay 10032023 6:15 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 10/03/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $147.00

WEST MIC000 West, Michael 09222023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/22/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

WEX BANK000 WEX BANK 91773578 0000000000 mm1023 AP Fuel Purchases B 09/15/2023 10/19/2023 M          $941.58

49



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:41

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

WEX BANK000 WEX BANK 91773578 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24     114589          $941.58

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $941.58

WOJDAWOJ000 Wojdak, Wojciech 09212023 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1           $82.00

WOTRIFRA000 Wotring, Frank L 10062023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 10/06/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

WRIGHLAU000 Wright, Laura Ann 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Hearing/Vision Screenings B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $762.50

 23-24           $762.50

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $762.50

WSI MACH000 WSI Machinery Inc. 46599 0112400000 mm1023 AP CTE Equipment F B 09/07/2023 10/19/2023 R        $6,248.00

 23-24         $6,248.00

WSI MACH000 WSI Machinery Inc. 46600 0112400000 mm1023 AP CTE Equipment F B 09/07/2023 10/19/2023 R        $8,149.97

 23-24         $8,149.97

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2       $14,397.97

XHEMARAS000 Xhemaili, Rasim 09212023 4:30 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, JV2 B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $72.00

 23-24            $72.00

XHEMARAS000 Xhemaili, Rasim 09212023 6:15 0000000000 mm1023 AP IHSA-B. Soccer, V B 09/21/2023 10/19/2023 R           $82.00

 23-24            $82.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 2          $154.00

ZEITLERI000 Zeitler, Eric 09142023 0000000000 mm1023 AP Football, V B 09/14/2023 10/19/2023 R          $116.00

50



3APRPT01.P 68-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:42

05.23.06.00.03 AP Invoice Listing Report 10:53 AM

VEN-KEY     VENDOR NAME                        INVOICE #            PO NUMBER  BATCH    BANK  DESCRIPTION                   LQ S  INV DATE   DUE DATE   C       NET AMOUNT

ACH VOID DOWNLOAD DISCOUNT DESCRIPTION                DISC AMT ADJUSTMENT DESCRIPTION        FY          ADJ AMT CHECK NBR   INVOICE AMOUNT

ZEITLERI000 Zeitler, Eric 09142023 ******CONTINUED******

 23-24           $116.00

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $116.00

ZIELIKAT000 Zielinski, Katherine 10052023 0000000000 mm1023 AP PBIS cart reimbursement B 10/02/2023 10/19/2023 R          $221.94

 23-24           $221.94

NUMBER OF INVOICES: 1          $221.94

TOTAL NUMBER OF BATCH INVOICES: 326    $1,009,771.00

TOTAL NUMBER OF HISTORY INVOICES: 22       $53,966.85

  347 COMPUTER CHECK INVOICES    $1,062,796.27

    1 MANUAL CHECK INVOICES          $941.58

TOTAL INVOICES: 348    $1,063,737.85

BANK TOTALS: BANK BANK ACCOUNT #   INVOICE AMOUNT       NET AMOUNT

AP **A000 1120 0000 00 000000    $1,063,737.85    $1,063,737.85

LIQUIDATION STATUS (LQ) CODE LEGEND:

L = LIQUIDATION PENDING C = CLOSED PO/NOT RECEIVING

P = PARTIAL LIQUIDATION F = FULL LIQUIDATION

BLANK = NO LIQUIDATION

************************ End of report ************************

51



3frbud12.p 76-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:1

05.23.06.00.03 BOE REVENUE SUMMARY BY FUND  (Date: 9/2023)  5:12 PM

2023-24 September 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24

FD      SOURCE                         ANNUAL BUDGET  MONTHLY ACTIVITY     FYTD ACTIVITY           BALANCE      FYTD %

10 EDUCATION FUND

10 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES     19,883,299.00      5,978,398.26      7,336,235.58     12,547,063.42       36.90

10 FLOW THROUGH              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00        0.00

10 STATE SOURCES     22,701,855.00        658,115.87      1,357,840.01     21,344,014.99        5.98

10 FEDERAL SOURCES      1,639,961.00         52,559.90        294,535.97      1,345,425.03       17.96

10 TRANSFERS              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00        0.00

10 EDUCATION FUND     44,225,115.00      6,689,074.03      8,988,611.56     35,236,503.44       20.32

20 OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND

20 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES      4,673,103.00      1,542,824.47      1,741,731.44      2,931,371.56       37.27

20 STATE SOURCES         50,000.00              0.00              0.00         50,000.00        0.00

20 FEDERAL SOURCES              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00        0.00

20 TRANSFERS              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00        0.00

20 OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE F      4,723,103.00      1,542,824.47      1,741,731.44      2,981,371.56       36.88

30 DEBT SERVICE FUND

30 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00        0.00

30 TRANSFERS              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00        0.00

30 DEBT SERVICE FUND              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00        0.00

40 TRANSPORTATION FUND

40 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES      1,526,780.00        505,834.58        568,174.68        958,605.32       37.21

40 STATE SOURCES      1,731,250.00              0.00        444,160.88      1,287,089.12       25.66

40 TRANSFERS        898,545.00              0.00              0.00        898,545.00        0.00

40 TRANSPORTATION FUND      4,156,575.00        505,834.58      1,012,335.56      3,144,239.44       24.36

50 I.M.R.F./SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

50 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES        968,443.00        307,641.47        347,277.54        621,165.46       35.86

50 I.M.R.F./SOCIAL SECURITY F        968,443.00        307,641.47        347,277.54        621,165.46       35.86

60 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

60 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00        0.00

60 TRANSFERS      4,500,000.00              0.00              0.00      4,500,000.00        0.00

60 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND      4,500,000.00              0.00              0.00      4,500,000.00        0.00

70 WORKING CASH FUND

70 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES        331,732.00        107,192.71        130,660.75        201,071.25       39.39

70 WORKING CASH FUND        331,732.00        107,192.71        130,660.75        201,071.25       39.39

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Grand Revenue Totals     58,904,968.00      9,152,567.26     12,220,616.85     46,684,351.15       20.75

Number of Accounts: 110

************************ End of report ************************

52



3frbud12.p 76-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:1

05.23.06.00.03 BOE EXPENDITURE SUMMARY BY FUND  (Date: 9/2023)  5:11 PM

2023-24 September 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24

FD OBJ OBJ                                ANNUAL BUDGET  MONTHLY ACTIVITY     FYTD ACTIVITY           BALANCE      FY %

10 EDUCATION FUND

10 1--- SALARIES     19,184,235.00      1,616,737.98      5,228,756.39     14,703,216.05     27.26

10 2--- BENEFITS      2,594,731.00        170,041.68        959,616.68      1,720,687.71     36.98

10 3--- PURCHASED SERVICES      2,832,205.00        189,564.42      1,006,047.64      2,061,981.44     35.52

10 4--- SUPPLIES      2,026,630.00        391,717.39      1,148,565.98        931,971.85     56.67

10 5--- CAPITAL OUTLAY        371,060.00         60,670.34        290,624.82         70,288.39     78.32

10 6--- OTHER OBJECTS      2,052,037.00        235,217.00        752,732.91      1,428,466.29     36.68

10 7--- NON-CAP EQUIPMENT              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00      0.00

10 8--- TUITION              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00      0.00

10 ---- EDUCATION FUND     29,060,898.00      2,663,948.81      9,386,344.42     20,916,611.73     32.30

20 OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND

20 1--- SALARIES      1,122,711.00         94,580.90        328,480.42        840,065.13     29.26

20 2--- BENEFITS        173,322.00         14,176.63         56,234.67        130,792.11     32.45

20 3--- PURCHASED SERVICES      1,390,597.00        139,318.26        415,319.43      1,096,189.79     29.87

20 4--- SUPPLIES        750,500.00         86,716.31        269,367.71        550,368.78     35.89

20 5--- CAPITAL OUTLAY        250,000.00        116,210.12        239,247.70         13,129.33     95.70

20 6--- OTHER OBJECTS            700.00              0.00              0.00            700.00      0.00

20 7--- NON-CAP EQUIPMENT      1,500,000.00              0.00              0.00      1,500,000.00      0.00

20 ---- OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND      5,187,830.00        451,002.22      1,308,649.93      4,131,245.14     25.23

30 DEBT SERVICE FUND

30 6--- OTHER OBJECTS              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00      0.00

30 7--- NON-CAP EQUIPMENT              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00      0.00

30 ---- DEBT SERVICE FUND              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00      0.00

40 TRANSPORTATION FUND

40 1--- SALARIES        830,000.00         75,901.46        211,070.94        653,344.65     25.43

40 2--- BENEFITS        175,104.00         13,824.90         53,763.50        134,397.35     30.70

40 3--- PURCHASED SERVICES      2,827,371.00        137,539.80        878,516.76      2,069,322.57     31.07

40 4--- SUPPLIES        204,000.00          2,203.06         29,651.59        195,505.94     14.54

40 5--- CAPITAL OUTLAY        120,000.00              0.00        119,998.78              1.22    100.00

40 6--- OTHER OBJECTS            100.00              0.00             30.00             70.00     30.00

40 7--- NON-CAP EQUIPMENT              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00      0.00

40 ---- TRANSPORTATION FUND      4,156,575.00        229,469.22      1,293,031.57      3,052,641.73     31.11

50 I.M.R.F./SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

50 2--- BENEFITS        968,443.00         80,960.13        311,486.24        721,048.96     32.16

50 ---- I.M.R.F./SOCIAL SECURITY FUND        968,443.00         80,960.13        311,486.24        721,048.96     32.16

60 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

60 5--- CAPITAL OUTLAY      4,500,000.00              0.00              0.00      4,500,000.00      0.00

60 7--- NON-CAP EQUIPMENT              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00      0.00

60 ---- CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND      4,500,000.00              0.00              0.00      4,500,000.00      0.00
53



3frbud12.p 76-4 Grant Community High School District 124 10/12/23 Page:2

05.23.06.00.03 BOE EXPENDITURE SUMMARY BY FUND  (Date: 9/2023)  5:11 PM

2023-24 September 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24

FD OBJ OBJ                                ANNUAL BUDGET  MONTHLY ACTIVITY     FYTD ACTIVITY           BALANCE      FY %

70 WORKING CASH FUND

70 6--- OTHER OBJECTS      3,898,545.00              0.00              0.00      3,898,545.00      0.00

70 7--- NON-CAP EQUIPMENT              0.00              0.00              0.00              0.00      0.00

70 ---- WORKING CASH FUND      3,898,545.00              0.00              0.00      3,898,545.00      0.00

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Grand Expense Totals     47,772,291.00      3,425,380.38     12,299,512.16     37,220,092.56     25.75

Number of Accounts: 1169

************************ End of report ************************

54



E.A.V. 1,078,742,086

TOTAL EXTENSION 24,413,821.25

RATES 1.593 0.409 0.138 0.036 0.043 0.028 0.000 0.005
% OF TOTAL 

DISTRIBUTION 70.73% 18.18% 6.13% 1.59% 1.91% 1.23% 0.00% 0.22%

DATE AMOUNT % EDUCATION O & M TRANS. IMRF FICA W.C. B & I SEDOL

============= ====================== =============== ============= ============= ============= ============= ============= ==========================

Current Year

GL Account # 10-1111-100000 20-1111-100000 40-1111-100000 50-1151-100000 50-1151-100000 70-1111-100000 50-1153-100000

05/25/23 840,751.63 3.44% 594,697.86 152,868.55 51,500.11 13,393.29 16,092.41 10,363.41 0.00 1,836.00

06/08/23 2,761,089.32 14.75% 1,953,030.89 502,031.40 169,130.10 43,984.54 52,848.64 34,034.20 0.00 6,029.55

06/20/23 6,709,443.30 42.24% 4,745,862.42 1,219,935.62 410,985.92 106,882.38 128,422.12 82,703.06 0.00 14,651.79

06/29/23 1,490,171.38 48.34% 1,054,058.89 270,948.43 91,280.22 23,738.64 28,522.63 18,368.40 0.00 3,254.17
Total Current Yr 

Disbritubion 11,801,455.63 48.34% 8,347,650.07 2,145,783.99 722,896.36 187,998.85 225,885.79 145,469.06 0.00 25,771.50

Prior Year

GL Account # 10-1112-100000 20-1112-100000 40-1112-100000 50-1152-100000 50-1152-100000 70-1112-100000 50-1153-100000

07/13/23 559,843.97 50.63% 396,000.43 101,792.89 34,293.16 8,918.39 10,715.69 6,900.84 0.00 1,222.56

07/27/23 292,044.52 51.83% 206,574.98 53,100.61 17,889.14 4,652.31 5,589.88 3,599.85 0.00 637.75

08/02/23 92.40 51.83% 65.36 16.80 5.66 1.47 1.77 1.14 0.00 0.20

08/07/23 4,683.53 51.85% 3,312.85 851.58 286.89 74.61 89.65 57.73 0.00 10.23

08/17/23 152,241.06 52.47% 107,686.30 27,681.03 9,325.50 2,425.22 2,913.97 1,876.58 0.00 332.46

08/29/23 4,554.79 52.49% 3,221.79 828.17 279.00 72.56 87.18 56.14 0.00 9.95

08/31/23 4,156.37 52.51% 2,939.97 755.73 254.60 66.21 79.56 51.23 0.00 9.08

08/31/23 65.74 52.51% 46.50 11.95 4.03 1.05 1.26 0.81 0.00 0.14

09/01/23 12,105.05 52.56% 8,562.39 2,200.98 741.49 192.84 231.70 149.21 0.00 26.43

GRANT COMM. HIGH  SCHOOL DISTRICT #124 PROPERTY TAX DISTRIBUTION 2022

55



0.01

09/01/23 7,683.07 52.59% 5,434.55 1,396.96 470.63 122.39 147.06 94.70 0.00 16.78

09/05/23 11,945.74 52.64% 8,449.71 2,172.02 731.73 190.30 228.65 147.25 0.00 26.09

(0.01)

09/11/23 6,106,353.50 77.65% 4,319,272.45 1,110,279.61 374,043.75 97,275.07 116,878.67 75,269.15 0.00 13,334.79

0.01

09/29/23 2,119,765.83 86.33% 1,499,396.68 385,423.61 129,845.93 33,768.17 40,573.38 26,129.01 0.00 4,629.05

10/19/23 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11/16/23 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12/14/23 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 5/25 4,148.56 0.02% 0.00 4,148.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 6/8 13,595.80 0.06% 0.00 13,595.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 6/29 33,045.19 0.14% 0.00 33,045.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 7/13 7,338.94 0.03% 0.00 7,338.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 7/13 2,757.18 0.01% 0.00 2,757.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 7/27 1,442.88 0.00 1,442.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB?CE 

Recapture - 8/17 750.77 0.00% 0.00 750.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 9/11 30,074.86 0.00% 0.00 30,074.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 9/29 10,444.02 0.00% 0.00 10,444.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 10/19 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 11/16 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PTAB/CE 

Recapture - 12/14 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prior Yr Total 9,379,133.77 6,560,963.97 1,790,110.13 568,171.51 147,760.59 177,538.41 114,333.65 0.00 20,255.51

Interest 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTALS 21,180,589.40 86.8% 14,908,614.04 3,935,894.13 1,291,067.87 335,759.44 403,424.20 259,802.71 0.00 46,027.01
(without int.)

56



10687-101

Trans. Date Date

No. Placed Matures Type Location Cost Basis Yield EDUC BLDG B & I TRANS IMRF/FICA WORK CSH INT. EST.

56932 10/21/22 10/05/23 TBILL US Treasury 699,689.45 4.48 250,799.56 448,889.89 30,310.55

33539 05/25/23 10/12/23 CD Preferred Bank 244,950.00 5.21 244,950.00 4,895.43

60131 05/25/23 10/12/23 TBILL US Treasury 449,984.56 5.28 449,984.56 9,015.44

60715 07/03/23 10/12/23 TBILL US Treasury 699,950.64 5.20 699,950.64 10,049.36

60716 07/03/23 10/19/23 TBILL US Treasury 1,699,783.79 5.23 1,699,783.79 26,216.21

49434 11/01/21 10/31/23 TNOTE US Treasury 1,499,761.21 0.35 1,499,761.21 15.53

60717 07/03/23 11/09/23 TBILL US Treasury 699,128.52 5.22 599,128.52 30,000.00 70,000.00 12,871.48

1350842 06/30/23 11/17/23 CD First National Bank 244,950.00 5.25 244,950.00 4,929.20

1350843 06/30/23 11/17/23 CD Western Alliance Bank 1,855,050.00 5.22 1,000,000.00 55,050.00 800,000.00 37,163.00

52750 05/18/22 11/20/23 DTC Sandy Spring Bank 247,182.20 2.30 247,182.20 5,685.19

52751 05/20/22 11/20/23 DTC Oceanfirst Bank NA 247,181.73 2.20 247,181.73 5,434.00

61531 09/11/23 12/14/23 TNOTE US Treasury 1,452,736.96 5.33 1,452,736.96 19,263.04

1353285 09/11/23 12/14/23 CD Southside Bank 246,500.00 5.29 246,500.00 3,358.84

61532 09/11/23 12/28/23 TNOTE US Treasury 899,030.19 5.30 899,030.19 13,969.81

60132 05/25/23 12/31/23 TNOTE US Treasury 298,110.94 5.20 298,110.94 6,963.45

61533 09/11/23 01/09/24 TNOTE US Treasury 1,999,205.89 5.35 1,999,205.89 34,794.11

33803 05/25/23 01/11/24 CD Wheaton Bank & Trust 241,950.00 5.17 241,950.00 7,916.58

57103 05/25/23 01/11/24 CD Schaumburg Bank & Trust 241,950.00 5.17 241,950.00 7,916.58

5744 05/25/23 01/19/24 CD State Bank of the Lakes 241,700.00 5.15 241,700.00 8,151.98

27052 05/25/23 01/19/24 CD St. Charles Bank & Trust Company241,700.00 5.15 241,700.00 8,151.98

34011 05/25/23 01/19/24 CD Village Bank and Trust 241,700.00 5.15 241,700.00 8,151.98

34717 05/25/23 01/19/24 CD Town Bank 241,700.00 5.15 241,700.00 8,151.98

57082 05/25/23 01/19/24 CD Northbrook Bank & Trust 241,700.00 5.15 241,700.00 8,151.98

57512 05/25/23 01/19/24 CD Western Alliance Bank 241,700.00 5.17 241,700.00 8,188.57

58314 05/25/23 01/19/24 CD Old Plank Trail Cmmty Bank 241,700.00 5.15 241,700.00 8,151.98

33935 05/25/23 01/30/24 CD Wintrust Bank 100,200.00 5.15 100,200.00 3,533.29

1353283 09/11/23 01/30/24 CD DMB Community Bank 244,850.00 5.25 244,850.00 4,962.87

1353284 09/11/23 01/30/24 CD Vast Bank, Natl Association 244,750.00 5.35 244,750.00 5,058.28

27589 05/25/23 02/14/24 CD Lake Forest Bank & Trust 240,850.00 5.15 240,850.00 9,001.30

33686 05/25/23 02/14/24 CD Bank Hapoalim B.M. 240,850.00 5.12 240,850.00 8,948.87

33849 05/25/23 02/14/24 CD Hinsdale Bank & Trust 240,850.00 5.15 240,850.00 9,001.30

34073 05/25/23 02/14/24 CD Libertyville Bank & Trust 240,850.00 5.15 240,850.00 9,001.30

34681 05/25/23 02/14/24 CD Crystal Lake Bank & Trust 240,850.00 5.15 240,850.00 9,001.30

57701 05/25/23 02/14/24 CD Beverly Bank & Trust Co 240,850.00 5.15 240,850.00 9,001.30

60133 05/25/23 02/15/24 TNOTE US Treasury 349,287.58 5.13 349,287.58 12,587.42

14445 05/25/23 02/28/24 CD Farmers and Merchants Union Bank240,450.00 5.13 240,450.00 9,428.80

29209 05/25/23 03/14/24 CD NexBank 240,050.00 5.09 240,050.00 9,843.71

34395 05/25/23 03/14/24 CD Barrington Bank & Trust Co 240,000.00 5.09 240,000.00 9,839.92

60386 06/14/23 03/14/24 DTC Bank of America 240,279.29 5.14 240,279.29 9,262.77

60390 06/14/23 03/14/24 DTC US Bank Natl Assoc 240,192.55 5.25 240,192.55 9,457.58

60396 06/15/23 03/15/24 DTC Ally Bank 240,279.29 5.14 240,279.29 9,262.77

60400 06/16/23 03/15/24 DTC SO Bank & Trust Co 240,278.31 5.14 240,278.31 9,262.73

60399 06/21/23 03/21/24 DTC Washington Federal 240,279.29 5.14 240,279.29 9,262.77

5496 05/25/23 03/22/24 CD Cornerstone Bank 239,600.00 5.15 239,600.00 10,199.67

1349811 06/08/23 04/12/24 CD Financial Federal Bank 220,950.00 5.11 220,950.00 9,558.30

1349813 06/08/23 04/12/24 CD CIBM Bank 239,500.00 5.11 239,500.00 10,360.77

1349817 06/08/23 04/12/24 CD ServisFirst Bank 239,550.00 5.12 239,550.00 10,346.75

1349810 06/08/23 04/19/24 CD Western Alliance Bank 1,921,700.00 5.12 1,921,700.00 85,099.19

1349812 06/08/23 04/19/24 CD The First National Bank of McGregor239,200.00 5.15 239,200.00 10,665.04

1349816 06/08/23 04/19/24 CD Bank 7 239,100.00 5.20 239,100.00 10,757.88

60719 07/03/23 04/30/24 TNOTE US Treasury 1,992,706.52 5.32 1,992,706.52 54,293.48

296051 06/27/23 06/26/24 TS Term Series 1,300,000.00 5.25 1,300,000.00 68,250.00

49435 10/28/21 10/31/24 TNOTE US Treasury 1,984,269.80 0.61 1,984,269.80 14,261.13

49428 11/03/21 11/04/24 DTC Goldman Sachs Bank USA 249,443.64 0.69 249,443.64 443.64

49429 11/03/21 11/04/24 DTC UBS Bank USA 249,074.04 0.69 100,000.00 114,559.81 34,514.23 74.04

1354105 09/29/23 02/14/25 CD CIBC Bank USA 233,000.00 5.25 233,000.00 16,874.82

1354107 09/29/23 02/14/25 CD Truxton Trust Co 232,900.00 5.25 232,900.00 16,950.68

GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124  

PMA FINANCIAL NETWORK, INC.

INVESTMENT SCHEDULE AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

57



10687-101

Trans. Date Date

No. Placed Matures Type Location Cost Basis Yield EDUC BLDG B & I TRANS IMRF/FICA WORK CSH INT. EST.

GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124  

PMA FINANCIAL NETWORK, INC.

INVESTMENT SCHEDULE AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

1354109 09/29/23 02/14/25 CD Schertz Bank & Trust 233,000.00 5.25 233,000.00 16,889.50

1354110 09/29/23 02/14/25 CD First National Bank 233,650.00 5.03 233,650.00 16,236.29

1354111 09/29/23 02/14/25 CD State Bank of Texas 232,950.00 5.26 232,950.00 16,927.49

1354106 09/29/23 02/25/25 CD Consumers Credit union 231,400.00 5.65 231,400.00 18,453.92

1354108 09/29/23 02/25/25 CD Trustar Bank 232,450.00 5.29 232,450.00 17,413.00

1354112 09/29/23 02/25/25 CD Vibrant Credit Union 232,050.00 5.43 232,050.00 17,849.10

Subtotal Investments 30,941,486.39 25,576,370.91 1,379,687.10 0.00 279,443.64 922,819.41 2,783,165.33

09/30/23 MMA ISDLAF 3,513,878.59 1,400,716.59 1,059,332.69 0.00 951,595.56 (34,241.84) 136,475.59

09/30/23 MMA ISDMAX 1,810,185.06 562,629.23 480.27 0.00 242.13 24.10 1,246,809.32

Total 36,265,550.04 27,539,716.73 2,439,500.07 0.00 1,231,281.33 888,601.67 4,166,450.24

58



 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
 
 
Quarterly list of authorized depositories, investment managers, dealers and 
brokers** 
 
In accordance with the District Investment Policy, I am providing you with a list of 
authorized depositories, investment managers, dealers and brokers.  The 
following institutions have on file with the District an audited financial statement, 
a registration certificate with the NASD and a published credit rating when 
applicable.  This list must be reviewed and approved by the Board quarterly. 
 

GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL 
LIST OF AUTHORIZED DEPOSITORIES, INVESTMENT MANAGERS,  

DEALERS & BROKERS 
 

1. Illinois School District Liquid Asset Fund Plus 
PMA Financial Network, Inc./ PMA Securities, Inc. 
495 North Commons Drive, Suite 104 
Aurora, Illinois 60504 
 
 

2. PMA Financial Network, Inc. / PMA Securities, Inc. 
495 North Commons Drive, Suite 104 
Aurora, Illinois 60504 
 
 

3. Harris Bank 
1310 South Route 12 
Fox Lake, Illinois 60020 

 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 

59



Isabella Little 
 
The Grant Community High School October Student of the Month 

is senior Isabella Little, daughter of John and Cabrina Little of 

Round Lake. 

 

Isabella's academic achievements include induction into the 

National Honor Society during her sophomore year, Honor Roll 

each semester, she will have taken 11 AP classes through senior year, 

passed 7 AP exams, and completed a 200-level Sociology class at 

CLC in her sophomore year.  She was awarded AP Scholar with 

Distinction and holds an amazing 5.3 GPA. 

 

She was chosen Speaker of the House at Illini Girls State, earned a 

Penwasciz Internship-interned at Advocate Condell Hospital, Steam 

Scholars Program, toured STEAM facilities in Lake County with 

Representative Brad Schneider, and named BigFuture Ambassador. 

 

Her extracurricular activities include Future Business Leaders of 

America (FBLA) serving as Parliamentarian and a National 

competitor twice and twice placed in the top four in State 

competition, Student Council, Class Council, Math Team, and 

MEDS (Medical Education for Determined Students).  

 

Isabella volunteered in activities such as emergency room volunteer 

at Advocate Condell Hospital, Feed My Starving Children, Peer 

Tutor in Math Lab during junior year, Big Dawg Mentor, tutor 

younger students in Math/English, Pop-up Food Banks, Parent 

University, and Back to School Nights. 

 

In addition to all of her activities, Isabella works as a top-rated eBay 

seller and she also watches dogs when owners are away.  She is 

passionate about thrifting, traveling, and visiting forest preserves. 

 

Her plans for the future include majoring in neuroscience where she 

aspires to become a neurosurgeon or trauma surgeon and is 

interested in attending the University of Illinois at Urbana-

Champaign. 
60



Proposed Curriculum 
Guide Changes 

2024-2025

61



Grant students demonstrate: 
● Adaptability and Perseverance
● Problem Solving
● Integrity
● Empathy
● Power of Communication
● Empowered Mindset

62



Multi-Tiered System of 
Support / Tier II & III

Honors Level

Dual 
Credit/Advanced 
Placement Level

Grade Level

Current Course Level 
Differentiation

Regular Level

63



College of Lake County’s General Education 
Core Curriculum (GECC)
Communications (3 courses: ENG 121, COMM 121, and ENG 122 OR ENG 126)

● ENG 121-3 credit hours (English Language and Composition: AP-3, 4, 5)
● ENG 122-3 credit hours (English Language and Composition: AP 5)

Mathematics (1 course: MTH 127, 140, 141, 145, 146, 221, 222, 224, 244, 246)
● MTH 145-5 credit hours (Calculus AB: AP score 4-5 or Calculus BC score 3-5)
● MTH 146-4 credit hours (Calculus BC: AP score 4-5)
● MTH 222 -4 credit hours (Statistics: AP score 4-5)

*Life Science (1 course: BIO 120L, 123L, 127, 140, 141L, 149, 161L) 
● BIO 161L -4 credit hours (Biology: AP score 3-5)

Social and Behavioral Sciences (3 courses, select courses from at least two different 
disciplines: 

● PSC 121-3 credit hours (US Government: AP score 3-5)
● HST 121-3 credit hours (US History: AP score 3-5)
● HST 222-3 credit hours (US History: AP score 3-5)

64



Dual Credit Weighted Grades
Implement for SY 2025

● Successfully completed dual credit courses offered at Grant 
Community High School receive AP weighted credit.  

● Tech Campus dual credit courses are weighted as identified by 
the Tech Campus.

65



Proposed Curriculum Changes 24/25
Science
❖ Add Dual Credit Principles of Biology (BIO 123)
❖ Add Dual Credit General Chemistry (CHM 121)
❖ Add AP Seminar into Honors Biotechnology II; Rename to AP Seminar: 

Biotech II
❖ Adjust course prerequisites based on Honors Chemistry change

➢ AP Biology
➢ AP Chemistry
➢ AP Environmental Science
➢ AP Physics 1

➢ Physics
➢ Honors Anatomy & Phys
➢ Honors Biotechnology 1
➢ Honors Earth Science
➢ Honors Physics

66



Proposed Curriculum Changes 24/25
English 

❖ English 10, Advanced English 10, Honors English 10:
➢ Delete English 10 course
➢ Modify Advanced English 10 curriculum
➢ Modify Honors English 10 curriculum
➢ Rename Advanced English 10 to English 10

❖ Add Dual Credit Eng 121 and 122 67



Proposed Curriculum Changes 24/25
Social Studies

❖ Add Dual Credit History 121 - Ancient civilizations through the 
Renaissance.

❖ Add Dual Credit History 122 - Reformation to the modern global age
❖ Add Dual Credit PSC 221: Comparative Political Systems

68



Proposed Curriculum Changes 24/25
Business
Family and Consumer Science

❖ Reduce Mobile App Design to One Semester
❖ Add Mobile App Design II for the 2025/2026 School Year
❖ Add Dual Credit EDU 124: Child Development
❖ Add Dual Credit EDU 222: Exceptional Child

69



Highlights of Curriculum
Courses # of Offerings 23/24

Honors Level Sections 36

Advanced Placement Sections 20

Dual Credit Sections 21

Tech Campus Programs 15
70



Dual Credit 
Courses Offered 
for 2024-2025

Launching 2024 - 2025:
● BIO 123: Principles of Biology
● ENG 121: Composition I
● ENG 122: Composition II
● HST 121: History of Western 

Civilization to 1500
● HST 122: History of Western 

Civilization 1500 to Present
● PSC 221: Comparative 

Political Systems
● EDU 124: Child Development
● EDU 222: Exceptional Child

Continuing 2024 - 2025:
● Accounting I
● Introduction to Teaching
● Mechanical CAD I & II
● Applied Math II
● Linear Algebra
● Calculus III / Multivariable 

Calculus

71



Goals: How will we know if we are 
making a difference? 

Grant students demonstrate: 
● Adaptability and Perseverance
● Problem Solving
● Integrity
● Empathy
● Power of Communication
● Empowered Mindset

72



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

x Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: CTE

Title: Mobile App Design I (Honors)

Course #: 0932I

SIS#:

Prerequisite: None

Grade Level: 9-12

Course Length: One semester

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

X Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Blair Schoell

Primary Objective: This course now has a one-semester curriculum.

Curriculum Guide Description:
“There’s an app for that.” Not only have Apple iOS apps become a natural and essential
part of our daily lives, but software development careers are some of the most highly paid
in a fast-growing job market. Over the course of a semester, students will learn
professional software design using the Swift programming language. Beginning with the
fundamentals, students will be guided through the development of a variety of apps of
growing complexity, culminating in the development of a custom app of their own
design. 73



Special Considerations:

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

74



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

x Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: CTE

Title: Mobile App Design II (Honors)

Course #: 0932II

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Mobile App Design I

Grade Level: 9-12

Course Length: One semester

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

X Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Blair Schoell

Primary Objective: This course now has a one-semester curriculum.

Curriculum Guide Description:

Students will build on the foundation set in Mobile App I to now begin both designing
and programming a variety of different apps. The apps students build grow in
complexity throughout the semester, culminating in an app showcase, where students
demonstrate the app they built – just like professionals do at technology events. Students
apply the same development cycle as those in the workplace, which means students build
an app, analyze errors in code, and adjust to solve problems. To do this well, they must75



implement resourcefulness and collaborate with their peers, just like in the real world.
Students leave the class with a portfolio of apps and a collection of skills highly valued in
the workplace today.

Special Considerations:

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

76



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

▢ New Course

✸ Course Deletion

▢ Other

▢Course Revision

▢ Title Change

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: English

Title: English 10

Course #: 0030

SIS#:

Prerequisite: none

Grade Level: 10

Course Length: two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

✸ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other___________________

Submitted by: Veronica Lukemeyer

Primary Objective: In order to address educational inequities, Grant is
undergoing the process of revising courses. Several years ago, when three levels of
English 10 were created, Grant inadvertently created disparities in the courses which may
have negatively impacted certain populations of students. We strive to have both English
10 courses teach standards-aligned, grade level curriculum.

Curriculum Guide Description: N/A

Special Considerations: N/A

Budgetary considerations: 77



Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

78



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

▢ New Course

▢ Course Deletion

▢ Other

✸Course Revision

✸ Title Change

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: English

Title: Advanced English 10

Course #: 00291

SIS#:

Prerequisite: none

Grade Level: 10

Course Length: two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

✸ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other___________________

Submitted by: Veronica Lukemeyer

Primary Objective: Course Revision

Curriculum Guide Description: Course Title: English 10
In this writing intensive course, students will develop writing, reading, speaking, and
listening skills in the context of world literature. Students will focus on analysis of text.
Students will read and identify various literary genres, apply critical thinking methods to
infer meaning from literary works, and present logical analysis of both literary and poetic
texts. Students will also work to master both group and individual presentations. Students
in this class will be required to complete assignments and assessments that prepare them
to meet college expectations.

79



Special Considerations: N/A

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

80



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Math

Title: Applied Math II (Dual Credit)

Course #: 0369II

SIS#: 02153A001 - High School Transitional Math 4

Prerequisite: APPLIED MATH I

Grade Level: 12

Course Length: one semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

X AP Credit

X Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The course revision is to address the change of grade point weight
from regular credit to Advanced Placement credit.

Curriculum Guide Description: The Applied Math II course is intended and designed
specifically to transition students to post-secondary technical pathways or careers. The
course covers the basic principles of mathematics, with applications to problems
encountered in various industries. Students will review practical geometry, measurement
of plane and solid figures, precision, accuracy, elementary right triangle trigonometry,
vectors, law of cosines, and law of sines. Students will compute, reason and solve81



quantitative problems from a wide array of authentic contexts and everyday life
situations. This is a dual credit course with College of Lake County and is the equivalent
to Math 115 Applied Mathematics II. Students will receive CLC credit if a grade of “C”
or better is earned for the semester. This course does not meet NCAA Eligibility
requirements.

Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

This dual-credit course will earn AP grade point weighting.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

82



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Advanced Placement Biology

Course #: 0480

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

X AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 2023-2024 curriculum guide allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: This course will follow the curriculum recommended
by the College Board with the goal to prepare students for the Advanced Placement
Biology test. This is a laboratory-based course that is constructed to offer high school
students the equivalent of a college introductory biology course. It is designed to be taken
after successful completion of the first year of biology and chemistry. It is taught to
students by establishing conceptual understanding rather than factual technical detail,83



establishing analytical and critical thinking skills through experimentation, and
establishing a working knowledge of biology as a changing process of science. This class
meets for one and a half class periods per day. This course requires summer coursework.

Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

84



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Advance Placement Chemistry

Course #: 0481

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

X AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 20223-2024 curriculum guide allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: This course will follow the curriculum recommended
by the College Board with the goal to prepare students for the Advanced Placement
Chemistry test. The AP Chemistry course is designed to be the equivalent of the general
college chemistry course. Students in this course will attain a deep understanding of
fundamentals and competence in dealing with chemical problems. The topics covered
include an emphasis on chemical calculations and the mathematical formulation of85



chemistry principles. This class will meet for one and a half class periods per day. This
course requires summer coursework.

Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

86



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Advanced Placement Environmental Science

Course #: 0484

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

X AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 2023-2024 curriculum guide allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: This course will follow the curriculum recommended
by the College Board with the goal to prepare students for the Advanced Placement
Environmental Science test. Students will learn scientific principles, concepts, and
methodologies required to understand the interrelationships of the natural world, to
identify and analyze environmental problems both natural and human-made, to evaluate

87



the relative risks associated with these problems, and to examine alternative solutions for
resolving and/or preventing them.

Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

88



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Advanced Placement Physics I

Course #: 0482

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry, Algebra II

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

X AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 2023-2024 curriculum guide allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: This course will follow the curriculum recommended
by the College Board with the goal to prepare students for the Advanced Placement
Physics test. This laboratory-based course is designed to offer high school students the
equivalent of a first semester college introductory Physics course. The AP students will
develop a deep understanding of the content and apply that knowledge through
inquiry-based labs, hands-on exploration, and deeper engagement. The course covers89



Newtonian mechanics, work, energy, power, waves, sound, and electrical circuits. This
class meets for one and a half class periods per day.

Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

90



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course X Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Advanced Placement Seminar: Biotechnology

Course #: 0476

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Honors Biotechnology I and/or AP Biology

Grade Level: 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

X AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: Provide students with the opportunity to experience college level
research and presentation opportunities and receive AP credit; fits into STEM pathways
by providing authentic opportunities to investigate global issues that affect everyday lives
and present plausible solutions to these issues. This course replaces the current Honors
Biotechnology II course.

91



Curriculum Guide Description: Advanced Placement Seminar: Biotechnology is a
laboratory-based course that extends foundational concepts and laboratory techniques
learned in Honors Biotechnology I. Students will learn how researchers use these
techniques to manipulate DNA and develop such things as recombinant proteins and
transgenic organisms. In this course, students will focus on laboratory skills utilized in
the biotechnology sector and the application to the enhancement of human life and the
improvement of the world. In addition, as part of the AP Seminar curriculum, students
will engage in cross-curricular conversations that explore the complexities of academic
and real-world topics and issues by analyzing divergent perspectives. Students will learn
to investigate a problem or issue, analyze arguments, compare different perspectives,
synthesize information from multiple sources, and work alone and in a group to
communicate their ideas.

Special Considerations:

There is a resource book that will need to be purchased. Potentially, additional lab
resources/equipment may need to be purchased.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $ 4000
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $ 4000

92



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Honors Anatomy & Physiology

Course #: 0473

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

X Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 2023-2024 curriculum guide allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: Students will learn about both normal and abnormal
human anatomy (structure) and physiology (function). The course includes a study of
cells, tissues, organs, organ systems, and the human body as a functioning organism.

93



Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

94



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Honors Biotechnology I

Course #: 0475

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

X Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 2023-2024 curriculum guide allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: Honors Biotechnology I is a laboratory-based course
that integrates concepts introduced in biology and chemistry while identifying and
analyzing current biotechnological advances. This course emphasizes the importance of
critical thinking, scientific inquiry, experimental design, and problem-solving. Students
will learn the biological, engineering, and laboratory skills utilized in the biotechnology
sector and be introduced to careers within the field.95



Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

96



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Honors Earth Science

Course #: 0474

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

X Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 2023-2024 curriculum guide allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: This accelerated course is designed for the college
bound student or those that have a high interest in the geological sciences. The course
will be an in-depth study of many of the same subjects in Earth Science. Emphasis will
be on learning and using many current geologic concepts for problem solving and
developing critical thinking skills.

97



Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

98



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Honors Physics

Course #: 0472

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry, Geometry

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

X Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 2023-2024 curriculum guide allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: Honors Physics is a laboratory-based course with an
intensive algebra component. Students will study matter and energy: motion, forces,
sound, light, electricity, magnetism and nuclear reactions. This course is intended for
students who may be interested in studying engineering or physical sciences in college.

99



Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

100



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

X Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: Physics

Course #: 0415

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry, Geometry

Grade Level: 10, 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

X Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

▢ AP Credit

▢ Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: The change reflects the 2023-2024 curriculum change allowing 9th
grade students to take Honor Chemistry.

Curriculum Guide Description: Physics is a laboratory-based course with an intensive
algebra component. Students will study matter and energy: motion, forces, sound, light,
electricity, magnetism and nuclear reactions. This course is appropriate for students who
are not planning on studying engineering or physical science in college.

101



Special Considerations:

There are no financial implications from this change.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials $
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL: $0

102



Grant Community High School District 124

Course Proposal

X New Course Title Change

Course Deletion Other

Course Revision

Year of Implementation: 2024-2025

Division: Science

Title: General Chemistry (CHM 121) (Dual Credit)

Course #: 0486

SIS#:

Prerequisite: Chemistry and an appropriate score on the Math Placement Test or SAT of
510 or higher - AND - College Reading and Writing Readiness

Grade Level: 11, 12

Course Length: Two semesters

Course Credit (check all that apply):

▢ Regular Credit

▢ Honors Credit

X AP Credit

X Dual Credit

▢ Other________________

Submitted by: Lori Lev / Eric Taubery

Primary Objective: By taking General Chemistry, students can obtain college credit
while in high school in addition to high school credit.

Curriculum Guide Description: This course develops an analytical approach to solving
chemical problems. The student is provided with principles that relate chemical structure,
energy and reactivity and is introduced to the following topics: composition and
properties of matter, nomenclature, stoichiometry, solutions, gas laws, thermochemistry,
atomic structure and periodic trends, bonding, molecular geometries, and properties of103



liquids, solids and gases. This course is intended for chemistry majors, science majors,
engineering majors, and students seeking careers in pre-professional health related fields.

Special Considerations:

A textbook and additional lab materials may be required.

This dual-credit course will earn AP grade point weighting.

Budgetary considerations:

Personnel $
Supplies & Materials (estimated) $25,000
Capital outlay $
Other: ___________________________________ $

TOTAL (estimated): $25,000

104



2023 ILLINOIS 
REPORT CARD
MULTIPLE INDICATORS OF
STUDENT SUCCESS

isbe.net/summative

A school’s annual summative designation describes how well an individual school is meeting the needs of 
all its students. The designations recognize schools with strong overall performance across a range of 
academic and student success indicators. Schools with greatest need receive the most support. 

Elementary & Middle Schools

High School

Academic Indicators

Academic Indicators

School Quality & Student Success Indicators

School Quality & Student Success Indicators

1.   English Language Arts Growth: 25%
2.  Math Growth: 25%
3.  English Language Arts Proficiency: 7.5%
4.  Math Proficiency: 7.5%
5.  Science Proficiency: 5%
6.  English Learner Progress to Proficiency: 5%

1.   English Language Arts Proficiency: 7.5%
2.  Math Proficiency: 7.5%
3.  Science Proficiency: 5%
4.  Graduation (composite 4-, 5-, and 6-year graduation rate): 50%
5.  English Learner Progress to Proficiency: 5%

7.  Chronic Absenteeism: 20%
8.  Climate Survey: 5%
9.  P-2*
10. 3-8*
11. Fine Arts*

6.   Chronic Absenteeism: 10%
7.   Climate Survey: 6.67%
8.   9th-Graders on Track to Graduate: 8.33%
9.   College and Career Readiness*
10. Fine Arts*

75%

75%

25%

25%

5.

6.

7.

8. 1.

2.

3.
4.

6.

3.

1.
2.

3.

4.

5.

7.

8.

5.

6.

7.

6.

*Not yet ready for implementation
105



INDICATOR DEFINITIONS AND WEIGHTS
INDICATOR DEFINITION WEIGHT  

(% OUT OF 100)

Ac
ad

em
ic

Visit isbe.net/indicators for a more detailed definition of each indicator P-8 9-12

ELA Growth Average of individual students’ growth 
percentiles in English language arts (ELA)

Measuring growth against current 
academic peers and against a 2019 
baseline to use whichever best 
reflects progress

25% —

Math Growth Average of individual students’ growth 
percentiles in math 25% —

ELA
Proficiency Percentage of students proficient in ELA

New interim proficiency targets for 
ELA, math, and science based on 
state average performance in 2021

7.5%

Math Proficiency Percentage of students proficient in math 7.5%

Science 
Proficiency Percentage of students proficient in science 5%

English Learner 
(EL) Progress to 
Proficiency

An EL’s progress attaining language proficiency 
within five years of identification

Students who were EL in SY 
2020-21 get one extra year to their 
timeline

5%

Graduation

Four-year graduation rate
A single scoring formula for all 
student groups

— 30%

Five-year graduation rate — 15%

Six-year graduation rate — 5%

Sc
ho

ol
 Q

ua
lit

y/
St

ud
en

t S
uc

ce
ss

Chronic 
Absenteeism

Percentage of students who missed 10% or 
more of the prior academic year (excused and 
unexcused absences)

Differentiated scoring bands that 
incentivize steady or improving 
rates of chronic absenteeism

20% 10%

Climate Survey Percentage of students who participated in the climate survey 5% 6.67%

9th-Graders on 
Track 

Percentage of ninth-grade students with five full-year course credits (or 10 semester) 
with no more than one semester F in a core subject — 8.33%

Fine Arts
A combination of measures of student 
participation and teacher qualifications in the 
fine arts

Implementation delayed until 2025

— —

P-2 Measures of attendance, literacy, and 
participation in enrichment and acceleration —

3-8
A combination of measures of mathematic 
proficiency, middle school success, and 
participation in enrichment and acceleration

—

College and 
Career Readiness

Percentage of students meeting academic and 
career readiness requirements —

isbe.net/summative
106



 

Public Business Rules  

2023 Report Card Metrics 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

107



Page 2 
 

Revision History 
Version Date Updated Revision(s) 

1.0 July 20, 2023 Original version 

2.0 July 21, 2023 
Student Discipline Data 

• Updates were made to the business rules to remove grade levels 
 

3.0 August 3, 2023 

Teacher Measures 

• Updates were made to the formulas for Average IL Public School In-State 
Teacher Experience 

College and Career Ready 

• Updated the definitions for the following metrics: 
o College and Career Ready 
o College and Career Scholar 
o Distinguished Scholar 

 

4.0 August 8, 2023 

College and Career Ready 

• Removed from the document as these are no longer being reported on the 
Report Card 

o College and Career Scholar 
o Distinguished Scholar 
o College and Career Scholar 

 

5.0 August 30, 2023 

Attendance 

• Chronic Truancy Rate 
o Added additional clarity to the business rules and formula 

• Chronic Absentee Rate 
o Added additional clarity to the business rules and formula 

• Truancy Rate 
o Added additional clarity to the business rules and formula 

9th Grade on Track 

• Added additional clarity to the business rules 
Grades Served 

• Added additional clarity to the business rules 
Postsecondary Course Remediation 

• Added additional clarity to the business rules 
Teacher Out of Field 

• Miscellaneous Course Subject 
o Added additional clarity to the business rules 

• Sign Language Courses 
o Added this section to the business rules 

Proficiency Rate Science - ISA 

• Updates made to the Proficiency Levels 
Career and Technical Education 

• Perkins Measurers: Program Quality – Work-Based Learning Rate 
o Added additional clarity to the formula 

• List of Workplace Experience Courses 
o Updated the list of valid courses 

• Approvable Program (AP) CTE Participants 
o This section was removed as it does not apply to the Report Card 

 

108



Page 3 
 

6.0 September 13, 2023 

Postsecondary Enrollment 

• Updated the business rules for the area titled “Edits Made to the NSC 
Datafile” 

Grades Served 

• Updated the business rules to reflect how grades served works 
 

7.0 September 27, 2023 

9th Grade on Track 

• Added additional clarity to the business rules 
Career and Technical Education 

• Updated the “CTE Concentrator” formulas 
Teacher Out of Field 

• Updates to the business rule section for “Sign Language Courses” 
 

   

 

  

109



Page 4 
 

Contents 
Revision History ...................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

School and District Snapshot .................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Grades Served ..................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Report Card Implementation Guidance .................................................................................................................................. 8 

Report Card Eligible and Responsible Entity ....................................................................................................................... 9 

Health Minutes ................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Data Redaction .................................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Academic Progress ................................................................................................................................................................ 18 

Proficiency Rate ELA, Math and Science - All Tests .......................................................................................................... 19 

Proficiency Rate ELA, Math, and Science – DLM-AA ......................................................................................................... 26 

Proficiency Rate ELA and Math – SAT ............................................................................................................................... 31 

Proficiency Rate Science – ISA .......................................................................................................................................... 37 

Proficiency Rate and Student Growth Percentile ELA and Math – IAR............................................................................. 43 

Participation Rate and No Participation Rate ELA, Math, and Science - All Tests ............................................................ 48 

National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP)...................................................................................................... 57 

State Performance Plan Indicators ................................................................................................................................... 62 

Eighth Graders Passing Algebra I ...................................................................................................................................... 73 

9th Grade on Track ............................................................................................................................................................. 78 

Career and Technical Education........................................................................................................................................ 82 

Advanced Placement (AP) Exam Passing Requirements ................................................................................................. 101 

Postsecondary Enrollment .............................................................................................................................................. 104 

Postsecondary Course Remediation ............................................................................................................................... 107 

Graduation Rate .............................................................................................................................................................. 110 

School and District Environment ........................................................................................................................................ 113 

Early Learning (KIDS) ....................................................................................................................................................... 114 

Climate Survey ................................................................................................................................................................ 119 

Illinois Youth Survey ........................................................................................................................................................ 124 

Annual Financial Report .................................................................................................................................................. 127 

Evidence-Based Funding (EBF) ........................................................................................................................................ 136 

Average Class Size ........................................................................................................................................................... 139 

Site-Based Expenditure Reporting (SBER) ....................................................................................................................... 141 

Feeder Schools ................................................................................................................................................................ 150 

Students .............................................................................................................................................................................. 152 

Student Enrollment ......................................................................................................................................................... 153 

110



Page 5 
 

English Learners (EL) ....................................................................................................................................................... 158 

Advanced Academic Program ......................................................................................................................................... 163 

Individualized Education Program (IEP) Students ........................................................................................................... 171 

Attendance ...................................................................................................................................................................... 176 

Student Mobility ............................................................................................................................................................. 182 

Dropout Rate ................................................................................................................................................................... 184 

Student Discipline Data ................................................................................................................................................... 187 

Student Groups ............................................................................................................................................................... 192 

Accountability ..................................................................................................................................................................... 199 

Title I Status..................................................................................................................................................................... 200 

Summative Designation Meta Indicator Components .................................................................................................... 202 

School Improvement Funds ............................................................................................................................................ 218 

Teachers .............................................................................................................................................................................. 221 

Teacher Measures ........................................................................................................................................................... 222 

National Board Certified Teachers .................................................................................................................................. 232 

Teacher Out of Field ........................................................................................................................................................ 235 

Administrators .................................................................................................................................................................... 246 

Administrator Measures ................................................................................................................................................. 247 

Civil Rights Data Collection (CRDC) ..................................................................................................................................... 252 

District and School Legislative Districts .............................................................................................................................. 256 

 

 

  

111



Page 6 
 

 

Grades Served  

SY 2023 
 

School and District Snapshot 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

112



Page 7 
 

Grades Served 
Definition 
The grade level of education that a school and/or district provide for general education. 
 
Guidance and Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: EdFacts FS039 — Grades Offered  
 
Business Rules 

• Grades Served 
o Use grades from EPS to determine Grades Served for schools. 

 
Formula (calculations) 
N/A 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Entity Profile System (EPS) 
 
  
  

113

https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs039-15-2.docx


Page 8 
 

 

Responsible Entity  

SY 2023 

Report Card Implementation Guidance 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

114



Page 9 
 

Report Card Eligible and Responsible Entity 
Definition 
A responsible entity is a school or district that a student/enrollment/observation is assigned to for the 
purposes of reporting in the Report Card. The “responsible entity” was developed to facilitate communication 
about how to calculate Report Card Metrics and to document the distinction between how metrics are 
calculated for the Report Card and how they are calculated for the use in Summative Designations (which uses 
“accountable school”). 
 
A Student is assigned to a Responsible Entity (either Home or Serving). Some students are assigned to a 
responsible school and district while others, for serving-school specific metrics, are assigned to a responsible 
district only. One group of students are only reported at the State level. 

• Responsible School is the school used for calculating all Report Card metrics. In most cases, a student’s 
responsible school is their home school. Paris Cooperative High School and Bismark Henning Rossville Alvin 
Cooperative High School are exceptions. There are also specific metrics where the responsible school is 
based on a student’s serving school (e.g. enrollment, Climate Survey participation). 

• Responsible District is the district used for calculating all Report Card metrics. It is either the parent district 
of the responsible school or the parent district of a student’s home school in cases where the 
student’s serving school is a special education cooperative, special education private facility, nonpublic 
school, or a miscellaneous payee. Students who have no responsible school may be included in district-
level calculations for their responsible district. 

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance:  N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: Elementary and Secondary Education Act 20 U.S.C. 6320 § SEC. 1117   
 
Business Rules 
Entities that will receive a Report Card are: 

• Any public school that is Category 4 or Category 8 

• The Home School OR Serving School enrollment is equal to 10 or more 
o There are two exceptions to this rule.  The following Serving schools will also receive a Report Card 

▪ Bismark-Henning-Rossville-Alvin Cooperative High School  
▪ Paris Cooperative High School  

• When home enrollment < 10 AND serving enrollment is >= 10, only entities that are NOT a “3000” (special 
school RCDTS code) entity and is NOT a “9000” (ROE program RCDTS code) entity receive a report card. 

• Public schools that were open during the school year and enrolled students as a home school  
o This excludes programs that only serve students enrolled at other home schools like alternative 

programs.  

• The University of Illinois and Illinois State University lab school systems and their constituent schools will 
receive a report card.  

• No other school level entity will receive a report card.  

• Parent entities (Districts) of schools that receive a report card will also receive a report card.  
 
Responsible Entity 

• Student enrolled in “Evaluation” and “Birth to Three” grades are excluded from any report card enrollment 
counts.  

• Students with a home school that is a category 4 or 8.  

115

https://legcounsel.house.gov/Comps/Elementary%20And%20Secondary%20Education%20Act%20Of%201965.pdf


Page 10 
 

o This includes Pre-K centers that are a category 4 which is part of a district  
o This excludes the Early Childhood Centers that are not part of a district  

• The responsible school is the home school of the enrollment record, with the exception for the following 
cooperative schools:  

o Bismark-Henning-Rossville-Alvin Cooperative High School  
o Paris Cooperative High School  

• When the home school is Bismarck-Henning-Rossville-Alvin Cooperative High School 1 or Bismarck-
Henning-Rossville-Alvin Cooperative High School 7, the responsible entity that will receive the Report Card 
is Bismarck-Henning-Rossville-Alvin Cooperative High School.  

• When the home school is Paris Cooperative High School 95 or Paris Cooperative High School 4, the 
responsible entity that will receive the Report Card is Paris Cooperative High School.  

• The responsible district is the parent district of the responsible school who qualifies to receive a report 
card.  

• All students reported at the school/district level are also reported at the state level.  

• Students enrolled in deactivated schools are counted in the school/district where they are being served 
(the home school of the enrollment).  

 
Home School vs. Serving School 

• All metrics will be reported based on home school with the exception of the following metrics:  
o Student Enrollment, which includes:  

▪ Total Enrollment  
▪ Homeless Enrollment  
▪ Low Income Enrollment  
▪ Student Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity  

o Climate Survey (for 5Essentials, or AdvancED, or Comprehensive School Climate Inventory), which 
includes:  

▪ Percentage of Schools with Over 50% Response Rate  
▪ Student Response Rate  
▪ Teacher Response Rate  
▪ Survey Components (5Essentials only)  

o Educator Qualifications, which includes:  
▪ Teacher Retention  
▪ FTE Teacher Count  
▪ Teacher Headcount  
▪ Teacher Gender Distribution  
▪ Teacher Race Distribution  
▪ Teacher Education Distribution – Bachelor’s Degree  
▪ Teacher Education Distribution – Master’s Degree or Above  
▪ Average IL Public Schools Teacher Experience  
▪ Novice Teacher Ratio  
▪ Average Teacher Salary  
▪ Teacher Attendance Rate  
▪ Teacher Evaluation  
▪ Teacher Rated Proficient or Excellent  
▪ Pupil Teacher Ratio – Elementary  
▪ Pupil Teacher Ratio – High School  
▪ Teachers with Short Term or Provisional Licenses  

116



Page 11 
 

▪ Average Class Size  
▪ Mobility  
▪ Health and Wellness  
▪ Teachers that are gifted/endorsed  
▪ Student Discipline 

o In addition, all metrics for the following will be reported at the Serving School level  
▪ Bismark-Henning-Rossville-Alvin Cooperative High School  
▪ Paris Cooperative High School  

 
Formula (calculations) 
N/A 
 
Sources of Data (if applicable) 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Entity Profile System (EPS) 
 
 
 
 
  

117



Page 12 
 

 

Health Minutes 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

118



Page 13 
 

Health Minutes 
Definition  
Health and Wellness is the average number of days per week that a student at a school has physical 
education.  
 
Guidance Citation    
State Statute/Guidance:   Illinois School Code ILCS 5/10-17a    
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A  
 
Business Rules  

• Data is self-reported by the schools/district.  

• School year from the Year End Collection database is the same as the Report Card year.  

• The data that is collected and reported on: 
o Health and Wellness: Public School (Category 4) and State-funded School (Category 8) only 

• This data is only collected and displayed for Kindergarten through Grade 12 

• The district is the parent district of the public school.  

 
Formula (calculations)  
Health and Wellness Formula 

• Health and Wellness Count 
o School Formula 

▪ Count Average Number of Days of PE Per Week Per Student 
o District Formula 

▪ (Total Average Number of Days of PE Per Week Per Student \ Distinct Count of Schools in 
District) x 100 

o State Formula 
▪ (Total Average Number of Days of PE Per Week Per Student \ Distinct Count of Schools in 

State) x 100 
 

 
Sources of Data  
Year End Collection (YEC)  
  

119

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K10-17a


Page 14 
 

 

Data Redaction 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

120



Page 15 
 

Data Redaction 
Definition  
Within the Report Card, data redaction rules are applied to various metrics. 
 
Guidance Citation    
State Statute/Guidance: N/A  
Federal Statute/Guidance: FERPA https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html 
 
Business Rules  

• For any metric where the count is less than or equal to 9, then no data will be displayed for that metric, 
regardless if the data is displayed as a count or percentage. 

• No redaction rules are applied to State level metrics. 

• No redaction rules are applied to any Teacher metrics at the State, District, or School level. 

• No redaction rules are applied to any Administrator metrics at the State, District, or School level. 

• No redaction rules are applied to any Financial metrics at the State, District, or School level. 

• No redaction rules are applied to any External Data Collection metrics at the State, District, or School level. 

• Redaction rules are applied to the following metrics at both the District and School level. 
o IAR 

▪ Participation Rate 
▪ Proficiency Rate 
▪ Accountability Proficiency Rate 
▪ Student Growth Percentile ELA 
▪ Student Growth Percentile Math 

o SAT 
▪ Participation Rate 
▪ Proficiency Rate 
▪ Accountability Proficiency Rate 

o DLM 
▪ Participation Rate 
▪ Proficiency Rate 
▪ Accountability Proficiency Rate 

o ISA 
▪ Participation Rate 
▪ Proficiency Rate 
▪ Accountability Proficiency Rate 

o Early Learning KIDS  
▪ Participation Rate (redaction is based on n-size of denominator/eligible count)  
▪ Readiness Rate (redaction is based on n-size of denominator/participation count)  

o ELA Participation Rate 
o ELA Proficiency Rate 
o Math Participation Rate 
o Math Proficiency Rate 
o Science Participation Rate 
o Science Proficiency Rate 
o Eighth Graders Passing Algebra I 
o 9th Grade on Track 
o College and Career Ready 

121

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html


Page 16 
 

▪ Distinguished Scholar 
▪ College and Career Ready 

o Advanced Placement (AP) Exams 
▪ Number of AP Exams Taken by Students 
▪ Number of AP Exams Passed by Students 
▪ Number of Students Who Took One or More AP Exams 
▪ Number of Students Who Passed One or More AP Exams 

o CTE  
▪ Enrollment 
▪ Perkins Measures 
▪ Participant 
▪ Concentrator 

o Graduation Rates 
▪ 4-year 
▪ 5-year 
▪ 6-year 

o Student Enrollment 
o Advanced Academic Program 

▪ Students who are Enrolled in Accelerated Placement 

• Students in Accelerated Placement Math Only 

• Students who are in an Accelerated Placement ELA Only 

• Students who are in an Accelerated Placement Multiple Subjects Only 

• Students who are in an Accelerated Placement Whole Grade Only 
▪ Students who are enrolled in Advanced Placement Coursework  
▪ Students who are enrolled in IB Coursework 
▪ Students who are enrolled in any course designated as Enriched or Honors 
▪ Students who are enrolled in any dual-credit course where college credit was earned 
▪ Early College Coursework Enrollment 
▪ Giftedness 

• Students Assessed for Giftedness 

• Students Identified as Gifted 

• Students Assessed for Giftedness Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teacher 

• Students Identified as Gifted Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teacher 
o English Learner 

▪ English Learners 
▪ English Language Proficiency / Exit Rate of English Learners 
▪ English Learners to take ACCESS 
▪ ACCESS Participation Rate 
▪ ACCESS Performance Levels 
▪ Long Term English Learners 
▪ English Learner Students by Transition Status 
▪ English Learner Students by Outcome Status 
▪ Never EL 

o Discipline Incident Counts  
▪ Within each of the groups: Gender, Race and Grade bands, rank the subgroups with 

incidents based on Fall Enrollment (including 0) from lowest to highest.  

122



Page 17 
 

▪ Redact any nonzero incident count for a subgroup (including Race, Grade band, Gender, EL, 
FRL and IEP) that has less than 10 (including 0) Fall enrollments.  

▪ For Gender, Race and Grade bands, if only one subgroup was redacted by the prior step and 
there are other subgroups with incident count greater than 0, redact the one with the next 
lowest enrollment count so that users cannot subtract counts from the total to reveal 
redacted counts.  

o Student Attendance 
▪ Student Mobility Rate 
▪ Chronic Absenteeism 
▪ Dropout Rate 

  

 
  

123



Page 18 
 

 

Proficiency Rate ELA, Math, and Science – All Tests 

SY 2023 

Academic Progress 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

124



Page 19 
 

Proficiency Rate ELA, Math and Science - All Tests 
Definition 
The federal Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires states to assess their learning standards for 
English/Language Arts (ELA), Math, and Science. Each state may also have a general assessment for the 
majority of its students, and an alternate assessment for the one percent of students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities. 
 
The “All Test Proficiency” measure is the proficiency rate for students combining all tests. A rate is calculated 
for ELA, Math, and Science at the elementary and high school levels.  
 
The “All Test Proficiency Rate Accountability” measure is calculated, when relevant for accountability using the 
95% Participation Rate denominator.  As relevant, a rate is calculated for ELA, Math, and Science at the 
elementary and high school levels. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/2-3.64a-5;  
Federal Statute/Guidance: ED Facts E- MAPS Assessment Metadata Survey  
 
Business Rules 

• ELA, Math, and Science rates for the “All Student” population are computed and displayed.  
• The testing enrollment is defined in the Participation metric.  
• The demographics (Race, Gender, and the Program Indicators) are disaggregated at the 

entity level (school, district, or state level) and at the grade level.  
• The source for the IAR, SAT, and DLM-AA calculation is SIS Assessment Correction and Score records.  
• The source for the ISA calculation is ISA Student Roster and Result records.  
• For IAR, SAT, and DLM-AA, the grade is the grade at time of testing from the Correction record.  
• For ISA, the grade is the grade in SIS at the time the student is rostered for ISA.  
• Student demographic information (race, gender, program indicators) used for assessment proficiency 

rate calculations comes from the Student Metrics table in the Warehouse.  See the Student Groups 
business rules for more information on how the table is populated.  

• This table is populated as follows: 

• Race, Gender, first year in the US, grade, IDEA Services (IEP) indicator, Alternate 

indicator, EL indicator are typically derived from assessment correction records where 

available, and if no assessment correction record is available, then the SIS student 

demographic data from the exited student enrollment is used. 

• IEP, EL and other student demographic indicators in the Student Metrics table are 

determined using logic defined in the Student Groups business rules document. 

• We will include any changes to demographics data in the correction records unless IDEA 

Services (IEP) indicator, or Alternate Assessment indicator.  We will use the grade at 

time of testing from the correction record for reporting Assessment metrics.  

• All assessment proficiency rates are calculated for the responsible entity as defined in the Responsible 
Entity business rules.  

• High School: Grades are 9 through 12  
• Use SAT and DLM-AA scores for ELA and Math  

• Levels 3 and 4 are proficient for SAT and DLM-AA (Grade 11 and 12 students who have a 
valid score)  

125

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+2&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=14200000&SeqEnd=34150000
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/emaps-assessment-metadata-survey-user-guide.pdf


Page 20 
 

• For ELA and Math, Grade 9 and Grade 10 are excluded from proficiency rates by 
subject and test and should be ignored for inclusion.  

• Use ISA and DLM-AA scores for Science  
• Levels 3 and 4 are proficient for DLM-AA (grade 11 and 12)  

• For Science, Grade 9 and Grade 10 are excluded for DLM-AA and should be 
ignored for inclusion.  

• Level 3 and 4 are proficient for ISA (grade 11)  
• For Science, only Grade 11 is included for ISA.  

• Elementary School: Grades are 3 through 8  
• Use IAR and DLM-AA scores for ELA and Math.  

• Levels 4 and 5 are proficient for IAR (grades 3 through 8).  
• Levels 3 and 4 are proficient for DLM-AA (grades 3 through 8).  

• Use ISA and DLM-AA for Science.  
• Level 3 and 4 are proficient for ISA (grades 5 and 8)  
• Levels 3 and 4 are proficient for DLM-AA (grades 5 and 8).  

• Note for SY2023 and forward:  
• Invalid records and suppressed content areas should not be reported in the numerators of 

participation and achievement assessment files. Invalid includes records that were not assigned 
to students as well as those with missing enrollments, outside of testing window, outside of 
grade levels tested, etc.  

• Proficiency Rate Numerator  
• Number of students who are proficient in either ELA, Math, or Science (IAR level 4 or level 5; 

SAT level 3 or level 4; DLM-AA level 3 or level 4; ISA level 3 and 4)  
• Proficiency Rate Denominator  

• For IAR, SAT and DLM-AA, apply the “First Year in U.S. School” indicator first.  EL indicator must 
be “yes” for First Year in U.S. School to be “yes”. 

• If student First Year in the U.S. School indicator is “yes”, has score, the student is not 
included in proficiency denominator and not included in the proficiency numerator. 

• If student First Year in the U.S. School indicator is “yes”, has no score, the student is not 
included in proficiency denominator and not included in the proficiency numerator. 

• The denominator for Proficiency Rate is derived and will be:  
• Total number of students with valid scores excluding all students with suppressed scores 

• Rules for multiple valid records: 
• If multiple valid records with same enrollment ID with both records with complete score 

we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID (for earliest test date) for 
proficiency denominator at the respective district 

• At district level, if multiple valid records for a student exist with different enrollment 
ID and different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value 
scoreID (for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator at the respective district 

• At state level, if multiple valid records for a student exist with different enrollment 
ID and different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value 
scoreID (for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator 

• The following rule applies for each subject level ELA, Math, and Science (this does not apply to 
the test level): 

• For any school or district where the denominator for Proficiency Rate uses “95% of the 
Participation Rate” we must calculate and display both Proficiency Rate using the two 
different denominators in each calculation “Total number of students with valid scores 

126



Page 21 
 

excluding all students with suppressed scores” and “”95% of Participation Rate 
denominator”) and indicate which calculation was used (meaning the “95% of the 
Participation Rate”) 

• Proficiency Rate for IAR, SAT, and DLM-AA: The table below indicates whether a record is included in 
the numerator for calculating Proficiency Rate.  

• Note:  
• SAT Only: For Suppression 01, RNVTA 22 applies to ELA and Math  

• SAT Only: In the RARE cases when a student has responses in only one content area but 

not the other, we need to: 

• When ELA participation indicator = NO and Math participation indicator = YES, 
we apply Suppression 02 and RNVTA 19 (suppresses minimum score of 200 only 
in ELA that College Board auto-generates and hurts participation rate only for 
ELA). 

• When ELA participation indicator = YES and Math participation indicator = NO, 
we apply Suppression 03 and RNVTA 19 (suppresses minimum score of 200 only 
in MATH that College Board auto-generates and hurts participation rate only for 
MATH). 

• For a complete listing of RNVTA codes and validation rules see: 
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf 

 
Assessment Subject  Scale 

Score  
RNVTA  
Code  

Suppression 
Code  

Include in  
Proficiency 
Numerator  

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All Yes Null Null Yes 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 1 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 2 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 3 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 4 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 7 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 8 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 9 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 10 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 15 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 16 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 18 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 19 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All Yes 19  
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

SAT All Yes-Math 19 
Suppression 

02-ELA 
Yes-Math only 

No-ELA 

SAT All Yes-ELA 19 
Suppression 

03-Math 
Yes-ELA only 

No-Math 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 21 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 22 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All Yes 22  
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

SAT All Yes 22 
Suppression 

01-
No 

127

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf


Page 22 
 

ELA/Math 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All Yes 23 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 25 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All Yes 25 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 50 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 51 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 52 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 53 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All No 54 Null No 

IAR, SAT, DLM-AA All Yes 54 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

 
  

• Proficiency Rate for ISA: The table below indicates whether a record is included in the numerator 
and/or denominator for calculating Participation Rate.  

• Notes:  
• For a complete listing of RNVTA codes and validation rules see: 

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ISA_Reason-for-No-Valid-Test-
Attempt.pdf#search=ISA%20rnvta 
  

Assessment  Subject  Scale Score  RNVTA  
Code  

Suppression 
Code  

Include in  
Proficiency Numerator  

ISA  Science  A 3-digit Scale 
Score  

    Yes  

ISA  Science    01    No  

ISA  Science    02    No  

ISA   Science    03    No  

ISA   Science    04    No  

ISA   Science    05    No  

ISA   Science    06    No  

ISA   Science    07    No  

ISA   Science    08    No  

ISA   Science    09    No  

ISA   Science    10    No  

ISA   Science    15    No  

ISA   Science    16    No  

ISA   Science    17    No  

ISA   Science    30    No  

ISA   Science    31    No  

ISA   Science    32    No  

ISA   Science    33    No  

ISA   Science    34    No  

ISA   Science      S1  No  

ISA   Science      S2  No  

128

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ISA_Reason-for-No-Valid-Test-Attempt.pdf#search=ISA%20rnvta
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ISA_Reason-for-No-Valid-Test-Attempt.pdf#search=ISA%20rnvta


Page 23 
 

ISA   Science      S3  No  

ISA   Science      S4  No  

ISA   Science      S5  No  

ISA   Science      S6  No  

ISA   Science      S7  No  

ISA   Science      S8  No  

ISA   Science      S9  No  

ISA   Science      S10  No  

ISA   Science      S11  No  

ISA   Science      S12  No  

ISA   Science      S13  No  

ISA   Science      S14  No  

ISA   Science      S15  No  

ISA   Science      S16  No  

  
 
Formula (calculations) 
Proficiency Rate ELA All Tests Formula   

• (Number of students who are proficient in ELA) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 

students with a suppressed score in ELA) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall   

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 

 
Proficiency Rate ELA All Tests Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%)   

• (Number of students who are proficient in ELA) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for ELA) × 
100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 

 
Proficiency Rate Math All Tests Formula 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Math) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 
students with a suppressed score in Math) × 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 

 
Proficiency Rate Math All Tests Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%) 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Math) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for Math) × 
100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall   

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 

 
Proficiency Rate Science All Tests Formula 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Science) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 

students with a suppressed score in Science) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall   

129



Page 24 
 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 

 
Proficiency Rate Science All Tests Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%) 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Science) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for 

Science) × 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 

 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
 
 
 
  

130



Page 25 
 

 

Proficiency Rate ELA, Math, and Science – DLM-AA 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

131



Page 26 
 

Proficiency Rate ELA, Math, and Science – DLM-AA 
Definition 
“Dynamic Learnings Maps – Alternative Assessments (DLM-AA)” offers students with the most significant 
cognitive disabilities a way to show what they know and can do in a manner which differs from the 
traditional multiple-choice tests. Assessments are based on a learning map, which is a map that shows 
different paths a student might take to learn new academic skills. Results of the assessments help teachers to 
plan individualized experiences for each student by creating lessons and activities that are appropriate for a 
student’s needs and abilities.  
 
“DLM-AA Proficiency” has four levels of performance which are: 

• Level 4: The student demonstrates advanced understanding of and ability to apply targeted content 
knowledge and skills (considered proficient)  

• Level 3: The student’s understanding of and ability to apply content knowledge and skills represented is at 
target (considered proficient)  

• Level 2: The student’s understanding of and ability to apply targeted content knowledge and skills is 
approaching the target  

• Level 1: The student demonstrates emerging understanding of and ability to apply content knowledge and 
skills 

 
“DLM-AA Proficiency Rate Accountability” is calculated, as relevant for accountability using the 95% of 
Participation Rate denominator, using the four levels of performance which are: 

• Level 4: The student demonstrates advanced understanding of and ability to apply targeted content 
knowledge and skills (considered proficient) 

• Level 3: The student’s understanding of and ability to apply content knowledge and skills represented is at 
target (considered proficient) 

• Level 2: The student’s understanding of and ability to apply targeted content knowledge and skills is 
approaching the target 

• Level 1: The student demonstrates emerging understanding of and ability to apply content knowledge and 
skills 

 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/2-3.64a-5  
Federal Statute/Guidance: Evaluations, Eligibility Determinations, Individualized Education Programs, and 
Educational Placements 34 CFR § 300.320  
 
Business Rules 

• ELA, Math, and Science rates for the “All Student” population are computed and displayed.  

• The testing enrollment is defined in the Participation metric.  

• The demographics (Race, Gender, and the Program Indicators) are disaggregated at the 
entity level (school, district, or state level) and at the grade level.   

• The source for the calculation is the DLM-AA Correction and Score records.  

• The grade is the grade at time of testing from the Correction record.  

• Student demographic information (race, gender, program indicators) used for assessment proficiency rate 
calculations comes from the Student Metrics table in the Warehouse.  See the Student Groups business 
rules for more information on how the table is populated.  

132

http://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+2&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=14200000&SeqEnd=37100000
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=&SID=a0c8261cf1d20ee94a610418555e3578&n=sp34.2.300.d&r=SUBPART&ty=HTML#se34.2.300_1320


Page 27 
 

o This table is populated as follows: 
▪ Race, Gender, first year in the US, IDEA indicator, alternate assessment indicator, and EL 

indicator are typically derived from assessment correction records where available, and if 
no assessment correction record is available, then the SIS student demographic data from 
the exited student enrollment is used. 

▪ IEP, EL and other student demographic indicators in the Student Metrics table are 
determined using logic defined in the Student Groups business rules document. 

▪ We will include any changes to demographics data in the correction records.  We will use 
the grade at time of testing from the correction record for reporting Assessment metrics  

• All assessment proficiency rates are calculated for the responsible entity as defined in the Responsible 
Entity business rules.  

• DLM-AA has a student record with an ELA, Math, and Science score.  
o For ELA, Math, and Science, Grade 9 and Grade 10 are excluded from proficiency rates.  
o For ELA, Math, and Science, Grade 12 students who have a valid score will be reported with Grade 

11 students.  

• The proficiency rate is calculated for ELA, Math, and Science.  
o If a student is in a Performance Level of 3 or 4, then they are considered Proficient.  

• Each subgroup is calculated the same way.  

• There are no given Scale Scores for DLM-AA, just performance levels. 

•  Note for SY2023 and forward:  
o Invalid records should not be reported in the numerators of participation and achievement 

assessment files. Invalid includes records that were not assigned to students as well as those with 
missing enrollments, outside of testing window, outside of grade levels tested, etc.  

• Proficiency Rate Numerator  
o Number of students who are proficient in ELA, Math, or Science (level 3 or level 4)  

• Proficiency Rate Denominator  
o Apply the “First Year in US” indicator check first.  EL indicator must be “yes” for First Year in U.S. 

School to be “yes”. 
▪ If student First Year in U.S. School indicator is “yes”, has score, the student is not included in 

proficiency denominator and not included in the proficiency numerator. 
▪ If student First Year in US School indicator is “yes”, has no score, the student is not included 

in proficiency denominator and not included in the proficiency numerator. 
o The denominator for Proficiency Rate is derived and will be:  

▪ Total number of students with valid scores excluding all students with suppressed scores 
o Rules for multiple records: 

▪ If multiple records with same enrollment ID with both records with complete score we will 
report only the record with the lesser value scoreID (for earliest test date) for proficiency 
denominator at the respective district  

▪ At district level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 
different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID 
(for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator at the respective district  

▪ At state level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 
different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID 
(for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator  

o The following rule applies for each subject level ELA, Math, and Science (this does not apply to the 
test level): 

133



Page 28 
 

▪ For any school or district where the denominator for Proficiency Rate uses “95% of the 
Participation Rate” we must calculate and display both Proficiency Rate using the two 
different denominators in each calculation “Total number of students with valid scores 
excluding all students with suppressed scores” and “”95% of Participation Rate 
denominator”) and indicate which calculation was used (meaning the “95% of the 
Participation Rate”) 

• The table below indicates whether a record is included in the numerator for calculating Proficiency Rate.  
o Note:  

▪ For a complete listing of RNVTA codes and validation rules see: 
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf 

 
Assessment Subject  Scale Score  RNVTA  

Code  
Suppression 

Code  
Include in  
Proficiency 
Numerator  

DLM-AA All Yes Null Null Yes 

DLM-AA All No 1 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 2 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 3 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 4 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 7 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 8 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 9 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 10 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 15 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 16 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 18 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 19 Null No 

DLM-AA All Yes 19 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

DLM-AA All No 21 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 22 Null No 

DLM-AA All Yes 22 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

DLM-AA All Yes 23 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

DLM-AA All No 25 Null No 

DLM-AA All Yes 25 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

DLM-AA All No 50 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 51 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 52 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 53 Null No 

DLM-AA All No 54 Null No 

DLM-AA All Yes 54 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

 
 
 

134

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf


Page 29 
 

Formula (calculations) 
Proficiency Rate ELA Formula 

• (Number of students who are proficient in ELA) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 
students with a suppressed score in ELA) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Proficiency Rate ELA Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall participation 
rate is less than 95%) 

• (Number of students who are proficient in ELA) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for ELA) × 
100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Proficiency Rate Math Formula 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Math) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 
students with a suppressed score in Math) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Proficiency Rate Math Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall participation 
rate is less than 95%) 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Math) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for Math) × 
100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Proficiency Rate Science Formula 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Science) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 
student with a suppressed score in Science) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Proficiency Rate Science Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%) 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Science) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for 
Science) × 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
  

135



Page 30 
 

 

Proficiency Rate ELA and Math – SAT 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

136



Page 31 
 

Proficiency Rate ELA and Math – SAT 
Definition  

The SAT is accepted by all U.S. colleges and is intended to determine a student’s level of college 

readiness in the academic subjects of English/Language Arts and Math. Illinois uses the SAT with Essay as 

the regular state assessment for high school accountability. Performance Levels that determine 

proficiency are attributed to only the ELA and mathematics section scores. 

 

SAT Proficiency has four Performance Levels:  

• Level 4: Exceeds standards (considered proficient)  

• Level 3: Meets standards (considered proficient)  

• Level 2: Approaching standards  

• Level 1: Partially meets standards  

 

SAT Proficiency Rate Accountability is calculated, when relevant for accountability using the 95% of 
Participation Rate denominator, using the four levels of performance, which are: 

• Level 4: Exceeds standards (considered proficient)  

• Level 3: Meets standards (considered proficient)  

• Level 2: Approaching standards  

• Level 1: Partially meets standards  

 

Scale Score ranges associated with the four performance levels can be found on the ISBE SAT webpage: 
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/SAT-Performance-Levels-Chart.pdf 
 
The proficiency rate is calculated for ELA and Math.   
  
Guidance Citation  
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/2-3.64a-5 
ISBE Rule: https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ONEARK.pdf  
Federal Statute/Guidance: ED Facts E- MAPS Assessment Metadata Survey  
 
Business Rules  

• ELA and Math rates for the “All Student” population are computed and displayed.  

• The testing enrollment is defined in the Participation metric.  

• The demographics (Race, Gender, and the Program Indicators) are disaggregated at the entity (school, 
district, and state) and at the grade level.  

• The source for the calculation is SAT Correction and Score records.  

• Student demographic information (race, gender, program indicators) used for assessment proficiency rate 
calculations comes from the Student Metrics table in the Warehouse.  See the Student Groups business 
rules for more information on how the table is populated.  

o This table is populated as follows: 

▪ Race, Gender, First Year in U.S. School indicator, IDEA Services (IEP) indicator, EL indicator, 

and grade, are typically derived from assessment correction records where available, and if 

no assessment correction record is available, then the SIS student demographic data from 

the exited student enrollment is used.  

137

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/SAT-Performance-Levels-Chart.pdf
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+2&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=14200000&SeqEnd=34150000
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ONEARK.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/emaps-assessment-metadata-survey-user-guide.pdf


Page 32 
 

▪ IDEA Services (IEP), EL and other student demographic indicators in the Student Metrics 

table are determined using logic defined in the Student Groups business rules document 

and based on the time of testing. 

▪ We will include any changes to demographics data in the correction records.  We will use 

the grade at time of testing from the correction record for reporting Assessment metrics. 

• The grade is the grade at time of testing from the Correction record.  

• All assessment proficiency rates are calculated for the responsible entity as defined in the Responsible 
Entity business rules.  

• SAT has student records for both ELA and Math.  

• The proficiency rate is calculated separately for ELA and Math.  
o If a student has a Performance Level of 3 or 4 they are considered Proficient.  

• Each subgroup is calculated the same way.  

• An additional metric called Average Score for SAT is calculated.  
o The requirements are:  

▪ The score is calculated separately for ELA and Math.  
▪ The score is calculated at the school, district, and state level.  
▪ The ELA calculation is the sum of the valid ELA scores for that entity divided by the number 

of valid scores.  
▪ The Math calculation is the sum of the valid Math scores for that entity divided by the 

number of valid scores.  
▪ This is not disaggregated by demographics. 
▪ Include only students with both valid ELA and Math scores that are not suppressed. 

• The AccessTestCode of 10 indicates the test was the SAT.  

• The students that should have tested are all students whose correction grade shows the student is in 
Grade 11 or 12.  

o For ELA and Math, Grade 9 and Grade 10 are excluded.  

• Note for SY2023 and forward:  
o Invalid records and suppressed content area scores should not be reported in the numerators of 

participation and achievement assessment files. Invalid includes records that were not assigned to 
students as well as those with missing enrollments, outside of testing window, outside of grade 
levels tested, etc.  

• Proficiency Rate Numerator  
o Number of students who are proficient in either ELA or Math (Level 3 or Level 4)  

• Proficiency Rate Denominator 
o Apply the “First Year in U.S. School” indicator check first.  EL indicator must be “yes” for First Year 

in U.S. School to be “yes”. 
▪ If student First Year in the U.S. School indicator is “yes”, has a score, the student is not 

included in proficiency denominator and not included in the proficiency numerator. 
▪ If student First Year in the U.S. School indicator is “yes”, has no score, the student is not 

included in proficiency denominator and not included in the proficiency numerator. 
o The denominator for Proficiency Rate is derived and will be:  

▪ Total number of students with valid scores excluding all students with suppressed scores 
o Rules for multiple records: 

▪ If multiple records with same enrollment ID with both records with complete score we will 
report only the record with the lesser value scoreID (for earliest test date) for proficiency 
denominator at the respective district  

138



Page 33 
 

▪ At district level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 
different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID 
(for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator at the respective district  

▪ At state level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 
different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID 
(for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator  

o The following rule applies for each subject level EL and Math (this does not apply to the test level): 
▪ For any school or district where the denominator for Proficiency Rate uses “95% of the 

Participation Rate” we must calculate and display both Proficiency Rate using the two 
different denominators in each calculation “Total number of students with valid scores 
excluding all students with suppressed scores” and “”95% of Participation Rate 
denominator”) and indicate which calculation was used (meaning the “95% of the 
Participation Rate”) 

• The table below indicates whether a record is included in the numerator for calculating Proficiency Rate.  
o Note:  

▪ Apply the “First Year in U.S. School” indicator check first.  

• If a student is marked First Year in U.S. School “yes”, has a score, the student is not 
included in the proficiency.  

• If a student is marked First Year in U.S. School “yes”, has no score the student is not 
included in proficiency.   

▪ If a student has a suppression code of 01 and RNVTA of 22, the ELA and math scores are not 
included in proficiency. 

• If a student has a suppression code of 02 for ELA and an RNVTA 19, the student 
math score is included in the proficiency, ELA is not included in proficiency.  

• If the student has a suppression code of 03 and RNVTA of 19, the student ELA score 
is included in the proficiency, math is not included in proficiency.  

• If a student is marked First year in the US “yes”, has a score, the student is not 
included in the proficiency. 

• If a student is marked First year in the US “yes”, has no score the student is not 
included in proficiency.  

▪ For a complete listing of RNVTA codes and validation rules see: 
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf 

 
Assessment Subject  Scale Score  RNVTA  

Code  
Suppression 

Code  
Include in  
Proficiency 
Numerator  

SAT All Yes Null Null Yes 

SAT All No 1 Null No 

SAT All No 2 Null No 

SAT All No 3 Null No 

SAT All No 4 Null No 

SAT All No 7 Null No 

SAT All No 8 Null No 

SAT All No 9 Null No 

SAT All No 10 Null No 

SAT All No 15 Null No 

SAT All No 16 Null No 

139

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf


Page 34 
 

SAT All No 18 Null No 

SAT All No 19 Null No 

SAT All Yes 
19 

  

01-
ELA/Math 

No 

SAT All Yes-Math 19 02-ELA 
Yes-Math 

No-ELA 

SAT All Yes-ELA 19 03-Math 
Yes-ELA 

No-Math 

SAT All No 21 Null No 

SAT All No 22 Null No 

SAT All Yes 22 
01-

ELA/Math 
No 

SAT All No 25 Null No 

SAT All Yes 25 
01-

ELA/Math 
No 

SAT All No 50 Null No 

SAT All No 51 Null No 

SAT All No 52 Null No 

SAT All No 53 Null No 

SAT All No 54 Null No 

SAT All Yes 54 
01-

ELA/Math 
No 

 
Formula (calculations)  
Proficiency Rate ELA – SAT Formula 

• (Number of students who are proficient in ELA) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 
students with a suppressed score in ELA) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
  
Proficiency Rate ELA – SAT Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%) 

• (Number of students who are proficient in ELA) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for ELA) × 
100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Proficiency Rate Math – SAT Formula 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Math) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 
students with a suppressed score in Math) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Proficiency Rate Math – SAT Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%) 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Math) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for Math) × 
100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 

140



Page 35 
 

   
 
Average SAT Score for ELA Formula 

• (Sum of the students’ SAT scores for ELA that are not suppressed) ÷ (Number of students with a 
valid SAT ELA score that is not suppressed) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
   
Average SAT Score for Math Formula 

• (Sum of the students’ SAT scores for Math that are not suppressed) ÷ (Number of students with a 
valid SAT math score that is not suppressed) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Average SAT Score Composite 

• (Sum of the students’ SAT scores for ELA that are not suppressed) ÷ (Number of students with a valid SAT 
ELA score that is not suppressed) + (Sum of the students’ SAT scores for Math that are not suppressed) ÷ 
(Number of students with a valid SAT math score that is not suppressed) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Sources of Data  
Student Information System (SIS)  
  

141



Page 36 
 

 

Proficiency Rate Science – ISA 

SY 2023 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

142



Page 37 
 

Proficiency Rate Science – ISA 
Definition 
The Illinois Science Assessment (ISA) tests are designed to measure performance against rigorous science 
standards.  The tests require students to apply their science skills to answering questions. The science tests are 
given to students enrolled in grades 5, 8 and 11. ISA tests are in compliance with federal testing requirements.  
 
“ISA Proficiency” has the below levels of performance: (for 2022 and beyond after Standards setting takes 
place.)  will be confirmed summer 2021 after Standards Setting takes place): 

• Level 4 ‘Exemplary’ – Work at this level is of exceptional quality.  It is both thorough and accurate.  It 
exceeds the standard.  It shows a sophisticated application of knowledge and skills. 

• Level 3 ‘Proficient’ – Work at this level meets the standard.  It is acceptable work that demonstrates 
application of essential knowledge and skills.  Minor errors or omissions do not detract from the overall 
quality. 

• Level 2 ‘Developing’ – Work at this level does not meet the standard.  It shows basic, but inconsistent 
application of knowledge and skills.  Minor errors or omissions detract from the overall quality.  Your work 
needs further development. 

• Level 1 ‘Emerging’ – Work at this level shows a partial application of knowledge and skills.  It is superficial 
(lacks depth), fragmented or incomplete and needs considerable development.  Your work contains errors 
or omissions. 

 
“ISA Proficiency Rate Accountability” is calculated, when relevant for accountability using the 95% of 
Participation Rate denominator, using the below levels of performance: 

• Level 4 ‘Exemplary’ – Work at this level is of exceptional quality.  It is both thorough and accurate.  It 
exceeds the standard.  It shows a sophisticated application of knowledge and skills. 

• Level 3 ‘Proficient’ – Work at this level meets the standard.  It is acceptable work that demonstrates 
application of essential knowledge and skills.  Minor errors or omissions do not detract from the overall 
quality. 

• Level 2 ‘Developing’ – Work at this level does not meet the standard.  It shows basic, but inconsistent 
application of knowledge and skills.  Minor errors or omissions detract from the overall quality.  Your work 
needs further development. 

• Level 1 ‘Emerging’ – Work at this level shows a partial application of knowledge and skills.  It is superficial 
(lacks depth), fragmented or incomplete and needs considerable development.  Your work contains errors 
or omissions. 

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/2-3.64a-5  
Federal Statute/Guidance: EdFacts FS189 - Assessment Participation in Science  
 
Business Rules 

• The Science rate for the “All Student” population are computed and displayed.  

• ISBE pre-ID’s students, however schools who do not keep their course enrollments up to date will have 
students added to their roster.  

• The demographics (Race, Gender, and the Program Indicators) are disaggregated at the entity level 
(school, district, or state level) and at the grade level (Grade 5, Grade 8, or Grade 11).  

• All assessment proficiency rates are calculated for the responsible entity as defined in the Responsible 
Entity business rules.  

143

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K2-3.64a-5
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs189-15-0.docx


Page 38 
 

• The source for the calculation is ISA Student Roster and Result records.  

• Student demographic information (race, gender, program indicators) used for assessment proficiency rate 
calculations comes from the Student Metrics table in the Warehouse.  See the Student Groups business 
rules for more information on how the table is populated.  

o This table is populated as follows: 

▪ Race and Gender, first year in the US, IDEA indicator, alternate assessment indicator, and EL 

indicator are typically derived from assessment correction records where available, and if 

no assessment correction record is available, then the SIS student demographic data from 

the exited student enrollment is used. 

▪ IEP, EL and other student demographic indicators in the Student Metrics table are 

determined using logic defined in the Student Groups business rules document. 

▪ We will include any changes to demographics data in the correction records.  We will use 

the grade at time of testing from the correction record for reporting Assessment metrics. 

• ISA has student records for Science only.  

• The proficiency rate is calculated for Science.  

• If a student is in a Performance Level of 3 ‘Proficient’ or 4 ‘Exemplary’ then they are considered 
Proficient.   

• Each subgroup is calculated the same way. 

• Note for SY2023 and forward:  
o Invalid records should not be reported in the numerators of participation and achievement 

assessment files. Invalid includes records that were not assigned to students as well as those with 
missing enrollments, outside of testing window, outside of grade levels tested, etc.  

• Proficiency Levels for 2023: 

Grade Emerging 
Raw 

Score 
Developing 

Raw 
Score 

Proficient 
Raw 

Score 
Exemplary 

Raw 
Score 

5 700 – 769 0 – 29 770 – 798 30 – 46 799 – 831 47 – 64 833 – 900 65 – 81 

8 700 – 769 0 – 28 770 – 798 29 – 45 799 – 831 46 – 62 832 – 900 63 – 81 

11 700 – 772 0 – 24 773 – 795 25 – 35 796 – 832 36 – 55 833 – 900 56 – 81 

o For Grade 5: 

▪ Emerging is less than or equal to 769. 

▪ Developing is greater than 769 and less than or equal to 798. 

▪ Proficient is greater than 798 and less than or equal to 831. 

▪ Exemplary is greater than 832 and less than or equal to 900, which is the max scale 

score. 

o For Grade 8: 

▪ Emerging is less than or equal to 769. 

▪ Developing is greater than 769 and less than or equal to 798. 

▪ Proficient is greater than 798 and less than or equal to 831. 

▪ Exemplary is greater than 831 and less than or equal to 900, which is the max scale 

score. 

o For Grade 11: 

▪ Emerging is less than or equal to 772. 

▪ Developing is greater than 772 and less than or equal to 795. 

▪ Proficient is greater than 795 and less than or equal to 832. 

144



Page 39 
 

▪ Exemplary is greater than 833 and less than or equal to 900, which is the max scale 

score. 

• Proficiency Rate Numerator  
o Number of students who were proficient in Science (level 3 or 4)  

• Proficiency Rate Denominator  
o The denominator for Proficiency Rate is derived and will be:  

▪ Number of students with valid scores excluding all students with suppressed scores 
o If the student First Year in U.S. School indicator is “yes”, and has a score, the student is not included 

in the proficiency calculation in the source system. 
▪ The source system will be updated by the Assessment department PRIOR to data being 

moved into the Warehouse so this rule does not need to be applied in the Data Warehouse. 
o If the student First Year in U.S. School indicator is “no”, and has no score, the student is not 

included in proficiency calculation in the source system. 
▪ The source system will be updated by the Assessment department PRIOR to data being 

moved into the Warehouse so this rule does not need to be applied in the Data Warehouse. 
o Rules for multiple records:  

▪ If multiple records with same enrollment ID with both records with complete score we will 
report only the record with the lesser value scoreID (for earliest test date) for proficiency 
denominator at the respective district  

▪ At district level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 
different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID 
(for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator at the respective district  

▪ At state level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 
different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID 
(for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator  

o The following rule applies for subject level Science (this does not apply to the test level): 
▪ For any school or district where the denominator for Proficiency Rate uses “95% of the 

Participation Rate” we must calculate and display both Proficiency Rate using the two 
different denominators in each calculation “Total number of students with valid scores 
excluding all students with suppressed scores” and “”95% of Participation Rate 
denominator”) and indicate which calculation was used (meaning the “95% of the 
Participation Rate”) 

• Proficiency Rate for ISA: The table below indicates whether a record is included in the numerator and/or 
denominator for calculating Participation Rate.  

o Notes:  
▪ For a complete listing of RNVTA codes and validation rules see: 

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ISA_Reason-for-No-Valid-Test-
Attempt.pdf#search=ISA%20rnvta 

▪ Overall if a record is not in the participation numerator, then that record should not be 
considered at all for the proficiency numerator or denominator (regardless of RNVTA or 
suppression codes except for the scenarios for 10 and 15 outlined in the table)  

 

Assessment  Subject  Scale Score  RNVTA  
Code  

Suppression 
Code  

Include in  
Proficiency 
Numerator  

145

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ISA_Reason-for-No-Valid-Test-Attempt.pdf#search=ISA%20rnvta
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ISA_Reason-for-No-Valid-Test-Attempt.pdf#search=ISA%20rnvta


Page 40 
 

ISA  Science  A 3-digit Scale 
Score  

    Yes  

ISA  Science    01    No  

ISA  Science    02    No  

ISA   Science    03    No  

ISA   Science    04    No  

ISA   Science    05    No  

ISA   Science    06    No  

ISA   Science    07    No  

ISA   Science    08    No  

ISA   Science    09    No  

ISA   Science   No 10    No  

ISA Science Yes 10  Yes 

ISA   Science   No 15    No  

ISA Science Yes 15  Yes 

ISA   Science    16    No  

ISA   Science    17    No  

ISA   Science    30    No  

ISA   Science    31    No  

ISA   Science    32    No  

ISA   Science    33    No  

ISA   Science    34    No  

ISA   Science      S1  No  

ISA   Science      S2  No  

ISA   Science      S3  No  

ISA   Science      S4  No  

ISA   Science      S5  No  

ISA   Science      S6  No  

ISA   Science      S7  No  

ISA   Science      S8  No  

ISA   Science      S9  No  

ISA   Science      S10  No  

ISA   Science      S11  No  

ISA   Science      S12  No  

ISA   Science      S13  No  

ISA   Science      S14  No  

ISA   Science      S15  No  

ISA   Science      S16  No  

  

• Grades 5, 8 and 11 (grade 11 starting 2020 and beyond) Rostering  
o The grade is the grade at the time of testing from the Roster record and the student is not flagged 

as taking the DLM in SIS.  
 
 
 

146



Page 41 
 

Formula (calculations) 
Proficiency Rate Science Formula  

• (Number of students who are proficient in Science) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores in Science) × 
100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Proficiency Rate Science Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%) 

• (Number of students who are proficient in Science) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for 
Science) × 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
 
Sources of Data 
Illinois Science Assessment (ISA) 
Assessment system in IWAS 
 
 
 
  

147



Page 42 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Proficiency Rate and Student Growth Percentile – ELA & 
Math IAR  

SY 2023 

148



Page 43 
 

Proficiency Rate and Student Growth Percentile ELA and Math – IAR 
Definition 
The Illinois Assessment of Readiness (IAR) is a federally required measure of students’ mastery of the Illinois 
Learning Standards in English/Language Arts (ELA) and Math in grades 3 through 8, and their readiness for 
what’s next.  IAR results are also used to measure student growth for school and district accountability.  
 
IAR Proficiency has five levels of performance, which are:  

• Level 5: Exceeded expectations (considered proficient)  

• Level 4: Met expectations (considered proficient)  

• Level 3: Approached expectations  

• Level 2: Partially met expectations  

• Level 1: Did not yet meet expectations  
 
IAR Proficiency Rate Accountability is calculated, when relevant for accountability using the 95% of 
Participation Rate denominator, using the five levels of performance, which are: 

• Level 5: Exceeded expectations (considered proficient) 

• Level 4: Met expectations (considered proficient) 

• Level 3: Approached expectations 

• Level 2: Partially met expectations 

• Level 1: Did not yet meet expectations 
 
“Student Growth Percentile (SGP)” is a measure of student growth that compares a student’s performance 
over time to that of their academic peers (e.g., students in Illinois who have the same scale score in the prior 
year). It includes the current year score and up to two prior years’ scores allowing the growth percentile 
calculation to represent a true growth trend and not just movement up and down from year to year. Individual 
student growth percentiles range from 1 to 99. A score of 50 represents average or expected growth.  

o Cohort SGP:  
▪ The cohort SGP compares a student’s assessment score this year to all other Illinois 

students (in the same grade and same subject) who had the same scale score last year. The 
state mean will always be 50 in a cohort SGP calculation.  

o Baseline SGP:   
▪ The baseline SGP compares a student’s assessment score this year to all other Illinois 

students (in the same grade and same subject) who had the same scale score in a specified 
previous baseline year. A state mean above 50 in a baseline SGP calculation means students 
overall grew more this year than in the prior baseline year.  

 
The Scale Score to Performance level conversion for IAR can be found at: 
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/2019-IAR-Performance-Level-Cut-Scores.pdf 
  
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25c  
Federal Statute/Guidance: ED Facts E- MAPS Assessment Metadata Survey  
 
Business Rules 

• ELA and Math rates for the “All Student” population are computed and displayed.  

• The testing enrollment is defined in the Participation metric.  

149

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/2019-IAR-Performance-Level-Cut-Scores.pdf
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+2&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=14200000&SeqEnd=34150000
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/emaps-assessment-metadata-survey-user-guide.pdf


Page 44 
 

• The demographics (Race, Gender, and the Program Indicators) are disaggregated at the 
entity level (school, district, or state level) and at the grade level.  

• The source for the calculation is IAR Correction and Score records.  

• The grade is the grade at time of testing from the Correction record.  

• Student demographic information (race, gender, program indicators) used for assessment proficiency rate 
calculations comes from the Student Metrics table in the Warehouse.  See the Student Groups business 
rules for more information on how the table is populated.  

o This table is populated as follows: 
▪ Race, Gender, first year in the US, IDEA indicator, alternate assessment indicator, and EL 

indicator are typically derived from assessment correction records where available, and if 

no assessment correction record is available, then the SIS student demographic data from 

the exited student enrollment is used.  Assessment correction data will be used to 

determine student demographics. 

▪ IEP, EL and other student demographic indicators in the Student Metrics table are 

determined using logic defined in the Student Groups business rules document. 

▪ We will include any changes to demographics data in the correction records.  We will use 

the grade at time of testing from the correction record for reporting Assessment metrics. 

• All assessment proficiency rates are calculated for the responsible entity as defined in the Responsible 
Entity business rules.  

• IAR has student records for both ELA and Math.  

• The proficiency rate is calculated for both ELA and Math.  
o If a student is in a Performance Level of 4 or 5 then they are considered Proficient.  

• Each subgroup is calculated the same way. 

• Note for SY2023 and forward: 
o Invalid records should not be reported in the numerators of participation and achievement 

assessment files. Invalid includes records that were not assigned to students as well as those with 
missing enrollments, outside of testing window, outside of grade levels tested, etc.  

• Proficiency Rate Numerator  
o Number of students who are proficient in either ELA or Math (level 4 or level 5)  

• Proficiency Rate Denominator (for 2022 and forward)  
o Apply the “First Year in US” indicator check first.  EL indicator must be “yes” for First Year in U.S. 

School to be “yes”. 
▪ If a student’s First Year in U.S. School indicator is “yes”, has score, the student is not 

included in proficiency denominator and not included in the proficiency numerator. 
▪ If a student's First Year in U.S. School indicator is “yes”, has no score, the student is not 

included in proficiency denominator and not included in the proficiency numerator. 
o The denominator for Proficiency Rate for assessments is derived and will be: 

▪ Total number of students with valid scores excluding all students with suppressed scores 
o Rules for multiple records: 

▪ If multiple records with same enrollment ID with both records with complete score we will 
report only the record with the lesser value scoreID (for earliest test date) for proficiency 
denominator at the respective district  

▪ At district level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 
different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID 
(for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator at the respective district  

150



Page 45 
 

▪ At state level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 
different responsible districts, we will report only the record with the lesser value scoreID 
(for earliest test date) for proficiency denominator  

o The following rule applies for each subject level ELA, Math, and Science (this does not apply to the 
test level): 

▪ For any school or district where the denominator for Proficiency Rate uses “95% of the 
Participation Rate” we must calculate and display both Proficiency Rate using the two 
different denominators in each calculation “Total number of students with valid scores 
excluding all students with suppressed scores” and “”95% of Participation Rate 
denominator”) and indicate which calculation was used (meaning the “95% of the 
Participation Rate”) 

• The table below indicates whether a record is included in the numerator for calculating Proficiency Rate.  
o Note:  

▪ For a complete listing of RNVTA codes and validation rules see: 
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf 

  

Assessment Subject  Scale Score  RNVTA  
Code  

Suppression 
Code  

Include in  
Proficiency 
Numerator  

IAR All  Yes  Null  Null  Yes 

IAR All  No  1  Null  No  

IAR All  No  2  Null  No  

IAR All  No  3  Null  No  

IAR All  No  4  Null  No  

IAR All  No  7  Null  No  

IAR All  No  8  Null  No  

IAR All  No  9  Null  No  

IAR All  No  10  Null  No  

IAR All  No  15  Null  No  

IAR All  No  16  Null  No  

IAR All  No  18  Null  No  

IAR All  No  19  Null  No  

IAR All Yes 19 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

IAR All  No  21  Null  No  

IAR All  No  22  Null  No  

IAR All Yes 22 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

IAR All Yes 23 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

IAR All  No  25  Null  No  

IAR All Yes 25 
Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No 

 
 

• Student Growth Percentile (SGP): 

151

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf


Page 46 
 

o Starting on the 2023 Report Card, we will display both ‘cohort’ and ‘baseline’ data  
o Student Growth Percentile (SGP) is calculated at the entity level (School, District, and State).  
o The SGP is the average of individual student growth percentiles at the school, district, or state.  
o In order to calculate an SGP, the student would need to test in the same subject in the current 

reporting year and the previous school year, in a standard test to test progression group (e.g., 
Grade 3 to 4, Grade 4 to 5).  

o SGP is disaggregated at Race, Programs IEP, EL, and Low Income.  
o SGP is disaggregated by the proficiency levels.  
o Individual SGPs are calculated from the vendor and are transmitted to ISBE. ISBE only calculates 

aggregate SGPs.  
 
Formula (calculations) 
Proficiency Level ELA – IAR Formula   

• (Number of students who are proficient in ELA) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 
students with a suppressed score in ELA) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Proficiency Level ELA – IAR Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%)   

• (Number of students who are proficient in ELA) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for ELA) × 
100 

   
Proficiency Level Math – IAR Formula   

• (Number of students who are proficient in Math) ÷ (Number of students with valid scores excluding all 
students with a suppressed score in Math) × 100 

o Use this formula for every student group and overall. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Proficiency Level Math – IAR Accountability Formula (only published when a student group or overall 
participation rate is less than 95%)   

• (Number of students who are proficient in Math) ÷ (95% of the Participation Rate denominator for Math) × 
100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Growth Percentile ELA – IAR Formula 

• For valid scores that are not suppressed: (Sum of all individual student’s SGP in ELA) ÷ (Number of students 
with an SGP in ELA) × 100 

 
Growth Percentile Math – IAR Formula 

• For valid scores that are not suppressed: (Sum of all individual student’s SGP in Math) ÷ (Number of 
students with an SGP in Math) × 100 

 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS)  
  

152



Page 47 
 

 

Participation Rate ELA, Math, and Science – All Tests 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

153



Page 48 
 

Participation Rate and No Participation Rate ELA, Math, and Science - All Tests 
Definition 
Participation Rate is defined as the number of students who received participation credit for the state 
assessment divided by the number of students who were required to participate in the state 
assessment. Specific details are included in subsequent tables and detailed formulas in this document. 
 
No Participation Rate is defined as the number of students who did not receive participation credit for the 
state assessment divided by the number of students who were required to participate in the state assessment. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/2-3.64a; Approved waiver: 
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/IL20-21-Accountability-Waiver-Template.pdf 
Federal Statute/Guidance: Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015, Pub. L. No. 114-95 § 114 Stat. 1177 (2015-
2016). SEC. 1111.(2)(c)(4)(E)  
 
Business Rules 

• Each subject (ELA, Math, and Science) and applicable test (IAR, SAT, DLM-AA, and ISA) are reported.  

• Student demographic information (race, gender, program indicators) used for assessment participation 
rate calculations comes from the Student Metrics table in the Warehouse.  See the Student Groups 
business rules for more information on how the table is populated. 

o This table is populated as follows: 
▪ Race, Gender and program indicators are typically derived from assessment correction 

records where available, and if no assessment correction record is available, then the SIS 

student demographic data from the exited student enrollment is used. 

▪ IEP, EL and other student demographic indicators in the Student Metrics table are 

determined using logic defined in the Student Groups business rules document. 

▪ We will include any changes to demographics data in the correction records.  We will use 

the demographics at time of testing from the correction record for reporting Assessment 

metrics. 

• All assessment participation rates and no participation rates are calculated for the responsible entity as 
defined in the Responsible Entity business rules  

• Note: For 2023, any grade 12 students who were identified to be assessed and has a valid score or RNVTA, 
data should be included in any participation rate calculations. 

• For each assessment type, subject, and student group, the assessment no participation rate is calculated 
as:  

o (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum 
of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

o Note for 2023 All Tests Participation Denominator  
▪ If multiple records exist with the same enrollment ID but there is no score for either 

enrollment record, we will select a distinct record for the participation denominator  

▪ If multiple records exist with the same enrollment ID with a complete score but no score 

record, we will select the enrollment record with score for participation denominator  

▪ At district level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID and 

different responsible districts, we will report both records for participation denominator at 

their respective districts  

154

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt.+2&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=14200000&SeqEnd=36325000
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/IL20-21-Accountability-Waiver-Template.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-114publ95/pdf/PLAW-114publ95.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-114publ95/pdf/PLAW-114publ95.pdf


Page 49 
 

▪ At state level, if multiple records for a student exist with different enrollment ID  and 

different responsible districts, we will report only distinct students for participation 

denominator  

• Note for SY2023 and forward: 
o Invalid records and suppressed content scores should not be reported in the numerators of 

participation and achievement assessment files. Invalid includes records that were not assigned to 
students as well as those with missing enrollments, outside of testing window, outside of grade 
levels tested, etc.  

• Participation Rate for SAT with Essay, IAR, and DLM-AA: 
o The table below indicates whether a record is included in the numerator and/or denominator for 

calculating Participation Rate.  
o Note:  

▪ Apply the “First Year in U.S. School” indicator check first. 

• If student has First Year in the U.S. School indicator “yes”, has scale score, the 

student is included in the numerator and denominator.  

• If student has First Year in the U.S. School indicator “yes”, has no scale score, the 

student is not included in the numerator, but included in the denominator.   

▪ If a student who assessed for SAT with Essay has suppression 01, RNVTA 22 for ELA and 

Math, the student is not included in the numerator and denominator for participation. 

▪ If a student who assessed for SAT with Essay with ELA suppression code 02 and RNVTA of 

19, and has a math score, the student is included in the numerator and denominator for 

math and only in the denominator for ELA.  

▪ If a student who assessed for SAT with Essay with math suppression code 03 and RNVTA of 

19, and has an ELA score, the student is included in the numerator and denominator for ELA 

and only in the denominator for math. 

▪ If a student does not have a valid score and no RNVTA, the student will be included in only 

the denominator for participation.   

▪ For a complete listing of RNVTA codes and validation rules see: 

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf 

 

Assessment Subject Performance 
Level 

RNVTA 
Code 

Suppression 
Code 

Include in 
Participation 
Numerator 

Include in 
Participation 
Denominator 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All Yes Null Null Yes Yes 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 1 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 2 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 3 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 4 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 7 Null No No 

155

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/reason-no-valid-test-attmpt.pdf


Page 50 
 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 8 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 9 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 10 Null No Yes 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 15 Null No Yes 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 16 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 18 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 19 Null No Yes 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All Yes 19 Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No Yes 

SAT All Math-Yes 19 Suppression 
02 

Yes-Math 
No-ELA 

Yes 

 

SAT All ELA-Yes 19 Suppression 
03 

Yes-ELA 
No-Math 

Yes 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 21 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 22 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All Yes 22 Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

Yes Yes 

SAT All No 22 Suppression 
01 

No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All Yes 23 Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

Yes Yes 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 25 Null No Yes 

SAT, DLM-
AA 

All Yes 25 Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No Yes 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 50 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 51 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 52 Null No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 53 Null No Yes 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No 54 Null No No 

156



Page 51 
 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All Yes 54 Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All Yes 55 Suppressed 
(Not Null) 

No No 

SAT, IAR, 
DLM-AA 

All No No 
RNVTA 

No 
Suppression 

No Yes 

 
 

• Participation Rate for ISA:  
o The below table indicates whether a record is included in the numerator and/or denominator for 

calculating Participation Rate.  
o Notes:  

▪ For ISA, all students will have a result of:  

• A Scale Score, or  

• An RNVTA, or  

• A Suppression Code  
▪ For ISA, if a student has a scale score, then they will be included in the numerator and 

denominator.  
▪ The below table may change from year to year as determined by the business owner who 

manages these codes through a code table.  
▪ For ISA, if a code exists, it will only contain either an RNVTA code or a Suppression Code.  

• For a complete listing of RNVTA codes and validation rules see the below table: 
  

Assessment  Subject  Scale Score  RNVTA  
Code  

Suppression 
Code  

Include in  
Participation 
Numerator  

Include in  
Participation  
Denominator  

ISA  Science  A 3-digit 
Scale Score 

    Yes  Yes  

ISA  Science  No 01    No  No  

ISA  Science  No 02    No  No  

ISA   Science  No 03    No  No  

ISA   Science  No 04    No  No  

ISA   Science  Yes or No 05    No  No  

ISA   Science  Yes or No 06    No  No  

ISA   Science  Yes or No 07    No  No  

ISA   Science  No 08    No  No  

ISA   Science  No 09    No  No  

ISA   Science  No 10    No  Yes  

ISA Science Yes 10   Yes Yes 

ISA   Science  No 15    No  Yes  

ISA Science Yes 15  Yes Yes 

ISA   Science  No 16    No  No  

ISA   Science  No 17    No  No  

ISA   Science   30    No  Yes  

ISA   Science   31    No  Yes  

157



Page 52 
 

ISA   Science   32    No  No  

ISA   Science   33    No  Yes  

ISA   Science   34    No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S1  No  No  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S2  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S3  No  No  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S4  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S5  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S6  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S7  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S8  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S9  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S10  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S11  No  No  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S12  Yes  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S13  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S14  No  No  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S15  No  Yes  

ISA   Science  Yes or No   S16  Yes  Yes  

ISA Science No Valid 
Score 

No 
RNVTA 

No 
Suppression 

No Yes 

 
 
Formula (calculations) 
Base Participation Rate - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

Base No Participation Rate - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

Overall Participation Rate Subject  

•  ELA 
o Grades 3-8 use the IAR and DLM-AA datasets 
o Grade 11 and 12 students who have a valid score or RNVTA uses the SAT with Essay and DLM-AA 

datasets 
o Note: For 2023, grade 12 will be used in the participation rate calculation, if the student has either 

a score or an RNVTA applied based on the table above (not all grade 12 students will be included). 

• Math  
o Grades 3-8 use the IAR and DLM-AA datasets 
o Grade 11 and 12 students who have a valid score or RNVTA uses the SAT with Essay and DLM-AA 

datasets 

158



Page 53 
 

o Note: For 2023, grade 12 will be used in the participation rate calculation, if the student has either 
a score or an RNVTA applied based on the table above (not all grade 12 students will be included). 

• Science  
o Grades 5, 8 and 11 use the ISA and DLM-AA datasets  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
Participation Rate SAT with Essay ELA (Grade 11 and Grade 12 students who have a valid score or RNVTA) 
- Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

• Note: For 2023, grade 12 will be used in the participation rate calculation, if the student has either a score 
or an RNVTA applied based on the table above (not all grade 12 students will be included). 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

No Participation Rate SAT with Essay ELA (Grade 11 and Grade 12 students who have a valid score or 
RNVTA) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

Participation Rate SAT with Essay Math (Grade 11 and Grade 12 students who have a valid score or RNVTA) 
- Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

• Note: For 2023, grade 12 will be used in the participation rate calculation, if the student has either a score 
or an RNVTA applied based on the table above (not all grade 12 students will be included). 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

No Participation Rate SAT with Essay Math (Grade 11 and Grade 12 students who have a valid score or 
RNVTA) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

Participation Rate IAR ELA (Grades 3-8) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

No Participation Rate IAR ELA (Grades 3-8) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

Participation Rate IAR Math (Grades 3-8) - Formula 

159



Page 54 
 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

No Participation Rate IAR Math (Grades 3-8) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

Participation Rate DLM-AA ELA (Grades 3-8, 11 and 12 students who have a valid score or RNVTA) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

o Note: For 2023, grade 12 will be used in the participation rate calculation, if the student has either 
a score or an RNVTA applied based on the table above (not all grade 12 students will be included). 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

No Participation Rate DLM-AA ELA (Grades 3-8, 11 and 12 students who have a valid score or RNVTA) 
- Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

Participation Rate DLM-AA Math (Grades 3-8, 11 and 12 students who have a valid score or RNVTA) 
- Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

o Note: For 2023, grade 12 will be used in the participation rate calculation, if the student has either 
a score or an RNVTA applied based on the table above (not all grade 12 students will be included). 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

No Participation Rate DLM-AA Math (Grades 3-8, 11 and 12 students who have a valid score or RNVTA) 
- Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

Participation Rate DLM-AA Science (Grades 5, 8, and 11) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

No Participation Rate DLM-AA Science (Grades 5, 8, and 11) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 

160



Page 55 
 

Participation Rate ISA Science (Grades 5, 8, and 11) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
No Participation Rate ISA Science (Grades 5, 8, and 11) - Formula 

• (Sum of students with a “N” indicator in the “Include in Participation Numerator” column) ÷ (Sum of 
students with a “Y” indicator in the “Include in Participation Denominator” column) * 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts. 
 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Assessment system in IWAS, and  
Externally for 2020:  

• Pearson Access Next (IAR)  

• College Board Reporting portal (SAT)  

• Kite (DLM-AA)  

• ISBE Teach and ISBE Learn (ISA) 

 

 

  

161



Page 56 
 

 

National Assessment of Educational Progress 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

162



Page 57 
 

National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP) 
Definition 
Reading Grades 4 and 8 

The National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP), also known as "The Nation's Report Card," is the 
only nationally representative and continuing assessment that have been conducted periodically in reading, 
mathematics, science, writing, U.S. history, civics, geography, and the arts.  
 
NAEP does not provide scores for individual students or schools; instead, it offers results regarding subject-
matter achievement, instructional experiences, and school environment for populations of students (e.g., 
fourth-graders) and student groups of those populations (e.g., female students, Hispanic students). NAEP 
results are based on a sample of student populations of interest.  
 
National NAEP reports information for the nation and specific geographic regions of the country. It includes 
students drawn from both public and nonpublic schools and reports results for student achievement at grades 
4, 8, and 12. 
 
These assessments follow the Frameworks developed by the National Assessment Governing Board (NAGB), 
and use the latest advances in assessment methodology. For example, NAEP assessments include a large 
percentage of constructed-response questions and questions that require the use of calculators and other 
materials. Innovative types of questions have been used in assessments such as the arts (theatre, music, and 
visual arts) and science to measure students' ability to perform hands-on tasks.  
 
Since 1990, NAEP assessments have also been conducted on the state level. Participating states receive 
assessment results that report on the performance of students in that state. In its content, the state 
assessment is identical to the assessment conducted nationally. However, because the national NAEP samples 
were not, and are not currently designed to support the reporting of accurate and representative state-level 
results, separate representative samples of students are selected for each participating jurisdiction/state.  
 
Illinois’ history of NAEP participation is available at: 
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/profiles/stateprofile/overview/IL?cti=PgTab_OT&chort=1&sub=MAT&sj=I
L&fs=Grade&st=MN&year=2019R3&sg=Gender%3A+Male+vs.+Female&sgv=Difference&ts=Single+Year&sfj=N
P  
 
In addition to the assessments, NAEP coordinates a number of special educational studies related to 
assessment. Ongoing projects include the High School Transcript Study and a Technology-Based Assessment 
project designed to explore the use of technology, especially the use of the computer as a tool to enhance the 
quality and efficiency assessments.  
 
Reading Grades 4 and 8  

• The National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP) reading assessment is given every two years to 
students at grades 4 and 8, and approximately every four years at grade 12. NAEP 2021 was postponed to 
2022 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The assessment measures reading comprehension by asking 
students to read selected grade-appropriate materials and answer questions based on what they have 
read. The results present a broad view of students’ reading knowledge, skills, and performance over time. 
The most recent assessment was given in 2022 to approximately 2,600 Illinois students in grade 4 and 
2,800 Illinois students in grade 8. 

163

http://www.nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/
https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/assessment_process/samplesfaq.aspx
https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/assessments/frameworks.aspx
http://nagb.org/
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/profiles/stateprofile/overview/IL?cti=PgTab_OT&chort=1&sub=MAT&sj=IL&fs=Grade&st=MN&year=2019R3&sg=Gender%3A+Male+vs.+Female&sgv=Difference&ts=Single+Year&sfj=NP
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/profiles/stateprofile/overview/IL?cti=PgTab_OT&chort=1&sub=MAT&sj=IL&fs=Grade&st=MN&year=2019R3&sg=Gender%3A+Male+vs.+Female&sgv=Difference&ts=Single+Year&sfj=NP
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/profiles/stateprofile/overview/IL?cti=PgTab_OT&chort=1&sub=MAT&sj=IL&fs=Grade&st=MN&year=2019R3&sg=Gender%3A+Male+vs.+Female&sgv=Difference&ts=Single+Year&sfj=NP


Page 58 
 

• The National Assessment Governing Board oversees the development of NAEP frameworks that describe 
the specific knowledge and skills to be assessed in each subject and how the assessment questions should 
be designed and scored. The development of the NAEP reading framework was guided by scientifically 
based reading research. The framework defines reading as a dynamic cognitive process that involves 
understanding written text, developing and interpreting meaning, and using meaning as appropriate to the 
type of text. The framework also guides the types of texts included in the assessment and specifies 
cognitive targets for assessment questions. The same framework that has guided assessment development 
since 2009 was used to guide development of the 2017, 2019, and 2022 digitally based assessments.  
 
Additional resources can be found here: 

o https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/reading/ 
 
Inclusion Rates (participation rates) for students with disabilities (SD) and English Learners (EL):  

o Reading 
o Inclusion rate and standard error (S.E.) in NAEP reading for fourth- and eighth-grade public and 

nonpublic school students with disabilities and English Learners, as a percentage of identified 
SD or EL students.  

  
Additional resources can be found here: 

o https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/reading/ 
o https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/reading/supportive_files/2022_technical_appendix_readin

g.xlsx 

  
Math Grades 4 and 8  

• The National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP) mathematics assessment is given every two years 
to students at grades 4 and 8, and approximately every four years at grade 12. NAEP 2021 was postponed 
to 2022 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The assessment measures both mathematics knowledge and the 
students’ ability to apply their knowledge in problem-solving situations. The results present a broad view 
of students’ mathematics knowledge, skills, and performance over time. The most recent mathematics 
assessment was given in 2022 to approximately 2,800 Illinois students in grade 4 and 2,800 Illinois 
students in grade 8. 

• The National Assessment Governing Board oversees the development of NAEP frameworks that describe 
the specific knowledge and skills to be assessed in each subject and how the assessment questions should 
be designed and scored. The NAEP mathematics assessment framework specifies five broad content areas 
and three levels of mathematical complexity. The 2009 mathematics framework for grades 4 and 8 is 
similar to earlier frameworks that guided previous mathematics assessments. 

• The mathematics framework defines five broad content areas, three levels of complexity, and specifies the 
number of questions in each content area by grade. The framework also outlines what mathematics 
knowledge and skills students should have to reach Basic, Proficient, and Advanced achievement. The 
mathematics framework was updated in 2005 and again in 2009. Survey questionnaires, administered to 
students, teachers, and school administrators who participate in a mathematics assessment, are used to 
collect and report contextual information about students’ learning experience in and out of the classroom.  

  
Additional resources can be found here: 

o https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/mathematics/  
  

Inclusion Rates (participation rates) for students with disabilities (SD) and English Learners (EL)  

164

http://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/about/nagb/
https://www.nagb.gov/naep-subject-areas/reading.html
https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/reading/
https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/reading/
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/reading/supportive_files/2022_technical_appendix_reading.xlsx
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/reading/supportive_files/2022_technical_appendix_reading.xlsx
https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/about/organization_governance.aspx
https://www.nagb.gov/naep-subject-areas/mathematics.html
https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/mathematics/


Page 59 
 

o Mathematics  
o Inclusion rate and standard error (S.E.) in NAEP mathematics for fourth- and eighth-grade 

public and nonpublic school students with disabilities (SD) and English learners (EL), as a 
percentage of identified SD or EL students.  

  
Additional resources can be found here: 

o https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/mathematics/supportive_files/2019_technical_appendix_
math.xlsx 

o https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/mathematics/supportive_files/2022_technical_appendix_
math.xlsx 

 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: National Assessment of Educational Progress Authorization Act  
 
Business Rules 

• NAEP collects and publishes data every two years (i.e. 2017, 2019, 2022, 2024, 2026)  
o NAEP data being displayed can be up to two years behind  

▪ Note: The 2021 NAEP assessment program was postponed to 2022 due to the COVID-19 pandemic 
 

Report Card Year  
NAEP Data 

Year (every 2 
years)  

NAEP Data Available (every 
2 years)  

Data Delay  

2019 (first year)  2017  Oct/Nov 2017  2 years  

2020  2019  Oct/Nov 2019  1 year  

2021  2019  Oct/Nov 2019  2 years  

2022  2019  Oct/Nov 2019  3 years  

2023  2022  Oct/Nov 2022  1 year  

2024 2022 Oct/Nov 2022 2 years 

2025 2024 Oct/Nov 2024 1 year 

2026 2024 Oct/Nov 2024 2 years 

  

• NAEP data was first displayed on the 2019 Report Card – which was 2017 NAEP data  

• NAEP data is made available on their website (https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/) in the early 2023 
timeframe 

o For 2023, we will display 2022 data 

• NAEP data is also made available on ISBE’s website at https://www.isbe.net/Pages/NAEP.aspx under 
“Summary of NAEP Results”  

• NAEP does not provide an actual data file  
o ISBE gathers the NAEP data information from the NAEP website and enters it into a Data 

Warehouse table manually  

• NAEP metrics do not have formulas  

• On the Classic PDF, NAEP results will only be reported on the State-level and District-level Report Cards  

• On the IIRC, NAEP results will only be reported on the State-level  

• NAEP results will not be included on any School-level Report Cards for either the Classic PDF or the IIRC  

165

https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/mathematics/supportive_files/2019_technical_appendix_math.xlsx
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/mathematics/supportive_files/2019_technical_appendix_math.xlsx
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/mathematics/supportive_files/2022_technical_appendix_math.xlsx
https://www.nationsreportcard.gov/mathematics/supportive_files/2022_technical_appendix_math.xlsx
https://www.nagb.gov/about-naep/the-naep-law.html
https://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/
https://www.isbe.net/Pages/NAEP.aspx


Page 60 
 

 
Formula (calculations) 
N/A 
 
Sources of Data 
National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP)  
  

166



Page 61 
 

 

State Performance Plan Indicators  

SY 2023 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

167



Page 62 
 

State Performance Plan Indicators 
Definition  
The State Performance Plan (SPP) functions as an accountability mechanism and the actual plan for systems 
change.  It documents quantifiable indications of performance in the priority areas of a free, appropriate 
public education (FAPE) in the least restrictive environment (LRE), disproportionality, and effective general 
supervision. Measurable and rigorous targets exist for each SPP indicator with the intention of leading to 
improved results for children and youth with disabilities.  Annual performance reporting is required through 
the Annual Performance Report (APR) to address ISBE’s progress toward meeting its targets.  Stakeholder 
involvement remains key to the development and implementation of the SPP. The Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act (IDEA 2004) requires states to develop and submit a State Performance Plan (SPP) to the Office 
of Special Education Programs (OSEP) at the U.S. Department of Education. The SPP is designed to evaluate 
the State's efforts to implement the requirements and purposes of IDEA and describe how the State will 
improve its implementation. The plan consists of several priority areas with specific indicators defined for each 
area. Measurable and rigorous targets are defined for each indicator to show progress throughout the life of 
the SPP. States are required to publicly report on SPP Indicators 1-14. A link to the Illinois State Performance 
Plan, Part B can be found at https://www.isbe.net/Pages/General-Supervision.aspx. 

 
Guidance Citation  
State Statute/Guidance: N/A  
Federal Statute/Guidance: Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 20 U.S.C 1416(b)(2)(C)(ii)(II) , 
Assistance to States for the Education of Children with Disabilities 34CFR 300.600-300.603  
 
Business Rules  

• The State Performance Plan sets state targets/standards for each metric under the indicators. The district 

score is compared to the state standard and a “District Met State Target” is determined. 

o If the district value is greater than or equal to the target, then the district is determined to 

have Met the target (reported as a “YES”) 

o Else they did not meet the target (reported as a ‘NO’) 

o There are metrics where a district has no values (i.e. Early Childhood metrics in a high school 

district) in which case the district and District Met value are N/A 

• There are 14 State Performance Plan (SPP) Indicators for Districts with data reported at the district 

level.  The Indicators fall into two categories: 

o Indicators that are based on metrics calculated for reports other than SPP 

▪ These include the IEP Graduation Rate, Dropout Rate, and Discipline indicators. 

▪ These indicators are based on data that lag one year. 

o Indicators that are calculated specifically for SPP and are based on the current year data. 

• The following are the business rules for each metric for the 14 SPP Indicators. 

o Indicator 1: Graduation 

▪ Indicator 1 is a results indicator that measures the percent of youth with Individualized 

Education Programs (IEPs) graduating from high school with a regular diploma. 

▪ Data is available when the Report Card snapshot is taken. However, data for this indicator 

are “lag” data, so the State must describe the results of its examination of the data for the 

year before the reporting year (e.g., for the FFY 2022 SPP/APR, use data from 2021-2022). 

▪ Measurement/Calculation - States must report a percentage using the number 

of youth with IEPs (ages 14-21) who exited special education due to graduating with a 

168

https://www.isbe.net/Pages/General-Supervision.aspx
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/statute-chapter-33/subchapter-II/1416/b/2/C
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=2363f106eaf06487fc30c8c88efbdcc1&mc=true&node=se34.2.300_1600&rgn=div8


Page 63 
 

regular high school diploma in the numerator and the number of all youth with IEPs who 

left high school (ages 14-21) in the denominator (in a single year). 

o Indicator 2: Dropout 

▪ Indicator 2 is a results indicator that measures the percent of youth with IEPs dropping out 

of high school. 

▪ Data is available on February 21, 2024 for SY 2023 (EDFacts submission date). However, 

data for this indicator are “lag” data, so the State must describe the results of its 

examination of the data for the year before the reporting year (e.g., for the FFY 2022 

SPP/APR, use data from 2021-2022). 

▪ Measurement/Calculation - States must report a percentage using the number 

of youth with IEPs (ages 14-21) who exited special education due to dropping out in the 

numerator and the number of all youth with IEPs who left high school (ages 14-21) in the 

denominator (in a single year). 

o Indicator 3: Statewide Assessment  

▪ Indicator 3 is a results indicator that measures the participation and performance of 

children with IEPs on statewide assessments: 

• A. Participation rate for children with IEPs 

• B. Proficiency rate for children with IEPs against grade level academic achievement 

standards 

• C. Proficiency rate for children with IEPs against alternative academic achievement 

standards 

• D. Gap in proficiency rates for children with IEPs and all students against grade level 

academic achievement standards 

▪ Data is available on April 5 of the next school year (EDFacts final submission date). On the 

2023 Report card, for Indicator 3 we will use the April 2023 EDFacts submissions. 

o Indicator 4: Suspension/Expulsion 

▪ Indicator 4A is a results indicator that measures the rates of suspension/expulsion (Percent 

of districts that have a significant discrepancy in the rate of suspensions/expulsions greater 

than 10 cumulative days in a school year for children with IEPs). 

▪ Indicator 4B is a compliance indicator that measures the rates of suspension and expulsion 

(Percent of districts that have [a] a significant discrepancy, by race or ethnicity, in the rate 

of suspensions and expulsions greater than 10 days in a school year for children with IEPs 

and [b] policies, procedures or practices that contribute to the significant discrepancy and 

do not comply with requirements relating to the development and implementation of IEPs, 

the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and procedural safeguards. 

▪ Data is available around October 1 of the next school year (I.e., 2022-2023 discipline 

data is available October 1, 2023). Data for Indicator 4 are “lag data,” so use the data for the 

year before the reporting year [e.g., for the FFY 2022 SPP/APR due February 1, 2024, use 

data from the 2021-22 school year]. 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• 4A. Percent = [(# of LEAs that meet the State-established n and/or cell size (if 

applicable) that have a significant discrepancy, as defined by the State, in the rates 

of suspensions and expulsions for more than 10 days during the school year of 

169



Page 64 
 

children with IEPs) divided by the (# of LEAs in the State that meet the State-

established n and/or cell size (if applicable))] times 100. 

• 4B. Percent = [(# of LEAs that meet the State-established n and/or cell size (if 

applicable) for one or more racial/ethnic groups that have: 

o (a) a significant discrepancy, as defined by the State, by race or ethnicity, in 

the rates of suspensions and expulsions of more than 10 days during the 

school year of children with IEPs; and  

o (b) policies, procedures or practices that contribute to the significant 

discrepancy, as defined by the State, and do not comply with requirements 

relating to the development and implementation of IEPs, the use of positive 

behavioral interventions and supports, and procedural safeguards) divided 

by the (# of LEAs in the State that meet the State-established n and/or cell 

size (if applicable) for one or more racial/ethnic groups)] times 100. 

• The state-specific calculations are: 

o District Level:  Total # of students with IEPs with more than 10 cumulative 

days of Qualifying Suspensions/Expulsions in the District * 100 divided by the 

total number of students with IEPs in the District. 

o State Level:  Total # of students with IEPs with more than 10 cumulative days 

of Qualifying Suspensions/Expulsions in the State * 100 divided by the total 

number of students with IEPs in the State. 

o Calculations are computed for the district and state with precision to two 

decimal points. 

o The calculations are performed for the race group at district and state if 

there are 5 or more students in the group. 

o A statewide standard deviation is calculated for total population using the 

formula:  Square root (percent expelled or suspended * (100- percent 

expelled or suspended)/total enrollment). 

• For 4A, a district is considered to have a significant discrepancy if the district rate is 

greater than the State rate plus 1 standard deviation for three consecutive years 

AND there are at least 5 students with IEPs suspended or expelled more than 10 

days in each of the 3 school years. 

• For 4B a district is considered to have a significant discrepancy if the district rate 

within a particular race/ethnicity group is greater than the State rate plus 1 standard 

deviation for three consecutive years AND there are at least 5 students with IEPs 

within a particular race/ethnicity suspended or expelled more than 10 days in each 

of the 3 school years.  The district is considered to have a significant discrepancy if 

the above conditional is met by at least one racial group. 

o Indicator 5: Education Environment (5-year-old kindergartners through age 21) 

▪ Indicator 5 is a results indicator that measures the percent of students with IEPs (5-year-old 

kindergartners through age 21) served inside the general education classroom 80% or more 

of the school day (5A), inside the general education classroom less than 40% of the day 

(5B), or in separate schools/residential facilities/home/hospital placements (5C).  

▪ Data is available on June 28, 2023 for SY2023 (EDFacts submission date). 

170



Page 65 
 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• 5A. Percent = [(# of children with IEPs aged 5 who are enrolled in kindergarten and 

aged 6 through 21 served inside the regular class 80% or more of the day) divided by 

the (total # of students aged 5 who are enrolled in kindergarten and aged 6 through 

21 with IEPs)] times 100. 

• 5B. Percent = [(# of children with IEPs aged 5 who are enrolled in kindergarten and 

aged 6 through 21 served inside the regular class less than 40% of the day) divided 

by the (total # of students aged 5 who are enrolled in kindergarten and aged 6 

through 21 with IEPs)] times 100. 

• 5C. Percent = [(# of children with IEPs aged 5 who are enrolled in kindergarten and 

aged 6 through 21 served in separate schools, residential facilities, or 

homebound/hospital placements) divided by the (total # of students aged 5 who are 

enrolled in kindergarten and aged 6 through 21 with IEPs)] times 100. 

o Indicator 6: Education Environment (ages 3-5 in Preschool) 

▪ Indicator 6 is a results indicator that measures the percent of children with IEPs (ages 3-5 in 

Preschool) attending a regular early childhood (EC) program and receiving the majority 

of special education and related services in the regular EC program (6A), a separate special 

education class/separate school/residential facility (6B), or in the home (6C). 

▪ Data is available on June 28, 2023 for SY2023 (EDFacts submission date). 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• 6A. Percent = [(# of children ages 3, 4, and 5 with IEPs attending a regular early 

childhood program and receiving the majority of special education and related 

services in the regular early childhood program) divided by the (total # of children 

ages 3, 4, and 5 with IEPs)] times 100. 

• 6B. Percent = [(# of children ages 3, 4, and 5 with IEPs attending a separate special 

education class, separate school or residential facility) divided by the (total # of 

children ages 3, 4, and 5with IEPs)] times 100. 

• 6C. Percent = [(# of children ages 3, 4, and 5 with IEPs receiving special education 

and related services in the home) divided by the (total # of children ages 3, 4, and 5 

with IEPs)] times 100. 

o Indicator 7: Preschool Outcomes 

▪ Indicator 7 is a results indicator that measures the percent of preschool children aged 3 

through 5 with IEPs who demonstrate improved positive social-emotional skills (7A), 

acquisition and use of knowledge and skills (7B) and use of appropriate behaviors to meet 

their needs (7C) from their initial entry evaluation. 

▪ Data is available in October for the preceding school year. 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• Indicator 7 evaluates students exiting the preschool program in three Outcomes: 

o A. Positive social-emotional skills (including social relationships); 

o B. Acquisition and use of knowledge and skills (including early 

language/communication and early literacy); and 

o C. Use of appropriate behaviors to meet their needs. 

171



Page 66 
 

• The progress rating rates each of the three outcomes in one of five progress 

categories/levels of functioning. Progress categories for outcome A, B and C are: 

o a. Percent of preschool children who did not improve functioning = [(# of 

preschool children who did not improve functioning) divided by (# of 

preschool children with IEPs assessed)] times 100. 

o b. Percent of preschool children who improved functioning but not sufficient 

to move nearer to functioning comparable to same-aged peers = [(# of 

preschool children who improved functioning but not sufficient to move 

nearer to functioning comparable to same-aged peers) divided by (# of 

preschool children with IEPs assessed)] times 100. 

o c. Percent of preschool children who improved functioning to a level nearer 

to same-aged peers but did not reach it = [(# of preschool children who 

improved functioning to a level nearer to same-aged peers but did not reach 

it) divided by (# of preschool children with IEPs assessed)] times 100. 

o d. Percent of preschool children who improved functioning to reach a level 

comparable to same-aged peers = [(# of preschool children who improved 

functioning to reach a level comparable to same-aged peers) divided by (# of 

preschool children with IEPs assessed)] times 100. 

o e. Percent of preschool children who maintained functioning at a level 

comparable to same aged peers = [(# of preschool children who maintained 

functioning at a level comparable to same-aged peers) divided by (# of 

preschool children with IEPs assessed)] times 100. 

• There are two summary statements/indicators for each of the three outcomes: 

o Summary Statement 1: Of those preschool children who entered the 

preschool program below age expectations in each Outcome, the percent 

who substantially increased their rate of growth by the time they turned 6 

years of age or exited the program. 

o Measurement for Summary Statement 1: Percent = [(# of preschool children 

reported in progress category (c) plus # of preschool children reported in 

category (d)) divided by (# of preschool children reported in progress 

category (a) plus # of preschool children reported in progress category (b) 

plus # of preschool children reported in progress category (c) plus # of 

preschool children reported in progress category (d))] times 100. 

o Summary Statement 2: The percent of preschool children who were 

functioning within age expectations in each Outcome by the time they 

turned 6 years of age or exited the program. 

o Measurement for Summary Statement 2: Percent = [(# of preschool children 

reported in progress category (d) plus # of preschool children reported in 

progress category (e)) divided by (the total # of preschool children reported 

in progress categories (a) + (b) + (c) + (d) + (e))] times 100. 

• For each of the three outcomes: 

o A1 is calculated as: counts from C + D * 100 divided by counts from A + B + C 

+ D. 

172



Page 67 
 

o A2 is calculated as: counts from D + E * 100 divided by counts from A + B + C 

+ D + E. 

o Indicator 8: Parent Involvement 

▪ Indicator 8 is a results indicator that measures the percent of parents with a child receiving 

special education services who report that schools facilitated parent involvement as a 

means of improving services and results for children with disabilities. 

▪ Data for this indicator is extracted February 1.  ISBE receives data by late July from the 

external vendor regarding survey results/data analysis and receives a report on the survey’s 

representativeness from the vendor in the fall. 

▪ Prior to school year 2022-2023, data for this indicator was extracted February 1.  

▪ Starting in school year 2022-2023 the address file will be extracted from the finalized 

December 1 Child Count from the previous year (e.g. December 1, 2022 Finalized Child 

Count is used to supply the address file in October 2023). ISBE receives data by late July 

from the external vendor regarding survey results/data analysis and receives a report on the 

survey’s representativeness from the vendor in the fall.  

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• The calculation for the resident district or state is: 

o Percent = [(# of respondent parents who report schools facilitated parent 

involvement as a means of improving services and results for children with 

disabilities) divided by the (total # of respondent parents of children with 

disabilities)] times 100. 

o Indicator 9: Disproportionate Representation in Special Education 

▪ Indicator 9 is a compliance indicator that measures the percent of districts with 

disproportionate representation of racial and ethnic groups in special education and related 

services that is the result of inappropriate identification. Indicator 9 compares the 

enrollment of all students to those students with IEPs by Race/Ethnicity at a school, district 

and state level. 

▪ Data is available around April 1 of the current school year. (i.e., 2019-2020 Identification 

available April 1 of 2020 when Fall Enrollment and Pupil Counts are approved).  Data for this 

indicator is extracted on or around April 15. 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• Percent = [(# of districts, that meet the State established n and/or cell size (if 

applicable) for one or more racial/ethnic groups, with disproportionate 

representation of racial and ethnic groups in special education and related services 

that is the result of inappropriate identification) divided by the (# of districts in the 

State that meet the State-established n and/or cell size (if applicable) for one or 

more racial/ethnic groups)] times 100. 

▪ State definition of disproportionate representation 

• Disproportionate representation (or disproportionality) of racial/ethnic groups in 

special education is currently defined as students in a particular racial/ethnic group 

(i.e., Asian, Black, Hispanic, Native American, Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander, 

Two or More Races, or White) being at a considerably greater risk of being identified 

as eligible for special education and related services than all other racial/ethnic 

173



Page 68 
 

groups enrolled either in the LEA or in the state (depending on the type of risk ratio 

calculation applied, as discussed below). ISBE uses a risk ratio to determine state risk 

for racial/ethnic disproportionality. To determine LEA risk for racial/ethnic 

disproportionality, ISBE uses a weighted risk ratio for LEAs in which there are at least 

10 students in the racial/ethnic group and at least 10 students in the comparison 

group (all students in the racial/ethnic group enrolled in the LEA), and an alternate 

risk ratio for LEAs in which there are at least 10 students in the racial/ethnic group 

but fewer than 10 students in the comparison group enrolled in the LEA. The State 

utilized data from annual Fall Enrollment Counts from the Student Information 

System, or SIS, (for all students, ages 6-21 served under IDEA) and December Child 

Count (for students with IEPs, ages 6-21). 

• ISBE examines data in the given school year to determine the number of LEAs that 

had at least 10 students with IEPs ages 6 – 21 (and 5-year-old children enrolled in 

kindergarten) for the past three school years to determine how many LEAs met the 

minimum “n” size for further analysis. ISBE calculates a weighted or alternate risk 

ratio for every LEA in the state regarding overall special education eligibility. Such 

risk ratios are calculated for each racial/ethnic group enrolled in a LEA. ISBE’s criteria 

for determining over-representation based on race/ethnicity is a calculated 

weighted or alternate risk ratio of 3.0 or higher for three consecutive years for a 

particular racial/ ethnic group in which there are at least ten students in the special 

education population. 

o Indicator 10: Disproportionate Representation in Specific Disability Categories 

▪ Indicator 10 is a compliance indicator that measures the percent of districts with 

disproportionate representation of racial and ethnic groups in specific disability categories 

that is the result of inappropriate identification. Indicator 10 compares the enrollment of all 

students to those students with IEPs by Race/Ethnicity at a school, district and state level. 

▪ Data is available around April 1 of the current school year. (i.e., 2022-2023 Identification 

available April 15 of 2023 when Fall Enrollment and Pupil Counts are approved). 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• Percent = [(# of districts, that meet the State established n and/or cell size (if 

applicable) for one or more racial/ethnic groups, with disproportionate 

representation of racial and ethnic groups in specific disability categories that is the 

result of inappropriate identification) divided by the (# of districts in the State that 

meet a State-established n and/or cell size (if applicable) for one or more 

racial/ethnic groups)] times 100. 

▪ State definition of disproportionate representation 

• Disproportionate representation (or disproportionality) of racial/ethnic groups in 

special education disability categories is currently defined as students in a particular 

racial/ethnic group (i.e., Asian, Black, Hispanic, Native American, Native 

Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander, Two or More Races, or White) being at a 

considerably greater risk of being identified as eligible for special education and 

related services in a specific disability category (Speech/Language, Specific Learning 

Disability, Emotional Disturbance, Intellectual Disability, Autism, and Other Health 

174



Page 69 
 

Impairment) than all other racial/ethnic groups enrolled either in the LEA or in the 

state (depending on the type of risk ratio calculation applied, as discussed below). 

ISBE uses a risk ratio to determine state risk for racial/ethnic disproportionality. To 

determine LEA risk for racial/ethnic disproportionality, ISBE uses a weighted risk 

ratio for LEAs in which there are at least 10 students in the racial/ethnic group and 

at least 10 students in the comparison group (all students in the racial/ethnic group 

enrolled in the LEA), and an alternate risk ratio for LEAs in which there are at least 

10 students in the racial/ethnic group but fewer than 10 students in the comparison 

group enrolled in the LEA. The State utilized data from annual Fall Enrollment Counts 

from the Student Information System, or SIS, (for all students, ages 6-21 served 

under IDEA) and December Child Count (for students with IEPs, ages 6-21). 

• ISBE examines data for the given school year to determine the number of LEAs that 

had at least 10 students ages 6 – 21 for the past three school years in one of the six 

disability categories listed above to determine how many LEAs met the minimum 

“n” size for further analysis. ISBE calculates a weighted or alternate risk ratio for 

every LEA in the state regarding special education eligibility in the categories listed 

above. Such risk ratios are calculated for each racial/ethnic group enrolled in a LEA. 

ISBE’s criteria for determining over-representation based on race/ethnicity is a 

calculated weighted or alternate risk ratio of 3.0 or higher for three consecutive 

years for a particular racial/ethnic group in which there are at least ten students in 

the special education disability category in question. 

o Indicator 11: Evaluation Timelines 

▪ Indicator 11 is a compliance indicator that measures the percent of children who were 

evaluated within 60 school days of receiving parental consent for initial evaluation. 

▪ Data is extracted on or around July 15. Findings of noncompliance are issued September 1 

annually. 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• a. # of children for whom parental consent to evaluate was received. 

• b. # of children whose evaluations were completed within 60 days (or State-

established timeline). 

• Percent = [(b) divided by (a)] times 100. 

o Indicator 12: IDEA Part C to Part B Transition 

▪ Indicator 12 is a compliance indicator that measures the percent of children referred by Part 

C prior to age 3, who are found eligible for Part B, and who have an IEP developed and 

implemented by their third birthdays. 

▪ Indicator 12 analyzes the children referred by early intervention prior to age three who 

were found eligible for special education services and have an IEP developed and 

implemented by their third birthday. 

▪ Data is extracted on or around July 15. Findings of noncompliance are issued September 1 

annually. 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• a. # of children who have been served in Part C and referred to Part B for Part B 

eligibility determination. 

175



Page 70 
 

• b. # of those referred determined to be NOT eligible and whose eligibility was 

determined prior to their third birthdays. 

• c. # of those found eligible who have an IEP developed and implemented by their 

third birthdays. 

• d. # of children for whom parent refusal to provide consent caused delays in 

evaluation or initial services or to whom exceptions under 34 CFR §300.301(d) 

applied. 

• e. # of children determined to be eligible for early intervention services under Part C 

less than 90 days before their third birthdays. 

• f. # of children whose parents chose to continue early intervention services beyond 

the child’s third birthday through a state’s policy under 34 CFR §303.211 or a similar 

State option.  

▪ Percent = [(c) divided by (a - b - d - e - f)] times 100. 

o Indicator 13: Secondary Transition 

▪ Indicator 13 is a compliance indicator that measures the percent of youth with IEPs aged 16 

and above with an IEP that includes appropriate measurable postsecondary goals that are 

annually updated and based upon age-appropriate transition assessments, transition 

services, including courses of study, that will reasonably enable the student to meet those 

postsecondary goals, and annual IEP goals related to the student’s transition service needs. 

▪ Additionally, Illinois state regulations require districts to complete a transition plan during 

the year the student turns 14½ years of age and annually update the plan. 

▪ Data is pulled in early July. Findings of noncompliance are issued September 1 annually. 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• Percent = [(# of youth with IEPs aged 16 and above with an IEP that includes 

appropriate measurable postsecondary goals that are annually updated and based 

upon an age-appropriate transition assessment, transition services, including 

courses of study, that will reasonably enable the student to meet those 

postsecondary goals, and annual IEP goals related to the student’s 

transition services needs. There also must be evidence that the student was invited 

to the IEP Team meeting where transition services are to be discussed and evidence 

that, if appropriate, a representative of any participating agency that is likely to be 

responsible for providing or paying for transition services, including, if appropriate, 

pre-employment transition services, was invited to the IEP Team meeting with the 

prior consent of the parent or student who has reached the age of majority) divided 

by the (# of youth with an IEP age 16 and above)] times 100. 

o Indicator 14: Post-School Outcomes 

▪ Indicator 14 is a results indicator that measures the percent of youth who are no longer in 

secondary school, had IEPs in effect at the time they left school, and were enrolled in higher 

education within one year of leaving high school (14A), enrolled in higher education or 

competitively employed within one year of leaving high school (14B), or enrolled in higher 

education or in some other postsecondary education or training program; or competitively 

employed or in some other employment within one year of leaving high school (14C). A 

survey population is selected using the logic described below and the districts are then 

176



Page 71 
 

required to try to contact the former students and survey them. LEAs must document at 

least three attempts to contact youth regarding the survey, and complete survey data must 

be submitted to pass edit checks. 

▪ Data for this indicator survey sample is extracted on April 1. After the survey window closes, 

the Special Education department will request final survey results for SPP Indicator 14, 

which occurs on or around October 15. 

▪ Measurement/Calculation 

• 14A. Percent enrolled in higher education = [(# of youth who are no longer in 

secondary school, had IEPs in effect at the time they left school and were enrolled in 

higher education within one year of leaving high school) divided by the (# of 

respondent youth who are no longer in secondary school and had IEPs in effect at 

the time they left school)] times 100.   

• 14B. Percent enrolled in higher education or competitively employed within one 

year of leaving high school = [(# of youth who are no longer in secondary school, had 

IEPs in effect at the time they left school and were enrolled in higher education or 

competitively employed within one year of leaving high school) divided by the (# of 

respondent youth who are no longer in secondary school and had IEPs in effect at 

the time they left school)] times 100. 

• 14C. Percent enrolled in higher education, or in some other postsecondary 

education or training program; or competitively employed or in some other 

employment = [(# of youth who are no longer in secondary school, had IEPs in effect 

at the time they left school and were enrolled in higher education, or in some other 

postsecondary education or training program; or competitively employed or in some 

other employment) divided by the (# of respondent youth who are no longer in 

secondary school and had IEPs in effect at the time they left school)] times 100. 

 
Formula (calculations)  

• N/A 
 
Sources of Data  
I-STAR 
Student Information System (SIS) 
  

177



Page 72 
 

 

Eighth Graders Passing Algebra I  

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

178



Page 73 
 

Eighth Graders Passing Algebra I 
Definition 
Eighth Graders Passing Algebra I are defined as eighth-grade students who have successfully completed 
Algebra I (or its equivalent) by the end of Grade 8. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a 
ISBE Rules Part 1 Section 1.79 School Report Card 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 

• If the student passes the course in the final term, the student is considered to pass for the year. 

• All courses taken during their 8th grade year, including summer sessions, are included. 
o Any current 8th grade student who has passed Algebra I in the current year or in the previous two 

years. 

• The numerator is determined by:  
o 8th grade students assigned to one of the following courses regardless of the Final Letter 

Grade.  (This is because these classes require Algebra I as a prerequisite therefore, by being 
assigned to the course, the student must have already completed Algebra I and received credit);  

▪ The existence of the course assignment is all that is required regardless of exit status or 
term  

State Course ID  State Course Title  

02056A000 Algebra II  

02072A000 Geometry  

02103A000 Trigonometry  

02105A000 Trigonometry/Math Analysis  

02106A000 Trigonometry/Algebra  

02107A000 Trigonometry/Analytic Geometry  

02108A000 Math Analysis/Analytic Geometry  

02109A000 Elementary Functions  

02110A000 Pre-Calculus  

52072A000 Geometry  

02302A000 High School Math 2  

02125A000 AP Calculus BC  

  
▪ Or 8th grade students enrolled and having passed these Algebra I – equivalent classes in the 

final term (year long, second semester, third trimester, fourth quarter, or any summer 
term): 

State Course ID  State Course Title  

02052A000 Algebra I (Secondary Course with high school 
credit)  

02054A000 Algebra I/Part 2  

02055A000 Transition Algebra  

52038A000 Mathematics (grade 8) with Course Level as 
“Enriched” or “Honors”  

52052A000 Algebra I (Prior to Secondary)  

179

http://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/023/023000010A00790R.html
https://www.ilga.gov/commission/Jcar/admincode/023/023000010A00790R.html


Page 74 
 

52061A000 Integrated Mathematics (prior to secondary) 

52069A000 
02069A000 

Algebra/Other 

02061A000 Integrated Math—multi-year equivalent  

02062A000 Integrated Mathematics 

  
▪ The Course Letter Grades listed below are considered passing; 

Course Letter 
Grade 

Grade Description 

A+ Student received course term credit 

A Student received course term credit 

A- Student received course term credit 

B+ Student received course term credit 

B Student received course term credit 

B- Student received course term credit 

C+ Student received course term credit 

C Student received course term credit 

C- Student received course term credit 

D+ Student received course term credit 

D Student received course term credit 

D- Student received course term credit 

S Satisfactory or Pass.  Student received 
course term credit 

Above Average Students performance exceeds standards 
(Grades K-8 only) 

Average Students performance exceeds standards 
(Grades K-8 only) 

P Student was promoted at end of term 
(Grades K-8 only) 

Exceptional (Exceeds Expectations) Student 
demonstrates the skill or understands the 
concepts at a level exceeding expectations 
for reporting period 

Meets Standard (Developing Appropriately) Student 
usually demonstrates the skill or 
understands the concepts and meets 
expectation for the reporting period 

 

▪ The Course Letter Grades listed below are considered not passing; 

Course Letter 

Grade 

Grade Description 

F Student did not receive course term credit 

180



Page 75 
 

U Unsatisfactory.  Student received course 

term credit 

I Incomplete.  Student was enrolled on 

Course End Date.  Student did not receive 

course term credit. 

Below Average Student’s performance was below 

expectations (Grades K-8 only) 

R Student was retained at end of term 

(Grades K-8 only) 

N Student did not complete the term 

(Grades K-8 only) 

Approaching 

Standard 

(Beginning to Develop) Student sometimes 

demonstrates the skill or understands the 

concepts and meets some expectations for 

the reporting period 

Below Standard (Needs to Develop) Student seldom 

demonstrates the skill or understands the 

concepts and is not meeting expectations 

for the reporting period 

W Withdrew form course.  Student did not 

receive course term credit.  Student was 

not enrolled on Course End Date. 

WP Withdrew from course.  Student did 

receive course term credit.  Student was 

not enrolled on Course End Date. 

Audit Student Audited the Course.  Student did 

not receive course term credit. 

X Student waived from course requirement.  

Student did not receive course term 

credit.  Student did not receive a final 

grade. 

 

• The denominator is the total qualified students which is determined by:  

181



Page 76 
 

o Students in 8th grade and;  
o Students with one or more enrollments that begins on or before October 1st of the current school 

year and;   
o One or more enrollments that ends after May 1st of the current school year  
o Notes:  

▪ The sum of the day’s enrollments in the current school year must be greater than 212  
▪ Multiple enrollments from different districts/schools can be considered to determine 

whether a student qualifies as an 8th grader  
o The student is attributed to the responsible school from their last 8th grade enrollment during the 

regular school year.    
▪ Private school students are excluded from this count  

 
Formula (calculations) 
Eighth Graders Passing Algebra I Formula 

• ∑(Number of students passing Algebra I or Equivalent courses in Eighth grade) ÷ ∑(Total qualified students 
in Eighth grade) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) - Student Enrollment 
Student Information System (SIS) - Student Course Assignment 
Student Information System (SIS) - State Course ID 
 
 
  

182



Page 77 
 

 

9th Grade on Track  

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

183



Page 78 
 

9th Grade on Track 
Definition 
This metric is the percentage of first-time ninth-grade students who have earned at least five course credits 
without failing more than 0.5 course credits in their core subjects. For the purpose of this metric, core subjects 
include reading, math, science, and social studies. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a  
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 

• The cohort will consist only of 1st time, full time 9th grade students defined as:  
o Not enrolled in Grade 9 or higher in a past Report Card snapshot on October 1st or March 1st.  
o Enrolled in Grade 9 on October 1st of the current school year.  
o Enrolled in Grade 9 on May 1 of the current school year. 
o Total enrollment days (difference between start and end days) at the responsible school must be 

greater than 212 days. 
o Sum (Total enrollment days times each enrollment PDA) (for all enrollments at the responsible 

school) must be greater than 212 days * .75  
o Notes:  

▪ Summer school enrollments are excluded from this count, which are those who have an 
enrollment date equal to or later than June 1st. 

▪ Private school students are excluded from this count. 

• The source for this metric is from the SIS student enrollment and student course assignment data.  

• On track is defined as a student who:  
o Attained a passing grade in any courses totaling at a minimum 5 course credits. The course letter 

grades listed below are considered passing:  

Course Letter Grade  Grade Description  

A+ Student received course term credit  

A Student received course term credit  

A- Student received course term credit  

B+ Student received course term credit  

B Student received course term credit  

B- Student received course term credit  

C+ Student received course term credit  

C Student received course term credit  

C- Student received course term credit  

D+ Student received course term credit  

D Student received course term credit  

D- Student received course term credit  

S Satisfactory or Pass. Student received course term 
credit.  

Above Average Students performance exceeds standards (Grades K-
8 only)  

Average Students performance meets expectation (Grades 
K-8 only)  

184

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K10-17a


Page 79 
 

P Student was promoted at end of term (Grades K-8 
only)  

Exceptional (Exceeds Expectations) Student demonstrates the 
skill or understands the concepts at a level 
exceeding expectations for reporting period.  

Meets Standard (Developing Appropriately) Student usually 
demonstrates the skill or understands the concepts 
and meets expectation for the reporting period.  

  
o Did not fail core courses totaling more than 0.5 course credits. The Course Letter Grades listed 

below are considered not passing:  

Course Letter Grade  Grade Description  

F Student did not receive course term credit  

U Unsatisfactory. Student received course term credit  

I Incomplete. Student was enrolled on Course End 
Date. Student did not receive course term credit  

Below Average Student’s performance was below expectations. 
(Grades K-8 only)  

Approaching Standard (Beginning to Develop) Student sometimes 
demonstrates the skill or understands the concepts 
and meets some expectations for the reporting 
period.  

Below Standard (Needs to Develop) Student seldom demonstrates 
the skill or understands the concepts and is not 
meeting expectations for the reporting period.  

  
o Skip courses in which the student did not complete. The course letter grades for non-completion 

are:  

Course Letter Grade  Grade Description  

W Withdrew from course. Student did not receive 
course term credit. Student was not enrolled on 
Course End Date.  

WP Withdrew from course. Student did receive course 
term credit. Student was not enrolled on Course 
End Date.  

Audit Student Audited the Course. Student did not receive 
course term credit.  

X Student waived from course requirement. Student 
did not receive course term credit. Student did not 
receive a final grade.  

  

• Core courses are academic subject areas:  
o 01 - English Language Arts  
o 02 – Mathematics  
o 03 - Life and Physical Sciences  
o 04 - Social Sciences and History  

185



Page 80 
 

• Courses included are the completed courses from Full-year course, Semester 1 and 2 (S1 & S2), Tri-
Semesters 1, 2 and 3 (T1, T2 & T3). , or Quarters 1, 2, 3, and 4. 

• A student is assigned to the last responsible school enrolled for the regular school year.  
o Use the end of year flag in the enrollment fact table to determine the last regular school year 

enrollment.    
 
Formula (calculations) 
9th Grade on Track Formula 

• (Total number of students within school/district that pass courses totaling five or more course credits 
without failing more than 0.5 course credits in core courses) ÷ (Total number of 9th grade students meeting 
qualifications outline in cohort definition) × 100% 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) -Student Enrollment 
Student Information System (SIS) - Student Course Assignment 
Student Information System (SIS) - State Course ID 
 
  

186



Page 81 
 

 

Career and Technical Education 

SY 2023 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

187



Page 82 
 

Career and Technical Education 
Definition 
“CTE Course” is defined as a course that is assigned to a Classification of Instructional Program (CIP) by the 
Education for Employment (EFE) system at the serving school.  
 
“CTE Participant” is defined as a 9-12 student that has enrolled in at least one CTE course during the school 
year and has a course outcome of Pass, Fail, or Incomplete.  Participants are counted by home school and the 
district of the home school needs to be in an EFE. 
 
“Cluster Participant (duplicated)" is defined as a student that has enrolled in at least one CTE course during the 
school year and has a course outcome of Pass, Fail, or Incomplete in the cluster. 
 
“CTE Program Concentrator” is defined as a student that passed 2 or more Group 2, Group 3, Group 4, or 
Group 5 CTE courses in a single CIP during the student’s high school career.  A course can only be counted 
once for each serving school.  Concentrators are counted by home school and the district of the home school 
needs to be in an EFE. 
 
“CTE Concentrator” is defined as a Program concentrator in at least one Classification of Instructional Program 
(CIP) in the CTE cluster during the student’s high school career. 
 
“Exiting CTE Concentrator” is defined as a CTE Concentrator at any point in their student career who has been 
enrolled in an Illinois public school during the school year being reported and has been exited with an exit 
reason code that qualifies as having finished school. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a (2)(B)  
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 

• CTE Courses 
o  The courses come from the Student Course Assignment 
o  Include all courses that the student has taken 

▪ Any course taken during high school 
▪ Summer courses are counted in the same school year as the previous spring 
▪ Any course taken in the summer before entering high school that is mapped to a group 1 or 

Group 2 CIP 
▪ Any course taken while the student was enrolled in grade 7 or 8 that is mapped to a Group 

1 CIP 
o Courses are tied to a CIP Code and Group Id 
o The courses must be state approved CTE courses in the state course catalog 
o The courses must be EFE assigned 

▪ EFE assignment is by State Course ID for each assigned CIP 
o A course may be assigned for multiple CIPS Each CIP is part of a single cluster 
o Each cluster is part of a single Area 
o Each Course/CIP is counted for its Cluster and Area 
o A course may be counted in multiple CIPS, clusters, and areas 

• CTE Participant 

188

http://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/023/023000010A00790R.html


Page 83 
 

o A participant is a student that has enrolled in at least one CTE course during the school year and 
has a course outcome of Pass, Fail, or Incomplete 

• Cluster Participant (duplicated) 
o A participant is a student that has enrolled in at least one CTE course during the school year and 

has a course outcome of Pass, Fail, or Incomplete in the cluster. 
o A student can be a participant in multiple Clusters  

• CTE Program Concentrator* 
o A concentrator is a student that passed 2 or more Group 2, Group 3, Group 4, or Group 5 CTE 

courses in a single CIP 
o A course can be counted only once for each serving school. 
o Courses can be taken at any point during the student’s high school career. 
o A student can be a concentrator in multiple Clusters or Programs. 

• CTE Concentrator* 
o CTE Program concentrator in at least one CIP during the student’s high school career 

• CTE Cluster Concentrator (duplicated)* 
o CTE Program concentrator in at least one CIP in the cluster during the student’s high school career 
o A student can be a concentrator in multiple Clusters 

• Exiting CTE Concentrator* 
o The student is a CTE Concentrator at any point in their student career. 
o The student must have been enrolled in an Illinois public school during the school year being 

reported.  (Has an enrollment id in SIS) 
o The enrollment must have been exited with an exit reason code that qualifies as having finished 

school. 
▪ See complete exit code list in the 4-year graduation rate business rules.   

o The exit code as defined below is considered an exit code depending on the final grade of the 
current school year. 

 

 Enrollment Exit Codes Considered as an Exiter 

Exit Type Id Enrollment 
Exit Type 
Code 

Enrollment Exit Type Description Grade 

3 6 
 

Graduated with regular, advanced, 
International Baccalaureate, or other 
type of diploma 

11th or 12th  

6 9 Dropped Out 9th to 12th    

7 8 Expulsion 9th to 12th    

10 10 Transfer to GED program 9th to 12th    

11 11 Moved, not known to be continuing 9th to 12th    

26 14 Aged Out 9th to 12th    

27 15 Certificate of Completion 11th or 12th 

 

• Assigned Program 
o An assigned program is a set of CTE courses that are assigned to a single CIP Code by the EFE. 
o EFEs assign CIP codes and CTE courses within the Illinois State Course System. 
o ISCS indicates whether a CIP Code and CTE courses are EFE assigned or school assigned. 

• Retired CIP Crosswalk 

189



Page 84 
 

o For any course that was assigned the Retired CIP in the list below, replace the CIP with the Current 
CIP 

Current CIP Code Retired CIP Code 
11.0201 11.0202 
19.0601 19.0604 
19.0901 19.0902 
46.0302 46.0301 
46.0000 46.0503 
47.0604 47.0606 
10.0301 50.0402 
51.3902 51.3901 
51.0000 51.9999 
52.0301 52.0302 
52.1401 52.1801 
52.0801 52.1908 
10.0301 10.0303 
19.0709 19.0708 
19.0901 19.0905 
47.0105 47.0303 
48.0501 48.0511 
10.0301 50.0102 
51.0000 51.0907 
51.0000 51.0909 
51.1004 51.1005 
51.0000 51.1803 
51.2605 51.2308 
51.0000 51.2602 
51.2605 51.0806 
51.0000 51.0812 
51.0000 51.2604 
52.0201 59.0109 
19.1001 19.0202 
22.0302 22.0001 

 

• Historic Course Group Crosswalk 
o For these courses that previously had multiple group ids, replace the group id with the one listed. 

StateCourseId Current Group 
10005A001 3 
12052A001 3 
12055A001 3 
12104A001 3 
12153A001 4 
12164A001 3 
13102A001 4 
13207A003 2 
14059A001 4 
14104A001 3 
14153A001 2 
14202A001 3 

190



Page 85 
 

14252A001 2 
14253A001 3 
14254A001 3 
14998A001 5 
16054A001 3 
16054A003 2 
18051A002 3 
18101A001 2 
18201A001 3 
18203A002 3 
18402A001 3 
18504A001 3 
18998A002 5 
19052A001 2 
19053A001 2 
19054A001 3 
19055A001 3 
19201A001 2 
20110A002 3 

21009A001 4 

21010A001 3 

21012A001 4 

21053A001 4 

21054A001 3 

21102A002 2 

22153A001 5 

22153A002 5 

22201A001 2 

22203A001 2 

22204A001 2 

 

• Career Clusters 
o Clusters are groups of industries. Each CIP is assigned one cluster. 

▪ Agriculture, Food & Natural Resources 
▪ Architecture & Construction 
▪ Arts, A/V Technology & Communications 
▪ Business Management & Administration 
▪ Education & Training 
▪ Finance 
▪ Government & Public Administration 
▪ Health Science 
▪ Hospitality & Tourism 
▪ Human Services 
▪ Information Technology 
▪ Law, Public Safety, Corrections & Security 
▪ Manufacturing 
▪ Marketing 
▪ Science, Technology, Engineering & Mathematics 

191

https://careertech.org/agriculture
https://careertech.org/architecture-construction
https://careertech.org/arts
https://careertech.org/business
https://careertech.org/education-training
https://careertech.org/finance
https://careertech.org/government
https://careertech.org/health-science
https://careertech.org/hospitality-tourism
https://careertech.org/human-services
https://careertech.org/information-technology
https://careertech.org/law
https://careertech.org/manufacturing
https://careertech.org/marketing
https://careertech.org/STEM


Page 86 
 

▪ Transportation, Distribution & Logistics 

• Areas 
o Areas are groups of clusters with common skills. Each cluster is assigned to one area. 

CTEAreaTitle ClusterTitle 

Agriculture, Food, and Natural Resources 
(AFNR) 

Agriculture, Food and Natural Resources 

Arts and Communication (A&C) Arts, Audio/Video Technology and 
Communications 

Finance and Business Services (FBS) Business, Management and 
Administration 

Finance and Business Services (FBS) Finance 

Finance and Business Services (FBS) Marketing 

Finance and Business Services (FBS) Hospitality and Tourism 

Health Sciences and Technology (HST) Health Science 

Human and Public Services (HPS) Government and Public Administration 

Human and Public Services (HPS) Education and Training 

Human and Public Services (HPS) Human Services 

Human and Public Services (HPS) Law, Public Safety, Corrections and 
Security 

Information Technology (IT) Information Technology 

Manufacturing, Engineering, Technology 
and Trades (METT) 

Architecture and Construction 

Manufacturing, Engineering, Technology 
and Trades (METT) 

Manufacturing 

Manufacturing, Engineering, Technology 
and Trades (METT) 

Science, Technology, Engineering and 
Mathematics 

Manufacturing, Engineering, Technology 
and Trades (METT) 

Transportation, Distribution, and 
Logistics 

 

• Perkins Measures 
o Secondary 0S1: Participant Counts* 

▪ An eligible agency must report participant and concentrator data for the preceding program 
year. For example, in its January 31, 2022, CAR submission, an eligible agency must report 
data for program year covering July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021. 

▪ An eligible agency must provide its numerator and denominator definition for each of the 
section 113(b)(2) core indicators of performance as presented on Table 2, including one or 
more of the program quality indicators(s) they have included in their approved Perkins V 
State Plan. 

▪ An eligible agency must provide aggregated data (an unduplicated total) for each of the 
section 113(b)(2) core indicators of performance. 

▪ Business Rules for Calculating Participants 

• Total counts are counts of CTE Participants 

• Cluster counts are counts of CTE Cluster Participants (duplicated) 
o Secondary 0S2: Concentrator Counts* 

▪ An eligible agency must report participant and concentrator data for the preceding program 
year. For example, in its January 31, 2022, CAR submission, an eligible agency must report 
data for program year covering July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021. 

192

https://careertech.org/transportation


Page 87 
 

▪ An eligible agency must provide its numerator and denominator definition for each of the 
section 113(b)(2) core indicators of performance as presented on Table 2, including one or 
more of the program quality indicators(s) they have included in their approved Perkins V 
State Plan. 

▪ An eligible agency must provide aggregated data (an unduplicated total) for each of the 
section 113(b)(2) core indicators of performance. 

▪ Business Rules for Calculating Concentrators 

• Total counts are counts of CTE Concentrators 

• Cluster counts are counts of CTE Cluster Concentrators (duplicated) 
o Secondary 1S1: Four-Year Graduation Rate* 

▪ The percentage of CTE concentrators who graduate high school, as measured by the four-
year adjusted cohort graduation rate (defined in Section 8101 of the Elementary and 
Secondary Education Act [ESEA] of 1965). 

▪ Total Counts 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators who received a diploma 
or certificate of completion in the reporting year and were reported as a first-year, 
first-time grade 9 student on the reporting year minus three. 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators in the reporting year 
that were reported as a first-year, first-time grade 9 student on the reporting year 
minus three. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators who received a 
diploma or certificate of completion in the reporting year and were reported as a 
first-year, first-time grade 9 student on the reporting year minus three. 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators in the reporting 
year that were reported as a first-year, first-time grade 9 student on the reporting 
year minus three. 

o Secondary 1S2: Extended (Six-Year) Graduation Rate* 
▪ The percentage of CTE concentrators who graduate high school, as measured by an 

extended year adjusted cohort graduation rate (defined in Section 8101 of the ESEA of 
1965). 

▪ Total Counts 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators who received a diploma 
or certificate of completion in the reporting year and were reported as a first-year, 
first-time grade 9 student on the reporting year minus five. 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators in the reporting year 
that were reported as a first-year, first-time grade 9 student on the reporting year 
minus five. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators who received a 
diploma or certificate of completion in the reporting year and were reported as a 
first-year, first-time grade 9 student on the reporting year minus five. 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators in the reporting 
year that were reported as a first-year, first-time grade 9 student on the reporting 
year minus five. 

▪ Business Rules for calculating the 4- and 6-year cohort adjusted graduation rates 

193



Page 88 
 

• Numerator and Denominator use Report Card Business rules for 4- and 6-year 
cohort adjusted graduation rates 

o Secondary 2S1: Academic Proficiency Rate in Reading/Language Arts * 
▪ CTE concentrator proficiency in the challenging state academic standards adopted by the 

state under Section1111(b)(1) of the ESEA of 1965, as measured by the academic 
assessments in reading/language arts as described in Section 1111(b)(2) of such Act. 

▪ Total Counts 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators with a 
“proficient” or “advanced” score in the reading/language arts section on a statewide 
high school assessment exam. 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators enrolled 
during the reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators with a 
“proficient” or “advanced” score in the reading/language arts section on a statewide 
high school assessment exam. 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators enrolled 
during the reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam. 

o Secondary 2S2: Academic Proficiency Rate in Mathematics * 
▪ CTE concentrator proficiency in the challenging state academic standards adopted by the 

state under Section1111(b)(1) of the ESEA of 1965, as measured by the academic 
assessments in mathematics as described in Section 1111(b)(2) of such Act. 

▪ Total Counts 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators with a 
“proficient” or “advanced” score in the mathematics section on a statewide high 
school assessment exam. 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators enrolled 
during the reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators with a 
“proficient” or “advanced” score in the mathematics section on a statewide high 
school assessment exam. 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators enrolled 
during the reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam. 

▪ Business Rules for Calculating SAT/DLM ELA and Math Assessments 

• The student is counted in the report year that they exited school.  

• The student must be a concentrator. 

• Use the most recent valid record included in the proficiency rate denominator from 
the state's accountability assessment 

o Secondary 2S3: Academic Proficiency Rate in Science * 
▪ CTE concentrator proficiency in the challenging state academic standards adopted by the 

state under Section1111(b)(1) of the ESEA of 1965, as measured by the academic 
assessments in science as described in Section 1111(b)(2) of such Act. 

▪ Total Counts 

194



Page 89 
 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators with a 
“proficient” or “advanced” score in the Science section on a statewide high school 
assessment exam. 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators enrolled during 
the reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators with a 
“proficient” or “advanced” score in the Science section on a statewide high school 
assessment exam. 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators enrolled 
during the reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam. 

▪ Business Rules for Calculating ISA/DLM Science Assessment 

• The student is counted in the report year that they exited school.  

• The student must be a concentrator. 

• Use the most recent valid record included in the proficiency rate denominator from 
the state's accountability assessment 

o Secondary 3S1: Postsecondary Placement Rate* 
▪ The percentage of CTE concentrators who, in the second quarter after exiting from 

secondary education, are in postsecondary education or advanced training, military service, 
or a service program that receives assistance under Title I of the National and Community 
Service Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12511 et seq.), are volunteers as described in Section 5(a) of 
the Peace Corps Act (22 U.S.C. 2504(a)), or are employed. 

▪ Total Counts 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators who received a 
diploma or certificate of completion in the reporting year minus one and are 
reported as enrolled in a postsecondary institution or are employed within six 
months (two quarters) of July 1 of the reporting year minus one. 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators who received a 
diploma or certificate of completion in the reporting year minus one. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators who 
received a diploma or certificate of completion in the reporting year minus one and 
are reported as enrolled in a postsecondary institution or are employed within six 
months (two quarters) of July 1 of the reporting year minus one. 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators who 
received a diploma or certificate of completion in the reporting year minus one. 

▪ Business Rules for Calculating Post-Secondary Placement 

• For the report year the student cohort are those students who exited in the prior 
year.   

• The student must have been a concentrator.  

• The student must have graduated in the prior year.  
o The enrollment exit code of ‘06’ indicates graduated.  

• The student must have been enrolled in a postsecondary institution or employed as 
of 12/31 of the year the student graduated. 

o Include any Post-Secondary data available from NSC. 

195



Page 90 
 

o Include an employment data available from the Illinois Department of 
Employment Securities. 

• A student is counted only once.  

• The numerator is the count of concentrators who exited in the prior reporting year 
and enrolled in a postsecondary institution or enrolled as of 12/31 of the year 
graduated. 

• The denominator is the count of concentrators who exited in the prior reporting 
year. 

o Secondary 4S1: Nontraditional Program Enrollment Rate* 
▪ The percentage of CTE concentrators in career and technical education programs and 

programs of study that lead to nontraditional fields. 
▪ Total Counts 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of CTE program concentrators in a cluster 
that are in a CTE program area in that cluster that is identified as nontraditional to 
the student’s reported gender. (If a student achieves concentrator status in multiple 
programs and is considered nontraditional in any of them then that is the student’s 
official designation.) 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators enrolled during the 
reporting year. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of CTE program concentrators in a cluster that 
are in a CTE program area in that cluster that is identified as nontraditional to the 
student’s reported gender, reported by cluster. (If a student achieves concentrator 
status in multiple clusters and is considered nontraditional in any of them then that 
is the student’s official designation.) 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators enrolled during 
the reporting year. 

▪ Business Rules for Calculating the Non-Traditional Program Enrollment  

• The student must be a concentrator in any year. 

• The student is enrolled in the reporting school year.  

• The student is considered a nontraditional student if their gender. Does not match 
the traditional gender for the program. 

• For cluster counts, if the student is considered non-traditional for any program that 
they participate in the cluster, then they are non-traditional for the cluster. 

• For total counts, if the student is a concentrator in multiple clusters they are 
counted as a nontraditional student if they are considered non-traditional cluster 
assignments matched the student’s gender.  

▪ Nontraditional Indicator by Program and Cluster is located here: 

• PCRN: Linking Data (ed.gov) 
o Secondary 5S2: Program Quality – Attained Postsecondary Credits Rate* 

▪ The percentage of CTE concentrators graduating from high school having attained 
postsecondary credits in the relevant career and technical education program or program of 
study earned through a dual or concurrent enrollment or another credit transfer agreement 
(Articulation credit agreement). 

▪ Total Counts 

196

https://cte.ed.gov/accountability/linking-data


Page 91 
 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting 
year and who have a passing grade in a CTE course identified as dual credit. (Dual 
credit courses must have a postsecondary institution’s Integrated Postsecondary 
Education Data System code to be accepted in SIS.) or Articulated credit. 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the 
reporting year. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the 
reporting year and who have a passing grade in a CTE course identified as dual 
credit. (Dual credit courses must have a postsecondary institution’s Integrated 
Postsecondary Education Data System code to be accepted in SIS.) or Articulated 
credit. 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the 
reporting year. 

▪ Business Rules for Calculating Post-Secondary Credits Attained 

• The students are counted in the report year that they exited school.  

• The student must be a concentrator. 

• The CTE course must be identified as a dual credit course or identified as an 
articulated credit course.  

• The IPEDS Identifier must be present. 
o For a course to be marked Dual Credit SIS requires the IPEDS identifier. 
o The IPEDS identifier was required starting in the 2016 – 2017 School Year.  

• The articulated credit course must be marked 01 in the SIS source upload (column 
Q). 

• The student must pass the course.  

• The course can be taken in any year during the student’s high school career.  

• The numerator is the count of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting year and 
took at least one dual credit course during their high school career.  

• The denominator is the count of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting year.  
o Secondary 5S3: Program Quality – Work-Based Learning 

▪ The percentage of CTE concentrators graduating from high school having attained work-
based learning credits in the relevant career and technical education program or program of 
study earned through a work-based learning course or a cooperative education course 
(2021 or before).  

▪ Total Counts 

• Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting 
year and who have a passing grade in a course identified as a work-based learning 
course or a cooperative education course (2021 or before). 

• Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the 
reporting year. 

▪ Cluster Counts 

• Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the 
reporting year and who have a passing grade in a course identified as a work-based 
learning course or a cooperative education course (2021 or before). 

• Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the 
reporting year. 

197



Page 92 
 

▪ Business Rules for Calculating Post-Secondary Credits Attained 

• The student is counted in the report year that they exited school.  

• The student must be a concentrator. 

• The concentrator has taken at least one cooperative education course (SY2021 and 
before), Workplace Experience course (listed below) (SY2022 and after), or 
Identified Embedded Work-based Learning course (listed below). 

• The course must be an EFE approved course. 

• The student must pass the course.  

• The course can be taken in any year during the student’s high school career.  

• The numerator is the count of exiting concentrators who took at least one 
cooperative education course, Workplace Experience Course during their high 
school career, or Identified Embedded Work-based Learning course.  

• The denominator is the count of exiting concentrators in the reporting year. 
▪ List of Cooperative Courses 

• 14998A001 

• 18998A001 

• 22153A001 

• 22153A002 
▪ List of Workplace Experience Courses 

• 18998A003         Agriculture, Food & Natural Resources Workplace Experience 

• 18248A001          Agribusiness Systems Workplace Experience 

• 18998A005          Agricultural Biotechnology Systems Workplace Experience 

• 18148A001          Animal Systems Workplace Experience 

• 18997A003          Biotechnology Systems Workplace Experience 

• 18998A004          Environmental Services Systems Workplace Experience 

• 18348A001          Food Products and Processing Systems Workplace Experience 

• 18548A001          Natural Resource Systems Workplace Experience 

• 18098A001          Plant Systems Workplace Experience 

• 18448A001          Power, Structural and Technical Systems Workplace Experience 

• 17998A003          Architecture and Construction Workplace Experience 

• 21148A001          Drafting Workplace Experience 

• 17048A001          General Construction Workplace Experience 

• 17148A001          Electricity/Electronics Workplace Experience 

• 17998A001          Building Maintenance Workplace Experience 

• 17098A001          HVAC Workplace Experience 

• 17998A002          Heavy Equipment Technician Workplace Experience 

• 11998A002          Arts, Audio/Video Technology & Communications Workplace 
Experience 

• 11048A001          Graphic Communications Workplace Experience 

• 11998A001          Broadcast Technology Workplace Experience 

• 11098A001          Commercial Photography Workplace Experience 

• 12198A002          Marketing Workplace Experience 

• 12098A002          Business, Management & Administration Workplace Experience 

• 12148A003          Finance Cluster Workplace Experience 

• 12198A001          Marketing Workplace Experience 

198



Page 93 
 

• 12148A001          Finance Workplace Experience 

• 12148A002          Accounting Workplace Experience 

• 12098A001          Business Management Workplace Experience 

• 12998A001          Entrepreneurial Workplace Experience 

• 12048A001          Human Resources Workplace Experience 

• 12048A002          Administrative Assistant Workplace Experience 

• 15248A002          Government & Public Administration Workplace Experience 

• 09998A001          1 Air Force Workplace Experience 

• 09998A002          Army Workplace Experience 

• 09998A003          Naval Workplace Experience 

• 09998A004          Marine Corp Workplace Experience 

• 15248A001          Government Service Workplace Experience 

• 14998A002          Health Sciences Workplace Experience 

• 14298A001          Allied Health Workplace Experience 

• 14098A001          Dental Assisting Workplace Experience 

• 14098A002          Pharmacy Technician Workplace Experience 

• 14098A003          Athletic Training Workplace Experience 

• 14098A004          Physical Therapy Aide Workplace Experience 

• 14098A005          Nursing Assistant Workplace Experience 

• 14198A001          Medical Insurance Coding Workplace Experience 

• 14198A002          Health Unit Coordinator Workplace Experience 

• 14148A001          Medical/Clinical Assistant Workplace Experience 

• 14148A002          ECG Workplace Experience 

• 14148A003          EMT Workplace Experience 

• 14148A004          Medical Laboratory Technician Workplace Experience 

• 14148A005          Phlebotomy Workplace Experience 

• 16998A001          Hospitality & Tourism Workplace Experience 

• 16198A001          Travel and Tourism Workplace Experience 

• 16148A001          Lodging Workplace Experience 

• 16248A001          Recreation, Amusement and Attractions Workplace Experience 

• 16098A001          Restaurant, Food and Beverage Services Workplace Experience 

• 19998A003          Human Services Workplace Experience 

• 19198A003          Education & Training Workplace Experience 

• 13998A002          Manufacturing Workplace Experience 

• 19298A001          Work and Family Studies Workplace Experience 

• 19098A001          Elder Care Workplace Experience 

• 19098A002          Child Care Workplace Experience 

• 19998A001          Social Work Workplace Experience 

• 19998A002          Nutrition and Wellness Workplace Experience 

• 19198A001          General Education Workplace Experience 

• 19198A002          Early Childhood Education Workplace Experience 

• 19248A001          Apparel and Textiles Workplace Experience 

• 19248A002          Interior Design Workplace Experience 

• 10998A002          Information Technology Workplace Experience 

• 10198A001          Computer Programming Workplace Experience 

199



Page 94 
 

• 10998A001          Computer Science Workplace Experience 

• 10248A001          Web Page and Media Design Workplace Experience 

• 10148A001          Networking Systems Workplace Experience 

• 13348A001          Computer Installation and Repair Workplace Experience 

• 15998A001          Law, Public Safety, Corrections & Security Workplace Experience 

• 04198A001          Legal Assistant/Paralegal Workplace Experience 

• 04198A002          Court Reporting and Captioning Workplace Experience 

• 15098A001          Law Enforcement Workplace Experience 

• 15198A000          Fire Management Workplace Experience 

• 15148A001          Security and Protection Workplace Experience 

• 19148A001          Cosmetology Workplace Experience 

• 19148A002          Barbering Workplace Experience 

• 19148A003          Nail Technician Workplace Experience 

• 21998A001          Science, Technology, Engineering & Mathematics Workplace 
Experience 

• 21098A002          Energy Workplace Experience 

• 21048A001          Engineering Workplace Experience 

• 21098A001          Energy Systems Technology Workplace Experience 

• 13998A001          Industrial Electronics Workplace Experience 

• 13148A001          Machine Tool Technology Workplace Experience 

• 13248A001          Sheet-working Workplace Experience 

• 13248A002          Welding Workplace Experience 

• 13098A001          Cabinetmaking Workplace Experience 

• 20998A002          Transportation, Distribution, and Logistics Workplace Experience 

• 20198A001          Parts and Warehousing Workplace Experience 

• 20148A001          Auto-body Technician Workplace Experience 

• 20148A002          Automotive Technician Workplace Experience 

• 20098A001          Aircraft Technician Workplace Experience 

• 20098A002          Pilot and Flight Crew Workplace Experience 

• 20098A003          Truck/Bus Operation Workplace Experience 

• 20098A004          Forklift Operation Workplace Experience 
▪ Identified Embedded Work-based Learning courses  

• 14152A001 Pharmacy Assistant  

• 14055A001 Emergency Medical Technician  

• 14051A001 Nursing Assistant I  

• 19101A001 Cosmetology I  

• 19101A002 Cosmetology II  

• 19102A001 Barbering I  

• 19102A002 Barbering II  

• 19105A001 Nail Technician I  

• 19105A002 Nail Technician II  
  
  

Formula (calculations) 
Perkins Measures: Four-Year Graduation Rate 

200



Page 95 
 

• Total Counts  

o Numerator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators who received a diploma or certificate 
of completion in the reporting year and were reported as a first-year, first-time grade 9 student on 
the reporting year minus three.  

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators in the reporting year that were 
reported as a first-year, first-time grade 9 student on the reporting year minus three.  

• Cluster Counts  

o Numerator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators who received a diploma or 
certificate of completion in the reporting year and were reported as a first-year, first-time grade 9 
student on the reporting year minus three.  

o Denominator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators in the reporting year that were 
reported as a first-year, first-time grade 9 student on the reporting year minus three.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
Perkins Measures: Extended (Six-Year) Graduation Rate 

• Total Counts  

o Numerator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators with a “proficient” or “advanced” score 
in the mathematics section on a statewide high school assessment exam.  

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators enrolled during the reporting year 
with a valid statewide high school assessment exam.  

• Cluster Counts  

o Numerator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators with a “proficient” or “advanced” 
score in the mathematics section on a statewide high school assessment exam.  

o Denominator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators enrolled during the reporting 
year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
Perkins Measures: Academic Proficiency Rate in Reading/Language Arts 

• Total Counts  

o Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators with a “proficient” or 
“advanced” score in the reading/language arts section on a statewide high school assessment 
exam.  

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators enrolled during the reporting 
year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam.  

• Cluster Counts  

o Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators with a “proficient” or 
“advanced” score in the reading/language arts section on a statewide high school assessment 
exam.  

o Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators enrolled during the 
reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
Perkins Measures: Academic Proficiency Rate in Mathematics 

• Total Counts  

201



Page 96 
 

o Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators with a “proficient” or 
“advanced” score in the mathematics section on a statewide high school assessment exam.  

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators enrolled during the reporting 
year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam.  

• Cluster Counts  

o Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators with a “proficient” or 
“advanced” score in the mathematics section on a statewide high school assessment exam.  

o Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators enrolled during the 
reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
Perkins Measures: Academic Proficiency Rate in Science 

• Total Counts  

o Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators with a “proficient” or 
“advanced” score in the mathematics section on a statewide high school assessment exam.  

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators enrolled during the reporting 
year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam.  

• Cluster Counts  

o Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators with a “proficient” or 
“advanced” score in the mathematics section on a statewide high school assessment exam.  

o Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators enrolled during the 
reporting year with a valid statewide high school assessment exam.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
Perkins Measures: Postsecondary Placement Rate 

• Total Counts  

o Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting year minus one 
and are reported as enrolled in a postsecondary institution within six months (two quarters) of July 
31 of the reporting year minus one.  

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting year minus 
one.  

• Cluster Counts  

o Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the reporting year minus 
one and are reported as enrolled in a postsecondary institution within six months (two quarters) of 
July 31 of the reporting year minus one.  

o Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the reporting year 
minus one.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
Perkins Measures: Nontraditional Program Enrollment Rate 

• Total Counts  

o Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE program concentrators in a cluster that are in 
a CTE program area in that cluster that is identified as nontraditional to the student’s reported 
gender. (If a student achieves concentrator status in multiple programs and is considered 
nontraditional in any of them then that is the student’s official designation.)  

202



Page 97 
 

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of CTE concentrators enrolled during the reporting year.  

• Cluster Counts  

o Numerator: The duplicated number of CTE program concentrators in a cluster that are in a CTE 
program area in that cluster that is identified as nontraditional to the student’s reported gender, 
reported by cluster. (If a student achieves concentrator status in multiple clusters and is considered 
nontraditional in any of them then that is the student’s official designation.)  

o Denominator: The duplicated number of CTE cluster concentrators enrolled during the reporting 
year.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
Perkins Measures: Program Quality – Attained Postsecondary Credits Rate 

• Total Counts  

o Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting year and who 
have a passing grade in a CTE course identified as dual credit. (Dual credit courses must have a 
postsecondary institution’s Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System code to be accepted 
in SIS.)  

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting year.  

• Cluster Counts  

o Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the reporting year and 
who have a passing grade in a CTE course identified as dual credit. (Dual credit courses must have a 
postsecondary institution’s Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System code to be accepted 
in SIS.)  

o Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators who received a diploma 
or certificate of completion in the reporting year.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
Perkins Measures: Program Quality – Work-Based Learning Rate 

• Total Counts  
o Numerator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting year and who 

have a passing grade in a course identified as a work-based learning course or a cooperative 
education course (2021 or before).   

o Denominator: The unduplicated number of exiting CTE concentrators in the reporting year.  

• Cluster Counts  
o Numerator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the reporting year and 

who have a passing grade in a course identified as a work-based learning course or a cooperative 
education course (2021 or before).   

o Denominator: The duplicated number of exiting CTE cluster concentrators in the reporting year.  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Participant: Total Count of CTE Participants 

• Count of All CTE Participants 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Participant: Count of Students taking Agri Food & Nat. Res. 

• Count of CTE participants who have taken a course in Agri Food & Nat. Res. Cluster 

203



Page 98 
 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Participant: Count of Students taking Arch. & Const. 

• Count of CTE Participants who have taken a course in Arch. & Const. Cluster 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Agri Food & Nat. Res. 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Agri Food & Nat. Res. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Arch. & Const. 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Arch. & Const. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Arts, AV, Tech & Comm. 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Arts, AV, Tech & Comm. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Business Mgmt. & Admin. 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Business Mgmt, & Admin. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Education & Training 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Education & Training 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Finance 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Finance 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Govt. & Public Admin. 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Govt. & Public Admin. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Health Science 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Health Science 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Hospitality & Tourism 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Hospitality & Tourism 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 

204



Page 99 
 

CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Human Services 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Human Services 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Information Technology 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Information Technology 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Law, Public Safety, Cor. & Sec. 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Law, Public Safety, Cor. & Sec 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Manufacturing 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Manufacturing 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Marketing 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Marketing 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in STEM 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in STEM 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
CTE Concentrator: Count of Students Concentrating in Transp. Distr. & Logis. 

• Count of CTE cluster concentrators in Transp. Distr, & Logis. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts  

 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Illinois State Course System (ISCS) 
 
 
  

205



Page 100 
 

  

 

Advanced Placement Exam Passing Requirements 

SY 2023 

206



Page 101 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) Exam Passing Requirements  
Definition  
This metric will address students taking AP exams offered by the College Board. The College Board shares this 
data with ISBE. There are four metrics for each school addressing AP Exams:    

• Students Taking One or More AP Exams    

• Students Eligible to Earn College Credit for One or More AP Exams    

• Total AP Exams Taken    

• Total AP Exams Eligible to Earn College Credit   
 
The metric is the count of either students or exams. The counts are on the grade level. 
 
Advanced Placement Coursework Enrollment (or Participation) is the number of students in grades 9 to 12 
who participated in AP courses offered by the College Board. 
 
Advanced Placement Exam Passing is the number of AP exams taken and the number of exams passed at any 
point (score of 3 or higher) during high school, as well as the number of students who took at least one AP 
exam and the number of students who passed at least one AP exam. 
  
Guidance Citation  
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a  
Federal Statute/Guidance: ED Facts Workbook SY 2018-19  and Civil Rights Data Collection (CRDC)  
 
Business Rules  

• There are four metrics for each school addressing Advanced Placement Exams:  
o Students Taking One or More Advanced Placement (AP) Exams  
o Students Earning College Credit for One or More Advanced Placement (AP) Exams  
o Total Advanced Placement (AP) Exams Taken  
o Total Advanced Placement (AP) Exams Resulting in College Credit  

• “Advanced Placement” metrics are the count of either students or exams at the grade level.  

• “Advanced Placement” data is provided by the College Board to ISBE in a file.  

• The College Board shares this data with ISBE via a flat file.  

• The file is loaded into a staging table and the ISBE school RCDTS code is added to each record using the AI 
Code provided by the College Board cross referenced to the RCDTS code.  

• The Assessment Departments maintains the cross-reference table.  

• Student records that are provided in the College Board data file are not matched to the Student 
Information System (SIS).  

• The School indicated in the College Board data file is identified by the College Board. 

• A summary table at the School/District level is created from the College Board data file.  
o The counts are aggregated at the grade level  

▪ Grades 9, 10, 11 and 12 are reported  
▪ All other tests are excluded  

• The exam counts are an accumulation of the student's career and are listed under the last grade for which 
the student tested.   

o For example, if a student took 1 test in 10th grade, 2 tests in 11th grade and 2 tests in 12th grade 
then the school would show 5 tests in 12th grade for that student.   

• A score of 3.0 or more will earn college credit at Illinois public colleges or universities.  

207

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K10-17a
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/18-19-workbook-15-0.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/frontpage/faq/crdc.html


Page 102 
 

• “Students Taking One or More AP Exams”  
o This is the distinct count by grade of students taking an AP exam  
o The student must take an exam during the school year being reported  
o The grade is derived from the AP file  

• “Students Eligible to Earn College Credit for One or More AP Exams”  
o This is the distinct count of students that scored 3 or above on the AP test  

• “Total AP Exams Taken”  
o This is the count of all student-exams taken for each student’s career  

▪ Example: ‘Student A’ takes the exams for Calculus BC in the prior year and US History in 
the current reporting year and ‘Student B’ takes the exam for Chemistry in 
the current reporting year.  In total there are 3 student-exams taken.  

• “Total AP Exams Eligible to Earn College Credit”  
o This is the count of all the exams where the student scored a 3 or higher on the exam  

 
Formula (calculations)  
Advanced Placement (AP) Exam Participation: Students Taking One or More AP Exams Formula 

• ∑ of students taking AP exams within the school year 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) Exam Passing: Students Eligible to Earn College Credit for One or More AP Exams 
Formula 

• ∑ of students Eligible to Earn College Credit from AP exams passed within the school year 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) Exam Participation: Total AP Exams Taken Formula 

• ∑ of all AP exams taken within the school year 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) Exam Passing: Total AP Exams Eligible to Earn College Credit Formula 

• ∑ of all AP exams where the student was eligible to earn college credit within the school year 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Sources of Data  
The College Board  
  

208



Page 103 
 

 

Postsecondary Enrollment 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

209



Page 104 
 

Postsecondary Enrollment 
Definition 
Postsecondary Enrollment represents the students who graduated with a regular high school diploma from a 
public high school in Illinois two years prior to the current school year and enrolled in a U.S. college within 12 
or 16 months. The datasets used are the National Student Clearinghouse (NSC) for higher education 
enrollment and ISBE’s Student Information System (SIS) for high school graduation. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a 
Federal Statute/Guidance: EdFacts FS160 — High School Graduates Postsecondary Enrollment  
 
Business Rules 

• The graduated students used in these post-secondary metrics consist of those who graduated two school 
years prior to the Report Card reporting school year. 

o i.e. The 2022-2023 Report Card uses student graduate data from the 2020-2021 school year. 

• All students graduating during the school year regardless of which month they graduated are considered 
enrolled within 12 months if the enrollment month is on or before September 30th of the following year.  

o (e.g. A student who graduated in school year 2015-16 would be considered enrolled within 12 
months if the first post-secondary enrollment is during or before 9/30/2017.)  

• All students graduating during the school year regardless of when are considered enrolled within 16 
months if the enrollment month is on or before January 31st, 2 years following graduation.  

o (e.g. A student who graduated in school year 2015-16 would be considered enrolled within 16 
months if the first post-secondary enrollment is during or before 1/31/2018.)  

• The post-secondary institution is indicated as a ’2’ for 2-year school, ’4’ for 4-year school and an ’L’ for less 
than 2 year.  

• The post-secondary institution is indicated as a ’Public’ for a public institution and ’Private’ for a private 
institution.  

• The school comes from the request file that was sent to NSC. It is the school from which the student 
exited.  

• The postsecondary enrollment file contains data for graduates and non-graduates.  
o Report Card calculations only include students that graduated.  

• Edits Made to the NSC Datafile 
o The following are the general edits:  

▪ NSC provides an enrollment status. Status codes with the following codes are marked as 
incomplete enrollments and are excluded from the calculation:  

• A – Leave of Absence  

• W – Withdrawn  

• D – Deceased  
▪ Enrollments for the same student at the same college beginning in the same month and 

year are marked as a duplicate and the one with the latest end date is counted.  
▪ Any enrollment where the end date is earlier than the begin date is marked as an error 

and are excluded.  
▪ Enrollments lasting less than 30 calendar days are excluded.  
▪ Enrollments beginning prior to the graduation date are considered dual enrollment and 

are excluded as a post-secondary enrollment.  

210

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K10-17a
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs160-15-3.docx


Page 105 
 

▪ The first enrollment beginning after the graduation date is identified as the first post-
secondary enrollment and is evaluated for placement and timeframe (12 or 16 month).  

   
 
Formula (calculations) 
Postsecondary Enrollment 12-month Formula 

• ((Total student enrollment in college 12 months after graduation) ÷ (Total students who graduate from 
high school)) × 100% 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
  
Postsecondary Enrollment 16-month Formula 

• ((Total student enrollment in college 16 months after graduation) ÷ (Total students who graduate from 
high school)) × 100% 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Sources of Data 
National Student Clearinghouse (NSC) 
Student Information System (SIS) 
 
  

211



Page 106 
 

 

Postsecondary Course Remediation 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

212



Page 107 
 

Postsecondary Course Remediation 
Definition 
“Community College Remediation” and “Postsecondary Course Remediation” is defined as the percentage of 
graduates who attended an Illinois community college or postsecondary institution in Illinois and were 
enrolled in remedial courses. The source for this metric is from Illinois Community College Board (ICCB), Illinois 
Board of Higher Education (IBHE) and Student Information System (SIS). Remediation is tracked in aggregate 
(overall) and can be disaggregated by subject, Reading, Mathematics and, for communication college 
remediation, Communications. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a (2) (C)  
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A  
 
Business Rules 
Community College Remediation 

• “Community College Remediation” rates are calculated for the following four areas: 
o Overall (Reading, Math, or Communications) 
o Reading 
o Mathematics 
o Communications 

• ICCB collects course level data which indicates if a course is remedial.   

• ICCB delivers a file to ISBE that includes all ICCB students including:  
o Students not taking remedial course work.   
o Students taking remedial course work.   
o Students still in high school taking dual credit courses. 

• Only high school graduates are included in the calculation.  

• ISBE collects student-level course data and compares that to the remedial course data shared by ICCB to 
determine whether a student received credit in remedial Math, remedial Reading or remedial 
Communications courses.   

• If the student has remedial credit in either Math, Reading, or Communication then the student is counted 
in the “Overall” group.  

• The ICCB student is matched to the SIS graduating class immediately preceding the ICCB school year being 
reported. 

o For the [current year] report card the ICCB [current year – 1] year-end data will be provided and 
matched against the ISBE [current year – 2] graduating class using the common demographic data 
administrator ID. 

• The denominator for the formula is the distinct number of students from the school/district/state that 
attended an ICCB institution    

• The overall community college remediation rate is determined by dividing the distinct count of students 
with at least 0.5 credit in remedial math, remedial reading, or remedial communications by the number of 
students attending an ICCB institution and multiplying the resulting quotient by 100.   

• The calculation is repeated for each subject individually e.g.: 
o ((distinct count of students with at least 0.5 credit in remedial math) ÷ (the number of students 

attending an ICCB institution)) x 100.   
 
Postsecondary Course Remediation 

213

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+10&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=61700000&SeqEnd=86600000http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+10&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=61700000&SeqEnd=86600000
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+10&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=61700000&SeqEnd=86600000http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+10&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=61700000&SeqEnd=86600000


Page 108 
 

• “Postsecondary Course” rates are calculated for the following three areas: 
o Overall (ELA or Math) 
o ELA 
o Mathematics 

• IBHE collects course level data which indicates if a course is remedial.   

• IBHE delivers a file to ISBE that includes all IBHE students including:  
o Students not taking remedial course work.   
o Students taking remedial course work.   

• Only high school graduates are included in the calculation.  

• ISBE collects student-level course data and compares that to the remedial course data shared by IBHE to 
determine whether a student received credit in remedial Math or remedial ELA courses.   

• If the student has remedial credit in either Math or ELA then the student is counted in the “Overall” group.  

• The IBHE student is matched to the SIS graduating class immediately preceding the IBHE school year being 
reported. 

o For the [current year] report card the IBHE Academic [current year – 2] year data will be provided 
and matched against the ISBE [current year – 2] graduating class using the common demographic 
data administrator ID. 

• The denominator for the formula is the distinct number of students from the school/district/state that 
attended an IBHE institution    

• The overall 4-year institution remediation rate is determined by dividing the distinct count of graduating 
students with enrollment in remedial math or remedial ELA by the number of students attending an IBHE 
institution and multiplying the resulting quotient by 100.   

• The calculation is repeated for each subject individually e.g.: 
o ((distinct count of students with enrollment in remedial math) ÷ (the number of students attending 

an IBHE institution)) x 100.   

• For school 480721500250028 Diploma Degree North Campus, it is a serving school only. The metrics are 
calculated for this school and not reported against the student's home school. 

 

Formula (calculations) 
Community College Remediation Formula 

• ∑ (Students from a specified entity taking remediation courses at Illinois community colleges) ÷ ∑ (Students 
from a specified entity enrolled at an Illinois Community College) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
Postsecondary Course Remediation Formula 

• ∑ (Students from a specified entity taking remediation courses at an Illinois 4-year institution) ÷ ∑ 
(Students from a specified entity enrolled at an Illinois 4-year institution) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Illinois Community College Board (ICCB)  
Illinois Board of Higher Education: Data Points (ibhe.org)  
 
 
 
 

214

http://iccbdbsrv.iccb.org/databook/home.cfm
https://www.ibhe.org/datapoints.html


Page 109 
 

 

Graduation Rate  

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

215



Page 110 
 

Graduation Rate 
Definition 
Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate is the rate of graduates compared to the total number of students in their 
four-year, five-year, and six-year cohort for schools, districts, and states. 
 
Graduation Rate is calculated based on Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) High School Graduation Rate 
guidance found here. Students are reported at the home school. The cohort is based on the number of 
students who enter grade 9 for the first time, adjusted by adding into the cohort any student who transfers in 
later during grade 9 or during the next three years and subtracting any student from the cohort who transfers 
out, emigrates to another country, transfers to a prison or juvenile facility, or dies during that same period. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: https://www.isbe.net/Documents/Graduation-Rate-FAQ.pdf 
Federal Statute/Guidance:  EDFacts Submission System FS150 - Adjusted-Cohort Graduation Rate File 
Specifications 
 
Business Rules 

• The adjusted cohort graduation rate is determined by dividing the number of “graduates” that belong to a 
specified “cohort” by the total number of graduates and “non-graduates” in that cohort and multiplying 
the resulting quotient by 100.  

• The cohort year is calculated from the reporting school year as follows:  
o Four-year cohort: School year – 3 = School year for the 9th grade cohort (e.g. For SY 2023, the four-

year cohort consists of students whose first year in 9th grade was 2020.)  
o Five-year cohort: School year – 4 = School year for the 9th grade cohort (e.g. For SY 2023, the five-

year cohort consists of students whose first year in 9th grade was 2019.)  
o Six-year cohort: School year – 5 = School year for the 9th grade cohort (e.g. For SY 2023, the six-

year cohort consists of students whose first year in 9th grade was 2018.)  

SY2022-23 

  4-Year  5-Year  6-Year  

1  SY2022-23 SY2022-23 SY2022-23 

2  SY2021-22 SY2021-22 SY2021-22 

3  SY2020-21 SY2020-21 SY2020-21 

4  SY2019-20 SY2019-20 SY2019-20 

5    SY2018-19 SY2018-19 

6      SY2017-18 

 

• Students are removed from an entity’s graduate/non-graduate consideration if:  
o They transferred outside the entity (school/district/state)  
o They transferred to being home-schooled  
o They transferred to private school   
o They have an exit code for death  
o Note: The table below indicates what exit codes are included (“I”) in the graduation cohort and 

which are excluded (“E”).  

• A student is considered a graduate if the exit code for their last enrollment is “06 – Graduated”  

• A student is considered a non-graduate if the exit code for their last enrollment is NOT “06 – Graduated”.  

216

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/essagradrateguidance.pdf
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/Graduation-Rate-FAQ.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs150-14-1.docx
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs150-14-1.docx


Page 111 
 

• Responsible School is determined based on the student’s last enrollment.  

• Students are not counted at more than one school/district.  

• The above rules are applied for the 4-year, 5-year, and 6-year cohort on a school, district, and state basis.  

• Any student who had an Individual Education Program (IEP) or a 504 plan and therefore included in the 
children with disabilities (CWD) group, was an EL, was homeless, or was a Youth in Care any time during 
their high school career will be counted in the aforementioned groups.  

• A student status as ever being an IEP, CWD, EL, Homeless, or YIC is updated in the “Student Fact Table” or 
the “ACGR table”.    

• A student’s race, gender, low-income status, military status, migrant status and private school status 
comes from the record in the most recent school year available. 

• Exclude private school students. 

• Exit codes, descriptions, and whether to include or exclude are:  

Exit Code  Description  [I] Include / [E] 
Exclude  

02  Transfer to another public school within the district  I  

03  Transfer to Home Schooled  E  

04  Transfer to Private School  E  

05  Promotion  I  

06  Graduated with regular, advanced, International 
Baccalaureate, or other type of diploma  

I  

07  Death  E  

08  Expulsion  I  

09  Dropped Out  I  

10  Transfer to GED program  I  

11  Moved, not known to be continuing  I  

12  Retained in same grade  I  

14  Aged Out  I  

15  Certificate of Completion  I  

16  Victim of a Violent Crime  I  

17  Change in Serving School or Full Time Equivalent  I  

18  Moved Out of the United States  E  

19  Transfer to another public-school district OUT of 
Illinois  

E  

20  Transfer to another public-school district IN Illinois  E  

  
Formula (calculations) 
High School 4-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate Formula 

• ((Total number of Graduates) ÷ (Total number of Non-Graduates + Total Number of Graduates)) × 100  

• Where “Graduates” have an exit enrollment code of “Graduated – 06” and “Non-Graduates” are all other 
students not coded as “Graduated – 06” nor coded as any of the “Excluded” codes (03, 04, 07, 18, 19, 20)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 

High School 5-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate Formula 

• ((Total number of Graduates) ÷ (Total number of Non-Graduates + Total Number of Graduates)) × 100  

217



Page 112 
 

• Where “Graduates” have an exit enrollment code of “Graduated – 06” and “Non-Graduates” are all other 
students not coded as “Graduated – 06” nor coded as any of the “Excluded” codes (03, 04, 07, 18, 19, 20)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 

High School 6-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate Formula 

• ((Total number of Graduates) ÷ (Total number of Non-Graduates + Total Number of Graduates)) × 100  

• Where “Graduates” have an exit enrollment code of “Graduated – 06” and “Non-Graduates” are all other 
students not coded as “Graduated – 06” nor coded as any of the “Excluded” codes (03, 04, 07, 18, 19, 20)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 

Sources of Data  
Student Information System (SIS) 

218



Page 113 
 

 

Early Learning (KIDS)  

SY 2023  

School and District Environment 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

219



Page 114 
 

Early Learning (KIDS) 
Definition  
The Kindergarten Individual Development Survey (KIDS) is an observational assessment tool designed to help 
teachers, administrators, families and policymakers better understand the development of children in 
kindergarten. ISBE requires kindergarten teachers to collect observations beginning on the first 40 days of 
student attendance on a minimum of 14 required measures, which are from three key developmental 
areas.  This subset of 14 measures provides a developmental indicator for a group of students (class, school, 
district, state) in kindergarten. 
 
Guidance Citation  
State Statute/Guidance: 105 ILCS 5/10-17a (2)(D) 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules  

• Districts that should be included in the count should be students enrolled in categories 2, 4, and 8.  

• Kindergarten teachers are required to collect observations in the first 40 days of student enrollment, on a 
minimum of 14 required measures in three key developmental areas.  

o Note that eligible student enrollment is based on valid SIS enrollment. 

• The three key developmental areas are:  
o Social and Emotional Development  
o Language and Literacy Development  
o Cognition: Math  

• Kindergartners who are rated on all 14 required measures and who are rated ready in all three 
developmental areas are considered Kindergarten Ready.  

• Participation Numerator  
o Students from the denominator that have a valid score   
o The score file entity must match the serving school entity in the denominator 

• Participation Denominator  
o All valid enrollments for kindergarten students is determined by a count of distinct students’ 

longest student enrollments within the period from the beginning of the school year up until Nov. 1 
that is included in the Fall snapshot  

▪ Longest Enrollment must be at least 30 days  
▪ If there are multiple enrollments of the same length, and both are at least 30 days, use the 

most recent enrollment  
▪ NOTE: All students who have a valid score (includes a score from D1 (ATL-REG/SED 

measure) and D2(LLD, Alt LLD measures) and D3 (MATH: COG measures)) and ANY matching 
valid enrollment captured in the fall snapshot (this snapshot includes all SIS enrollments 
entered up until winter when the snapshot is taken) should be included in the participation 
denominator no matter the length of the enrollment  

• Exclude RNVTA codes based off of the chart below  

Exemptions Description  Participation (Y/N) 

01 Medically Exempt  N 

02 Homebound  N 

04 Out of State  N 

05 Not Enrolled  N 

06 Not in Valid Grade or Course  N 

220

http://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+10&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=61700000&SeqEnd=86600000


Page 115 
 

07 Transferred prior to completion  N 

08 Transferred in after window  N 

09 Deceased  N 

10 Absent  Y 

15 Refusal  Y 

19 Administrative Issues  Y 

34 Reserved for Internal Use  Y 

40 IEP   N 

  
  

Scale  Beginning of 
Kindergarten Cut 
Point  

End of Kindergarten 
cut point  

Subset of the 14 
State Readiness 
Measures  

d1_scaled  360  721  ATL-REG/SED 
subset  

d2_scaled  365  708  Original LLD subset  

d2_scaled  379  683  Alternate LLD 
Subset  

d3_scaled  387  678  Math Subset  
  

• Filter for the private school (PSS indicator) and exclude these students from all calculations.   

• Each year the cut scores for different levels of readiness will be provided and approved by Assessment 
dept  

• All metrics are displayed as a percentage, rounded to the nearest whole percent (no decimals).  

• All metrics are calculated for the District and the State  
o There are no school level calculations  

• The Percent of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in All Three Developmental Areas will also be 
broken down into the following student groups:  

o Race  
▪ From the KIDS score file  

o Gender  
▪ From the KIDS score file  

o Children with Disabilities (CWD)  
▪ From SIS IDEA Services and 504 Plan in the Fall enrollment snapshot  

o IEP  
▪ From SIS IDEA Services in the Fall enrollment snapshot  

o Non-IEP  
▪ From SIS IDEA Services in the Fall enrollment snapshot  

o English Learner (EL)  
▪ From the KIDS score file  

o Non-English Learner (EL)  
▪ From the KIDS score file  

o Low Income (FRL)  
▪ From SIS FRL Indicator in the Fall enrollment snapshot  

o Non-Low Income (FRL)  
▪ From the SIS FRL Indictor in the Fall enrollment snapshot  

221



Page 116 
 

o Homeless  
▪ From the SIS Homeless Indictor in the Fall enrollment snapshot  

 
Formula (calculations)  
Percent of Kindergartners Rated on 14 Required Measures (all eligible enrolled Kindergarteners is based on 
participation denominator above) Formula 

• ∑(Number of Kindergartners Rated on 14 Required Measures) ÷ ∑(All eligible 
enrolled Kindergartners) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Zero Developmental Areas (denominator for 
readiness formula is numerator from participation formula, numerator for readiness formula is a subset of 
the denominator based on specific formula criteria) Formula 

• ∑(Number of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Zero Developmental Areas) ÷ ∑(Number of 
Kindergartners rated on 14 required measures) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in One Developmental Area (denominator for readiness 
formula is numerator from participation formula, numerator for readiness formula is a subset of the 
denominator based on specific formula criteria) Formula 

• ∑(Number of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in One Developmental Area) ÷ ∑(Number of 
Kindergartners rated on 14 required measures) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Two Developmental Areas (denominator for 
readiness formula is numerator from participation formula, numerator for readiness formula is a subset of 
the denominator based on specific formula criteria) Formula 

• ∑(Number of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Two Developmental Areas) ÷ ∑(Number of 
Kindergartners rated on 14 required measures) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in All Three Developmental Areas (denominator for 
readiness formula is numerator from participation formula, numerator for readiness formula is a subset of 
the denominator based on specific formula criteria) Formula 

• ∑(Number of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in All Three Developmental Areas) ÷ ∑(Number of 
Kindergartners rated on 14 required measures) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Social and Emotional Development (denominator for 
readiness formula is numerator from participation formula, numerator for readiness formula is a subset of 
the denominator based on specific formula criteria) Formula 

• ∑(Number of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Social and Emotional Development) ÷ ∑(Number 
of Kindergartners rated on 14 required measures) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 

222



Page 117 
 

Percent of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Language and Literacy Development (denominator 
for readiness formula is numerator from participation formula, numerator for readiness formula is a subset 
of the denominator based on specific formula criteria) Formula 

• ∑(Number of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Language and Literacy 
Development) ÷ ∑(Number of Kindergartners rated on 14 required measures) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Math (denominator for readiness formula is 
numerator from participation formula, numerator for readiness formula is a subset of the denominator 
based on specific formula criteria) Formula 

• ∑(Number of Kindergartners Demonstrating Readiness in Math) ÷ ∑(Number of Kindergartners rated on 14 
required measures) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Sources of Data  
UC-Berkley Evaluation and Assessment Research (also known as UC BEAR) 
SIS Enrollment 
SIS Student Demographics and Programs 
 
  

223



Page 118 
 

 

Climate Survey 

SY 2023 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

224



Page 119 
 

Climate Survey 
Definition 
Climate Survey is a survey taken by all Grade PK-12 teachers and all Grade 4-12 students as required by 

the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) State Plan. The State Board of Education shall administer a 

Climate Survey, identified by and paid for by the State Board of Education, to provide feedback from, at 

a minimum, students in Grades 4 through 12 and teachers on the instructional environment within a 

school, according to 105 ILCS 5/2-3.153 (ilga.gov). The information collected through the survey is 

rigorously reviewed and analyzed to generate a report for each school. There are three Climate Surveys 

approved for use by ISBE -- 5Essentials, Cognia, and Comprehensive School Climate Inventory. 

 

Climate Survey Response Schools is the percentage of schools with over a 50 percent response rate on 

the school climate Survey. 

 

Climate Survey Response Students is the total number of individual students responding to the School 

Climate Survey, divided by the total number of eligible students.  Students are eligible to participate if 

they are enrolled in a school and are cognitively able to participate in the survey. 

 

For the 2022 Report Card, and moving forward, Climate Survey Response Teachers represents the total 

number of teachers responding to the Climate Survey, divided by the total number of eligible teachers. 

 

Teachers rostered to take the teacher survey include Self-contained and subject-specific classroom 

teachers; Cooperating classroom teachers; Special education teachers working in a single classroom or 

across classrooms; and Counselors, librarians, and other staff members who teach students. 

 

Teachers eligible to participate in the survey but not rostered include Instructional coaches and subject 

matter specialists; and Teacher aides and paraprofessionals. 

 
5Essentials  
The 5Essentials Survey results offer a comprehensive analysis of a school’s organizational culture, generating 
data that allows schools to develop improvement plans and target resources to areas known to be related to 
increases in student learning. There are two components of the 5Essential Survey, the results of the survey 
and the response rate for the survey. The survey results are for schools only and record the result level for 
each of the 5Essential Categories. On the district level, the percent of schools with a response rate over 
50 percent is calculated and compared to the state rate. On the school level, the response rate of the teachers 
and students are calculated and compared to the state rate.   
  
Cognia (formerly AdvancED ) 
The Cognia (formerly AdvancED) Stakeholder Surveys are designed for an educational institution to gather 
data on its stakeholders’ perceptions, opinions, and overall knowledge of various facets of the institution. 
Administering the suite of surveys (student, staff, and parent) fulfills one accreditation requirement for all 
types of educational institutions: public, school system, private, international, faith-based, early learning 
centers, corporations, or distance learning.  
 
 

225

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/documents/010500050K2-3.153.htm


Page 120 
 

Comprehensive School Climate Inventory (CSCI)  
The Comprehensive School Climate Inventory (CSCI) is one of the nation’s most scientifically sound and helpful 
surveys that provide immediate feedback on how students, parents, and school personnel perceive your 
school's particular climate for learning. Vetted by the National School Climate Council, three independent 
reviews of school climate measures, a core group of practice and policy leaders, the CSCI is one of the top 
school climate surveys in the field. This social, emotional, and civic as well as intellectual information provides 
a foundation for the five-stage school climate improvement process. Click here to read Frequently Asked 
Questions for Researchers.  
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/2-3.153  
Illinois Administrative Code 23 IAC 1.97  
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 
5Essentials Survey   

• The data is from the University of Chicago who conducts the survey for ISBE and the data is provided via a 
spreadsheet.  

• The spreadsheet is loaded into the Data Warehouse table by ISBE IT staff and all data points are directly 
from this table.  

• The percentage of schools in the district with a response rate over 50% is calculated as follows:  
o Do not include students where the student count = 0  
o If student response rate and that teacher response rate are both > 50% the school is considered 

over 50%  
o The total number of schools is a count of schools with either a student response rate and/or a 

teacher response rate  
▪ Don’t count the school if both rates are missing  

o This metric is only displayed on the District level IIRC, assuming the business rules are meet for 
displaying this information  

• The 5Essential components for school success are:  
o Effective Leaders  
o Collaborative Teachers  
o Supportive Environment  
o Ambitious Instruction  
o Involved Families  

• Each component receives a score level from blank (NULL) to 99  

• The scores map to one of six levels as follows:  
o 5 – VERY STRONG (80+)  
o 4 – STRONG (60 to 79)  
o 3 – NEUTRAL (40 to 59)  
o 2 – WEAK (20 to 39)  
o 1 – VERY WEAK (1 to 19)  
o 0 – NOT APPLICABLE/LOW RESPONSE (0, blank, or NULL)  

 
 
 
 

226

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K2-3.153
https://ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/023/023000010A00970R.html


Page 121 
 

 
Cognia (formerly AdvancED) 

• The data is from Cognia who conducts the survey for ISBE and the data is provided via a spreadsheet.  

• We do not collect the survey results for Cognia, therefore the survey responses will not be displayed.  

• The percentage of schools in the district with a response rate over 50% is calculated as follows:  
o Do not include students where the student count = 0  
o If student response rate and that teacher response rate are both > 50% the school is considered 

over 50%  
o The total number of schools is a count of schools with either a student response rate and/or a 

teacher response rate.  
▪ Don’t count the school if both rates are missing. 

o This metric is only displayed on the District level IIRC, assuming the business rules are meet for 
displaying this information.  

• Cognia Component information is not received and therefore not displayed. 
 
CSCI 

• The data is from CSCI who conducts the survey for ISBE and the data is provided via a spreadsheet.  

• We do not collect the survey results for CSCI; therefore, the survey responses will not be displayed.  

• The percentage of schools in the district with a response rate over 50% is calculated as follows:  
o Do not include students where the student count = 0  
o If student response rate and that teacher response rate are both > 50% the school is considered 

over 50%.  
o The total number of schools is a count of schools with either a student response rate and/or a 

teacher response rate.  
▪ Do not count the school if both rates are missing.  

o This metric is only displayed on the District level IIRC, assuming the business rules are meet for 
displaying this information.  

• CSCI Component information is not received and therefore not displayed.  
 
For 5Essentials, Cognia, and CSCI, the student response rate and teacher response rate are reported on the 
school and state level.  
 
For 5Essentials, Cognia, and CSCI, the percentage of schools with a student and teacher response rate over 
50% are reported on the district and state level.  
 
Formula (calculations) 
The following formulas apply to 5Essentials, Cognia, and CSCI: 
Student Response Rate Formula 

• School 
o ∑ (Student Responses) ÷ ∑ (Student Count – Student Opt Out Count) × 100 

• State 
o ∑ (Student Count × Student Response Rate) ÷ ∑ (Student Count) × 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
 
 

227



Page 122 
 

 
Teacher Response Rate Formula 

• School 
o ∑ (Teacher Responses) ÷ ∑ (Teacher Count) × 100 

• State 
o ∑ (Teacher Count × Teacher Response Rate) ÷ ∑ (Teacher Count) × 100 

 
Percentage of Schools with Over 50% Response Rate Formula 

• District 
o ∑ (Count of Schools in District with Student Response Rate and Teacher Response Rate ˃ 50%) ÷ ∑ 

(Count of Eligible Schools in District) 

• State 
o ∑ (Count of Schools in State with Student Response Rate and teacher response Rate ˃ 50%) ÷ ∑ 

(Count of Eligible Schools in State) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Sources of Data 
5Essentials 
Cognia 
Comprehensive School Climate Inventory (CSCI) 
 
  

228



Page 123 
 

 

Illinois Youth Survey 

SY 2023 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

229



Page 124 
 

Illinois Youth Survey 
Definition 
The Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS) has funded the administration of the Illinois Youth Survey 
(IYS) biennially since 1990. The IYS is a self-report survey administered in school settings and is designed to 
gather information about a variety of health and social indicators including substance use patterns and 
attitudes of Illinois youth.  
 
The administration of the IYS has two major goals:  

• To supply local data to schools and school districts throughout Illinois. During state-funded survey years 
(e.g., 2018, 2020, etc.), the survey is available to all eligible public and private schools in the state at no 
cost. Each participating school is eligible to receive a report specific to their own students' responses. 
These local reports provide critical information to school administrators, prevention professionals, and 
community members as they work to address substance abuse issues in their communities.  

• To provide a scientific estimate of health and social indicators for the state of Illinois. The scientific 
estimate is based on drawing a random sample to represent the state population of 8th, 10th, and 12th 
graders in Illinois public schools.  

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: 105 ILCS 5/10-17a(2)(M) 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 

• The IYS survey is administered every other year (e.g., 2020, 2022, 2024) in the spring semester timeframe.  

• The IYS survey is administered for 8th, 10th, and 12th grades, however schools can offer the survey to other 
grade levels.  

• Participation in the IYS is not required.  
o All schools are offered the opportunity to participate in the survey  

• At least 10 valid surveys from each grade must be completed in order to determine if the school 
participated.  

o This determination will be decided by U of I.  
o It is possible for a school to participate at one grade level, but not another (participate at 

10th grade, but not 12th grade and vice versa).  

• For purposes of being reported on the Report Card, we will simply indicate whether or not a school 
participated in the IYS.  

• IYS data is released every other year  

Report Card Year   
IYS Data Year  

(every 2 years)   

IYS Data  
Available  

(every 2 years)   

2020 (first year)  2020  July 2020   

2021   2020  July 2020   

2022   2022  July 2022   

2023  2022  July 2022   

• U of I will provide ISBE with a spreadsheet indicating the following information:  
o RCDTS  
o Indicator representing school participation in the survey (Yes/No)  

• Additional information about the IYS can be found here: https://iys.cprd.illinois.edu/  

230

http://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+10&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=61700000&SeqEnd=86600000
https://iys.cprd.illinois.edu/


Page 125 
 

 
Formula (calculations) 
N/A 
 
Sources of Data 
University of Illinois 
 
  

231



Page 126 
 

 

Annual Financial Report 

 SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

232



Page 127 
 

Annual Financial Report 
Definition 
The Annual Financial Report (AFR) for a district is the final financial statement for a Local Education Agency's 
(LEA) fiscal year after it has been audited by a qualified auditor. Each district is required to have an annual 
audit completed by a qualified and licensed auditing firm. The AFR is completed by the auditor and is 
submitted to Illinois State Board of Education. 
 
Expenditure by Function consists of expenditures for instruction, general administration, support services, and 
other expenditures.  
 
Local Property Taxes means the receipt of taxes that apply to the prior year’s levies, as well as those available 
from the current levy.  Also included are payments in lieu of taxes as monies from the Corporate Personal 
Property Replacement Tax.  
 
Evidence-Based Funding (EBF) for Invest in Kids Act, or Public Act 100-0465, became law on August 31, 2017. 
Five previous grant programs are combined into a single grant program and distributed as EBF. Those grant 
programs are General State Aid, Special Education – Personnel, Special Education – Funding for Children 
Requiring Special Education Services, Special Education – Summer School, and English Learner 
Education.  Districts receive the same amounts from these grant programs as they did in the year prior to the 
new law. That hold harmless provision is known as the Base Funding Minimum. In addition, districts receive 
funding based on their assignment to one of four tiers, which represent a ranking of their capacity to meet 
expectations.  
 
Expenditure by Fund is the total expenditure from each of the eight funds: educational, operations and 
maintenance, transportation, debt service, tort, municipal retirement/Social Security, fire prevention and 
safety, and capital projects. 
 
Equalized Assessed Valuation per Pupil includes all computed property values upon which a district’s local tax 
rate is calculated.  
 
Total School Tax Rate Per $100 is an indication of district effort. It is the district’s total tax rate for education 
(per $100) as shown on local property tax bills.  
 
Instructional Expenditure per Pupil includes the direct costs of teaching pupils or the interaction between 
teachers and pupils.  
 
Operating Expenditure per Pupil includes the gross operating cost of a school district, excluding summer 
school, adult education, bond principal retired, and capital expenditures.  
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/2-3.11, 2-3.27, 3-15.1, 10-17, 10-20.21, 17-1, and 18-3  
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 

• District Financial data provide numbers for Expenditure by Function, Revenue by Source, Expenditure by 
Funds, and Other Financial Indicators.  

• The table below shows the alignment between financial and tax data for the Report Card 

233

https://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3820&amp;ChapterID=8
http://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/023/023001000001000R.html


Page 128 
 

Report Card Year 2021 2022 2023 

Financials Year 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 

Tax Year 2018 2019 2020 

Tax Mechanics 
2018 Assessments, 

2019 Receipts 

2019 Assessments, 

2020 Receipts 

2020 Assessments, 

2021 Receipts 

Tax Revenue 

Available for 
2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 

• All values are passed to the Data Warehouse via a spreadsheet obtained from the School Business Services 
Department for use on the Report Card.  

o No calculations are performed in the Data Warehouse.  

• Below is a breakdown of what data is provided:  

• Expenditure by Function 2021-22 (All values are district reported values from their AFR) 
o Expenditure by Function – Instruction  

▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Function – General Administration  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Function – Supporting Services  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Function – Other Expenditures  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

• Revenue by Source 2021-22 (All values are district reported values from their AFR) 
o Revenue by Source – Local Property Taxes  

▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Revenue by Source – Other Local Funding  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Revenue by Source – Evidence-Based Funding  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Revenue by Source – Other State Funding  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Revenue by Source – Federal Funding  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

234



Page 129 
 

o Revenue by Source – Total  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  

• Expenditure by Fund 2021-22 (All values are district reported values from their AFR) 
o Expenditure by Fund – Education  

▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Fund – Operations and Maintenance  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Fund – Transportation  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Fund – Debt Services  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Fund – Tort  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Fund – Municipal Retirement and Social Security  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Fund – Fire Prevention and Safety  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Fund – Capital Projects  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a percentage at the State level (which is the IL School District averages)  

o Expenditure by Fund – Total  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  

• Other Financial Indicators 
o Other Financial Indicators – Equalized Assessed Valuation per Pupil  

▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ This data will always be for current year Report Card minus 3 years 

• Examples:  
o 2021 Report Card would contain 2018 data  
o 2022 Report Card would contain 2019 data 
o 2023 Report card would contain 2020 data 

o Other Financial Indicators – Total School Tax Rate per $100  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  

235



Page 130 
 

▪ This data will always be for current year Report Card minus 3 years 

• Examples:  
o 2021 Report Card would contain 2018 data  
o 2022 Report Card would contain 2019 data 
o 2023 Report Card would contain 2020 data 

o Other Financial Indicators – Instructional Expenditure per Pupil  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the State level  
▪ Examples: 

• 2021 Report Card would contain 2019-20 data 

• 2022 Report Card would contain 2020-21 data 

• 2023 Report card would contain 2021-22 data 

o Other Financial Indicators – Operating Expenditure per Pupil  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the District level  
▪ Displayed as a dollar amount at the State level  
▪ Examples: 

• 2021 Report Card would contain 2019-20 data 

• 2022 Report Card would contain 2020-21 data 

• 2023 Report card would contain 2021-22 data 

 
Formula (calculations): 

• Expenditure by Function – Instruction Formula 
o District Percentage  

▪ (Instruction Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)   
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Instruction Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)   
 

• Expenditure by Function – General Administration Formula 
o District Percentage  

▪ (General Administration Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (General Administration Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Function – Supporting Services Formula 
o District Percentage  

▪ (Support Services Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Support Services Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Function – Other Expenditures Formula 
o District Percentage  

▪ (Other Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)   
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Other Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)   
 

• Revenue by Source – Local Property Taxes Formula 

236



Page 131 
 

o District Dollar Amount  
▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Local Property Taxes Revenue dollar amount  

o District Percentage  
▪ (Local Property Tax Revenue for the District) ÷ (Total Revenue for the District)   

o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  
▪ (Local Property Tax Revenue for the State) ÷ (Total Revenue for the State)  

 

• Revenue by Source – Other Local Funding Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Other Local Funding Revenue dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

▪ (Other Local Revenue for the District) ÷ (Total Revenue for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Other Local Revenue for the State) ÷ (Total Revenue for the State)  
 

• Revenue by Source – Evidence-Based Funding Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Evidence-Based Funding Revenue dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

▪ (Evidence-Based Funding Revenue for the District) ÷ (Total Revenue for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Evidence-Based Funding Revenue for the State) ÷ (Total Revenue for the State)  
 

• Revenue by Source – Other State Funding Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Other State Funding Revenue dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

▪ (Other State Revenue for the District) ÷ (Total Revenue for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Other State Revenue for the State) ÷ (Total Revenue for the State)  
 

• Revenue by Source – Federal Funding Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Federal Funding Revenue dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

▪ (Federal Revenue for the District) ÷ (Total Revenue for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Federal Revenue for the State) ÷ (Total Revenue for the State)  
 

• Revenue by Source – Total Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Revenue dollar amount  
 

• Expenditure by Fund – Education Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Education Expenditure dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

237



Page 132 
 

▪ (Education Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Education Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Fund – Operations and Maintenance Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Operations and Maintenance Expenditure dollar 
amount  

o District Percentage  
▪ (Operations and Maintenance Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the 

District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Operations and Maintenance Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the 
State)  

 

• Expenditure by Fund – Transportation Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Transportation Expenditure dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

▪ (Transportation Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Transportation Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Fund – Debt Services Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Debt Services Expenditure dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

▪ (Debt Services Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Debt Services Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Fund – Tort Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Tort Expenditure dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

▪ (Total Tort Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Total Tort Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Fund – Municipal Retirement and Social Security Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Municipal Retirement and Social Security 
Expenditure dollar amount  

o District Percentage  
▪ (Municipal Retirement and Social Security for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the 

District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

238



Page 133 
 

▪ (Municipal Retirement and Social Security for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Fund – Fire Prevention and Safety Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Fire Prevention and Safety Expenditure dollar 
amount  

o District Percentage  
▪ (Fire Prevention and Safety Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the 

District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Fire Prevention and Safety Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Fund – Capital Projects Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Capital Projects Expenditure dollar amount  
o District Percentage  

▪ (Capital Projects Expenditures for the District) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the District)  
o State Percentage (which is the IL School District averages)  

▪ (Capital Projects Expenditures for the State) ÷ (Total Expenditures for the State)  
 

• Expenditure by Fund – Total Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Expenditure dollar amount  
 

• Other Financial Indicators – Equalized Assessed Valuation per Pupil Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Equalized Assessed Valuation per Pupil dollar 
amount  

▪ The formula for calculating this is:  

• (District EAV) ÷ (District’s 9-month Average Daily Attendance)  
 

• Other Financial Indicators – Total School Tax Rate per $100 Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total School Tax Rate per $100 amount  
 

• Other Financial Indicators – Instructional Expenditure per Pupil Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Total Instructional Expenditure per Pupil dollar amount  
▪ The formula for calculating this is:  

• (District Total Instructional Expenditures) ÷ (District’s 9-month Average Daily 
Attendance)  

o State Dollar Amount  
▪ N/A – we just display the State Total Instructional Expenditure per Pupil dollar amount  
▪ The formula for calculating this is:  

• (District State Total Instructional Expenditures) ÷ (State’s 9-month Average Daily 
Attendance)  

239



Page 134 
 

 

• Other Financial Indicators – Operating Expenditure per Pupil Formula 
o District Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the District Operating Expenditure per Pupil dollar amount  
o State Dollar Amount  

▪ N/A – we just display the State Operating Expenditure per Pupil dollar amount  
 
Sources of Data 
Self-reported data from the district 
  

240



Page 135 
 

 

Evidence-Based Funding 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

241



Page 136 
 

Evidence-Based Funding (EBF)  
Definition 
Evidence-Based Funding (EBF) for Student Success Act, or Letter Bill 1..550 (ilga.gov), became law on August 
31, 2017. Five previous grant programs were combined into a single grant program and distributed as EBF. 
Those grant programs are General State Aid, Special Education – Personnel, Special Education – Funding for 
Children Requiring Special Education Services, Special Education – Summer School, and English Learner 
Education. Districts receive the same amounts from these grant programs as they did in FY 2017, the year 
prior to implementation of EBF. That hold harmless provision is known as the Base Funding Minimum. In 
addition, when there are sufficient appropriations, districts receive funding based on their assignment to one 
of four tiers.  The tiers represent a ranking of district resources compared to individual district education costs. 
 
Detailed information about these EBF metrics to be included on the Report Card are 
published here: https://www.isbe.net/Documents/EBF_Presentation_Detailed.pdf  

• EBF Adequacy Target 
o EBF Adequacy Target is the minimum cost to educate students within the district based on the cost 

factors outlined in the Evidence-Based Funding (EBF) formula. It is the denominator of each 
district’s Percentage of Adequacy calculation. Please refer to ISBE’s resource materials for the 
methodology and the list of cost factors used to determine a district's Adequacy Target. Each 
district’s Adequacy Target is calculated by ISBE and updated annually. 

• EBF District Tier Assignment 
o EBF District Tier Assignment is the tier assigned to each district pursuant to EBF. There are four 

tiers numbered 1 through 4. The Tier 1 threshold is set annually. Tier 2 districts have a Percentage 
of Adequacy greater than or equal to the Tier 1 target ratio and less than 90 percent. Tier 3 districts 
have a Percentage of Adequacy greater than or equal to 90 percent and less than 100 percent. Tier 
4 districts have a Percentage of Adequacy greater than or equal to 100 percent. 

• EBF Local Capacity Target 
o EBF Local Capacity Target is an amount of funding each district is assumed to contribute toward its 

Adequacy Target for purposes of EBF calculations. Local Capacity Target is the largest of the three 
elements of Final Resources and is based on Equalized Assessed Valuation amounts. 

• EBF Percentage of Adequacy 
o EBF Percentage of Adequacy is a ratio equal to a district’s Final Resources divided by its Adequacy 

Target in EBF. Each district’s Percentage of Adequacy determines its tier assignment in a given year 
when increased funding is provided. 

• EBF Real Receipts 
o EBF Real Receipts is an amount that is used to adjust the Local Capacity Target calculation when the 

product of the Real Receipts calculation exceeds the Local Capacity Target. Real Receipts are equal 
to Adjusted Real Equalized Assessed Value multiplied by Adjusted Operating Tax Rate. 

• EBF Real Receipts / Adequacy Target 
o EBF Real Receipts / Adequacy Target – Comparing Real Receipts to the Local Capacity Target will 

illustrate a district’s ability to generate local revenue compared to the expected contribution to 
providing an adequate education per EBF. 

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/18-8.15 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 

 
 

242

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/EBF_Presentation_Detailed.pdf
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/EBF_Presentation_Detailed.pdf
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+18&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=131700000&SeqEnd=134900000


Page 137 
 

Business Rules 
All metrics described in this document are pass-through values from calculations determined by the Illinois 
State Board of Education Division of State Funding and Forecasting. 
 
All attributes are associated to a district.  There is no school or state level reporting. 
 
Formula (calculations) 

• Most metrics described in this document are pass-through values from values determined by State 
Funding and Forecasting.  The values for most of the metrics for each district are published on ISBE’s EBF 

website: https://www.isbe.net/ebfdist  
o EBF Tier Assignment is a direct pull from Column ‘X’ FY23 EBF Calculation spreadsheet/Base Calc 

Worksheet  
o EBF Adequacy Target is a direct pull from Column 'N' from FY23 EBF Calculation spreadsheet/Base 

Calc Worksheet 
o EBF Percentage of Adequacy is a direct pull from Column 'W' from FY23 EBF Calculation 

spreadsheet/Base Calc Worksheet * 100 (displays as percentage) 
o EBF Local Capacity Target is a direct pull from Column 'AF' from FY23 EBF Calculation 

spreadsheet/Local Capacity Target Worksheet 
o EBF Real Receipts is a direct pull from Column 'AD' from FY23 EBF Calculation spreadsheet/Local 

Capacity Target Worksheet 
o EBF Final Resources is a direct pull from Column 'S' from FY23 EBF Calculation spreadsheet/Base 

Calc Worksheet 

• Some metrics described in this document are calculated for Report Card based on input values determined 

by State Funding and Forecasting.  The needed input values for each district are published on ISBE’s EBF 

website: https://www.isbe.net/ebfdist 

o EBF Local Capacity Percentage is calculated as: 
▪ (Local Capacity Target / Adequacy Target) * 100 (displays as percentage) 

o EBF Real Receipts / Adequacy Target is calculated as: 
▪ (Real Receipts / Adequacy Target) * 100 (displays as percentage) 

o EBF Real Receipts as Percentage of Local Capacity Target is calculated as: 
▪ (Real Receipts / Local Capacity Target) * 100 (displays as percentage) 

• Each school year, Report Card will use EBF values from the EBF calculations from the fiscal 
year corresponding to the school year of the data on the report. For example, the Report Card published in 
fall 2023 showing school year 2023 data will use EBF values from the fiscal year 2023 calculations.  

• Each fiscal year after completion of EBF calculations (estimated to be by end of July), a new spreadsheet 
will be published. Until a formal process has been developed to integrate the data into the data 
warehouse, the dataset will be manually imported into ISBE’s data warehouse for integration into 
the Report Card data mart for publication on the corresponding Report Card.  

 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Illinois Department of Human Services 
Illinois Department of Revenue 
School Districts 
County Clerks 
Chicago Teachers’ Pension Fund  

243

https://www.isbe.net/ebfdist
https://www.isbe.net/ebfdist


Page 138 
 

 

Average Class Size 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

244



Page 139 
 

Average Class Size 
Definition 
Class size refers to the number of students in a classroom, specifically either (1) the number of students being 
taught by individual teachers in a classroom or (2) the average number of students being taught by teachers in 
a school, district, or education system. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 

• Average Class Size is calculated by taking the average of all the section-level enrollments at a 
school/district/state for core courses.  

• The enrollment file used is the SIS exit snapshot.  

• Enrollment is counted on a class and section basis per school/district/state for the following courses:  
o Core classes with course code beginning in 01-04, 51-54, or 73.  

• The following courses are excluded:  
o Special Education classes  

▪ A Special Education class is any class with more than 30% of the enrolled students having 
IEPs  

o Biblical Literature (01059A000),  
o In high school, courses whose title include “workplace”, “cooperative” “aide”, “other”, or 

“independent”,  
o Classes with only one or 0 students enrolled,  
o High school classes with more than 50 students enrolled, or  
o Elementary classes with more than 40 students enrolled  
o Summer school students are excluded from this count, which are those who have an enrollment 

date equal to or greater than 6/1  
o Student Course Assignments where the outcome is Erroneous.  

▪ Note: Student course assignments where the outcome is null will be included in the Average 
Class Size calculation.  

• At elementary school the grade level for non-grade specific courses is determined by the grade of the 
students enrolled in the section.  

• Sum the section level enrollment counts at each school/district/state and divide the total by the number of 
sections at each school/district/state to arrive at the average class size.  

 
Formula (calculations) 
Average Class Size Formula 

• ∑ (Section level enrollment counts at each school/district/state) ÷ ∑ (Number of sections at each 
school/district/state) 
 

Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
 
  

245

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K10-17a


Page 140 
 

 

Site-Based Expenditure Reporting  

SY 2023 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

246



Page 141 
 

Site-Based Expenditure Reporting (SBER) 
Definition 
ESSA requires that SEAs report on their Report Card: “The per-pupil expenditures of Federal, State, and local 
funds, including actual personnel expenditures and actual non-personnel expenditures of Federal, State, and 
local funds, disaggregated by source of funds, for each local educational agency and each school in the State 
for the preceding fiscal year.”  

• “Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School” is defined as the total of per-pupil school-level expenditures and 
per-pupil centralized expenditures funded by federal and state/ local source of funds.  

• “Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by federal source of funds” is defined as the total 
of per-pupil school-level expenditures and per-pupil centralized expenditures by federal source of funds.  

• “Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by state and local source of funds” is defined as the 
total of per-pupil school-level expenditures and per-pupil centralized expenditures by state and local 
source of funds combined.  

• “Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by school level-expenditures” is defined as the per-
pupil school-level expenditures totaled by federal source of funds and by state and local source of funds 
combined.  The school-level expenditures must include any personnel salaries, benefits, and related costs 
assigned exclusively to a school and any non-personnel costs specifically attributable to the school.  

• "Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by LEA centralized level” is defined as the per-pupil 
school’s share of LEA centralized expenditures totaled by federal source of funds and by state and local 
source of funds combined.  LEA centralized expenditures go beyond central office administrative 
expenditures and may also include LEA-defined cost categories such as transportation, operation & 
maintenance, food services, some pupil support services, etc.  

• “Per-Pupil School-Level Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by federal source of funds” is defined 
as the per-pupil school-level expenditures funded by federal source of funds.  The school-level 
expenditures must include any personnel salaries, benefits, and related costs assigned exclusively to a 
school and any non-personnel costs specifically attributable to the school.  

• “Per-Pupil School-Level Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by state and local source of funds” is 
defined as the per-pupil school-level expenditures funded by state and local source of funds 
combined.  The school-level expenditures must include any personnel salaries, benefits, and related costs 
assigned exclusively to a school and any non-personnel costs specifically attributable to the school.  

• “Per-Pupil LEA Centralized Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by federal source of funds” is 
defined as the site’s per-pupil proportional share of LEA centralized expenditures funded by federal source 
of funds.  The proportional share of a LEA’s centralized expenditures represents an allocation of 
centralized expenditures as a proxy for dollars spent for LEA centralized services serving each school.  LEA 
centralized expenditures go beyond central office administrative expenditures and may also include LEA-
defined cost categories such as transportation, operation & maintenance, food services, some pupil 
support services, etc.  

• “Per-Pupil LEA Centralized Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by state and local source of funds” 
is defined as the site’s per-pupil proportional share of LEA centralized expenditures funded by state and 
local source of funds combined.  The proportional share of a LEA’s centralized expenditures represents an 
allocation of centralized expenditures as a proxy for dollars spent for LEA centralized services serving each 
school.  LEA centralized expenditures go beyond central office administrative expenditures and may also 
include LEA-defined cost categories such as transportation, operation & maintenance, food services, some 
pupil support services, etc. 

• “District Expenditures Excluded from Per-Pupil Averages” is defined as the sum total of all expenditures 
excluded from Site-Based Expenditure Reporting.  These expenditures will not need to be 

247



Page 142 
 

disaggregated.  Expenditures to be excluded are those that do not reflect expenditures for pre-K through 
grade 12 students being served or placed by the LEA (thereby excluding costs for adult education and 
community services, for example) and those that do not reflect expenditures that are largely ongoing, 
normal course resource allocations (thereby excluding non-education fund capital expenditures and debt 
service, for example). A list of the most frequent exclusions appears in ISBE’s annual Site-Based 
Expenditures Reporting Guidance, which can be found on the SBER webpage. Exclusions are categorized by 
fund, function, and object (according to the Illinois Administrative Code Part 100 Rules for Accounting, 
Budgeting, Financial Reporting, available here). 

• Site Type 
o Default Site:  

▪ Site that has a unique RCDTS code. These site entries do not require a subgroup code (flag).  
▪ Default sites are sites with a proportional student enrollment of 1 or more.  
▪ Sites with zero proportional student enrollment do not display as default sites; however, 

LEAs may manually add any sites not listed as long as the site is an open entity at any time 
during the fiscal year in the Entity Profile System. 

▪ Redaction rules:  

• Any SBER Enrollment less than 10 should be redacted from Report Card display  
o Separate LEA Outplacements:  

▪ Applies to LEAs that elect to report the total proportional count of students educated 
outside of the district at a single reporting site.  (LEAs may choose between this reporting 
option or, instead, reporting this proportional student enrollment at their home sites.)  

• If an LEA’s proportional count of students placed outside the district is 10 or fewer, 
the LEA must include this proportional count in the student’s home sites.    

▪ Includes all placements served outside the district regardless of reason (e.g., special 
education, career tech/vocational education, and often Regional Safe Schools and 
Alternative Learning Opportunities Program) and associated expenditures. 

▪ Two-digit flag to indicate this site type is “OP.” 
▪ RCDTS Code is the reporting district code for this entry. 
▪ This separate reporting site will appear as a site on the district Report Card but not on its 

own school Report Card. 

• Deactivated Placements:  
o LEA(s) with students whose home schools have been deactivated are provided with a 

mechanism to report their deactivated placements as a separate reporting site.  
o All deactivated enrollments served at different sites are grouped into one single 

“deactivated placements” reporting site.  
o Any LEA in which all schools have been deactivated and all students are placed into 

serving schools outside of the Home LEA will report under a single “deactivated 
placement” reporting site.  

o Two-digit flag to indicate this site type is “DP.” 
o RCDTS Code is the reporting district code for this entry. 
o This reporting site is separate from Students Served outside the District (Separate 

District Outplacements).  
o This separate reporting site will appear as a site on the District Report Card but not on 

its own School Report Card. 

• Site Detail Type 

• An LEA has the option to call out expenditures and enrollment associated with pre-K classrooms within 
school sites serving other grade levels. 

248

https://www.isbe.net/site-based
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/100ARK.pdf


Page 143 
 

o Both “PK” and “NP” subgroup codes (flags) are associated with school sites serving other 
grade levels including pre-K classrooms.   

▪ Designated pre-K and early childhood centers are separate reporting sites and will 
not use these subgroup codes (flags). 

o “PK” flag indicates all students aged 3-5 enrolled at pre-K classrooms within an existing 
elementary (or other grade level) school site. 

o “NP” flag indicates all students attending other grades excluding students enrolled within 
pre-K classrooms served at the same elementary (or other grade level) school site. 

o RCDTS Code is the elementary (or other grade levels) school code for this entry. This code 
will be the same for both the non-Pre-K and Pre-K entries, since the two sets of grade levels 
are served at the same site. 

• School-Level Public Narrative (optional) 
o Provides every LEA to script optional narratives for individual schools, to help “tell their story.” 
o This optional LEA-developed school-level narrative is displayed on the school Report Card if 

provided.  

• LEA-Level Public Narrative (optional) 
o Provides every LEA the opportunity to give further context and narrative to accompany the Site-

Based Expenditure data set for the LEA.  
o This optional LEA-developed LEA-level narrative is displayed on the district Report Card if provided.  

• LEA Average Per-Pupil Expenditures 
o This metric is the average per-pupil expenditures at district level.  

• Total LEA Expenditures 
o This metric is the total dollars included in reporting (allocated to sites) plus total exclusions. 

• LEA Enrollment 
o This metric is the total of all the enrolled students within the LEA, according to their percent of day 

attended (PDA) recorded in the Student Information System (SIS).  
o This metric is the sum total of enrollments reported within all sites of the LEA, including any 

separate reporting sites for students educated outside the district.  
o An enrollment of 1.0 indicates that the student is receiving a full day of services. Students receiving 

services for only part of each day shall be counted as proportional students based on percentage of 
day listed in SIS.  

o This sum total should equal the total number of children (according to their proportionate 
enrollment) aged 3 through 21 in grades prekindergarten through 12 served by the LEA or placed 
outside the district by the LEA.  

▪ Within SBER Guidance, “prekindergarten students” refers broadly to the proportional 
student FTE count of students ages 3-5 for whom a district incurs costs for educational 
services provided, inclusive of prekindergarten (pre-K) and early childhood 
education. Students enrolled in birth to three programs are excluded from Site-Based 
Expenditure Reporting.  

o The average of the enrolled proportional student count (related to students from or served outside 
the district) on October 1st and March 1st of the reporting year shall be used.  

• Enrollment for Each School 
o This metric includes every student the school serves, except for students being served in the school 

who originate from outside the LEA.  
o Students served outside the LEA should be included in reporting by the Home LEA.  
o The average of the enrolled proportional student count (related to students from or served outside 

the district) on October 1st and March 1st of the reporting year shall be used.  
249



Page 144 
 

o Students receiving services for only part of each day shall be counted as proportional students 
based on percentage of day (Percentage of Day Attended – PDA) listed in SIS.  

o All students whose PDA is reported as 1.0 within SIS, indicating that they attend school on a full-day 
basis, are counted as 1.0 student enrollment FTE for site-based expenditure reporting.  

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois Every Student Succeeds Act Site-Based Expenditure Reporting Guidance  
Federal Statute/Guidance: Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965- section 1111(h) (C)(1) of ESSA 
 
Business Rules 

• Data from the SBER (Site-Based Expenditures Reporting) system will be passed to the Data Warehouse to 
be displayed on the Report Card.  

• SBER system will allow schools and districts the ability to add free form text of 4000 characters or less, 
which will be passed to the Data Warehouse.  

o This text will only be displayed on the IIRC.  
o Allowable character limit for School Public Narrative is 4000 characters or less.  
o Allowable character limit for District Public Narrative is 4000 characters or less.  

• These metrics will not be included in the District Data Preview and Verification Tool within MyIRC. 

• There are certain subgroups associated with the data tables which are:  
o Outplacement (OP)  
o PreK (PK)  
o Non PreK (NP)  
o Deactivated Placements (DP)  

• SBER data for all submitted fiscal years are stored within the Data Warehouse.  

• Change in the Total Per-Pupil Expenditures and Enrollment from the Prior Year at the district level are 
calculated by the Data Warehouse team and displayed on the School Finances page of the District 
Environment tab of the District Report Card.  

• Change in Total Per-Pupil Expenditures and Enrollment from the Prior Year for each site (including 
Outplacements, Sites with No Report Card, and Deactivated Placements if applicable) within the district 
are calculated by the Data Warehouse team and displayed on the School Finances page of the District 
Environment tab on the District Report Card.  

• Change in Total Per-Pupil Expenditures and Enrollment from the Prior Year at the school level are 
calculated by the Data Warehouse team and displayed on the School Finances page of the School 
Environment tab of the School Report Card. 

• Values Displayed by Fiscal Year on School Finances – District Environment tab of the District Report Card 
are as follows:  

o Total District Per-Pupil Expenditure 
o Total Per-Pupil Expenditure by Site 
o Total Federal Per-Pupil Expenditure by Site  
o Total State and Local Per-Pupil Expenditure by Site 
o Total Site-level Per-Pupil Expenditure by Site 
o Total District Centralized Per-Pupil Expenditure by Site  

• Sites can be filtered by School Type. School Type are categorized as Elementary, High, Middle, Charter, 
Preschool, and Other on the School Finances – District Environment tab of the District Report Card.  

• Values Displayed by Fiscal Year on School Finances – School Environment tab of the School Report Card are 
as follows:  

250

https://www2.ed.gov/documents/essa-act-of-1965.pdf


Page 145 
 

o Total District Per-Pupil Expenditure 
o Total Federal Per-Pupil Expenditure by District 
o Total State and Local Per-Pupil Expenditure by District 
o Total Site-level Per-Pupil Expenditure by District 
o Total District Centralized Per-Pupil Expenditure by District 
o Total Per-Pupil Expenditure for an individual Site 
o Total Federal Per-Pupil Expenditure for an individual Site 
o Total State and Local Per-Pupil Expenditure for an individual Site 
o Total Site-level Per-Pupil Expenditure for an individual Site 
o Total District Centralized Per-Pupil Expenditure for an individual Site 

• District Public Narrative is displayed as District Comments on the School Finances – District Environment 
tab of the District Report Card. Previous years’ District Comments may be viewed using the fiscal year 
drop-down selection menu.  

• School Public Narrative is displayed as School Comments on the School Finances – School Environment tab 
of the School Report Card. Previous years’ School Comments may be viewed using the fiscal year drop-
down selection menu. 

• Sites with No Report Card are designated an asterisk symbol to distinguish them from a normal site with 
Report Card.  

• Public Narrative for Sites with No Report Card are displayed within the Special Comments section on the 
School Finances – District Environment tab of the District Report Card. Previous years’ Special Comments 
may be viewed using the fiscal year drop-down selection menu. 

• Enrollment FTE with associated per-pupil expenditures for Sites with Pre-K call outs are displayed on the 
School Finances – School Environment tab on the School Report Card.  

• Total District Expenditure and Exclusions are displayed on the School Finances – District Environment tab 
of the District Report Card. 

• % of Low Income Students, % of English Learners, and % Students with IEPs by District are metrics supplied 
from other sections of Report Card into the School Finances pages of the Report Card. Variances for these 
metrics are calculated by the Data Warehouse team and displayed side by side along with change in 
District Enrollment and their associated Per-Pupil Expenditures. 

• % of Low Income Students, % of English Learners, and % Students with IEPs by an Individual School are 
metrics supplied from other sections of Report Card into the School Finances pages of the Report Card. 
Variances for these metrics are calculated by the Data Warehouse team and displayed side by side along 
with School Enrollment Variance, and their associated School Per-Pupil Expenditure Variance. 

 
Formula (calculations) 
 Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School Formula 

• ∑(Total Per-Pupil school-level expenses (dollar amount) for each school, funded both federally and state 
and locally combined)  + ∑(Total Per-Pupil centralized expenses (dollar amount) for each school,  funded 
both federally and state and locally combined)] 

 
Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by federal source of funds Formula 

• ∑(Total Per-Pupil school-level expenses (dollar amount) for each school, funded by federal source)  + ∑ 
(Total Per-Pupil centralized expenses (dollar amount) for each school,  funded by federal source) 

 
Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by state and local source of funds Formula 

251



Page 146 
 

• ∑(Total Per-Pupil school-level expenses (dollar amount) for each school, funded by state and local source)  
+ ∑ (Total Per-Pupil centralized expenses (dollar amount) for each school,  funded by state and local 
source) 

 
Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by school – level expenses Formula 

• ∑(Total Per-Pupil school-level expenses (dollar amount) for each school, funded by federal source)  + 
∑(Total Per-Pupil school-level expenses (dollar amount) for each school, funded by state and local source 
combined) 

 
Per-Pupil Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by district centralized expenses Formula 

• ∑ (Total Per-Pupil district centralized expenses (dollar amount spent for district centralized services serving 
each school) for each school, funded by federal source of funds) +∑ (Total Per-Pupil district centralized 
expenses (dollar amount spent for district centralized services serving each school) for each school, funded 
by state and local source of funds combined) 

 
Per-Pupil School-Level Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by federal source of funds Formula 

• N/A – LEAs submit weighted average per-pupil expenditures through the SBER system.  ISBE displays the 
per-pupil expenditure amount submitted. 

 
 
 
 
Per-Pupil School-Level Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by state and local source of funds 
Formula 

• N/A – LEAs submit weighted average per-pupil expenditures through the SBER system.  ISBE displays the 
per-pupil expenditure amount submitted. 

 
Per-Pupil LEA Centralized Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by federal source of funds Formula 

• N/A – LEAs submit weighted average per-pupil expenditures through the SBER system.  ISBE displays the 
per-pupil expenditure amount submitted. 

 
Per-Pupil LEA Centralized Expenditures for each School, disaggregated by state and local source of funds 
Formula 

• N/A – LEAs submit weighted average per-pupil expenditures through the SBER system.  ISBE displays the 
per-pupil expenditure amount submitted. 

 
Site Type 

• Site Name and RCDTS codes are received from the SBER system.  

• Default Sites are displayed on the district Report Card and will have separate school Report Cards. 

• Separate LEA Outplacement reporting site is displayed as a “site” on the district Report Card but will not 
have a separate school Report Card. 

• Deactivated Placements reporting site is displayed as a “site” on the district Report Card but will not have 
a separate school Report Card. 

 
Site Detail Type 

• Site Name and RCDTS codes are received from the SBER system.  

252



Page 147 
 

• Total weighted average of non-pre-K (“NP”) and pre-K (“PK”) expenses combined is displayed as a single 
site on the District Report Card and School Report Card.  

(Σ Non − Pre − K i = Pre − k ((Enrollment) ∗ (Per − Pupil Expenses)))

Σ Non − Pre − K i − Pre − K (Enrollment)

= Total Per − Pupil Expenses for a site with embedded PreK Classroom  

• Pre-K expenditures and enrollments will be marked in the School-Level Public Narrative section on the IL 
Interactive Report Card. 

 
School-Level Public Narrative (optional) Formula 

• N/A – LEAs submit optional narrative through the SBER system. ISBE displays the narrative if provided. 
 
LEA-Level Public Narrative (optional) Formula 

• N/A – LEAs submit optional narrative through the SBER system. ISBE displays the narrative if provided. 
 
LEA Average Per-Pupil Expenditures Formula 

•  (∑i=1 to n (average per pupil for the school)i (school enrollment)i ) ÷ (Total LEA Enrollment)  
o where, “variable i” includes average per-pupil expenditure of all reporting sites (i.e., the average 

per-pupil expenditure of PK centers, alternative schools, or outplacements are included within this 
calculation).  

o Total LEA Enrollment for this calculation will include proportional student enrollments of all 
reporting sites including PK centers, alternative schools, or outplacements.    

 
Total LEA Expenditures Formula 

• ((LEA Average Per-Pupil Expenditures) * ∑ (Total LEA Enrollment)) + ∑(Total Exclusions) 
 
LEA Enrollment Formula 

• N/A – LEAs submit enrollment counts through the SBER system according to the guidance provided by 
ISBE. ISBE displays the enrollment count submitted. 

 
Enrollment for Each School Formula 

• N/A – LEAs submit enrollment counts through the SBER system according to the guidance provided by 
ISBE. ISBE displays the enrollment count submitted. 

 
LEA Average Per-Pupil Expenditure Variance Formula  

• ((Current Year LEA Average Per-Pupil Expenditures) – (Previous Year LEA Average Per-Pupil Expenditures)) 
÷ Previous Year LEA Average Per-Pupil Expenditures 

• This calculation is performed by the Data Warehouse team. 
 
LEA Enrollment Variance Formula 

• ((Current Year LEA Enrollment) – (Previous Year LEA Enrollment)) ÷ Previous Year LEA Enrollment 

• This calculation is performed by the Data Warehouse team. 
 
School Per-Pupil Expenditure Variance Formula  

• ((Current Year Per-Pupil Expenditures by School) – (Previous Year Per-Pupil Expenditures for the same 
school)) ÷ Previous Year Per-Pupil Expenditures for the same school 

• This calculation is performed by the Data Warehouse team. 

253

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ISBE-Site-Based-Expenditure-Reporting-Guidance.pdf
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/ISBE-Site-Based-Expenditure-Reporting-Guidance.pdf


Page 148 
 

• Variance calculations are ignored if Previous Year Per-Pupil Expenditures for an individual school is $0.   
 
School Enrollment Variance Formula 

• ((Current Year Enrollment by School) – (Previous Year Enrollment for the same school)) ÷ Previous Year 
Enrollment for the same school 

• This calculation is performed by the Data Warehouse team. 
 
Variance calculations are ignored if Previous Year Enrollment for an individual school is 0 FTE. 
 
Sources of Data 
Site-Based Expenditures Reporting (SBER) System, Student Information System (SIS), and  
Student Information System (SIS) Student Enrollment 
 
  

254



Page 149 
 

 

Feeder Schools 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

255



Page 150 
 

Feeder Schools 
Definition 
A “Feeder School” is defined as a school from which a majority of students progress to a high-level educational 
school. For example, middle schools are feeder schools for high schools. A school is considered a feeder school 
if 50 percent or more of the students in the terminating grade attend a single school the following year. For 
example, a middle school where 78 percent of the eighth-grade students attend the same high school would 
be a feeder school of that high school. 
 

Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 

Business Rules 

• Students are included in the Feeder School calculation if:  
o The student has a valid enrollment record in the current school year and the previous school year.  
o The grade level for the student’s previous school year enrollment is at least one year behind the 

student’s grade level in the current school year.  
o The grade level for the student’s previous school year enrollment must equal the maximum grade 

level (based on serving school enrollment) served at the school for which the student was enrolled 
in the previous school year.  

▪ E.g. only 8th graders at a K-8 or 7-8 school, only 5th graders at a K-5 or 3-5 school, etc.  
o The grade level for the student’s current school year enrollment must equal the minimum grade 

served at the school for which the student is enrolled in the current school year.  
▪ E.g. only 9th graders at a 9-12 school  

• All students that meet the criteria are grouped by Serving School for the previous school year. This is the 
“Feeder School Enrollment” for a school.  

o Only consider a grade of a school if that grade has at least 15 “Feeder School Enrollments” in the 
previous school year. 

o Example:   
▪ School A has 100 qualifying 8th graders in previous school year  
▪ School B has 80 qualifying 8th graders in previous school year  
▪ School C has 50 qualifying 8th graders in previous school year  

• All students in each group are then grouped by Serving School for the current school year. This is the 
“Receiving School Enrollment by Feeder School”.  

o Example:   
▪ School A in previous school year had 60 qualifying 9th graders attending High School X in 

current school year  
▪ School B in previous school year had 30 qualifying 9th graders attending High School X in 

current school year  
▪ School C in previous school year had 26 qualifying 9th graders attending High School Y in 

current school year  

• The Feeder School percentage is then calculated as:  
o (Receiving School Enrollment by Feeder School ÷ Feeder School Enrollment) × 100  

• If the Feeder School percentage >= 50% then the school indicated in the denominator (previous year 
school) is flagged as a “feeder school” for the current year school.  

o Example:   

256



Page 151 
 

▪ School A had 60 of 100 8th grade students in previous school year enroll in High School X in 
current school year.  60/100*100 = 60%.  School A is a feeder school for High School X.  

▪ School B had 30 of 80 8th grade students in previous school year enroll in High School X in 
current school year.  30/80*100 = 37.5%.  School B is NOT a feeder school for High School 
X.  

▪ School C had 26 of 50 8th grade students in previous school year enroll in High School Y in 
current school year.  26/50*100 = 52%.  School C is a feeder school for High School Y.  

• NOTE: Not every school will be considered a feeder school.    
o For example  

▪ School D has 200 8th graders in the previous year  
▪ 80 of those enroll in High School X in the current school year  
▪ 70 of those enroll in High School Y in the current school year  
▪ 50 of those enroll in High School Z in the current school year  
▪ 80/200*100 = 40%.  School D is NOT a feeder school for High School X  
▪ 70/200*100 = 35%.  School D is NOT a feeder school for High School Y  
▪ 50/200*100 = 25%.  School D is NOT a feeder school for High School Z  

• SIS Student records are matched longitudinally such that information from the current school year is linked 
in a record with information from the students’ previous school year. 

• Information included in the record are as follows:  
o A unique identifier  
o Student grade in current year  
o Student grade in previous year  
o Student’s serving school in current year  
o Student’s serving school in previous year  

• Only student records for the students’ fall enrollment are included.  
o Only students who are enrolled at a single school for at least 50% of the day (enrollment FTE of 0.5 

or greater) should be a part of the calculation  

• Only student records where the student’s grade in the previous year is equal to the maximum grade 
served at the school are included in the calculation.   

o E.g. only 8th graders at a K-8 or 7-8 school, only 5th graders at a K-5 or 3-5 school, etc.)  

• Only student records where the student’s grade in the previous year is at least one grade behind the 
student’s grade in the current year i.e. no retained students.  

• Records that only have data for either the current year or the previous year are not included.  

• Records are grouped by serving school for the previous year. The number of records in this group can be 
considered the “Feeder Calculation Enrollment” for a school.  

• The records within each group are summarized by the current year serving school.   

• The sum of each record per current year serving school is calculated as a percent of the Feeder Calculation 
Enrollment as such:  

o (Sum of Current School Year Records ÷ Feeder School Enrollment) × 100  

• If the Percent of Current School Year >= 50% then the school indicated in the denominator (previous year 
school) is flagged as a “feeder” for the current year school.  

 

Formula (calculations) 
N/A 
 

Sources of Data 
N/A 

257



Page 152 
 

 

Student Enrollment  

SY 2023 

Students 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

258



Page 153 
 

Student Enrollment 
Definition 
Student Enrollment is the total student enrollment in the school and district as of October 1st of 
the current school year. District level enrollment includes students attending a school in the district and 
students placed in private schools by the district and funded by the district. 
 
The Student Enrollment excludes:  

• Students given vouchers to attend private schools  

• Students placed by their parents in private schools whose tuition is paid for by their parents, but who 
receive special education services from their home district  

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 13/15  
Federal Statute/Guidance:  Definitions for New Race and Ethnicity Categories  
EDFacts FS052 Membership Reporting Guidelines: https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/sy-19-20-
nonxml.html 
 
Business Rules 

• Student Enrollment is the distinct count of students and their associated demographic characteristics 
aggregated at the school, district, and state level.  

• Each student is mapped to a single enrollment.  

• The data will be compiled from the ISBE approved Fall Enrollment snapshot.   
o The 2023 Fall Enrollment snapshot is an exact copy of the SIS student demographic and enrollment 

tables.   

• Include Grades Pre-Kindergarten through 12th Grade.  Exclude “Evaluation” and “Birth to Three.”  

• The enrollment counts will be based on the serving school.    

• Excludes students marked as “Private School Student” in SIS. 

• The enrollment must be an active enrollment.   

• The student must be enrolled on October 1st of the school year.  
o The enrollment begin date must be on or before October 1st.   
o The enrollment end date must be on or after October 1st.   
o Because the snapshot is taken during the school year many of the enrollments do not have an end 

date. These are all included.   

• Only students that have at least 50% percent day attended (PDA) should be included in the school, district, 
or state level counts.   

o If the student has active multiple enrollments on October 1st, the student is included if the total 
PDA > 0.50. 

• For students that have two active enrollments on October 1st where the PDA on 
both enrollments are equal to 50% the enrollment meeting the school that is credited with the enrollment 
will be:   

o If the home school is one of the schools OR ELSE,   
o the enrollment with the earlier enrollment date.   
o The warehouse applies this logic to all enrollments and flags the enrollment that meets these 

conditions by setting the column FEEnrollment = 1.   

• Students are reported in the grade they are enrolled in on October 1st.   

259

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500130K15
https://nces.ed.gov/ipeds/report-your-data/race-ethnicity-definitions
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/sy-19-20-nonxml.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/sy-19-20-nonxml.html


Page 154 
 

• For school level counts, include only serving schools that received a Report Card. For district level counts, 
include all students served in a district.  

• For school and district level counts, if a student has a serving school of Category 9 - Vocational 
Districts/Schools, then count them in their home school (school level counts) or home district (district level 
counts).  

• All students, except private school students, should be counted at the state level. 

• The demographics come exclusively from the student demographic record as of the date of when the fall 
enrollment snapshot is taken that is associated with the student unless otherwise documented.  

o Exception: The IEP flag checks the Pupil count snapshot from ISTAR. 

• “Student Enrollment” Total Count is defined as the Number of Students enrolled for a defined entity.  

• “Student Enrollment” Grade Level Count is defined as the Number of Students enrolled who belong to 
each grade level between Pre-K and 12 for a defined entity.  

• “Student Enrollment” Grade Level Percentage is defined as the Percentage of Students enrolled who 
belong to each grade level between Pre-K and 12 relative to the total enrollment of the entity in question.  

• The percentage of students belonging to a particular demographic group is calculated by dividing the 
student count by demographic group by the total entity enrollment and multiplying the resulting quotient 
by 100.  

• “Student Enrollment” is disaggregated by the following demographic groups:  
o All Students 
o Gender 
o Grade Levels 
o Race  
o Children with Disabilities (CWD)  
o Students with IEPs 
o English Learner  
o Low Income  
o Homeless  
o Migrant 
o Youth In Care 
o Military 

 
Formula (calculations) 
Student Enrollment Total Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Gender Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by gender by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Gender Percent 

• ((Gender enrollment count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment count by Entity)) × 100  

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%)   

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Grade Level Count 

260



Page 155 
 

• Sum of the student enrollment by count at each grade level by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Grade Level Percent 

• ((Grade Level Enrollment Count) ÷ (Enrollment Count by Entity)) × 100  

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 75.1%)  

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Racial/Ethnic Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by each race/ethnicity by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Racial/Ethnic Percent 

• ((Racial/Ethnic Enrollment Count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment Count by Entity)) × 100  

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 75.1%)  

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Low Income Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by low income by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Low Income Percent 

• ((Low-income Enrollment Count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment Count by Entity)) × 100  

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 75.1%)  

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Homeless Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by homeless by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Homeless Percent 

• ((Homeless Enrollment Count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment Count by Entity)) × 100  

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%)  

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment English Learner Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by English Learner by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment English Learner Percent 

• ((English Learner Enrollment Count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment Count by Entity)) × 100  

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%)  

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Children with Disabilities Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by children with disabilities by entity 

261



Page 156 
 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Children with Disabilities Percent 

• ((IEP students + 504 students by Entity) ÷ (Fall Enrollment count by Entity)) × 100  

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%)  

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment IEP Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by IEP by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment IEP Percent 

• ((IEP enrollment count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment count by Entity)) × 100 

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%) 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Migrant Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by migrant by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Migrant Percent 

• ((Migrant enrollment count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment count by Entity)) × 100 

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%) 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Youth In Care Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by youth in care by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Youth In Care Percent 

• ((Youth in care enrollment count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment count by Entity)) × 100 

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%) 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Military Count 

• Sum of the student enrollment count by military by entity 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Student Enrollment Military Percent 

• ((Military enrollment count by Entity) ÷ (Enrollment count by Entity)) × 100 

• Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%) 

• All counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) Enrollments 
  

262



Page 157 
 

 

English Learners  

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

263



Page 158 
 

English Learners (EL) 
Definition 
English learners (EL) are students who have been identified through a screening process as eligible for bilingual 
education and/or English as a second language (ESL) services, and who have not yet reached English 
proficiency, as measured by ACCESS for ELLs.  
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/Art. 14C  
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code  105 ILCS 5/1A-4E 

Federal Statute/Guidance: USDE Office of Civil Rights  
 
Business Rules 

• Annually, EL students are tested for English language proficiency by means of an ACCESS test.  

• Students remain ELs until they achieve a proficient overall composite score of 4.8 on the ACCESS test.  

• EL students additionally have an EL record.  

• The ALL EL student group is also the EL Student Group.  

• Include students from Kindergarten to 12th grade.  
o Identified Pre-K EL students participate in EL programs but they are excluded.  

• “English Learner Students” are indicated with an indicator in the Student Demographic record that is 
maintained by SIS.  

• “EL Exit Rate” is the number of students that achieved an Overall Composite performance score greater 
than or equal to 4.8 divided by the number of EL students that have a valid score. 

• “Number EL Students to take ACCESS” is the count of EL students that have a valid score, have a partial 
score, or should have tested.  

o A “valid score” is an Overall composite score greater than or equal to 100 and less than or equal 
to 600.   

▪ This means having results for all four domains by satisfying the attemptedness criteria for 
each of them.  These results would include, at least, a scale score and proficiency level. 

o A “partial score” is a student without an Overall composite score, but has a score in at least one of 
the 4 domains  

▪ Code 18 should be applied to these records  
o “Should have tested” includes all students with a code of 10, 15, or 19  

▪ 10 = Absent from Testing  
▪ 15 = Refusal but Present to Test  
▪ 19 = Reserved for Internal Use  

• “ACCESS Participation Rate” is the number of EL students with either a valid score or a partial score divided 
by the sum of valid scores plus partial scores plus should have tested.  

o Note for ACCESS Participation Denominator 
▪ If multiple records exist with the same enrollment ID but there is no score for either 

enrollment record, we will select a distinct record for the participation denominator 

▪ If multiple records exist with the same enrollment ID with a complete score but no score 

record, we will select the enrollment record with score for participation denominator 

• “ACCESS Performance Levels” is the number of students by overall composite performance level.  
o Composite performance levels range from 1.0 to 6.0.  

▪ Use the composite performance score to map students to a performance level.  

• Level 1 is a score from 1.0 to 1.9  

264

http://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+14C&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=121800000&SeqEnd=123300000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/documents/010500050K1A-4.htm
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-el-201501.pdf


Page 159 
 

• Level 2 is a score from 2.0 to 2.9  

• Level 3 is a score from 3.0 to 3.9  

• Level 4 is a score from 4.0 to 4.9  

• Level 5 is a score from 5.0 to 5.9  

• Level 6 is a score of 6.0  

• “Long Term EL” is the count of students who have been in an EL program for more than 7 years who have 
not already reached proficiency, excluding kindergarten.  

o This is the count of students who are EL in the reporting year, are not proficient in the reporting 
year and whose first EL record was before the school year - 6.  

o Count them long term even if they were not tested during the reporting year.  
o Use the last enrollment for the year to determine responsible school, district and if they are 

reported at the state level.  

• Transition Status 
o Disaggregated by Chicago (CPS) 299 and Rest of the State (Non-CPS) 
o This metric will be reported based on the following: 

▪ “Transitioned” 

• English Learners who attained English language proficiency as defined by the state (a 
4.8 Overall Composite Proficiency Level on the ACCESS for ELLs measure). These 
students are now prepared to be transitioned\integrated into general education 
classes.  

▪ “Not Transitioned” 

• English Learners who did not transition out of the program were promoted to the 
next grade, retained in the same grade, graduated, transferred, dropped out, or 
another outcome.  

• Outcome Status 
o Disaggregated by Chicago (CPS) 299 and Rest of the State (Non-CPS)) 
o This metric will be reported based on the following: 

▪ “Promoted” to next grade or “Otherwise Retained” 

• Promoted is SIS Exit Code 05 

• Retained is SIS Exit Code 12 
▪ “Transferred” 

• Includes students transferred to another district (SIS Exit Code 02), home schooled 
(SIS Exit Code 03), private schooled (SIS Exit Code 04), moved out of the United 
States (SIS Exit Code 18), transfer to another public school district out of Illinois (SIS 
Exit Code 19), transfer to another public school district in Illinois (SIS Exit Code 20). 

▪ “Graduated” 

• SIS Exit Code 06 
▪ “Dropped Out” 

• Includes students who dropped out (SIS Exit Code 09) or transferred to a GED 
program (SIS Exit Code 10), or moved not known to be continuing (SIS Exit Code 11). 

▪ “Other Outcomes” 

• Include death (SIS Exit Code 07), expulsion (SIS Exit Code 08), age out (SIS Exit Code 
14), the certificate of completion (SIS Exit Code 15), victim of a violent crime (SIS Exit 
Code 16), change in serving school or percent of day attended (SIS Exit Code 17). 

 
 

265



Page 160 
 

Formula (calculations) 
Percentage of English Learners in Fall Enrollment Formula 

• (∑(Total # of English Learner Students) ÷ ∑(Total # of students in Fall Enrollment)) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
English Learner Exit Rate Formula 

• (∑(Total # of students that achieved an Overall Composite performance score greater than or equal to 
4.8) ÷ ∑(Number of EL students that have a valid score)) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
ACCESS Participation Rate Formula 

• (∑(Number of EL students with either a valid score or a partial score) ÷ ∑(Number EL Students to take 
ACCESS)) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
ACCESS Performance Levels Formula 

• (∑(Total # of ACCESS participants at a specific performance level) ÷ ∑(Total # of English Learner 
Students with a valid score)) × 100  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Long Term ELs Formula 

• ∑(Total # of English Learner Students who have been EL for more than 7 years excluding KG )  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Transition Status 

• Transitioned: 
o Count of EL Students that achieved a 4.8 Overall Composite Proficiency Level on the ACCESS 
o At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 

• Not Transitioned: 
o Count of EL Students that did not achieve the established Composite Score and did not transition 

out of the program 
o At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 

 
Outcome Status 

• Promoted/Otherwise Retained: 
o Count of EL students that took ACCESS testing with a SIS Exit Enrollment Code 05 (Promoted to next 

grade) or 12 (Otherwise Retained) 
o At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 

• Transferred: 
o Count of EL students that took ACCESS testing with a SIS Exit Enrollment Code 02 (transferred to 

another district), 03 (home schooled), 04 (private schooled), 18 (moved out of the United States, 19 
(transfer to another public school district out of Illinois), 20 (transfer to another public school 
district in Illinois) 

o At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 

• Graduated: 
o Count of EL students that took ACCESS testing with a SIS Exit Enrollment Code 06 (Graduated) 

266



Page 161 
 

o At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 

• Dropped Out: 
o Count of EL students that took ACCESS testing with a SIS Exit Enrollment Code 09 (dropped out), 10 

(transferred to a GED program), or 11 (moved not known to be continuing) 
o At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 

• Other Outcome: 
o Count of EL students that took ACCESS testing with a SIS Exit Enrollment Code 07 (death), 08 

(expulsion), 14 (age out), 15 (certificate of completion), 16 (victim of a violent crime), or 17 (change 
in serving school or percent of day attended 

o At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Student Information System (SIS) Student Enrollment  
ACCESS Assessment 
WIDA/DRC  

267



Page 162 
 

 

Advanced Academic Program  

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

268



Page 163 
 

Advanced Academic Program 
Definition 
Advanced Academic Program is defined as a course of study to which students are assigned based on 
advanced cognitive ability or advanced academic achievement compared to local age peers and in which the 
curriculum is substantially differentiated from the general curriculum to provide appropriate challenge and 
pace. 
 
Gifted Education is defined as educational services, including differentiated curricula and instructional 
methods, designed to meet the needs of gifted children as defined in Article 14A of this code. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a (2) (A); 105 ILCS 5/10-17a (2) (E) 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A  
 
Business Rules 

• The number and percentage of all students who have been assessed for placement in a gifted education or 
advanced academic program and, of those students: (i) the racial and ethnic breakdown, (ii) the 
percentage who are classified as low-income, and (iii) the number and percentage of students who 
received direct instruction from a teacher who holds a gifted education endorsement and, of those 
students, the percentage who are classified as low-income. 

• Advanced Academic Program 
o Students who have been assessed for placement in an Advanced Academic Program 

▪ Number of students who are enrolled in Accelerated Placement 

• The number of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been enrolled in 
Accelerated Placement is the sum of the students containing a code of ‘01’ (Student 
is accelerated for ELA Only) and ‘02’ (Student is accelerated for Math Only) and ‘03’ 
(Student is accelerated for Single Subject other than ELA or Math) and ‘04’ (Student 
is accelerated for Multiple Subjects, but not Whole Grade) and ‘05’ (Whole Grade 
Acceleration) 

▪ Number of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Math Only 

• The number of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been enrolled in 
Accelerated Placement Math Only is the sum of the students containing a code of 
‘02’ (Student is accelerated for Math Only) 

▪ Number of students who are in an Accelerated Placement ELA Only 

• The number of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been enrolled in 
Accelerated Placement ELA Only is the sum of the students containing a code of ‘01’ 
(Student is accelerated for ELA Only) 

▪ Number of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Multiple Subjects Only 

• The number of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been enrolled in 
Accelerated Placement Multiple Subjects Only is the sum of the students containing 
a code of ‘04’ (Student is accelerated for Multiple Subjects, but not Whole Grade) 

▪ Number of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Whole Grade Only 

• The number of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been enrolled in 
Accelerated Placement Whole Grade Only is the sum of the students containing a 
code of ‘05’ (Whole Grade Acceleration) 

▪ Number of students who are enrolled in Advanced Placement Coursework 

269

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K10-17a
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K10-17a


Page 164 
 

• The number of all high school students from the year-end enrollment who have 
been enrolled in Advanced Placement coursework is the sum of the students 
enrolled in a course denoted as being an AP course in the course catalog 

▪ Number of students who are enrolled in IB Coursework 

• The number of all high school students from the year-end enrollment who have 
been enrolled in IB coursework is the sum of the students enrolled in a course 
denoted as being an IB course in the course catalog 

▪ Number of students who are enrolled in any course designated as Enriched or Honors 

• The number of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been enrolled in 
any course designated as Enriched or Honors is the sum of the students enrolled in a 
course with a course level code of ’03 (Enriched) or ‘04’ (Honors) 

▪ Number of students who are enrolled in any dual-credit course where college credit could 

be earned 

• The number of all high school students from the year-end enrollment who have 
been enrolled in any dual-credit course where college credit could be earned is the 
sum of the students who has a dual-credit course code of ‘yes’  

▪ Percentage of students who are enrolled in Accelerated Placement 

• The percentage of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been 
enrolled in Accelerated Placement is the sum of the students containing a code of 
‘01’ (Student is accelerated for ELA Only) and ‘02’ (Student is accelerated for Math 
Only) and ‘03’ (Student is accelerated for Single Subject other than ELA or Math) and 
‘04’ (Student is accelerated for Multiple Subjects, but not Whole Grade) and ‘05’ 
(Whole Grade Acceleration) divided by the total year-end enrollment count that is 
tied to the home school 

▪ Percentage of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Math Only 

• The percentage of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been 
enrolled in Accelerated Placement Math Only is the sum of the students containing a 
code of ‘02’ (Student is accelerated for Math Only) divided by the total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school 

▪ Percentage of students who are in an Accelerated Placement ELA Only 

• The percentage of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been 
enrolled in Accelerated Placement ELA Only is the sum of the students containing a 
code of ‘01’ (Student is accelerated for ELA Only) divided by the total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school 

▪ Percentage of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Multiple Subjects Only 

• The percentage of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been 
enrolled in Accelerated Placement Multiple Subjects Only is the sum of the students 
containing a code of ‘04’ (Student is accelerated for Multiple Subjects, but not 
Whole Grade) divided by the total year-end enrollment count that is tied to the 
home school 

▪ Percentage of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Whole Grade Only 

• The percentage of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been 
enrolled in Accelerated Placement Whole Grade Only is the sum of the students 
containing a code of ‘05’ (Whole Grade Acceleration) divided by the total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school 

▪ Percentage of students who are enrolled in Advanced Placement Coursework 

270



Page 165 
 

• The percentage of all high school students from the year-end enrollment who have 
been enrolled in Advanced Placement coursework is the sum of the students 
enrolled in a course denoted as being an AP course in the course catalog divided by 
the total year-end enrollment count that is tied to the home school 

▪ Percentage of students who are enrolled in IB Coursework 

• The percentage of all high school students from the year-end enrollment who have 
been enrolled in IB coursework is the sum of the students enrolled in a course 
denoted as being an IB course in the course catalog divided by the total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school 

▪ Percentage of students who are enrolled in any course designated as Enriched or Honors 

• The percentage of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been 
enrolled in any course designated as Enriched or Honors is the sum of the students 
enrolled in a course with a course level code of ’03’ (Enriched) or ‘04’ (Honors) 
divided by the total year-end enrollment count that is tied to the home school 

▪ Percentage of students who are enrolled in any dual-credit course where college credit 

could be earned 

• The percentage of all high school students from the year-end enrollment who have 
been enrolled in any dual-credit course where college credit could be earned is the 
sum of the students who has a dual-credit course code of ‘yes’ and the student 
earned college credit divided by the total year-end enrollment count that is tied to 
the home school 

• Accelerated Placement 
o There should only be one accelerated record per student, per district, per school year 
o A student may have multiple entries 
o If there are multiple entries within the same district and enrollment exist for a student, the last 

entry (most recent entry) will be used to determine accelerated 
o If there is a student reported, but there is no valid enrollment for that student at the district for the 

school year, then the student is not counted for that district 
o The accelerated student will be counted at the responsible school of the student’s last enrollment 

within the district 
o Student Total will be calculated for the School, District, and State for the following: 

▪ Gender 
▪ Race 
▪ Program (IEP, LEP, Low Income) 
▪ Early Kindergarten, Early First Grade 
▪ Acceleration Type (Math Only, ELA Only, Multiple Subject, Whole Grade) 

• Gifted 
o This information is self-reported where districts define both the criteria for “giftedness” and the 

assessments used to measure it. 
o In the case where a student has no gifted record for the current year, but has records from a 

previous year, the most recent entry from a previous year will be used to determine gifted status. 
o For each student, there should only be one gifted record per student, per district, per school year  

o An individual record may have multiple entries. If multiple entries within the same record exist for 

a student, the last entry (most recent entry) will be used to determine gifted status  

o If there is a student id in the gifted data, but there is no valid enrollment for that student at the 

district for the school year, then the student is not counted as gifted  

271



Page 166 
 

o The gifted (assessed and identified) student will be counted at the responsible school of the 

student’s last enrollment within the district  

o Number of Students Assessed for Giftedness 

▪ The number of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been assessed for 
placement in a gifted education or advanced academic program is the sum of the students 
containing a code of ‘01’ (Student tested as gifted) and ‘02’ (student tested as not gifted) 

o Percent of Students Assessed for Giftedness 

▪ The percentage of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been assessed for 
placement in a gifted education or advanced academic program is the sum of the students 
containing a code of ‘01’ (Student tested as gifted) and ‘02’ (student tested as not gifted) 
divided by the total year-end enrollment count that is tied to the home school 

o Number of Students Identified as Gifted 

▪ The number of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been assessed for 
placement in a gifted education or advanced academic program is the sum of the students 
containing a code of ‘01’ (Student tested as gifted) 

o Percent of Students Identified as Gifted 

▪ The percentage of all students from the year-end enrollment who have been assessed for 
placement in a gifted education or advanced academic program is the sum of the students 
containing a code of ‘01’ (Student tested as gifted) divided by the total year-end enrollment 
count that is tied to the home school 

o Number of Students Assessed for Giftedness Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teachers 
▪ Any student from the year-end enrollment who is “assessed as gifted” (e.g. code ‘01’ or ’02) 

and the students classroom teacher or core teacher has a gifted endorsement (e.g. GIF or 
GIFS), then the student will be flagged as ‘student assessed as gifted student taught by 
gifted-endorsed teacher’ 

o Percent of Students Assessed for Giftedness Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teachers 
▪ Any student from the year-end enrollment who is “assessed as gifted” (e.g. code ‘01’ or ’02) 

and the students classroom teacher or core teacher has a gifted endorsement (e.g. GIF or 
GIFS), then the student will be flagged as ‘student assessed as gifted student taught by 
gifted-endorsed teacher’ divided by the total number of students assessed for giftedness 

o Number of Students Identified as Gifted Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teachers 
▪ Any student from the year-end enrollment who is “identified as gifted” (e.g. code ‘01’) and 

the students classroom teacher or core teacher has a gifted endorsement (e.g. GIF or GIFS), 
then the student will be flagged as ‘student identified as gifted student taught by gifted-
endorsed teacher’ 

o Percent of Students Identified as Gifted Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teachers 
▪ Any student from the year-end enrollment who is “identified as gifted” (e.g. code ‘01’) and 

the students classroom teacher or core teacher has a gifted endorsement (e.g. GIF or GIFS), 
then the student will be flagged as ‘student identified as gifted student taught by gifted-
endorsed teacher’ divided by the total number of students identified as gifted 

 
Formula (calculations) 
Number of students who are enrolled in Accelerated Placement 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’, ‘02’, ‘03’, ‘04’, and ‘05’ 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 

272



Page 167 
 

Number of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Math Only 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘02’ 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of students who are in an Accelerated Placement ELA Only 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’ 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Multiple Subjects Only 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘04’ 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Whole Grade Only 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘05’ 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of students who are enrolled in Advanced Placement course 

• Sum of the high school students from the year-end enrollment enrolled in a course denoted as being an AP 
course in the course catalog 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of students who are enrolled in IB Coursework 

• Sum of the high school students from the year-end enrollment enrolled in a course denoted as being an IB 
course in the course catalog 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of students who are enrolled in any course designated as Enriched or Honors 

• Sum of the students from the year-end enrollment enrolled in a course with a course level code of ’03 
(Enriched) or ‘04’ (Honors) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of students who are enrolled in any dual-credit course where college credit could be earned 

• Sum of the high school students from the year-end enrollment who has a dual-credit course code of ‘yes’ 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percentage of students who are enrolled in Accelerated Placement 

• (Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’, ‘02’, ‘03’, ‘04’, and ‘05’) ÷ (The 
total year-end enrollment count that is tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percentage of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Math Only 

• (Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘02’) ÷ (The total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 

273



Page 168 
 

Percentage of students who are in an Accelerated Placement ELA Only 

• (Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’) ÷ (The total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percentage of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Multiple Subjects Only 

• (Sum of all students containing a code of ‘04’) ÷ (The total year-end enrollment count that is tied to the 
home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percentage of students who are in an Accelerated Placement Whole Grade Only 

• (Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘05’) ÷ (The total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percentage of students who are enrolled in Advanced Placement Coursework 

• (Sum of the high school students from the year-end enrollment enrolled in a course denoted as being an 
AP course in the course catalog) ÷ (The total high school students from the year-end enrollment count that 
is tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percentage of students who are enrolled in IB Coursework 

• (Sum of the high school students from the year-end enrollment enrolled in a course denoted as being an IB 
course in the course catalog) ÷ (The total high school students from the year-end enrollment count that is 
tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percentage of students who are enrolled in any course designated as Enriched or Honors 

• (Sum of the students from the year-end enrollment enrolled in a course with a course level code of ’03’ or 
‘04’) ÷ (The total year-end enrollment count that is tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percentage of students who are enrolled in any dual-credit course where college credit could be earned 

• (Sum of the high school students from the year-end enrollment who has a dual-credit course code of ‘yes’ 
and the student earned college credit) ÷ (The total high school students from the year-end enrollment 
count that is tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of Students Assessed for Giftedness 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’ and ‘02’ 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Students Assessed for Giftedness 

• (Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’ and ‘02’) ÷ (The total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school) 

274



Page 169 
 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of Students Identified as Gifted 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’ 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Students Identified as Gifted 

• (Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’) ÷ (The total year-end 
enrollment count that is tied to the home school) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of Students Assessed for Giftedness Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teachers 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’ and ‘02’ where the students 
classroom teacher or core teacher has a gifted endorsement (e.g. GIF or GIFS) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Students Assessed for Giftedness Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teachers 

• (Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’ and ‘02’ where the students 
classroom teacher or core teacher has a gifted endorsement (e.g. GIF or GIFS)) ÷ (The total number of 
students assessed for giftedness) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Number of Students Identified as Gifted Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teachers 

• Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’ where the students classroom 
teacher or core teacher has a gifted endorsement (e.g. GIF or GIFS) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Percent of Students Identified as Gifted Taught by Gifted-Endorsed Teachers 

• (Sum of all students from the year-end enrollment containing a code of ‘01’ where the students classroom 
teacher or core teacher has a gifted endorsement (e.g. GIF or GIFS)) ÷ (The total number of students 
identified as gifted) 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
District’s Gifted Assessment and Academic Program Policy (link) 

• N/A – Will be a link to the districts website where their gifted policy is posted 

• This information is collected in EPS 
 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Entity Profile System (EPS) 
 
 
 
  

275



Page 170 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Individualized Education Program (IEP) Students 

SY 2023 

276



Page 171 
 

Individualized Education Program (IEP) Students 
IEP Students are students who were on December 1 identified as having a disability through formal 
evaluations and met specific criteria as stated under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) to be 
eligible for special education and related services by a team of individuals who developed an Individualized 
Education Program (IEP). 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105ILCS 5/2-3.30  
Federal Statute/Guidance: 34CFR 300.641  and FS002 – Children with Disabilities (IDEA) School Age File 
Specifications  
   
Business Rules 

• A student will be considered an IEP student if:  
o Student was enrolled on October 1st in the serving school   
o The student is part of the I-Star Pupil Count (Child Count) snapshot (as of December 1st) 
o The student is not in Fund Code:  

▪ L = Nonpublic Private School  
▪ N = Nonpublic not receiving services  
▪ P = Nonpublic Home Schooled  
▪ U = Public School but not receiving services  

• Refer to the Responsible Entity rules for determining home school/serving school for these metrics  

• The Educational Environment is disaggregated into two groups (EE Group) which are: 

o Early Childhood 

o School Age 

• For all special education rate calculations, the denominator is the total student enrollment in their EE 
group 

• The Education Environment codes are mapped into groups.  

• The Education Environment Code Mapping to Display Groups is:  

Education 
Environment 

Code in I-STAR  

Education Environment  SPP 
Group 

ID  

Group  

School Age EE Group 

1  Inside regular classroom 80% or more 
of day  

1  >=80  

2  Inside regular classroom 40%-79% of 
the day  

2  40 to 79  

3  Inside regular classroom less than 40% 
of the day  

3  <40  

4  Spec Ed 100% in separate public day 
school  

4  SepFacility  

5  Spec Ed 100% public & residential by 
resident dist  

4  SepFacility  

6  Philip J. Rock Center & School (fund 
code H)  

4  SepFacility  

7  Full Time Special Ed in County Jail  4  SepFacility  

277

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/documents/010500050K2-3.30.html
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/f/300.641
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs002-15-0.docx
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs002-15-0.docx


Page 172 
 

8  Private Day School or Out-of-State 
Public Day Program  

4  SepFacility  

9  Private Residential Facility, In-State  4  SepFacility  

10  Private Residential Facility, Out-of-
State  

4  SepFacility  

11  Homebound Instructional Program  4  SepFacility  

12  Hospital Instructional Program  4  SepFacility  

13  Illinois School for the Deaf  4  SepFacility  

14  Illinois School for the Visually Impaired  4  SepFacility  

15  Illinois Center for Rehabilitation & 
Education  

4  SepFacility  

16  Dept of Human Services  4  SepFacility  

Early Childhood EE Group 

23  Early Childhood - Separate Class  6  SepClass_Fac  

24  Early Childhood - Separate School  6  SepClass_Fac  

25  Early Childhood - Residential Facility  6  SepClass_Fac  

26  Early Childhood – Home  7  Home  

27  Early Childhood - Service provider 
location  

9  ServiceProvider  

28  Parentally Placed in Nonpublic Schools 
& Home School  

N/A    

30  Majority of Sp Ed 
& Rel Serv in Reg EC Prg (600+)  

5  InsideECProg  

31  Majority of Sp Ed & Rel Serv in 
other loc (600+)  

8  OutsideECProg  

32  Majority of Sp Ed 
& Rel Serv in Reg EC Prg (<=599)  

5  InsideECProg  

33  Majority of Sp Ed & Rel Serv in 
other loc (<=599)  

8  OutsideECProg  

  

• The Comparison groups are:  
o State  
o Peer District  
o District  
o Note: There is no school level  

• The Peer groups are:  
o Elementary School  
o High School  
o Unit School District  

▪ The Unit School District Peer group excludes Chicago Public School  

• The Educational Environment by Disability chart uses only the more common disability categories.  
o The included disability categories are:  

▪ Autism (O)  
▪ Emotional Disability (K)  
▪ Hearing Impairment (F & G) 
▪ Intellectual Disability (A)  

278



Page 173 
 

▪ Multiple Disabilities (M) 
▪ Other Health Impairment (L)  
▪ Specific Learning Disability (D)  
▪ Speech and/or Language Impairment (I)  
▪ Visual Impairment € 

 
Formula (calculations) 
IEP Student Enrollment Formula 

• (IEP Student Enrollment × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in their EE Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in their EE Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator In Class Room >80 Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator In Class Room >80 × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in their EE 
Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator In Class Room 40 to 79 Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator In Class Room 40 to 79 × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in 
their EE Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator In Class Room <40 Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator In Class Room <40 × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in their EE 
Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Separate Facility Count Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Separate Facility Count × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in 
their EE Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Inside EC Program Count Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Inside EC Program Count × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in 
their EE Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Outside EC Program Count Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Outside EC Program Count × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment 
in their EE Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
 

279



Page 174 
 

I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Separate Class or Facility Count Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Separate Class or Facility Count × 100) ÷ (Total Student 
Enrollment in their EE Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator At Home Count Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator At Home Count × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in their EE 
Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Service Provide Count Formula 

• (I-STAR Educational Environment Indicator Service Provide Count × 100) ÷ (Total Student Enrollment in 
their EE Group)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Sources of Data 
I-STAR Child Count Table 
SIS Enrollment Table 
 
  

280



Page 175 
 

 

Attendance 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

281



Page 176 
 

Attendance 
Definition 
Total School Days is the total attendance days for student instruction for the school year based on the 
information in the public school calendar application.  
 
Student Attendance Rate is a weighted measure of the number of days present relative to the total number of 
potential attendance days.  
 
Chronic Truancy Rate is a measure that identifies the percentage of students that are identified as chronic 
truants. Students are considered chronic truants if they are subject to compulsory school attendance and are 
absent without valid cause, as defined in Section 26-2a of the School Code, from such attendance for 5 
percent or more of the previous 180 regular attendance days.  
 
Chronic Absentee Rate is a measure that identifies the percentage of students that are identified as chronically 
absent. Absences that total 10% or more of school days of the most recent academic school year, including 
absences with and without valid cause, as defined in Section 26-2a of this Code, and out-of-school suspensions 
for an enrolled student.  
 
Truancy Rate is a measure that identifies the percentage of students that are identified as truant. Students are 
considered truant if they are subject to compulsory school attendance and are absent without valid cause, as 
defined under this Section 5/26-2a, from such attendance for more than 1% but less than 5% of the past 180 
school days.  
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/26-18 and 105 ILCS 5/26-2a and 105 ILCS 5/14-13.01 
(Medically homebound receiving services) and 105 ILCS 5/26-3d 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 

• Total School Days 
o Total school days are determined by the school calendar application.  
o Total school days consist of the total school calendar days as indicated by the chart below in the 

“School Calendar Day” column submitted by the district and is assigned to each school in the 
district. 

o The State total school days is equal to the average total school days for each district.  
o The below table comes from the business rules for Calculating District Average Daily Attendance 

(ADA) document and indicates which codes are counted as student school days in the “Student 

Attendance Day” column:  
 

School Calendar Codes 

ID 

School 
Calendar 

Code School Calendar Code Description 

Student 
Attendance 

Day 

School 
Calendar 

Day 

1 X    Pupil Attendance Day Yes Yes 

2 XHI  Half-Day In-service Yes Yes 

3 XHPT Half-Day Parent/Teacher Conference Yes Yes 

282

http://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K26-2a
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ilga.gov%2Flegislation%2Filcs%2Ffulltext.asp%3FDocName%3D010500050K26-2a&data=05%7C01%7Cdfangmei%40isbe.net%7C87ebc4c9b1804c6e46e108db09306dfd%7C0364fe8649c64af4b52c335a99e577d1%7C0%7C0%7C638113875826179400%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XRCY1zAMhGk%2F45EqUdGIG5GuKrlkUWuwDiEAXKVAbew%3D&reserved=0%22%20/o%20%22https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K26-2a
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/documents/010500050K26-18.htm
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K26-2a
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K14-13.01
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K26-3d


Page 177 
 

4 XID  Interrupted Day Yes Yes 

5 XDS  Delayed Start Day Yes Yes 

6 XHS  Half-Day School Improvement Program Yes Yes 

7 XHSW Half-Day School Improvement Program Waiver Yes Yes 

8 XH   Pupil Attendance Holiday Waiver Yes Yes 

9 XED  Emergency Day-Proposed No No 

10 XHIH Half-Day In-service Holiday Waiver Yes Yes 

11 XHPH Half-Day Parent/Teacher Conf. Holiday Waiver Yes Yes 

12 FI   Full-Day In-service No Yes 

13 FPT  Full-Day Parent/Teacher Conference No Yes 

14 PI   Parent Institute No No 

15 TI   Teacher Institute/Workshop No No 

16 AOG  Act of God Day No Yes 

17 WFI  Full-Day In-service Waiver No Yes 

18 WFPT Full-Day Parent/Teacher Conference Waiver No No 

19 WFS  Full-Day School Improvement Program Waiver No Yes 

20 FIH  Full-Day In-service Holiday Waiver No Yes 

21 FPTH Full-Day Parent/Teacher Conf. Holiday Waiver No No 

22 TIH  Teacher Institute/Workshop Holiday Waiver No No 

23 ED   Emergency Day No No 

24 HOL  Holiday No No 

25 NIA  Not in Attendance No No 

26 WFSH Full-Day School Improvement Holiday Waiver No Yes 

27 XHSH Half-Day School Improvement Holiday Waiver Yes Yes 

28 XHPW Half-Day Parent/Teacher Conference Waiver Yes Yes 

29 XELD ELearning Day Yes Yes 

30 XRLD Remote-Learning Day Yes Yes 

31 RPD  Full-Day Remote Planning Day No Yes 

33 XRPH Half-Day Remote Planning Yes Yes 

34 EDC  Emergency Day COVID  No No 

36 XBRL Blended Remote Learning Day Yes Yes 

  

• Student Attendance Rate 
o Only students in grades K – 12 are counted for student attendance.  
o The student attendance rate is determined by dividing the sum of all student attendance days 

present per school/districts/state by the sum of all attendance days present and non-attendance 
days per school/districts/state and multiplying the resulting quotient by 100.  

o The sum of all student attendance days present is determined by adding together all the “In 
Person”, “ELearning”, “Medically Homebound”, “Remote Learning”, and “Detention Center” per 
student per school/district/state in SIS for grades 1 through 12.  

o Non-attendance days are “days absent – excused,” “days absent – unexcused”, “mental health” 
and “hospitalized”.  

o Total attendance data for all student enrollments at the home school/home district. 
o Do not include private school students 

283



Page 178 
 

o When calculating student attendance for the month of March, the maximum number of student 
attendance days will not exceed 11 

▪ This limitation will only be applied for the purposes of calculating metrics for the 2020 
Report Card 

▪ This limitation will not negatively or positively impact the ADA calculation 
o  If any student’s attendance is greater than 11, we will first reduce the number of days absent.  If 

the student’s attendance is still greater than 11, we will then reduce the number of days present 
until the student’s attendance equals 11. 

• Chronic Truancy Rate 
o Only students in grades 1 – 12 are counted for chronic truancy.  
o Do not include private school students  
o Do not include student enrollments that the Total Days Enrolled multiplied by Percent Day 

Attended (PDA) associated with that enrollment at the home school is less than 21.  
o The chronic truancy rate is determined by dividing the number of chronically truant students per 

school/district/state by the total number of students at the home school and multiplying the 
resulting quotient by 100.  

o A student is “chronically truant” if they missed 5% or more of the time that they were enrolled 
without an excuse.    

▪ For every school/district/state, every student with at least one included enrollment is 
counted. 

▪ Unexcused Absences is calculated by counting the number of attendance days reported as 
“Days Absent – Unexcused” per student.  

▪ The Total Days Enrolled is calculated by counting the number of attendance days associated 
with the student (In Person, ELearning, Remote Learning, Medically homebound, 
Hospitalized, Mental Health, Detention Center and days absent including all absences.).   

▪ If the sum of Unexcused Absences divided by the Total Days Enrolled is greater or equal to 
0.05, then the student is considered chronically truant.  

▪ For students with multiple included enrollments at the same home school, Chronic Truancy 
Rate is calculated with the sum of all Total Days Enrolled and the sum of all Unexcused 
absence for all enrollments at the school.  

• Chronic Absentee Rate 
o Only students in grades K – 12 are counted for chronic absenteeism.  
o Do not include private school students. 
o Do not include student enrollments that the Length of Enrollment multiplied by Percent Day 

Attended (PSA) associated with that enrollment at the home school is less than 10. 
o The chronic absentee rate is determined by dividing the number of chronically absent students per 

school/district/state by the total number of students and multiplying the resulting quotient by 100.  
o A student is “chronically absent” if they missed 10% or more of the school year regardless of 

excuse.    
▪ For every school/district/state, every student with at least one included enrollment of at 

least 11 consecutive school days is counted. 
▪ The combined total number of “days absent – unexcused”, “days absent – excused”, and 

“mental health” per student is divided by that student’s length of enrollment.   
▪ The length of enrollment for chronic absenteeism is calculated by counting the number of In 

Person + Medically Homebound + ELearning + Remote Learning + Blended Remote Learning + 
days absent unexcused + days absent excused + Mental Health + Detention Centers.   

284



Page 179 
 

▪ If the sum of absences divided by the length of enrollment is greater than or equal to 0.10 
then the student is considered chronically absent.  

▪ For students with multiple included enrollments at the same home school, attendance is 
the sum of all days for the schools.   

• Truancy Rate 
o  
o Only students in grades 1– 12 are counted for truancy rate.  
o Do not include private school students  
o Do not include student enrollments that the Total Days Enrolled multiplied by Percent Day 

Attended (PDA) associated with that enrollment at the home school is less than 21.  
o The truancy rate is determined by dividing the number of truant students per school/district/state 

by the total number of students at the home school and multiplying the resulting quotient by 100.  
o A student is “truant” if they missed more than 1% but less than 5% of the time that they were 

enrolled without an excuse.    
▪ For every school/district/state every student with at least one included enrollment at the 

home school is counted.    
▪ Unexcused Absences is calculated by counting the number of attendance days reported as 

“Days Absent – Unexcused” per student. 
▪ The Total Days Enrolled is calculated by counting the number of attendance days associated 

with the student (In Person, ELearning, Remote Learning, Medically homebound, 
Hospitalized, Mental Health, Detention Center, and days absent including all absences.).   

▪ If the sum of Unexcused Absences divided by the Total Days Enrolled is greater than 0.01 
and less than 0.05, then the student is considered truant.  

▪ For students with multiple included enrollments at the same home school, Truancy Rate is 
calculated with the sum of all Total Days Enrolled and the sum of all Unexcused absence for 
the schools.  

  

 
Formula (calculations) 
Total School Days Formula 

• Count of days during the school year which the attendance school code table indicates a value of Yes in the 
‘School Calendar Day’ column. 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Student Attendance Rate Formula 

• ∑ ((In Person + Medically Homebound + ELearning + Remote Learning + Detention Center) × Percent Day of 
Attendance)) ÷ ∑ (In Person + Medically Homebound + ELearning + Remote Learning + Days absent + 
Hospitalized + Mental Health + Detention Center) x Percent Day of Attendance) × 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Chronic Truancy Rate Formula 

• Chronic Truant Student Count is the total of students that are chronically truant if:  
o ∑ (Unexcused Absences × Percent Day of Attendance) ÷ ∑ (Total Days Enrolled × Percent Day of 

Attendance) × 100 is greater or equal to 5. 
o Total Days enrolled include days homebound and hospitalized.  

• Total Student Count is: 

285



Page 180 
 

o ∑ (Students with enrollment at the home school with Total Days Enrolled multiplied by Percent Day 
Attended (PDA) associated with that enrollment at the home school is 21 or greater.) 

• Chronic Truancy Rate is:  
o (Chronic Truant Student Count) ÷ (Total Student Count) × 100  
o Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Chronic Absentee Rate Formula 

• Should never exceed 100%  

• Chronic Absentee Count is the total of students are chronically absent if:  
o ∑ ((Days absent that were excused or unexcused + Mental Health) × Percent Day of 

Attendance) ÷ ∑ (Total Days Enrolled × Percent Day of Attendance) × 100 is equal to or greater than 
10%   

o Total days enrolled exclude days hospitalized.  

• Truant Student Count is:  
o ∑ (Unexcused Absences × Percent Day of Attendance) ÷ ∑ (Total Days Enrolled × Percent Day of 

Attendance) × 100 is greater than 1 and less than 5. 

• Chronic Absentee Rate is:  
o (Chronic Absentee Count) ÷ (Total number of students who have included enrollments at the home 

school) × 100  
o Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 
Truancy Rate Formula  

• Truant Student Count is:  
o ∑ (Unexcused Absences × Percent Day of Attendance) ÷ ∑ (Total Days Enrolled × Percent Day of 

Attendance) × 100 is greater than 1 and less than 5.   
o Total Days enrolled include days homebound and hospitalized.  

• Total Student Count is:  
o ∑ (students with enrollment at the home school with Total Days Enrolled multiplied by Percent Day 

Attended (PDA) associated with that enrollment at the home school is 21 or greater.)  

• Truancy Rate is:  
o (Truant Student Count) ÷ (Total Student Count) × 100  
o Displayed as a percent with 1 decimal place (e.g. 5.1%)  

 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
  

286



Page 181 
 

 

Student Mobility  

SY 2023 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

287



Page 182 
 

Student Mobility 
Definition 
Student mobility is the unduplicated count for students who transferred in and out of the serving school at 
any time during the school year (October 1st – May 1st). It is the sum of the unduplicated students 
who transferred in and transferred out for any reason, divided by the unduplicated counts of student enrolled 
between October 1st and May 1st, multiplied by 100.  
 
Transfers in, relative to student mobility, comprise all incidents of students being added to the enrollment 
roster.  
 
Transfers out, relative to student mobility, comprise all incidents of students being removed from the 
enrollment roster for any reason. Students who exited due to graduation or receiving a certificate of 
completion are excluded.  
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/24A-7 and Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a   
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A   
 
Business Rules 

• Mobility Rates are calculated separately at the school level, district level, and state level.  

• Students who have exited due to graduation (Code ‘06’) or by receiving a certificate of completion (Code 
‘15’) are excluded from the calculation.  

• A student is considered mobile if they “transferred out” or “transferred in”:  
o Transferred out = The enrollment exited for any reason except Code ‘06’ or ‘15’ after October 

1st but before May 1st  
o Transferred in = The enrollment began after October 1st but before May 1st  

• A student count is only counted once at the school, district, and state level for the school year.  

• Private school students are excluded.  

• The numerator is the count of unduplicated students who transferred out plus students who transferred 
in.  

• The denominator is the unduplicated count of students enrolled between October 1st and May 1st 
excluding enrollments exited with codes ‘06’, ‘15’, or private school students.   

 
Formula (calculations) 
Student Mobility Formula 

• (∑Unduplicated [(Students who transferred out) + (Students who transferred in)]) ÷ ((Unduplicated count 
of students enrolled in entity between October 1st and May 1st)) × 100 

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated student counts 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Student Enrollment (SIS) 
Student Course Assignment (SIS) 
 
  

288

http://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K24A-7
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=1005&ChapterID=17


Page 183 
 

 

Dropout Rate  

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

289



Page 184 
 

Dropout Rate 
Definition 
“Dropout Rate” is the rate of dropouts in an entity (school, district, state) per enrollment.  A dropout is 
defined as a student who:  

• Was enrolled in school at some time during the school year, but was not enrolled the following school 
year, and was expected to be in membership (i.e., were not reported as dropouts the year before),  

• Did not graduate from high school, 

• Did not complete a state or district-approved educational program, and  

• Did not meet any of the following exclusionary conditions:  
o Transfer to another public school district, private school, or state- or district-approved educational 

program;  
o Temporary school-recognized absence due to suspension or illness; or  
o Death.  

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance:  
EdFact FS032 Dropout File Specifications  https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs032-
19-0.docx  
  
 
Business Rules 

• A dropout is defined in the USDE FS032 file specifications for all student groups and also reported on the 
Report Card.  

• The USDE FS009 file specifications defines dropout reporting requirements for Students with Disabilities 
for the EdFacts report and the Special Education District and State Performance Profile.  

o Special Education will base their drop out definition on the Report Card definition as allowed by the 
USDE guidelines.  

• A student’s last enrollment during the regular school year is the enrollment used to determine the home 
school, grade and exit code.   

• Include all students whose last enrollment during the regular school year was in grade 9 or higher.  
o Do not include summer school enrollments.    
o Do not include private school students.  

▪ “Private school student” includes non-public students enrolled to receive Special Education 
services and those enrolled for a class/program like CTE or Drivers Ed.  

• The denominator is the count of the number of students whose last regular enrollment for the school year 
was in grade 9 to 12 at the school/district plus the number of students from the previous year from the 
same school/district who were expected to enroll this school year but did not enroll in an Illinois public 
school district anywhere in the state.  

• A student is counted in the “dropout students for reporting year” group if the last enrollment for the 
reporting school year has an exit type of:  

o Dropped Out (SIS Exit code = 09)  
o Transfer to GED program (SIS Exit code = 10)   
o Moved, not known to be continuing (SIS Exit code = 11)  

• A student is counted in the “prior year cohort not currently enrolled” group if there is no enrollment in any 
district in Illinois in the reporting school year (based on fall enrollment in the Fall Enrollment and End of 

290

EdFact%20FS032%20Dropout%20File%20Specifications %20https:/www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs032-19-0.docx
EdFact%20FS032%20Dropout%20File%20Specifications %20https:/www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs032-19-0.docx


Page 185 
 

Year snapshot) and the last enrollment for the previous school year was in grade 9 to 12 and had an exit 
type of:   

o Promotion (SIS Exit code = 05)  
o Retained in same grade (SIS Exit code = 12)   
o Change in Serving School or Full Time Equivalent (FTE) (SIS Exit code = 17)   
o Expulsion (SIS Exit code = 08)  

• Exit codes for high school students are from the updated exit code on the graduation cohort table. This will 
allow districts that marked a student as dropout to change the exit code if they receive proof of a 
transfer.   

• The grade level for the students that were expected to enroll in the current school year based on the prior 
school year’s last enrollment is the prior school year grade plus 1 capped at 12th grade.  

• Based on these requirements the currently active student enrollment exit codes and the effect on the 
dropout calculation are:  

Exit ID  Exit Code  Exit Description  Dropout  

2  2  Transfer to another public school within the district  No  

3  6  Graduated with regular, advanced, International 
Baccalaureate, or other type of diploma  

No  

4  3  Transfer to Home School  No  

5  7  Death  No  

6  9  Dropped Out  Yes  

7  8  Expulsion  Yes, if no enrollment in the 
following year  

8  4  Transfer to Private School  No  

10  10  Transfer to GED program  Yes  

11  11  Moved, not known to be continuing  Yes  

13  5  Promotion  Yes, if no enrollment in the 
following year  

24  12  Retained in same grade  Yes, if no enrollment in the 
following year  

26  14  Aged Out/Reached Maximum Age  No  

27  15  Certificate of Completion  No  

28  16  Victim of a Violent Crime  No  

29  17  Change in Serving School or Full Time Equivalent (FTE)  Yes, if no enrollment in the 
following year  

30  18  Moved Out of the United States  No  

31  19  Transfer to another public school district OUT of Illinois  No  

32  20  Transfer to another public school district IN Illinois  No  

 

Formula (calculations) 
Dropout Rate Formula 

• ((Number of dropout students for reporting year + prior year cohort not currently enrolled) × 100)) ÷ (All 
students for the reporting year + prior year cohort not currently enrolled)  

• At the state level, all counts/percentages should be based on unduplicated students counts. 
 

Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
Student Information System (SIS) Exit code   
 
  

291



Page 186 
 

 

Student Discipline Data 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

292



Page 187 
 

Student Discipline Data 
Definition 
Student Discipline is defined as the in-school suspension, out-of-school suspension, expulsion, and removal 
incidents to alternative settings in lieu of another disciplinary action, disaggregated by race and ethnicity, 
gender, grade level, whether a student is an English learner, the incident type, and the duration.  
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: 105 ILCS 5/2-3.162  
Illinois General Assembly - Illinois Compiled Statutes (ilga.gov)  
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0294 

Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A  
 
Business Rules 

• Includes data on the number of incidents of violence (both on school grounds or during school-related 
activities) as reported pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/2-3.162 that resulted in out-of-school suspensions, 
expulsions, and removals to alternate settings that occurred in the school  

• End of Year Attributes  
o Schools - All Schools with a Report card for School level calculations. All Schools are included in 

District and State level calculations.  
▪ RCDTS Code  
▪ Serving District  
▪ Serving School  

o Discipline Actions Code Descriptions (Discipline Action Code 01-05)  
▪ 01 - Expulsion - Received Educational Services  
▪ 02 - Expulsion - Did not Receive Educational Services  
▪ 03 - In-School Suspension  
▪ 04 - Out-of-School Suspension  
▪ 05 – Removal (05, 06, 07 combined)   

• 05 - Transfer to Alternative Program in lieu of another disciplinary action  

• 06 - Unilateral Removal to an Interim Alternative Educational Setting by School 
Personnel   

• 07 - Removal to an Interim Alternative Educational Setting by a Due Process Hearing 
Officer  

• End of Year Metrics - Counts for metrics are based on incident counts for the School year by serving school  
o Total Students  

▪ Distinct count of students with discipline enrollment  
o Total Incidents  

▪ Discipline Action  

• All Actions – Discipline Action Code 00  

• Expulsion - Received Educational Services – Discipline Action Code 01  

• Expulsion - Did not Receive Educational Services – Discipline Action Code 02  

• In-School Suspension – Discipline Action Code 03  

• Out-of-School Suspension – Discipline Action Code 04  

• Removals to alternative settings in lieu of another disciplinary action – Discipline 
Action Code 05  

▪ Gender  

293

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K2-3.162
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K2-3.162
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0294


Page 188 
 

• Male  

• Female  

• Non-Binary  
▪ Race/Ethnicity  

• White   

• Black or African American   

• Hispanic or Latino   

• Two or More Races   

• American Indian or Alaska Native   

• Asian   

• Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander   
▪ Grade Band 

• K-8  

• 9-12  
▪ Program Type  

• EL (English Learner)  

• IEP  

• FRL (Low Income)  
▪ Incident Type  

• Tobacco   

• Alcohol   

• Drug Offenses   

• Violence with Physical Injury   

• Violence without Physical Injury   

• Dangerous Weapon: Firearm   

• Dangerous Weapon: Other  

• Other Reason  
▪ Duration in Days:  

• LESS THAN 1  

• 1-2  

• 2-3  

• 3-4  

• 4-10   

• GREATER THAN 10  

• Year End Collection (YEC) reporting indicators – Indicates a school/district that reported a discipline action 
in YEC but did not report a discipline action in SIS  

o SCHOOL LEVEL INDICATOR: For each discipline action at each school, if a school reports that they 
had a discipline action of that type in YEC and they have no discipline actions in SIS of that type 
then it has a value of 1. 

▪ Expulsion - Received Educational Services – Discipline Action Code 01  
▪ Expulsion - Did not Receive Educational Services – Discipline Action Code 02  
▪ In-School Suspension – Discipline Action Code 03  
▪ Out-of-School Suspension – Discipline Action Code 04  
▪ Removals to alternative settings in lieu of another disciplinary action – Discipline Action 

Code 05   
▪ All Actions – Discipline Code 00  

294



Page 189 
 

• For All actions, if any of the indicators below are 1, then this indicator will be one  
o DISTRICT LEVEL INDICATOR: For each discipline action at each district, if at least one school in the 

district has a value of 1 for a YEC reporting indicator for a specific discipline action, then the district 
will have a value of 1 for that discipline action  

▪ Expulsion - Received Educational Services – Discipline Action Code 01  
▪ Expulsion - Did not Receive Educational Services – Discipline Action Code 02  
▪ In-School Suspension – Discipline Action Code 03  
▪ Out-of-School Suspension – Discipline Action Code 04  
▪ Removals to alternative settings in lieu of another disciplinary action – Discipline Action 

Code 05   
▪ All Actions – Discipline Code 00  

• For All actions, if any of the indicators below are 1, then this indicator will be one  
 

Formula (calculations) 
Total Students  

• A distinct count of student discipline enrollments grouped at the serving school and by discipline action 
code  

 
Total Incidents  

• A count of all incidents grouped at the serving school and by discipline action code  
 
Discipline Action  

• Expulsion - Received Educational Services – Discipline Action Code 01  

• Expulsion - Did not Receive Educational Services – Discipline Action Code 02  

• In-School Suspension – Discipline Action Code 03  

• Out-of-School Suspension – Discipline Action Code 04  

• Removals to alternative settings in lieu of another disciplinary action – Discipline Action Code 05  
o Transfer to Alternative Program in lieu of another disciplinary action – Discipline Action Id 05  
o Unilateral Removal to an Interim Alternative Educational Setting by School Personnel – Discipline 

Action Id 06  
o Removal to an Interim Alternative Educational Setting by a Due Process Hearing Officer – Discipline 

Action Id 07  
 

Gender 

• A count of incidents by each gender below, grouped at the serving school and by discipline action code  
o Male  
o Female  
o Non-Binary  

 

Race/Ethnicity 

• A count of incidents by each race below, grouped at the serving school and by discipline action code  
o White - Raceid =12  
o Black or African American - Raceid=10  
o Hispanic or Latino - Raceid =7  
o Two or More Races - Raceid =13  
o American Indian or Alaska Native - Raceid =8  
o Asian - Raceid = 9  

295



Page 190 
 

o Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander - Raceid = 11  
 

Grade Bands 

• A count of incidents by each grade band below, grouped at the serving school and by discipline action 
code  

o K-8  
o 9-12  

 

Program Type 

• A count of incidents by each program type below, grouped at the serving school and by discipline action 
code  

o EL (English Learner)  
o IEP  
o FRL (Low Income)  

 

Incident Type 

• A count of incidents that group the incident types into categories.  
o Tobacco - DisciplineIncidentTypeCode in ('05', '19')  
o Alcohol - DisciplineIncidentTypeCode in ('01','08')  
o Drug Offenses - DisciplineIncidentTypeCode in ('03','11')  
o Violence with Physical Injury - DisciplineIncidentTypeCode in ('02','09')  
o Violence without Physical Injury - DisciplineIncidentTypeCode in ('10')  
o Dangerous Weapon: Firearm - DisciplineIncidentTypeCode in ('12','13', '14','15','16')  
o Dangerous Weapon: Other - DisciplineIncidentTypeCode in ('04','17')  
o Other Reason - DisciplineIncidentTypeCode In ('06','18')  

 

Duration in Days 

• LESS THAN 1 – Discipline Duration greater than or equal to 0 and less than 1  

• 1-2 – Discipline Duration greater than or equal to 1 and less than 2  

• 2-3 – Discipline Duration greater than or equal to 2 and less than 3  

• 3-4 – Discipline Duration greater than or equal to 3 and less than 4  

• 4-10 – Discipline Duration greater than or equal to 4 and less than or equal to 10  

• GREATER THAN 10 – Discipline Duration greater than 10  
 

Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS), Discipline tables 
 
  

296



Page 191 
 

 

Student Groups 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

297



Page 192 
 

Student Groups 
Definition 
Student Group is defined as students who fall within a particular demographic or service group, which are 
defined below. 
 
All Students is defined as a non-filtered group of students within a unit of measurement (State, District, 
School). “All students” does not exclude students because they are not categorized as part of a certain group. 
 
Gender is defined as the gender that the district reports to ISBE for a student.  Gender will be Male, Female or 
Non-Binary. 
 
Race is defined as the race or ethnicity that the district reports to ISBE for a student.  Race will be one of seven 
values: white, black, Hispanic, Asian, Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, American Indian, or Two or More Races. 
 
504 Accommodation is defined as students with a 504 Plan who are identified as students with a disability 
who have met specific criteria as stated under the Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and are 
eligible to receive accommodations and related services in a general education setting. 
 
Individualized Education Program (IEP) is defined as students who were identified on the December 1st Child 
count snapshot as having a disability through formal evaluations and met specific criteria as stated under the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) to be eligible for special education and related services by a 
team of individuals who developed an Individualized Education Program (IEP). The 14 special education service 
categories are: 

• 1) intellectual disability, 

• 2) hearing impairments, 

• 3) speech or language impairments, 

• 4) visual impairments, 

• 5) emotional disability, 

• 6) orthopedic impairments, 

• 7) other health impairments, 

• 8) specific learning disabilities, 

• 9) deaf-blindness, 

• 10) multiple disabilities, 

• 11) autism, 

• 12) traumatic brain injury, 

• 13) developmental delay; and 

• 14) deafness 
 
Children with Disabilities (CWD) is defined as both students who were identified as having a disability through 
formal evaluations and met specific criteria as stated under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
(IDEA) to be eligible for special education and related services by a team of individuals who developed an 
Individualized Education Program (IEP – see definition above). It also includes students with a 504 Plan (see 
definition above) who are identified as students with a disability who have met specific criteria as stated under 
the Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and are eligible to receive accommodations and related 
services in a general education setting. 
 

298



Page 193 
 

Former Children with Disabilities (CWD) is defined as students with an enrollment in the applicable academic 
year who were previously identified as a child with a disability who had an active IEP in the past four years but 
is not included in the current academic year’s December 1st Child count snapshot (i.e., is not included in the 
IEP count).  It also includes students who were previously identified as a student with a disability who had an 
active 504 within the past four years but does not have an active 504 in the current academic year. 

• [Note: Calculated but not displayed on the Report Card or included in the Summative Designation 
calculation) 

 
English Learners (EL) is defined as students who have been identified through a screening process as eligible 
for bilingual education and/or English as a second language (ESL) services, and who have not yet reached 
English Proficiency, as measured by ACCESS for ELLS, 2.0. 
 
Former EL is defined as students who were English Learners and met the state reclassification criteria on 
ACCESS through high school graduation. 
 
Low Income is defined as students who receive or live in households that receive Supplemental Nutrition 
Assistance Program or Temporary Assistance to Needy Families benefits; are classified as homeless, migrant, 
runaway, Head Start, or foster children; or live in a household where the household income meets the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture income guidelines to receive free or reduced-price meals. 
 
“Homeless” is defined as students who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence. 

• This includes the following: 
o Students who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, 

or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of 
alternative adequate accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; are 
abandoned in hospitals; 

o Students who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for 
or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings; 

o Students who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, 
bus or train stations, or similar settings; and 

o Migratory students who qualify as being homeless for the purposes of this subtitle because they 
are living in circumstances described above. 

• See here for more details on homelessness and associated programming. 
 
“Migrant” according to sections 1115(c)(1)(A) (incorporated into the MEP by sections 1304(c)(2), 1115(b), and 
1309(3) of the ESEA, and 34 C.F.R. § 200.103(a) of ED’s Title I regulations) a child is a "migratory child" and is 
eligible for MEP services if all of the following conditions are met: 

• The child is not older than 21 years of age; and the child is entitled to a free public education (through 
grade 12) under state law, or the child is not yet at a grade level at which the LEA provides a free public 
education, and the child made a qualifying move in the preceding 36 months as a migratory agricultural 
worker or a migratory fisher, or did so with, or to join a parent/guardian or spouse who is a migratory 
agricultural worker or a migratory fisher; and with regard to the qualifying move identified in paragraph 3, 
above, the child moved due to economic necessity from one residence to another residence, and from one 
school district to another; or in a state that is comprised of a single school district, has moved from one 
administrative area to another with such district; or resides in a school district of more than 15,000 square 
miles and migrates a distance of 20 miles or more to a temporary residence. (NRG, Ch. II, A1) 

• Source: ED Migrant Education Program 

299

https://www.isbe.net/Pages/Homeless.aspx


Page 194 
 

 
Youth In Care is defined as students placed or awaiting placement in a 24-hour, out-of-home residence, away 
for his or her parents/guardians.  Placements are made by the Illinois Department of Children and Family 
Services. 
 
Military is defined as students with a parent or guardian who is a member of the Armed Forces on active duty. 
 
Private school is defined as students whose parent/guardian has chosen to enroll the student in a nonpublic 
school (e.g., parochial) for general education, with the parent(s)/guardian(s) bearing the cost of the student’s 
private education.  This includes students who are being home schooled by their parent/(s)/guardian(s). 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 

• The below table indicates the source of the student demographic information: 
 
 

Student 
Demographic  Assessments  Early Learning (KIDS)  

Student Enrollment  
(Fall Enrollment)  End of Year metrics  

Graduation Rate (latest 
demographics or 
demographics after 
being added to the 
cohort table from   
Student Metric fact 
table using Report Card 
Snapshot)  

Race  
Assessment 
Correction File  Kids Score File  

Fall Enrollment Snapshot / 
SIS student demographic 
table  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  

Report Card Snapshot / 
SIS student 
demographic table   

Gender  
Assessment 
Correction File  

Kids Score File  
  

Fall Enrollment Snapshot / 
SIS student demographic 
table  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  

Report Card Snapshot / 
SIS student 
demographic table   

Individualized 
Education 
Program (IEP)  

Assessment 
Correction File  

Fall Enrollment 
Snapshot / SIS student 
demographic table  
  

Pupil Count Snapshot table 
and then Fall Enrollment 
Snapshot / SIS student 
demographic table  

Pupil Count 
Snapshot table and 
then Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  

Pupil Count Snapshot 
table and then Report 
Card Snapshot / SIS 
student demographic 
table  

Low Income  
Assessment 
Correction File  

Fall Enrollment 
Snapshot / SIS student 
demographic table  
  

Fall Enrollment Snapshot / 
SIS student demographic 
table  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  

Report Card Snapshot  

English Learner 
(EL)  

Assessment 
Correction File  

Kids Score File  
  

Fall Enrollment Snapshot / 
SIS student demographic 
table  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
English learner 
table  

Report Card Snapshot / 
SIS English learner 
table  

Homeless  
Assessment 
Correction File  

Fall Enrollment 
Snapshot / SIS student 
demographic table  
  

Fall Enrollment Snapshot / 
SIS student demographic 
table  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  

Report Card Snapshot / 
SIS student 
demographic table  

300



Page 195 
 

Migrant  Assessment 
Correction File  

N/A  
Fall Enrollment Snapshot / 
SIS student demographic 
table  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  

Report Card Snapshot / 
SIS student 
demographic table  

504 
Accommodation  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
504 
Accommodation 
table  

N/A  N/A  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 504 
Accommodation 
table  

N/A  

Youth In Care  DCFS file  N/A  DCFS file  DCFS file  DCFS file  

Military  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic 
table  

N/A  
Fall Enrollment Snapshot / 
SIS student demographic 
table  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  

Report Card Snapshot / 
SIS student 
demographic table  

Students with 
Disabilities 
(CWD)  

For checking IEP: 
Assessment 
Correction File  
OR  
For checking 
504: Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
504 
Accommodation 
table  

All Enrollment Snapshot 
/ SIS student 
demographic table  
  

For checking IEP:  Pupil 
Count Snapshot table and 
then Fall Enrollment 
Snapshot / SIS student 
demographic table  
OR  
For checking 504: Report 
Card Snapshot / SIS 504 
Accommodation table  

For checking 
IEP:  Pupil Count 
Snapshot table and 
then Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  
OR  
For checking 504: 
Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 504 
Accommodation 
table  

For checking IEP:  Pupil 
Count Snapshot table 
and then Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS student 
demographic table  
OR  
For checking 504: 
Report Card Snapshot / 
SIS 504 Accommodation 
table  

Private School  
N/A  
  N/A  

Fall Enrollment Snapshot / 
SIS student demographic 
table  
  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
student 
demographic table  

Report Card Snapshot / 
SIS student 
demographic table  

Former English L 
earners  

Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
English learner 
table  
  
Per Assessment 
dept, do not 
mark student as 
Former EL if they 
are marked as EL 
in the 
assessment 
correction file  

N/A  
Report Card Snapshot (from 
previous year) / SIS English 
learner table  

Report Card 
Snapshot (from 
previous year) / SIS 
English learner 
table  

Report Card Snapshot 
(from previous year) / 
SIS English learner 
table  

ISP  
Pupil Count 
Snapshot table  

N/A    
Pupil Count 
Snapshot table  

   

Former Students 
with Disabilities  

Report Card 
Snapshot (from 
previous year)  
  
For checking IEP: 
Assessment 
Correction File  
OR  
For checking 
504: Report Card 
Snapshot / SIS 
504 

N/A    

Report Card 
Snapshot (from 
previous year)   
  
For checking IEP: 
Assessment 
Correction File  
OR  
For checking 504: 
Report Card 
Snapshot/SIS 504 
Accommodation 
table   

   

301



Page 196 
 

Accommodation 
table   

  

 

• All Students 
o All students include all students enrolled in the unit of comparison, the State, a district, or a school. 

• Gender 
o Gender comes from the student enrollment record in SIS after the enrollment has been exited. 

▪ For all metrics other than KIDS and Assessments 

• Race 
o Race comes from the student enrollment record in SIS after the enrollment has been exited. 

▪ For all metrics other than KIDS and Assessments 

• 504 Accommodation 
o A student with an active 504 Accommodation record will be counted in the 504 student group. 

• Students with IEPs 
o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate”, KIDS, and Assessments: 

▪ A student will be considered an IEP student if: 

• Student was enrolled on October 1st in the serving school 

• The student is part of the I-Star Pupil Count (Child Count) snapshot (as of December 
1st) 

• The student is not in Fund Code: 
o L = Nonpublic Private School 
o P = Nonpublic Home Schooled 
o N = Nonpublic not receiving services 
o U = Public School but not receiving services 

o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate: 
▪ A student will be included in the IEP group if they ever had an active IStar Service Approval 

record after being added to the graduation cohort AND was not included in the following 
fund codes: 

• L = Nonpublic Private School 

• P = Nonpublic Home Schooled 

• N = Nonpublic not receiving services 

• U = Public School but not receiving services 

• Students with Disabilities 
o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate”, KIDS, and Assessments: 

▪ Students who have an IEP and/or a 504 Accommodation 
o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate: 

▪ If the student had an IEP or 504 record at any time after being added to the graduation 
cohort then they are included in the Children with Disabilities category. 

o See “IEP” and “504 Accommodation” for additional detail. 

• Former Students with Disabilities 
o A Former CWD student is a student who has had a 504 accommodation and/or an IEP at any point 

in the past 4 academic years (e.g., if current academic year is SY2021-22, then in SY2020-21, 
SY2019-20, SY2018-19, and/or SY2017-18), but does not currently have an active IEP or 504 
accommodation. 

302



Page 197 
 

▪ A Former 504 student is any student with an active 504 accommodation in SIS in any of the 
four prior academic years, but who does not have a 504 accommodation in SIS in the 
current academic year. 

▪ A Former IEP student is any student approved for services in iStar before 12/1 of the 
academic year or in any of the four prior academic years, but who is not approved for 
services in iStar on or after 12/1.  

o Note: Calculated but not displayed on the Report card or included in the Summative Designation 
calculation 

• 504 Accommodation 
o A student with an active 504 Accommodation record will be counted in the 504 student group. 

• English Learner (EL) 
o Use only active SIS EL records with a FirstEnrollDate. 
o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate”, KIDS, and Assessments: 

▪ Any student with a SIS English Learner record for the current school year. 
▪ Once identified as an EL student a student remains EL until they achieve a qualifying ACCESS 

score. 
o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate: 

▪ A student will be included in the EL group if they ever had an active EL record after being 
added to the graduation cohort. 

• Former English Learner (EL) 
o Any student who was English Learner and met the state reclassification criteria on ACCESS through 

high school graduation. 

• Low Income 
o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate”, KIDS, and Assessments: 

▪ The Low Income (FRL) indicator comes from the latest student demographic record in SIS. 
▪ The Assessment Low Income (FRL) indicator comes from: 

• The IAR or SAT correction record 
o If multiple exists, use the one with a test attached 
o Or the correction tied to the accountable school 
o Or the earliest correction record 

▪ If none exists, use the current student demographic record 
o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate: 

▪ Use the record from the most recent school year. 

• Homeless 
o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate”, KIDS, and Assessments: 

▪ The Homeless indicator comes from the latest student demographic record in SIS. 
▪ The Assessment Homeless indicator comes from: 

• The IAR or SAT correction record 
o If multiple exists, use the one with a test attached 
o Or the correction tied to the accountable school 
o Or the earliest correction record 

▪ If none exists, use the current student demographic record 
o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate: 

▪ A student will be included in the homeless group if they were ever considered homeless 
after being added to the graduation cohort. 

• Migrant 

303



Page 198 
 

o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate” and Assessments: 
▪ The Migrant indicator comes from the latest student demographic record in SIS. 
▪ The Assessment Migrant indicator comes from: 

• The IAR or SAT correction record 
o If multiple exists, use the one with a test attached 
o Or the correction tied to the accountable school 
o Or the earliest correction record 

o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate: 
▪ Use the record from the most recent school year. 

• Youth In Care – Non-Special Education or YIC in Group Homes 
o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate”: 

▪ All students who are included within the DCFS Living Arrangement file anytime during the 
current school year are included in the Youth in Care group. 

o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate: 
▪ A student will be included in the Youth in Care group if they were ever in the DCFS Living 

Arrangement file after being added to the graduation cohort. 

• Military 
o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate”: 

▪ The Military indicator comes from the latest student demographic record in SIS. 
o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate: 

▪ Use the record from the most recent school year. 

• Private School 
o For all metrics other than “Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate”:  

▪ The Private School indicator comes from the latest student demographic record in SIS.  
o For Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate:  

▪ Use the record from the most recent school year.  
 
 
Formula (calculations) 
N/A 
 

Sources of Data 
N/A 
  

304



Page 199 
 

 

Title I Status  

SY 2023 

Accountability 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

305



Page 200 
 

Title I Status 
Definition 
Title I Status indicates if an entity receives a Title I grant allocation. If an entity receives a Title I allocation their 
status can be "Title I Targeted" or "Title I Schoolwide".  
 
Title I Targeted assistance programs must focus services to identify students most at risk of failing through 
multiple objective criteria. Services, including supplies must ONLY focus on those students identified.  
 
Title I Schoolwide programs may focus services to the entire school. Schoolwide Title I status is defined as 
schools with students classified as low income, poverty percentage of 40% or greater.  Schoolwide 
programs are not required to identify at risk students and may focus their allocation and efforts on increasing 
whole school academic achievement.  
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: Recipient Reporting Requirements Title I Grants  
 
Business Rules 

• If a school received Title I allocation in the prior school year (>$0) they are considered a “Title I” school.  

• A program code indicates whether the school’s program was Targeted (TA) or Schoolwide (SW).  
 
Formula (calculations) 
 N/A 
 
Sources of Data 
Electronic Grants Management System (eGMS) 
 
  

306

https://www2.ed.gov/programs/titleiparta/index.html


Page 201 
 

 

Summative Designation Meta Indicators 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

307



Page 202 
 

Summative Designation Meta Indicator Components 
Definition 
The accountability system has four meta-indicators that are currently being validated for use as indicators. 
These include the College and Career Readiness indicator (CCRI), Fine Arts indicator, P-2 indicator, and 
Elementary/Middle indicator. For 2023, the components of the CCRI and Fine Arts indicators will be added to 
the report card. We will not be reporting an overall calculation, but rather the sub-elements. For more 
information on the meta-indicators, please see the Individual Indicators webpage.  
 

• CCRI Meta Indicator Components 
o For all of the following metrics the denominator is the number of students from the applicable 

academic year with an exit code of graduated in a given home school, and the numerator is the 
number of students from the denominator who have met the requirements of the metric (or that 
fall within particular performance ranges, as applicable to the metric). 

▪ Percentage of students with 95% attendance in JR/SR year (average of the two years must 
be 95% or better)   

▪ Percentage of students who fall into each GPA category  
▪ Percentage of students who meet the IL SAT/ACT Composite Minimum requirement  
▪ Percentage of students who have at least 1 Academic ELA Indicator  
▪ Percentage of students who have at least 1 Academic Math Indicator  
▪ Percentage of students who have identified a Career Area of Interest by Sophomore Year  
▪ Percentage of students who have earned 1, 2, or 3+ career ready indicators  
▪ Percentage of students who have earned a College and Career Pathway Endorsement  

• Fine Arts Meta Indicator Components  
o Student Participation in Fine Arts  

▪ The non-duplicated count of all students who are enrolled in one or more fine arts courses 
in a year, divided by the total number of students at the school. Inclusive of all grades, 
including K.  

o Teacher Qualifications  
▪ A school’s total number of students enrolled in one or more arts courses taught by a 

qualified Illinois teacher divided by the school’s total number of students enrolled in one or 
more arts courses.  

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance:  ESSA Plan   
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A (ESSA allows states to have one or more school quality and student success 
indicators, but does not dictate what these indicators must be).  
 
 
Business Rules 

• CCRI Meta Indicator Components: For all of the following metrics the denominator is the number of 
students from the applicable academic year with an exit code of graduated in a given home school, and 
the numerator is the number of students from the denominator who have met the requirements of the 
metric (or that fall within particular performance ranges, as applicable to the metric). 

o Percentage of students with 95% attendance in JR/SR year (average of the two years must be 95% 
or better) 

▪ Displayed as the percentage of students who met this requirement)  

308

https://www.isbe.net/Pages/Accountability-Indicators.aspx
https://www.isbe.net/essa


Page 203 
 

▪ As specified in 105 ILCS 5/19.05, “a day of attendance shall be counted only for sessions of 
not less than 5 clock hours of school work per day.”  

▪ Activities outlined in 105 ILCS 5/19.05 (k), including dual credit, Supervised Career 
Development Experience, youth apprenticeship, and blended learning, count toward the 
calculation of clock hours of school work per day.  

▪ Local school boards determine a day for which students are receiving instruction as guided 
by 105 ILCS 5/10-19.05.  

▪ For the purposes of guidance, it may be helpful to utilize the opposite of attendance by 
reviewing the definition of “truant” as defined in the School Code (105 ILCS 5/26-2a) “… as a 
child subject to compulsory school attendance and who is absent without valid cause from 
such attendance for a school day or portion thereof. ‘Valid cause’ for absence shall be 
illness, observance of a religious holiday, death in the immediate family, family emergency, 
and shall include such other situations beyond the control of the student as determined by 
the board of education in each district, or such other circumstances which cause reasonable 
concern to the parent for the safety or health of the student.”  

▪ ISBE uses attendance data currently entered into SIS by districts to calculate an average of 
attendance junior and senior years for each student.  

▪ Calculated from SIS Attendance data  
o Percentage of students who fall into each GPA category  

▪ Displayed as the percentage of students who fall within the four GPA ranges  
▪ GPA is determined by districts  
▪ The district will enter one of three codes into a new indicator file in SIS that will specify if 

the student:  

• Range 1: meets the “distinguished scholar” standard with a GPA of 3.75 or higher on 
a 4.0 scale,  

• Range 2: meets the “college and career scholar” definition of a GPA of 2.8 on a 4.0 
scale, or  

• Range 3: has a GPA under 2.8 and does not meet the standard  

• Range 4: None Entered  
▪ Districts will continue to determine their own system for calculating GPA and the equivalent 

for this indicator.  
▪ This indicator will be gathered on each student at the end of their senior year and will 

represent a cumulative GPA.  
▪ The district will collect and compile the initial data prior to submitting aggregate data (3.75 

or Above, 2.8 – 3.74, Below 2.8, and None) to ISBE through a new file in SIS.  
o Percentage of students who meet the IL SAT/ACT Composite Minimum requirement  

▪ Displayed as the percentage of students who meet this requirement  
▪ ACT Composite Score of 30 or higher, or SAT Composite Score of 1400 or higher at any point 

within the student's school career   

• An official SAT composite score of 1400 as reported by the College Board either:   
o To ISBE as a part of its state required SAT administration in grade 11 or   

▪ ISBE will not use data from the fall 2020 SAT School Day 
administration for the Math proficiency indicator in the accountability 
system, but will use as applicable to fulfill this indicator   

o As reported to the student, school or district from an optional national 
administration day.   

309



Page 204 
 

▪ ACT and SAT are a shared indicator (MetMinACTSATMathInd; 
MetMinACTSATEnglishInd)   

▪ Student must have both ELA and Math as yes to fulfill   
o  Percentage of students who have at least 1 Academic ELA Indicator  

▪ Displayed as the percentage of students who have met two or more, one, or no ELA 
Academic Indicators. 

▪ All of the metrics below are ELA Academic Indicators. Fulfilling the requirements of the 
particular metric counts as one fulfillment.   

• ELA Advanced Placement (AP) Exam (Score of 3 or higher)  
o Displayed as the percentage of students who met this requirement  
o An official AP Exam score of 3, 4 or 5 in any AP ELA course, as reported by the 

College Board to ISBE or to the district.   
o Combined with IB, saved as Met Min ELA Exam  

• ELA AP Course (Grade of A, B, or C)   
o Course grades for an AP ELA course as reported in SIS.   
o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 

Meets Standards.  
o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o The AP courses that apply are:  

▪ 5     01005A000    AP English Language and Composition  
▪ 6     01006A000    AP English Literature and Composition  

o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits  

• Dual Credit English Course (Grade of A, B, or C)   
o Course grades for a dual-credit designated ELA course as reported in SIS.   
o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 

Meets Standards.  
o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits   

• International Baccalaureate (IB) ELA Course in High School (Grade of A, B, or C)  
o Course grades for an IB designated ELA course as reported in SIS.   
o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 

Meets Standards.  
o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o The IB courses that apply are:  

▪ 7            01007A000    IB Language A (English)  
▪ 2167     01011A000    IB Language A: Language and Literature – 

English  
▪ 2168     01012A000    IB Literature and Performance  

o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits   

• IB ELA Exam in High School (Score of 4 or higher)   
o An official IB Exam score of 4, 5, 6 or 7 in any IB ELA course, as reported by 

the IB to the student, school or district.   
o Combined with AP, saved as Met Min ELA Exam  

• Transitional English (Grade of A, B, or C)   
o Course grades for a course designated as Transitional ELA1 as reported in 

SIS.   

310



Page 205 
 

o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 
Meets Standards.  

o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o Currently there are no Transitional ELA courses  
o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits   

• Minimum ACT Subject Scores of English: 18 and Reading: 22   
o An official ACT score as reported to the student, school or district, with an 

English subscore of 18 and reading subscore of 22.   
o Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  
o ACT and SAT are a shared indicator (MetMinACTSATEnglishInd)  

• Minimum SAT Subject Score of Evidence-Based Reading and Writing: 540   
o An official SAT Evidence-Based Reading and Writing score of 540 as reported 

by the College Board either:  
▪ To ISBE as a part of its state required SAT administration in grade 11 

or  

• ISBE will not use data from the fall 2020 SAT School Day 
administration for the ELA proficiency indicator in the 
accountability system, but will use as applicable to fulfill this 
indicator  

▪ As reported to the student, school or district from an optional 
national administration day.  

▪ Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report 
in SIS  

▪ ACT and SAT are a shared indicator (MetMinACTSATEnglishInd)  
o Percentage of students who have at least 1 Academic Math Indicator  

▪ Displayed as the percentage of students who have met two or more, one, or no ELA 
Academic Indicators.   

▪ All of the metrics below are Math Academic Indicators. Fulfilling the requirements of the 
particular metric counts as one fulfillment.   

• Math AP Exam (Score of 3 or higher)  
o An official AP Exam score of 3, 4 or 5 in any AP math course, as reported by 

the College Board to ISBE or to the district.   
o Combined with IB, saved as Met Min Math Exam  

• Math AP Course (Grade of A, B, or C)   
o Course grades for an AP math course as reported in SIS.   
o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 

Meets Standards.  
o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o The AP courses that apply are:  

▪ 93       02124A000    AP Calculus AB  
▪ 94       02125A000    AP Calculus BC  
▪ 111     02203A000    AP Statistics  
▪ 836    10157A000    AP Computer Science A  

o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits  

• Dual Credit Math Course (Grade of A, B, or C)  
o Course grades for a dual-credit designated math course as reported in SIS.   

311



Page 206 
 

o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 
Meets Standards.  

o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits   

• IB Math Course in High School (Grade of A, B, or C)   
o Course grades for an IB designated math course as reported in SIS.   
o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 

Meets Standards.  
o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o The IB courses that apply are:  

▪ 96            02131A000    IB Mathematical Studies  
▪ 97            02132A000    IB Mathematics  
▪ 98            02133A000    IB Mathematics and Computing - SL  
▪ 99            02134A000    IB Further Mathematics  

o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits   

• IB Math Exam in High School (Score of 4 or higher)   
o An official IB Exam score of 4, 5, 6 or 7 in any IB math course, as reported by 

the IB to the student, school or district.   
o Combined with AP, saved as Met Min Math Exam  

• Transitional Math (Grade of A, B, or C)   
o Course grades for a course designated as Transitional ELA as reported in SIS.   
o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 

Meets Standards.  
o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o Transitional Math courses that apply are:  

▪ 2142            02055A001    High School Transitional Math 4 - STEM  
▪ 2143            02153A001    High School Transitional Math 4 – Technical 

Math  
▪ 2144            02201A001    High School Transitional Math 4 – 

Quantitative Literacy and Statistics  
o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits   

• Algebra II (Grade of A, B, or C)   
o Course grades for a course designated as Algebra II, Math III or High School 

Math III as reported in SIS.   
o Courses designated Integrated Math III or High School Math III also signify 

that a student has completed the equivalent of Algebra II, thus fulfilling this 
indicator.    

o Acceptable values are: A+, A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, Exceeds Standards, 
Meets Standards.  

o Calculated from SIS Course data  
o Algebra courses that apply are:  

▪ 66            02056A000    Algebra II  
▪ 67            02057A000    Algebra III  
▪ 2101        02303A000    High School Math 3  
▪ 2174        02064A000    Integrated Mathematics III  
▪ 82            02106A000    Trigonometry/Algebra  
▪ ***          22161A000     Data Science  

312



Page 207 
 

▪ ***          22162A000     Data Science Applications  
▪ *** - Course will be added in the future  

o The student must accumulate 1.0 or greater course credits  

• Minimum ACT Subject Score of Math: 22 AND Math Course in Senior Year   
o An ISBE calculated value, which requires a combination of 2 criteria, a YES in 

the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report Field Minimum ACT/SAT 
Math score and an earned credit in a mathematics course in the student’s 
senior year.  

▪ Requires an official ACT score as reported to the student, school or 
district, with a math subscore of 22.   

▪ Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report 
in SIS  

▪ An earned math course credit, as reported by district grade data in 
SIS  

▪ ACT and SAT are a shared indicator (MetMinACTSATMathInd)  

• Minimum SAT Subject Score of Math: 540 and Math Course in Senior Year   
o An official SAT Math score of 540 as reported by the College Board either:  

▪ To ISBE as a part of its state required SAT administration in grade 11 
or  

• ISBE will not use data from the fall 2020 SAT School Day 
administration for the Math proficiency indicator in the 
accountability system, but will use as applicable to fulfill this 
indicator  

▪ As reported to the student, school or district from an optional 
national administration day.  

▪ Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report 
in SIS  

▪ ACT and SAT are a shared indicator (MetMinACTSATMathInd)  
o Percentage of students who have identified a Career Area of Interest by Sophomore Year  

▪ Displayed as the percentage of students who have met this requirement  
▪ Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  
▪ A student may indicate a career area of interest by:  

• participating in pathways as defined by a local board of education,  

• creating an individualized plan as part of the College and Career Pathway 
Endorsement program, or  

• engaging in activities as part of Career Pathways Dictionary (adopted by the Illinois 
Community College Board, ISBE, the Illinois Workforce Innovation Board, the P-20 
Council, the Illinois Board of Higher Education, and the Illinois Student Assistance 
Commission).  

▪ The identification of a career area of interest by a student will be determined by school 
districts within a range of career exploration activities, such as those suggested in the 
Postsecondary and Career Expectations framework.  

• The district will collect and compile the initial data prior to submitting aggregate 
“yes” or “no” data to ISBE through a new file in SIS.  

▪ Students who were sophomores in spring of 2020 have until the end of 2020 to identify a 
career area of interest.  

o Percentage of students who have earned 1, 2, or 3+ career ready indicators  
313



Page 208 
 

▪ Displayed as the percentage of students who have earned 3 or more, two, one, or no career 
ready indicators.   

▪ All of the metrics below are Career Ready Indicators. Fulfilling the requirements of the 
particular metric counts as one fulfillment.   

▪ Career Development Experience during their high school career  

• This is a supervised work experience relating to an individual’s career area of 
interest that meets all the following:  

o Occurs in a workplace or under other authentic working conditions;  
o Is co-developed by an education provider and at least one employer in the 

relevant field;  
o Provides compensation or educational credit to the participant;  
o Reinforces foundational professional skills, including, at a minimum, those 

outlined in the Illinois Essential Employability Skills Framework and Self-
Assessment;  

o Includes a Professional Skills Assessment that assesses skill development and 
is utilized as a participant feedback tool; and  

o Takes place for a minimum of 60 total hours.  

• Career Development Experience may not consist solely of technical training by an 
education provider.  

• Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  

• Students whose experience was interrupted in March, April or May of 2020 by 
COVID-19 related school and/or business closures or layoffs may receive credit on 
this indicator for the interrupted experience.   

▪ Industry Credential at any point in time before graduation  

• Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  
o SIS has 7 credentials from which the district choose  

• This is a work-related credential, certification, or license that:  
o Verifies an individual’s qualifications or competence in a specific skillset 

related to a particular industry or occupation;  
o Is issued by an industry-related organization or state licensing body with the 

relevant authority to issue such credentials; and  
o Is broadly sought or accepted by employers as a recognized, preferred, or 

required credential for recruitment, screening, hiring, retention, or 
advancement purposes.  

▪ Military Service or an ASVAB Score of 31 or Higher during their high school career  

• Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  

• Students make a commitment to serve in the armed services or participate in Junior 
Reserve Officer Training Corps.  

• There are four ways to meet this indicator:  
o Achieving an ASVAB score of 31 or higher   
o Making a commitment to serve in the Armed Services,  
o Enlisting for split training, which entails enlistment at age 17 as a junior with 

permission of a parent or guardian, attendance at Basic Combat Training 
before senior year, training one weekend per month through senior year 
with a local unit, and planned attendance at Advanced Individual Training 
after senior year, or  

314



Page 209 
 

o Participating in Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps.  

• Students whose experience was interrupted after March of 2020 by COVID-19 
related school and/or business closures or layoffs may receive credit on this 
indicator for the interrupted experience.   

▪ Dual Credit Career Pathway Course (college credit earned)  

• As defined in 110 ILCS 27/5, “dual credit course” means a college course taken by a 
high school student for credit at both the college and high school level.  

• A course that is used to fulfill an ELA or Math dual-credit indicator cannot also be 
used to fulfill this Dual Credit Career Pathway Course indicator.  

o IF a student has fulfilled the ELA academic indicator requirements via any 
other means  

▪ THEN, dual credit enrollments of 0.5 or greater in any subject, 
including ELA fulfills this requirement  

▪ ELSE, dual credit enrollments of 0.5 or greater in any subject except 
ELA, or dual credit enrollments greater than or equal to 1.5 in ELA 
fulfills this requirement  

o IF a student has fulfilled the MATH academic indicator requirements via any 
other means  

▪ THEN, dual credit enrollments of 0.5 or greater in any subject, 
including MATH fulfills this requirement  

▪ ELSE, dual credit enrollments of 0.5 or greater in any subject except 
MATH, or dual credit enrollments of greater than or equal to 1.5 in 
MATH fulfills this requirement   

• Calculated from SIS Course data  
▪ Completion of a Program of Study before graduation  

• This is completion of coursework that is necessary to qualify a student as a CTE 
Concentrator.  

• Calculated from SIS Course data  
▪ Attaining and maintain consistent employment for a minimum of 12 months during their 

high school career  

• Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  

• This is verified employment of a continuous nature during a 12-month period.  

• Students whose experience was interrupted after March of 2020 by COVID-19 
related business closures or layoffs may receive credit on this indicator for the 
interrupted experience.   

▪ Consecutive summer employment during their high school career  

• Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  

• This is verified employment for two consecutive summers.  

• Students whose experience was interrupted after March of 2020 by COVID-19 
related school and/or business closures or layoffs may receive credit on this 
indicator for the interrupted experience.   

▪ 25 Cumulative Hours or more of community service during their high school career  

• Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  

• This is a volunteer service or activity performed by students to address a social issue 
in the community, such as (but not limited to) poverty, disaster relief, education, the 
environment, homelessness, or community wellness.  

315



Page 210 
 

▪ Two or more different organized co-curricular or extracurricular activities during their high 
school career (Multiple years of the same activity do not represent different activities - e.g., 
multiple years of a sport, multiple years on student council)  

• Collected as YES in the College and Career Readiness Indicator Report in SIS  

• These are activities, programs, and applied learning experiences that:  
o Are connected to or mirror the academic curriculum, but for which students 

do not receive academic credit;  
o Take place outside of school or after regular school hours and may be 

operated by outside organizations; and  
o Instill adaptive competencies and/or skills spelled out in the Illinois Essential 

Employability Skills Framework and Self-Assessment, including personal 
ethic, work ethic, teamwork, and communication.  

▪ As defined in Section 10 of the Postsecondary and Workforce 
Readiness Act, (110 ILCS 148/10) adaptive competencies mean 
“foundational skills needed for success in college, careers, and life, 
such as, but not limited to, work ethic, professionalism, 
communication, collaboration and interpersonal skills, and problem-
solving.”  

▪ Essential Employability Skills are foundational skills needed for 
success in college, careers, and life including, but not limited to, the 
following:  

• Personal Ethic: Integrity, respect, perseverance, positive 
attitude;  

• Work Ethic: Dependability, professionalism;  

• Teamwork: Critical thinking, effective and cooperative work; 
and  

• Communication: Active listening, clear communication  

• Students whose experience was interrupted after March of 2020 by COVID-19 
related school and/or business closures or layoffs may receive credit on this 
indicator for the interrupted experience.   

o Percentage of students who have earned a College and Career Pathway Endorsement  
▪ Displayed as the percentage of students who have a College and Career Pathway 

Endorsement  
▪ The Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness Act includes a voluntary process for school 

districts to award College and Career Pathway Endorsements to high school graduates.  
▪ Students earn endorsements by completing:  

• an individualized learning plan,  

• a career-focused instructional sequence, and  

• professional learning opportunities.  
▪ Students earning a College and Career Pathway Endorsement will not need to fulfill the 

criteria of the ELA and Math Academic Indicators, career area of interest by the end of the 
sophomore year, and three career ready indicators.  

▪ For 2021 and 2022, CTE and Innovation will send the names of those students who have 
received the College and Career Pathway Endorsement directly to SIS, and the Warehouse 
will be in charge of calculating the CCRI  

316



Page 211 
 

▪ In the future, the CCRI SIS data collection will be enhanced to allow districts to self-report 
this information directly into SIS via the CCRI files  

• Fine Arts Meta Indicator Components  
o Student Participation in Fine Arts. The non-duplicated count of all students who are enrolled in one 

or more fine arts courses in a year, divided by the total number of students at the school. Inclusive 
of all grades, including K. Includes all the course codes listed below:  

ID  Course Code  Course Name  ID  Course Code  Course Name  

311  05102A000  Concert Band  1799  55073A000  Drama (grade 3)  

312  05103A000  Marching Band  1800  55074A000  Drama (grade 4)  

290  05001A000  Dance Technique  1801  55075A000  Drama (grade 5)  

291  05002A000  Dance Repertory  1802  55076A000  Drama (grade 6)  

292  05003A000  General Dance  1803  55077A000  Drama (grade 7)  

293  05004A000  Dance History and 
Appreciation  

1804  55078A000  Drama (grade 8)  

313  05104A000  Orchestra  1805  55079A000  Drama - General  

294  05005A000  Dance - Choreography  1810  55097A000  Drama - Independent Study  

295  05047A000  Dance - Independent Study  1811  55099A000  Drama - Other  

296  05048A000  Dance - Workplace 
Experience  

1824  55101A000  General Band (prior-to-
secondary)  

297  05049A000  Dance - Other  1825  55102A000  Concert Band (prior-to-
secondary)  

298  05051A000  Introduction to the Theater  1832  55116A000  Music History/Appreciation 
(prior-to-secondary)  

299  05052A000  Theater Arts  1833  55118A000  Music Appreciation (prior-to-
secondary)  

300  05053A000  Theater - Comprehensive  1812  55128A000  Music (early childhood 
education)  

301  05054A000  Exploration in Drama  1813  55129A000  Music (pre-kindergarten)  

302  05055A000  Theater - 
Acting/Performance  

1814  55130A000  Music (kindergarten)  

303  05056A000  Theater - Stagecraft  1815  55131A000  Music (grade 1)  

304  05057A000  Theater - Directing  1816  55132A000  Music (grade 2)  

305  05058A000  Playwriting and 
Screenwriting  

1817  55133A000  Music (grade 3)  

306  05059A000  History and Literature of the 
Theater  

1818  55134A000  Music (grade 4)  

307  05097A000  Theater - Independent Study   1819  55135A000  Music (grade 5)  

308  05098A000  Theater - Workplace 
Experience   

1820  55136A000  Music (grade 6)  

309  05099A000  Theater - Other   1821  55137A000  Music (grade 7)  

310  05101A000  General Band  1822  55138A000  Music (grade 8)  

314  05105A000  Contemporary Instrumental 
Ensemble  

1823  55139A000  Music - General  

315  05106A000  Small Ensemble  1834  55147A000  Music - Independent Study  

316  05107A000  Piano  1835  55149A000  Music - Other  

317  05108A000  Guitar  1848  55151A000  Art Appreciation (prior-to-
secondary)  

318  05109A000  Individual Technique - 
Instrumental Music  

1849  55152A000  Art History (prior-to-secondary)  

317



Page 212 
 

319  05110A000  Chorus  1850  55154A000  Creative Art - Comprehensive  

320  05111A000  Vocal Ensembles  1851  55155A000  Creative Art - Drawing/Painting  

321  05112A000  Individual Technique - Vocal 
Music  

1852  55156A000  Creative Art - Drawing  

322  05113A000  Music Theory  1853  55157A000  Creative Art - Painting  

323  05114A000  AP Music Theory  1854  55158A000  Creative Art - Sculpture  

324  05115A000  IB Music  1855  55159A000  Ceramics/Pottery (prior-to-
secondary)  

325  05116A000  Music History/Appreciation  1856  55165A000  Crafts (prior-to-secondary)  

326  05117A000  Music History  1857  55167A000  Photography (prior-to-
secondary)  

327  05118A000  Music Appreciation  1858  55168A000  Cinematography/Video 
Production (prior-to-secondary)  

328  05119A000  Composition/Songwriting  1836  55178A000  Art (early childhood education)  

329  05147A000  Music - Independent Study  1837  55179A000  Art (pre-kindergarten)  

330  05148A000  Music - Workplace 
Experience  

1838  55180A000  Art (kindergarten)  

331  05149A000  Music - Other  1839  55181A000  Art (grade 1)  

332  05151A000  Art Appreciation  1840  55182A000  Art (grade 2)  

333  05152A000  Art History  1841  55183A000  Art (grade 3)  

334  05153A000  AP Art - History of Art  1842  55184A000  Art (grade 4)  

335  05154A000  Visual Arts - Comprehensive  1843  55185A000  Art (grade 5)  

336  05155A000  Visual Arts - 
Drawing/Painting  

1844  55186A000  Art (grade 6)  

337  05156A000  Visual Arts - Drawing  1845  55187A000  Art (grade 7)  

338  05157A000  Visual Arts - Painting  1846  55188A000  Art (grade 8)  

339  05158A000  Visual Arts - Sculpture  1847  55189A000  Art - General  

340  05159A000  Ceramics/Pottery  1859  55197A000  Visual Art - Independent Study  

341  05160A000  Printmaking/Graphics  1860  55199A000  Visual Arts - Other  

342  05161A000  Printmaking  1861  55201A000  Interdisciplinary Arts (prior-to-
secondary)  

343  05162A000  Visual Communications 
Design  

1862  05202A000  IB Arts, Middle Years Program  

344  05163A000  Advertising Design  1863  55997A000  Fine and Performing Arts - 
Independent Study  

345  05164A000  Fibers and Textile Design  1864  55999A000  Fine and Performing Arts - Other  

346  05165A000  Crafts  2202  05008A000  World/Cultural Dance  

347  05166A000  Jewelry  2203  05009A000  Technical Theater for Dance  

348  05167A000  Photography  2204  05010A000  Social Dance  

349  05168A000  Cinematography/Video 
Production  

2205  05011A000  Dance Composition/Composition 
Seminar  

350  05169A000  Multimedia Art  2206  05012A000  IB Dance  

351  05170A000  Art Portfolio  2207  05013A000  Dance for Musical Theater  

352  05171A000  AP Studio Art - General 
Portfolio  

2208  05014A000  Ballet  

353  05172A000  AP Studio Art - Drawing  2209  05015A000  Jazz Dance  

354  05173A000  IB Visual Arts  2210  05016A000  Modern Dance  

2107  05174A000  AP Studio Art: 2-D Design  2211  05017A000  Hip Hop  

318



Page 213 
 

2108  05175A000  AP Studio Art: 3-D Design  2212  05018A000  Tap Dance  

355  05197A000  Visual Arts - Independent 
Study  

2213  05060A000  Musical Theater  

356  05198A000  Visual Arts - Workplace 
Experience  

2221  05176A000  Calligraphy/Lettering  

357  05199A000  Visual Arts - Other  2222  05177A000  Animation  

358  05201A000  Interdisciplinary Arts  2223  05190A000  Fashion Design  

359  05995A000  Visual and Performing Art - 
Aide   

2224  05191A000  Industrial Design  

360  05997A000  Visual and Performing Art - 
Independent Study   

2225  05192A000  Architectural Design  

361  05998A000  Visual and Performing Art - 
Workplace Experience   

2226  05193A000  Interior Design  

362  05999A000  Visual and Performing Art - 
Other   

2482  05193A001  Interior Design  

1826  55103A000  Marching Band (prior-to-
secondary)  

2227  05194A000  IB Film  

1788  55002A000  Dance Repertory (prior-to-
secondary)  

2228  05195A000  Fundamentals of Design  

1789  55003A000  General Dance (prior-to-
secondary)  

2229  05203A000  Film Appreciation and Analysis  

1790  55004A000  Dance Appreciation  2230  05250A000  Media Arts - Comprehensive  

1827  55104A000  Orchestra (prior-to-
secondary)  

2231  05251A000  Digital Imaging  

1828  55105A000  Contemporary Band  2232  05252A000  Interactive Design  

1829  55106A000  Instrumental Ensembles  2233  05253A000  Interactive Game Design  

1830  55110A000  Chorus (prior-to-secondary)  2234  05254A000  Web Design  

1831  55111A000  Vocal Ensembles (prior-to-
secondary)  

2235  05255A000  Moving Image  

1787  55001A000  Dance Technique (prior-to-
secondary)  

2236  05256A000  Moving Image - Animation  

1791  55005A000  Choreography  2237  05257A000  Digital Sound Design  

1775  55028A000  Dance (early childhood 
education)  

2238  05258A000  Virtual Design  

1776  55029A000  Dance (pre-kindergarten)  2239  05259A000  Media for Performance  

1777  55030A000  Dance (kindergarten)  2240  05260A000  Multimedia Design  

1778  55031A000  Dance (grade 1)  2241  05261A000  Intermedia Design  

1779  55032A000  Dance (grade 2)  2242  05262A000  Media Arts Theory  

1780  55033A000  Dance (grade 3)  2243  05263A000  Media Literacy  

1781  55034A000  Dance (grade 4)  2244  05297A000  Media Arts - Independent Study  

1782  55035A000  Dance (grade 5)  2245  05298A000  Media Arts - Workplace 
Experience  

1783  55036A000  Dance (grade 6)  2246  05299A000  Media Arts - Other   

1784  55037A000  Dance (grade 7)  2200  05006A000  Dance Survey  

1785  55038A000  Dance (grade 8)  2201  05007A000  Dance Improvisation  

1786  55039A000  Dance - General  2214  05061A000  Theatrical Production and 
Management  

1792  55047A000  Dance - Independent Study  2215  05062A000  IB Theatre  

1793  55049A000  Dance - Other  2216  05120A000  Strings  

319



Page 214 
 

1806  55051A000  Introduction to the Theater 
(prior-to-secondary)  

2217  05121A000  Contemporary Vocal Ensemble  

1807  55052A000  Theatre Arts  2218  05122A000  Culturally Influenced Ensemble  

1808  55053A000  Drama - Comprehensive  2219  05123A000  Recording and Production   

1809  55054A000  Exploration in Drama  2220  05124A000  Technology/Electronic Music  

1794  55068A000  Drama (early childhood 
education)  

2709  05252A001  Interactive Design  

1795  55069A000  Drama (pre-kindergarten)  2827  05049A001  Pre-AP Dance -   

1796  55070A000  Drama (kindergarten)  2832  05099A001  Pre-AP Theatre -   

1797  55071A000  Drama (grade 1)  2831  05149A001  Pre-AP Music -   

1798  55072A000  Drama (grade 2)  2833  05199A001  Pre-AP Visual Arts -   

   

o Teacher Qualifications. A school’s total number of students enrolled in one or more arts courses 
taught by a qualified Illinois teacher divided by the school’s total number of students enrolled in 
one or more arts courses.   

▪ The nonduplicated count of students enrolled in at least one arts course, taught by a 
teacher with any of the LicenseEndorsementCode listed below.  

▪ Divided by the nonduplicated count of students enrolled in at least one arts course.  
o Using the same data set of course enrollments used to calculate the first part (Student Participation 

in Fine Arts), add to each course enrollment the EIN of the instructor of record, and whether or not 
they have any one of the endorsements below.   

▪ First, prefer any (and all) LicenseEndorsementCode under EndorsementSubjectCode  

• Arts  

• Music  
  

  LicenseEndorsementCode    EndorsementSubjectCode  

6425  DA    Dance  ARTS   

6454  THDR  Theatre/Drama  ARTS   

6529  DTA   Drama/Theatre Arts  ARTS   

6633  VARS  Visual Arts - Supervising  ARTS   

6634  VART  Visual Arts  ARTS   

6650  SPTH  Speech/Theatre  ARTS   

6774  THDS  Theater & Drama - Supervising  ARTS   

6780  FIAR  Fine Arts  ARTS   

6784  DAS   Dance - Supervising  ARTS   

6795  DRWS  Drawing Supervising  ARTS   

6906  CRAR  Creative Art  ARTS   

6917  COPH  Commercial Photography  ARTS   

6921  COAR  Commercial Art  ARTS   

6932  COAI  Commercial Art & Illustration  ARTS   

6955  ART   Art  ARTS   

6956  ARTS  Art - Supervising  ARTS   

7181  DRAM  Dramatics  ARTS   

7182  DRAW  Drawing  ARTS   

7237  FILM  Film  ARTS   

320



Page 215 
 

7269  TH    Theatre  ARTS   

7271  THEN  Theater/English  ARTS   

7273  TOPA  Tole Painting  ARTS   

7281  TADA  Tap Dancing  ARTS   

7288  THAR  Theater Arts  ARTS   

7289  THAS  Theater Arts - Supervising  ARTS   

7290  THCA  Theater & Communication Arts  ARTS   

7363  SPDR  Speech & Drama  ARTS   

7365  SPPA  Speech And The Performing Arts  ARTS   

7373  SPTS  Speech & Theater Supervising  ARTS   

7519  OPAE  Occupational & Practical Art 
Education  

ARTS   

7526  PAD   Painting And Drawing  ARTS   

7535  PD    Painting & Decorating  ARTS   

7537  PDPA  Painting & Decorating Pre-
Apprentice  

ARTS   

7543  PHOT  Photography  ARTS   

6478  MUAP  Music Appreciation  MUSIC  

6558  BAND  Band  MUSIC  

6638  MUS   Music  MUSIC  

6731  MUSS  Music - Supervising  MUSIC  

6734  MUTH  Music Theory & Harmony  MUSIC  

6742  MTHS  Music Theory & Harmony 
Supervising  

MUSIC  

6804  INMU  Instrumental Music  MUSIC  

6821  CHOR  Chorus  MUSIC  

6822  CHOS  Music Chorus Supervising  MUSIC  

7079  GU    Guitar  MUSIC  

7318  VOMU  Vocal Music  MUSIC  

7496  MUVS  Music (Vocal) - Supervising  MUSIC  

7499  MUSV  Music (Vocal)  MUSIC  

7500  MUSI  Music (Instrumental)  MUSIC  

7502  MUIS  Music (Instrumental) - Supervising  MUSIC  

7522  ORCH  Orchestra  MUSIC  

  

▪ Second, prefer any of the following specific LicenseEndorsementCode codes. The 
EndorsementSubjectCode is no longer applicable  

  
  LicenseEndorsementCode    EndorsementSubjectCode  

7076  GRA   Graphic Arts (Career & Technical 
only)  

       

7205  DGA   Digital Arts (Career & Technical only)         

7982  CKCF  Content Knowledge Pathway: Dance  CKP  

7983  CKCG  Content Knowledge Pathway: 
Dance/Theatre Arts  

CKP  

8050  CKEV  Content Knowledge Pathway: Music  CKP  

321



Page 216 
 

8068  CKFN  Content Knowledge Pathway: Visual 
Arts  

CKP  

7647  DIA   Digital Arts CIP: 50.0102  CTE  

7648  CAA   Commercial and Advertising Art CIP: 
50.0402  

CTE  

7649  CP    Commercial Photography CIP: 
50.0406  

CTE  

7882  GRCM  Graphic Communications  CTE  

7883  PHTG  Photography  CTE  

6999  ADA    Advertising Art  CTE   

6871  CAC   Childrens Arts and Crafts  EARLY  

6809  GRAS  Graphic Arts Supervising  GRAPH  

7077  GRAR  Graphic Arts  GRAPH  

7092  GRDE  Graphic Design  GRAPH  

7221  GDCA  Graphic Design & Communications 
Art  

GRAPH  

6547  AAMM  NBPTS: Early and Middle 
Childhood/Music  

NBPTS  

6575  AYMU  NBPTS:  Early Adolescence - Young 
Adulthood/Music  

NBPTS  

  

▪ Third, prefer any of the following specific codes. Again, EndorsementSubjectCode is no 
longer applicable.   

  
  LicenseEndorsementCode    EndorsementSubjectCode  

6643  SCGE  Elementary Education (Self Contained 
General Education)  

ELEM   

6749  SCG3  Early Childhood Education (Self 
Contained General Education)  

ELEM   

6756  SCXK  Self-Contained General Education   ELEM   

6799  ELEM  Elementary Education  ELEM   

7376  SCG6  Self-Contained General Education  ELEM   

7377  SCG9  Self-Contained General Education  ELEM   

7382  SCKP  Self-Contained General Education   ELEM   

6786  EARL  Early Childhood Education  EARLY  

  

 
Formula (calculations) 

• See business rules section. 
 
Sources of Data 
Student Information System (SIS) 
ELIS 
 
  

322



Page 217 
 

 

School Improvement Funds 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

323



Page 218 
 

School Improvement Funds 
Definition 
IL-EMPOWER is a federal grant program authorized under Title I, Part A, Section 1003 of the Every Student 
Succeeds Act, 2015 (ESSA).  The purpose of this School Improvement Grant is to support local education 
agencies (LEA), via the Statewide System of Technical Assistance and Support (IL-EMPOWER) to serve schools 
implementing comprehensive support and improvement activities or targeted support and improvement 
activities.  The goal is to provide all children significant opportunity to receive a fair, equitable, and high-
quality education by providing adequate resources to substantially raise the achievement of students in lowest 
and underperforming schools. 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: The Every Student Succeeds Act, 2015 

 
Business Rules 

• Schools in Improvement Status that Receive School Improvement Grant Funds from Title I, Part A, Section 
1003 

o This display indicates the school in the district that are in improvement status11 and that receive a 
School Improvement Grant funded by federal Title I, Part A, Section 1003.  

o This field lists the names of all schools in a district for the purpose of displaying respective 
improvement status information.  

• School Improvement Status  
o This field is derived from the Level of Support value denoted below.   
o School Improvement Statuses when Level of Support is: 

▪ TSI when Targeted  
▪ CSI when Comprehensive  
▪ ISI when Intensive  
▪ N/A when null  

o A school enters school improvement status when it receives an annual summative designation of 
Targeted, Comprehensive, or Intensive, and it remains in improvements status for four years 2(i.e., 
one year of planning followed by three years of implementation) regardless of improvements in 
any of the three subsequent annual summative designations issued during the status period.  

o While in school improvement status, schools may reset their level of support from Targeted to 
Comprehensive.  Receiving a lower annual summative designation of Comprehensive while in 
Targeted Improvement status effectively resets the support level to Comprehensive; restarts the 
four-year status timeline to year one planning; and commensurately readjusts the funding level.  

o School improvement status and corresponding eligibility for funding terminate when a school 
closes or substantively restructures the grade levels served via change request to the Region-
County-District-Type-School (RCDTS) code.  

• School Year First Identified in Improvement Status 
o This field reports the first year that a school is identified in improvement status to anchor the start 

of the four-year improvement status period and provide a timestamp reference.  This field reflects 
a cohort year label for all schools newly identified in improvement status in the stated year for the 
purpose of tracking time progression during the status period.  

• Level of Support  
o F 

324

https://www.congress.gov/114/plaws/publ95/PLAW-114publ95.pdf


Page 219 
 

o This field indicates one of three levels of support provided by the Statewide System of Support for 
School Improvement and in defined in the Illinois ESSA Plan.  The possible support levels are listed 
below.  

▪ ‘Targeted’ support for the state’s underperforming schools.  
▪ ‘Comprehensive’ support for the state’s lowest performing schools.  
▪ ‘Intensive’ support for the state’s consistently lowest-performing schools.  

o The support level is synonymous with the annual summative designation that initiated 
improvement status, and it informs the school’s funding level.  

• Reason for Improvement Status & Grant Allocation 
o This field indicates the reason for a school being in school improvement status and receiving a 

School Improvement Grant allocation.  The possible reasons are listed below.  
▪ Reasons for Comprehensive schools:  

• All Students Group. Because the “all students” group performed in the bottom five 
percent of Title- eligible schools statewide, or  

• Low Graduation Rate.  Because the high school “graduation rate” was below 67%.  
▪ Reasons for Targeted schools:  

• Student Demographics and Program Groups.  Because one or more student groups 
as listed below performs at or below the “all students” group of the lowest-
performing five percent of schools.   

o Demographic Student Groups  
▪ American Indian or Alaska Native  
▪ Asian  
▪ Black or African American  
▪ Hispanic or Latino  
▪ Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander  
▪ Two or More Races  
▪ White  

o Program Student Groups  
▪ Children with disabilities (CWD)  
▪ Economically disadvantaged students (Low Income)  
▪ English Learners (EL)  
▪ Former English Learners (FEL)  

• School Improvement Grant Allocation by School 
o This field indicates the funding amount allocated to each school in improvement status.  Table 1 

illustrates the base funding structure that determines the minimum amount that will be allocated 
to each school in status.  

▪ Each grant award is subject to an equity multiplier whereby annual funding is determined 
on the greater of either base funding or an equity calculation which adjusts for Evidenced-
Based Funding Tiers and student enrollment.  

▪ Funding is structured on a declining allocation model over the four-year term of the grant.  
▪ Table 1. Base Funding Structure for School Improvement Grant by Support Level & Year  

Base Funding Structure for School Improvement Grants 

  Funding Amount  

Funding Cycle  Comprehensive  Targeted  

Planning Year  $25,000 $15,000  

Implementation Year 1  $100,000  $30,000  

325

https://www.isbe.net/Pages/ESSA.aspx


Page 220 
 

Implementation Year 2  $65,000  $20,000  

Implementation Year 3  $35,000  $10,000  
  

• Allowable uses of the funds are posted here.  
• Circumstances created by the pandemic and subsequent waivers from the U.S. Department of 

Education (ED) resulted in the School Improvement Grant being extended by one school year 
for schools entering school improvement status in 2018 and 2019.  In effect, funds for these 
two cohort years were redistributed to cover five years rather than four.  Table 2 illustrates the 
structure.  

• Table 2. Funding Structure for School in Report Card Cohorts 2018 & 2019  

  

 
• To fulfill these business rules, ESSA/IL-EMPOWER, in conjunction with Budget and Financial 

Management, will provide the following data elements to ISBE’s Data Warehouse on an annual 
basis for reporting on the current school year Report Card.  

• List of schools to receive School Improvement Grant funds in the current fiscal year (i.e., 
Report Card 2023 annual summative designations, generated from FY 2022 school data, 
determine FY 2024 grant allocations)  

• The allocation to be awarded to each school in FY 2024.  
• Level of support in FY 2024  
• Amount of School Improvement Grant funds the school received for the previous school 

year  
• Note: Amount will be provided; does not need to be calculated  

• Reason for Receiving School Improvement Grant funds  
• Note: This will be the reason for the designation that triggered the support (e.g., 

all students group, graduation rate)  
• No calculations will be performed on this data for use on the Report Card.  
• District level information that is displayed will be a listing of the schools within the 

district.  
• State level information displayed will be a listing of the schools within the state.  

 
Formula (calculations) 
 N/A 
 
Sources of Data 
Title Grant Administration/Illinois Empower 
Accountability 
 
  

326

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/Title-I-Part-A-Section-1003-School-Improvement-Allowable-Use-of-Funds.pdf


Page 221 
 

 

Teacher Measures  

SY 202 

Teachers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

327



Page 222 
 

Teacher Measures 
Definition  
A Teacher is defined as a Regular or Special Education Instructor within the Employment Information System 
(EIS).  
 
Teacher Retention is defined as the three-year average percentage of full-time teachers returning to the same 
entity from year to year.   

• Teacher retention rate at the school level is the total number of full-time teachers retained in the same 
school in past three years, divided by the total number of full-time teachers from the past three years.   

• Teacher retention rate at the district level is the total number of full-time teachers staying in the same 
district in past three years, divided by the total number of full-time teachers from the past three years.   

• Teacher retention rate at the state level is the total number of full-time teachers staying in the same 
district in past three years, divided by the total number of full-time teachers from the past three years.   

• The data comes from the Employment Information System.  
 
Teacher FTE is defined as the total of all Work Location FTE values for all teachers.  
 
Teacher Headcount is defined as the total number of all teachers.  
 
Teacher Gender Distribution is defined as the percentage of teacher FTE by gender.  
 
Teacher Race Distribution is defined as the percentage of teacher FTE by race/ethnicity.  
 
Teacher with a Bachelor’s Degree is defined as a teacher with their highest degree as a Bachelor’s Degree as 
determined by DegreeSequenceNumber = 5.   
 
Teacher with a Master’s Degree or Above is defined as a teacher with any degree higher than a Bachelor’s as 
determined by DegreeSequenceNumber > 5.  
 
Teacher Education Distribution – Teachers with a Bachelor’s Degree is defined as the percent of total FTE of  
Teacher’s with a Bachelor’s Degree.  
 
Teacher Education Distribution – Teachers with Masters’ Degree and Above is defined as the percent of total 
teacher FTE of Teachers with Masters’ degree and above.  
 
Average IL Public School Teacher Experience is defined as the average years of teachers’ experience based on 
teacher FTE.  
 
Novice Teacher Rate is defined as the percent of teacher FTE with less than 2 FTE years of combined IL public 
school service.  
 
Novice Teacher Count is defined as the sum of teacher FTE with less than 2 FTE years of combined IL public 
school service.  
 
Average Teacher Salary is defined as the total of teachers’ work location base salary divided by the teacher 
FTE.  
 

328



Page 223 
 

Teacher Attendance Rate is defined as the percentage of full-time equivalent teachers who were reported 
absent fewer than 10 days for reasons other than professional development, leaves of absence pursuant to 
the federal Family Medical Leave Act of 1993, long-term disability, or parental leaves pursuant to statue 
section 10-17a(2)€. 
 
Teacher Evaluation – Effective Teacher is defined as the total number of teachers who received an evaluation 
in the current reporting year that received a Proficient or Excellent rating on their evaluation divided by the 
total number of teachers who received an evaluation for the school year.  
 
Pupil Teacher Ratio - Elementary is defined as the average number of classroom teacher FTE for grades PreK-8 
for Fall PreK-8 Grade Student Enrollment.  
 
Pupil Teacher Ratio – High School is defined as the average number of classroom teacher FTE for grades 9-12 
for Fall 9-12 Grade Student Enrollment.  
 
Teachers with Short-Term or Provisional Licenses Rate is defined as the percent of teacher FTE with an active 
provisional license or approved emergency approval within the Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS).  
 
Teachers with Short-Term or Provisional Licenses Count is defined as the sum of teacher FTE with an active 
provisional license or approved emergency approval within the Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS).  
 
High-Poverty School is defined as a school in which the percentage of “low-income” Fall Student Enrollment 
ranks at or above the 75th percentile.  
 
Low-Poverty Schools is defined as a school in which the percentage of “low-income” Fall Student Enrollment 
ranks below the 25th percentile.  
 
Teachers with Gifted Endorsement is defined as the total headcount of teachers who hold a gifted education 
endorsement.  
  
Guidance Citation  
State Statute/Guidance:  Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/10-17a  
Federal Statute/Guidance:  ESSA 
 
Business Rules  

• Teacher metric data is calculated from the Employment Information System (EIS) and the Educator 
Licensure Information System (ELIS). All Educator metrics are calculated on the work location level. The 
district is the district/parent of the working location.  If working location entityId is DistrictId (Categrory 2) 
then working location entityId is used as district entityId. 

• All rate calculations are numerator ÷ denominator × 100 (rounded to 1 decimal point)  

• All averages are rounded to the nearest whole number  

• For school level, work locations (schools) that do not receive a report card are excluded from 
all teacher metrics  

• For district level, include all schools in that district, regardless if the school receives a report card or 

not 

• For state level, include all schools and districts, regardless if the school receives a report card or not  

329

https://www.dol.gov/whd/fmla/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K10-17a
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2020/03/report-card-guidance-final.pdf


Page 224 
 

• Teacher metrics include all for Instructional, Resource and Special Education Educators unless otherwise 
specified  

• “Teachers” are educators within the Employment Information System (EIS) defined by the following rules:  
o Has an active Employment record and associated Position and Working Location details.  
o The Position record is associated with the School Year to be calculated.  
o The position has a Position Category Code of:  

▪ 2 - Instructional  
▪ Note: Position Codes of 209 and 210 are codes that are no longer a valid teacher position 

codes.  There are no employees assigned to these codes after School Year 2017.  
o A Position Time Frame of either:  

▪ 1 – Regular School Year  
▪ 3 – Both  
▪ Note: Starting in the 2015-2016 both are being transitioned out, however needs to be 

included as not all records have been transitioned.  Summer School only teachers are 
excluded.  

• A teacher is considered “retained” if they have any FTE value in the year in question and were in the 
same work location and had an FTE =1 in the previous year.    

• Position Details  
o Teacher FTE is determined by the following:  

▪ If a district has submitted “Contract Override Days” for their EIS records then Teacher FTE is: 
Percent Full time * (Days Paid / Contract Override Days for Full Time), otherwise 

▪ Teacher FTE is: ((Percent Full time * Days Paid / Contract Days for Full Time or Contract Days 
Override) ) 

o Teacher FTE salary is determined by the following:  
▪ Teacher’s base salary / Teacher FTE  

o Note Regarding Full Time vs Part Time and FTE:  
▪ A teacher’s Full-time/Part-time distinction is submitted by the district at the positions level. 
▪ An educator can occupy two different positions based on the Position Category Codes 

(e.g. teacher and assistant principal) for the same district they would be considered a part 
time teacher and a part time administrator. Each position’s “percent full time” would be 
less than 100% and the total percent full time for both positions cannot exceed 100%. 

▪ An educator can occupy one position based on the Position Category Code (e.g. Teacher) 
and be assigned to multiple work locations. The FTE is determined at the position level and 
the work location FTE is determined by multiplying the work location “workload” value by 
the position FTE.  

▪ If an educator holds the same position at multiple employers (district) the educator’s FTE is 
determined at each employer.   

• Work Location Details  
o All teacher/educator metrics are calculated on the work location level.  
o A teacher can have more than one work location associated with an EIS Position. 
o Each working location detail:  

▪ Identifies the physical location / school the teacher assigned to.  
▪ The district is determined by the parent entity of the working location/school.  
▪ Includes the Workload which represents the amount of time the teacher is at the location.  

o Work Location Teacher FTE is the percent of their EIS Position Full-Time Equivalent value they are 
allocated to that work location or workload * position FTE.  

330



Page 225 
 

o The school used for High Poverty / Low Poverty is the serving school from the enrollments as it 
matches the teacher working location.  

▪ Determination of High Poverty and Low Poverty schools occurs via a separate process 
outside the Teacher metric calculation counting the years a teacher appears in EIS with an 
FTE >= 0.67 and adding that to the sum of experience from the retired TSR system. 

• Illinois in-state Teacher Experience is determined by summing the years of experience a teacher has in 
EIS and adding that to the sum of experience from the retired TSR system. 

• Teachers with Gifted Endorsement are teachers who have at least one of the following License 
Endorsement with an issued status: 

o GIED (Gifted Education) 
o GIES (Gifted Education – Supervising) 
o GIF (Gifted Education Teacher) 
o GIFS (Gifted Specialist) 

 
Formula (calculations)  
Teacher Retention Formula 

• Definition 
o School level  

▪ Three (3) year average percentage of full-time teachers returning to the same school year to 
year  

o District and State level   
▪ Three (3) year average percentage of full-time teachers returning to the same district year 

to year  

• Formula 
o ((Total number of Retained Teachers in Current Reporting Year) + (Total number of Retained 

Teachers in Previous Reporting Year) + (Total number of Retained Teachers in Two Years Prior to 
Reporting Year)) ÷ Total number of Retained Teachers for Past Three Years   

 
Work Location FTE Formula 

• Formula 
o Teacher work location workload value × position FTE 

 
Teacher FTE Formula 

• Definition 
o Total of all Work Location FTE values for all teachers 

• Formula 
o Sum of all (Work Location Workload Values × Position Full-Time Equivalent value)  

 
Teacher Headcount Formula 

• Definition 
o The total number of all Teachers 

• Formula 
o Count of all distinct IEIN values for the Work Location 

 
Teacher Gender Distribution Formula 

• Definition 

331



Page 226 
 

o Percent of Teacher FTE by Gender 

• Formula 
o ((Teacher FTE by Gender) ÷ (Teacher FTE)) × 100 

 
Teacher Race Distribution Formula 

• Definition 
o Percent of Teacher FTE by Race/Ethnicity 

• Formula 
o ((Teacher FTE by Race) ÷ (Teacher FTE)) × 100 

 
Teacher Race and Gender Distribution 

• Definition 
o Percent of Teacher FTE by Race/Ethnicity and Gender 

• Formula 
o ((Teacher FTE by Race and Gender) ÷ (Teacher FTE)) × 100  

 
Teacher Education Distribution – Teachers with Bachelor’s Degree Formula 

• Definition 
o Percent of Total Teacher FTE with only a Bachelor’s degree 
o Bachelor’s Degree Teacher: Teachers with DegreeSequenceNumber = 4. 

• All Schools 
o Formula 

▪ ((Teacher FTE with Bachelor’s degree) ÷ (Teacher FTE)) × 100 

• High Poverty Schools 
o Formula 

▪ (Total Teacher FTE with Bachelor’s degree for high poverty schools) ÷ (Total Teacher FTE for 
high poverty schools) × 100 

• Low Poverty Schools 
o Formula 

▪ (Total Teacher FTE with Bachelor’s degree for low poverty schools) ÷ (Total Teacher FTE for 
low poverty schools) × 100 

• At the State level: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty schools. 
 
Teacher Education Distribution – Teachers with Master’s Degree and Above Formula 

• Definition 
o Percent of Total Teacher FTE with Master’s and higher degree. 
o Master’s Degree Teacher: Teachers with DegreeSequenceNumber > 4. 

• All Schools 
o Formula 

▪ ((Teacher FTE with Master’s degree or above) ÷ (Teacher FTE)) × 100 

• High Poverty Schools 
o Formula 

▪ (Total Teacher FTE with Master’s degree or above for high poverty schools) ÷ (Total Teacher 
FTE for high poverty schools) × 100 

• Low Poverty Schools 
o Formula 

332



Page 227 
 

▪ (Total Teacher FTE with Master’s degree or above for low poverty schools) ÷ (Total Teacher 
FTE for low poverty schools) × 100 

• At the State level: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty schools. 
 
Average IL Public School In-State Teacher Experience Formula 

• Definition 
o Average years of teachers’ experience based on Teacher FTE  

• All Schools 
o Formula 

▪ (Sum of the number of years of In-State Teaching Experience) ÷ (Teacher FTE) 

• High Poverty Schools 
o Formula 

▪ (Total number of years of In-State Teaching Experience for high poverty schools) ÷ (Total 
Teacher FTE for high poverty schools) 

• Low Poverty Schools 
o Formula 

▪ (Total number of years of In-State Teaching Experience for low poverty schools) ÷ (Total 
Teacher FTE for low poverty schools) 

• At the State level: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty schools. 
 
Novice Teacher Rate Formula 

• Definition  
o Percent of Teacher FTE with less than 2 full time equivalent years of combined IL Public Schools 

• All Schools 
o Formula 

▪ (Teacher FTE with less than 2 in the EIS In-State Teaching Experience field) ÷ (Teacher FTE) × 
100 

• High Poverty Schools  
o Formula  

▪ (Total Teacher FTE with less than 2 in the EIS In-State Teaching Experience field for high 
poverty schools) ÷ (Total Teacher FTE for high poverty schools) × 100  

• Low Poverty Schools  
o Formula  

▪ (Total Teacher FTE with less than 2 in the EIS In-State Teaching Experience field for low 
poverty schools) ÷ (Total Teacher FTE for low poverty schools) × 100  

• At the State and District level: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty 
schools. 

 
Novice Teacher Count Formula 

• Definition   
o Sum of Teacher FTE with less than 2 full time equivalent years of combined IL Public Schools  

• Formula  
o Σ (Teacher FTE with less than 2 in the EIS In-State Teaching Experience field)  

• At State and District levels: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty 
schools.    

 

333



Page 228 
 

Average Teacher Salary Formula 

• Definition 
o Total of teachers’ work location base salary divided by the Teacher FTE. 
o Note:  

▪ Teachers that have a Position FTE salary under the minimum amount indicated in the 
Minimum Salary field specified in the Position Code table are excluded from this metric as 
this data is considered erroneous 

▪ Minimum and maximum exclusions apply both the numerator and denominator of this 
metric. 

o Position FTE Salary is the Base Salary divided by the Position FTE 

• Formula 
o (Sum of Teacher Position Base Salary) ÷ (Total Teacher Position FTE) 

 
Teacher Attendance Rate Formula 

• Definition 
o Percent of Teacher FTE who were reported absent less than 10 days except due to Parental Leave, 

FMLA, Professional Development, or Long-Term Disability 

• Formula 
o ((Sum of Teacher FTE absent less than 10 days*) ÷ (Teacher FTE)) × 100 

 
Teacher Evaluation Formula 

• Definition 
o Total number of Teachers who received an evaluation in the current reporting year that received a 

Proficient or Excellent rating on their evaluation divided by the total number of teachers who 
received an evaluation for the school year 

• Effective Teacher 
o Formula 

▪ ((Total number of Teachers with a Proficient or Excellent Evaluation rating) ÷ (Teacher count 
who received an evaluation)) × 100 

 
Pupil Teacher Ratio – (Elementary and High School) Formula 

• Definition 
o Average number of Classroom Teacher FTE for grade PreK-8 for Fall PreK-8 Grade Student 

Enrollment 
o Position Category with Regular Education Instructional and PositionGradelevelAssignmentId in 

(1,2,3) is Elementary and PositionGradelevelAssignmentID – 4 is High School 

• Formula 
o (Fall Enrollment Count) ÷ (Classroom Teacher FTE) :1 

 
Teachers with Short Term or Provisional Licenses Rate Formula 

• Definition 
o Percent of Teacher FTE with an active provisional license or approved emergency approval within 

the Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS) 
o Provisional License 

▪ Alternative Provisional Educator Endorsement (APE) 
▪ Provisional In-State Educator (PIDU) 

334



Page 229 
 

▪ Visiting In-State Educator (VIT) 
▪ Transitional Bilingual Educator (TBE) 

o Emergency Approval 
▪ Educator has at least one of the following as issued: 

• Short Term Emergency (STE) 

• Short Term Approval (STA) 
o Excluding STA-PARA 

• All Schools 
o Formula 

▪ ((Teacher FTE with an active Emergency or approved Provisional License) ÷ (Teacher FTE)) × 
100 

• High Poverty Schools  
o Formula  

▪ (Total Teacher FTE with an active Emergency or approved Provisional License for high 
poverty schools) ÷ (Total Teacher FTE for high poverty schools) × 100  

• Low Poverty Schools  
o Formula  

▪ (Total Teacher FTE with an active Emergency or approved Provisional License for low 
poverty schools) ÷ (Total Teacher FTE for low poverty schools) × 100  

• At the State and District level: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty 
schools. 

 
Teachers with Short Term or Provisional Licenses Count  

• Definition  
o Sum of Teacher FTE with an active provisional license or approved emergency approval within the 

Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS)  
o Provisional License   

▪ Educator has at least one of the following certificates with an issued status AND no PEL with 
an issued status. 

• Included Certificates with issued status:   
o Alternative Provisional Educator Endorsement (APE)   
o Provisional In-State Educator (PIDU)   
o Visiting International Teacher (VIT)    
o Transitional Bilingual Educator (TBE) 

o Emergency Approval   
▪ Includes the following: Educator has at least one of the following as Issued    

• Short Term Emergency (STE)   

• Short Term Approval (STA)   
o Excluding STA’s that have a PARA License Endorsement  

• Formula  
o Σ (Teacher FTE with an active Emergency or approved Provisional License)  

• At State and District: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty schools.    
 
 
 
 

335



Page 230 
 

Teachers with Gifted Endorsement Formula 

• Definition 
o Total headcount of teachers who hold a gifted education endorsement. 

• Formula 
o Total headcount of teachers who hold a gifted education endorsement 

• Note: Includes for License and Endorsement where “License Credential Status” is either Issued (I) 
 
Sources of Data  
Employment Information System (EIS) 
Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS) 
Student Information System (SIS)   
 
  

336



Page 231 
 

 

National Board Certified Teachers 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

337



Page 232 
 

National Board Certified Teachers 
Definition  
National Board Certified Teachers are teachers who have achieved National Board Certification, the most 
respected professional certification available in education. Certification was designed to develop, retain, and 
recognize accomplished teachers and to generate ongoing improvement in schools nationwide. It provides 
numerous benefits to teachers, students, and schools. 
 
Guidance Citation  
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois General Assembly - Bill Status for HB2438 (ilga.gov) and Public Act 102-0594 

Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 

 
Business Rules  

• The total number of educators who are National Board Certified 
o Use the ELIS Designation table (don’t use the Endorsement table) 
o Should pull designation from the “Additional Credentials” tab in ELIS listed under designations 
o Include only designations with an expiration date on or after June 30, 2023 
o Include only designations with Specialty Code 0017 (NBPTS; Master Teacher Designation) 

• The number of educators who are National Board Certified for each race/ethnicity teacher group (EIS) 

• The number of educators who are National Board Certified for each gender teacher group (EIS) 

• Active employment in EIS 

• Educator Race/Ethnicity Codes (EIS) 
o 11: Hispanic or Latino 
o 12: American Indian or Alaska Native 
o 13: Asian 
o 14: Black or African American 
o 15: Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 
o 16: White 
o 17: Two or More Races 
o 99: Unknown 

• Educator Gender Codes (EIS) 
o Female 
o Male 

 
Formula (calculations)  
Total Teacher Headcount 

• Definition 
o The total number of all Teachers with National Board Certification 

• Formula 
o Count of all distinct IEIN values with National Board Certification for the Work Location 

 
Total Teacher Headcount by Race/Ethnicity 

• Definition 
o The total number of all Teachers with National Board Certification by Race/Ethnicity 

• Formula 
o Count of all distinct IEIN values with National Board Certification for the Work Location by 

Race/Ethnicity 

338

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/BillStatus.asp?DocNum=2438&GAID=16&DocTypeID=HB&SessionID=110&GA=102
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0594


Page 233 
 

• Includes for License where “License Credential Status” is either Issued (I), Hold License (HL), or Hold 
Unpaid Taxes (HT) 

• Includes for National Source Code NBPTS (National Board of Professional Teaching Standards) and 
Specialty National Source NBPTS only 

 
Total Teacher Headcount by Gender 

• Definition 
o The total number of all Teachers with National Board Certification by Gender 

• Formula 
o Count of all distinct IEIN values with National Board Certification for the Work Location by Gender 

• Includes for License where “License Credential Status” is either Issued (I), Hold License (HL), or Hold 
Unpaid Taxes (HT) 

• Includes for National Source Code NBPTS (National Board of Professional Teaching Standards) and 
Specialty National Source NBPTS only 

 
 
Sources of Data  
Employment Information System (EIS) 
Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS) 
 
  

339



Page 234 
 

 

Teacher Out of Field 

SY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

340



Page 235 
 

Teacher Out of Field 
Definition  
A teacher teaching in a grade or content area for which he or she does not hold the appropriate state-issued 
license, endorsement, approvals, or previous qualifications.  

• A teacher is considered out-of-field on a course level basis. For example, a teacher can be out-of-field for 
one course and in-field for a different course  

 
A school/district/state levels, a teacher will be considered out-of-field if they are out-of-field for at least one of 
their course assignments  
 
Guidance Citation  
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois ESSA Plan  
Federal Statute/Guidance: 

• ESSA 2017 Federal Guidance 

• ESSA Plan Template  
 
Business Rules  

• Entities  
o Refer to the “Teacher Measures business rules  
o Charter Schools are excluded. Charters do not follow the same licensure requirements. Charter 

school teachers are neither in-field nor out-of-field. 

• Course Assignments  
o Course assignments are used to link teachers and students.   
o Only include course assignments where at least one student in the course received an outcome of 

Pass or Fail  

• Teachers  
o Has a course assignment in the given school year at the school  

• Out-of-Field Teachers  
o At a school level, any teacher with at least one out-of-field course will be considered out-of-field 

for the school  
▪ A teacher can be out-of-field at one school (at least one course out-of-field), but in-field at 

another school (no out-of-field courses)  
o At a district level, any teacher with at least one out-of-field course will be considered out-of-field 

for the district  
▪ A teacher can be out-of-field at one district (at least one course out-of-field), but in-field at 

another district (no out-of-field courses)  
o At the state level, any teacher with at least one out-of-field course will be considered out-of-field  
o Link teachers to course assignments and students through course assignment data and use the 

Out-of-field rules below to compare licensure information to course subjects and grade levels to 
determine if a teacher is out of field.  

• In-Field Teachers should follow the rules below:  
o Exclude license endorsements with these subject codes:  

▪ ADMIN  
▪ DUAL  
▪ GIFT   
▪ NBPTS  

341

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/AttB-Il-ESSA-Amend-2022-plan-redline.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/essastatereportcard.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/essa-consolidated-state-plan-final.docx


Page 236 
 

▪ PARA  
▪ SERVE  

o Exclude Licenses (and endorsements attached to those licenses) with these Certificate codes:  
▪ APA  
▪ CSBO  
▪ PARA  
▪ PEDU  
▪ SUB  

• Basic Rules: 
o Any educator with an issued PEL can teach State Course ID = 19197A000 

▪ Added an indicator for this course, so that any teacher with this course and an issued PEL 
will be considered in field for this course. 

o Any educator working at a charter school should not be OOF 
▪ Any course taught at a charter school will be excluded. 

o Use reporting year snapshot 
o Only include educators in teaching positions that worked during the regular school year (or both 

the regular school year and summer/night school). 
▪ 1 – Regular School Year  
▪ 3 – Both  

o Licenses, Approvals, and Qualifications should have an original issue date on or before March 1 of 
considered school year. 

o Endorsements on License should have one of the following to be included 
▪ Original Issue Date on or before March 1 of the considered school year 
▪ No original issue date AND an issue date on or before March 1 of the considered school year 
▪ No original Issue date AND no issue date 

o Approvals listed in the chart below should be considered with the grade ranges listed. 

• Bilingual and ESL Teachers 
o All teachers with an issued Bilingual or ESL endorsement or approval are marked as in field. 
o For endorsements, we only consider educators with an issued License. 
o Approvals with codes I (Issued) are considered for approval status. 
o Consider issued approvals in the table below with the associated Endorsement Code: 

Approval Code License Endorsement Codes 

STA BALB 

STA BAMH 

STA BARA 

STA BASS 

STA BBEN 

STA BBUL 

STA BBUR 

STA BCAN 

STA BCHI 

STA BCHN 

STA BCRE 

STA BCZE 

STA BDAN 

342



Page 237 
 

STA BEWE 

STA BFAR 

STA BFIL 

STA BFRE 

STA BGER 

STA BGRE 

STA BGUJ 

STA BHAI 

STA BHEB 

STA BHIN 

STA BHMO 

STA BHUN 

STA BIND 

STA BITA 

STA BJAP 

STA BKAN 

STA BKAR 

STA BKHM 

STA BKIR 

STA BKOR 

STA BLAO 

STA BLAT 

STA BLIT 

STA BMAL 

STA BMAN 

STA BMAY 

STA BMON 

STA BNEP 

STA BPAN 

STA BPIL 

STA BPOL 

STA BPOR 

STA BROH 

STA BROM 

STA BRUS 

STA BSCB 

 

• Special Education Teachers 
o All teachers with an issued Special Education endorsement or approval are marked as in field. 
o All teachers with an issued ‘ECT’, 'SGSI','SGNI','INTV','CUES' approval are considered SPED and will 

be marked as in field. 
o Approvals with codes I (Issued) are considered for approval status. 
o Consider issued approvals in the table below with the associated Endorsement Code: 

343



Page 238 
 

Approval Code License Endorsement Codes 

STE LBSI 

STE ECT 

STE DHH 

STE BPS 

 
o Consider issued licenses with an endorsement in the table below with the associated Subject Code. 

License 
Endorsement 

Code License Endorsement Description 
Endorsement 
Subject Code 

LCAS 
Learning Behavior Specialist II: Curriculum 
Adaptation SPED 

LMDS Learning Behavior Specialist II: Multiple Disabilities SPED 

LTRS Learning Behavior Specialist II: Transition SPED 

LTS Learning Behavior Specialist II: Technology SPED 

LBIS 
Learning Behavior Specialist II: Behavior 
Intervention SPED 

LBSE 
Learning Behavior Specialist II: Bilingual Special 
Education SPED 

LBSI Learning Behavior Specialist I SPED 

LDBS Learning Behavior Specialist II: Deaf-Blind SPED 

DHH 
Teachers of Students who are Deaf and Hard of 
Hearing  
 SPED 

BPS 
Teachers of Students who are Blind and Visually-
Impaired 
 SPED 

ECS3 
Early Childhood Special Education 
 SPED 

 

• Miscellaneous Course Subject 
o A teacher cannot be out of field for teaching a course in the subject area Miscellaneous. 
o Teachers must still have a valid teaching license with an endorsement appropriate for the grade 

range. 

• Sign Language Courses  
o A teacher cannot be out of field for teaching a Sign Language course. 
o A Sign Language course is any course with ‘Sign Language’ in the title. 
o Teachers must still have a valid teaching license with an endorsement, approval, or qualification 

appropriate for the grade range. 

• Elementary Grade Ranges 
o For course assignments that are grades k-8, an educator is in-field when the course assignment 

grade is within the grade range for any Endorsements. Qualifications, and Approvals that is Issued. 
o Subject area is not considered for elementary grades. 
o Grade ranges are considered issued for the following: 

▪ Issued endorsements on issued licenses (status on both are I – Issued) 

344



Page 239 
 

▪ Issued Qualifications 
▪ Issued Approvals 
▪ NOTE: Grade ID for endorsements and qualifications should not be null and can be 

excluded. Approvals with no grade id are considered out of field except for listed those in 
the approval grade range table below. 

Approval Code ID Approval Code Grade Code Grade Range 

5 AUT 6 PK-22 

38 BLD 6 PK-22 

63 CBD 6 PK-22 

72 CLD 6 PK-22 

74 CPH 6 PK-22 

86 DHH 6 PK-22 

180 LBSI Z K-22 

181 LBSL 6 PK-22 

183 LD 6 PK-22 

195 MR 6 PK-22 

230 OBD 6 PK-22 

257 OLD 6 PK-22 

261 OMR 6 PK-22 

270 OPH 6 PK-22 

280 OSL 6 PK-22 

284 OSP 6 PK-22 

285 OSPX 6 PK-22 

318 PH 6 PK-22 

390 SED 6 PK-22 

412 TBI 6 PK-22 

 

• High school grades 
o When considering courses that serve high school students, educator courses are also considered in 

field if they satisfy one of the following criteria: “License and Endorsements”, “Approvals”, 
“Qualifications”, “Endorsements and Specific Courses or Subjects”. Use crosswalks for “License and 
Endorsement”, “Approvals” and “Qualifications”. Any other endorsement and course combinations 
are listed in “Endorsements and Specific Courses or Subjects”. 

o License and Endorsements 
▪ Educator courses will be in field if the subjects taught align with their issued endorsements 

attached to a license that has a status code of I (Issued). Matches between endorsements 
and subject areas are done using the endorsement cross walk. 

▪ Crosswalk between ELIS Endorsement Codes and SIS Subject Codes 

License 
Endorsement 
Subject Code 

ELIS 

Subject 
Area 

Code SIS SIS Subject Area 

LANG 1 English Language and Literature 

ESL 1 English Language and Literature 

345



Page 240 
 

MATH 2 Mathematics 

SCI 3 Life and Physical Sciences 

HIST 4 Social Sciences and History 

SOSCI 4 Social Sciences and History 

PSYCH 4 Social Sciences and History 

ARTS 5 Fine and Performing Arts 

MUSIC 5 Fine and Performing Arts 

HIST 5 Fine and Performing Arts 

SOSCI 7 Religious Education and Theology 

PE 8 Physical, Health, and Safety Education 

MEDIC 8 Physical, Health, and Safety Education 

CTE 8 Physical, Health, and Safety Education 

VOCED 8 Physical, Health, and Safety Education 

COMP 10 Information Technology 

GRAPH 10 Information Technology 

CTE 10 Information Technology 

VOCED 10 Information Technology 

COMM 11 Communication and Audio/Visual Technology 

CTE 11 Communication and Audio/Visual Technology 

LIBR 11 Communication and Audio/Visual Technology 

VOCED 11 Communication and Audio/Visual Technology 

BUS 12 Business and Marketing 

OFFIC 12 Business and Marketing 

COMP 12 Business and Marketing 

CTE 12 Business and Marketing 

VOCED 12 Business and Marketing 

AUTO 13 Manufacturing 

AVIAT 13 Manufacturing 

GRAPH 13 Manufacturing 

CTE 13 Manufacturing 

VOCED 13 Manufacturing 

TEED 13 Manufacturing 

CTE 14 Health Care Sciences 

VOCED 14 Health Care Sciences 

MEDIC 14 Health Care Sciences 

CRIM 15 Public, Protective, and Government Service 

CTE 15 Public, Protective, and Government Service 

VOCED 15 Public, Protective, and Government Service 

HOMEC 16 Hospitality and Tourism 

FOOD 16 Hospitality and Tourism 

CTE 16 Hospitality and Tourism 

VOCED 16 Hospitality and Tourism 

CONST 17 Architecture and Construction 

GRAPH 17 Architecture and Construction 

346



Page 241 
 

CTE 17 Architecture and Construction 

VOCED 17 Architecture and Construction 

COMP 17 Architecture and Construction 

AG 18 Agriculture, Food, and Natural Resources 

NATUR 18 Agriculture, Food, and Natural Resources 

HOMEC 18 Agriculture, Food, and Natural Resources 

FOOD 18 Agriculture, Food, and Natural Resources 

CTE 18 Agriculture, Food, and Natural Resources 

SCI 18 Agriculture, Food, and Natural Resources 

HOMEC 19 Human Services 

CLOTH 19 Human Services 

CTE 19 Human Services 

VOCED 19 Human Services 

AUTO 20 Transportation, Distribution and Logistics 

AVIAT 20 Transportation, Distribution and Logistics 

GRAPH 20 Transportation, Distribution and Logistics 

CTE 20 Transportation, Distribution and Logistics 

VOCED 20 Transportation, Distribution and Logistics 

AUTO 21 Engineering and Technology 

AVIAT 21 Engineering and Technology 

COMP 21 Engineering and Technology 

CTE 21 Engineering and Technology 

VOCED 21 Engineering and Technology 

GRAPH 21 Engineering and Technology 

CTE 22 Miscellaneous 

LIBR 22 Miscellaneous 

VOCED 22 Miscellaneous 

ELEM 23 Non-Subject-Specific 

FORN 24 World Languages 

COMP 17 Architecture and Construction 

MEDIC 14 Health Care Sciences 

GRAPH 11 Communication and Audio/Visual Technology 

 

▪ This crosswalk above is used to determine if an educator’s endorsements qualify them to 

teach a SIS course. 

▪ Crosswalk for Endorsements without a Subject Code 

Endorsement ID Endorsement Code Endorsement Subject Code 

7205 DGA  CTE 

7158 ECC  CTE 

7159 ECV  VOCED 

7174 EMC  CTE 

7268 ENGT CTE 

347



Page 242 
 

7261 FASM CLOTH 

7251 FCOS HOMEC 

7247 FPM  VOCED 

7209 GET  VOCED 

7076 GRA  CTE 

7105 HPRC CTE 

7480 MANO BUS 

7461 MLY  FORN 

7505 NRCM CTE 

7512 NUCA MEDIC 

7525 PACA MEDIC 

7536 PDD  VOCED 

6726 PRL  CTE 

6630 TARB ADMIN 

6624 TBMC ADMIN 

6627 TBVI ADMIN 

7285 TDHH ADMIN 

6629 TESL ADMIN 

6602 TGEO ADMIN 

6603 THED ADMIN 

6599 THIS ADMIN 

6606 TJOU ADMIN 

6607 TLAG ADMIN 

6608 TLAR ADMIN 

6609 TLBI ADMIN 

6610 TLCH ADMIN 

6611 TLCS ADMIN 

6612 TLDA ADMIN 

6613 TLDT ADMIN 

6614 TLEN ADMIN 

6615 TLES ADMIN 

6616 TLFC ADMIN 

6617 TLIS ADMIN 

6618 TLPE ADMIN 

6619 TLPH ADMIN 

6620 TLPS ADMIN 

348



Page 243 
 

6621 TLSP ADMIN 

6623 TMAT ADMIN 

6604 TMUS ADMIN 

6605 TPSY ADMIN 

6598 TREA ADMIN 

6600 TSCI ADMIN 

6601 TSLP ADMIN 

6595 TSPA ADMIN 

6596 TSPE ADMIN 

6597 TSSA ADMIN 

6594 TTED ADMIN 

6593 TTSP ADMIN 

7321 WARO CTE 

7325 WFS  HOMEC 

7337 WPD  COMP 

 

▪ This crosswalk above is used to determine the subject area for endorsements that do have 

an assigned subject area. 

o Approvals 

▪ Educator courses will be in field if the subjects taught align with their approvals with status 

codes I (Issued). Matches between approvals and subject areas are done using the approval 

cross walk. 

o Qualifications 

▪ Educator courses will be in field if the subjects taught align with their qualifications with 

status codes I (Issued). Matches between qualifications and subject areas are done using 

the approval cross walk. 

o Courses for specific endorsement codes and subject codes 

▪ All of the following rules apply to the endorsement code for licenses with endorsements, 

qualifications, and approvals. 

▪ Educators with an issued Business, Marketing, and Computer Education (BMC) or Business, 

Marketing, Computer Education: Computer Programming (BMCP) endorsement can teach 

all courses under course subject code 10 Information Technology 

▪ Educators with a LA, ELA, ENGL, or LANG endorsement can teach the following courses:  

• 11101A000 

• 61101A000 

• 61147A000 

• 61149A000 

• 11147A000 

• 11149A000 

• 11148A000 

349



Page 244 
 

• 11001A000 

• 11001A001 

▪ Educators with an endorsement under the ELIS subject code BUS can teach the following 

courses: 

• 19262A001 

• 22210A000 

• 72210A000 

▪ Educators with an endorsement under the ELIS subject code HOMEC can teach the 

following courses: 

• 05190A000 

• 05164A000 

• 05193A000 

• 05193A001 

▪ Anyone with a PEL can teach the following courses:  

• 19154A001 

• 19198A003 

• 19197A000 

• 19199A000 

• 19198A000 

• 19152A000 

• 19152A001 

• 19151A001 

• 19198A001 

• 19154A000 

• 19151A000 

▪ Anyone with a PEL and SCG3 endorsement can teach courses: 

• 19153A000  

• 19198A002 

▪ Anyone with a PEL and/or a SCG3 or SCGE endorsement can teach course: 

• 19153A000 

▪ Anyone with a PEL and a SCI endorsement subject code can teach courses: 

• 14252A000 

• 14252A002 

▪ Educators with a TEED endorsement can teach courses in the course subject code 20 

Transportation, Distribution, and Logistics category as well as the course subject code 13 

Manufacturing. 

o Out of Field Teachers 

▪ Any teacher that does not fit into the in-field categories above are considered Out of Field 

 
Formula (calculations)  
Teacher Out of Field 

• Definitions 

350



Page 245 
 

o Count of Out-of-Field Teachers: Distinct IEIN count of teachers teaching in at least one out-of-field 
course 

• Percent of Out-of-Field Teachers:  
o ((Distinct IEIN count of Out-of-Field Teachers) ÷ (Distinct IEIN Count of Teachers with Course 

Assignments)) x 100 
▪ Exclude course assignments at a charter school 
▪ Course assignments are only included if at least one student received an outcome of pass or 

fail 
▪ The location of the course will determine where the teacher is considered out-of-field 

 
Sources of Data  
SIS Teacher Course Assignment Data 
SIS Student Course Assignment Data 
Employment Information System (EIS) Employment and Position Data 
Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS) Licensure Data 
Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS) Endorsement Data 
Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS) Approval Data 
Educator Licensure Information System (ELIS) Designation Data 
 
  

351



Page 246 
 

 

Administrator Measures 

SY 2023 

Administrators 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

352



Page 247 
 

Administrator Measures 
Definition 
Administrator metric data is calculated from the Employment Information System (EIS). All Administrator 
metrics are calculated on the work location level. The district is the parent of the working location.  
 
Administrator Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) is defined as a Regular or Special Education Administrator within EIS 
who has one or more active employment records, worked during the regular school year (not summer school), 
and is not a Regional Superintendent/Intermediate Service Center Director or Assistant Regional 
Superintendent.  
 
Certified Staff FTE are defined as employees in EIS who have one or more active employment records, worked 
during the regular school year (not summer school), is not a Regional Superintendent or Assistant Regional 
Superintendent, and has a position category code of 1 through 6.  This includes teachers and administrators.  
 
Pupil Administrator Ratio is defined as the student enrollment for the school year, divided by the number of 
full-time equivalent administrative staff.  
 
Pupil Certified Staff Ratio is defined as the student enrollment for the school year, divided by the number of 
full-time equivalent certified staff (excluding adult educational personnel).  
 
Principal Turnover is defined as the number of different principals at the same school in the last six years.  For 
district statistics, it is the sum of the different principals from each school in the last six years, divided by the 
total number of schools.  
 
Average Administrator Salary is defined as the sum of the salaries for all administrative staff, divided by the 
number of full-time equivalent administrative staff.  
 
Administrator is defined as a Regular or Special Education Administrator within EIS. 

 

Administrator Gender Distribution is defined as the percentage of administrator FTE by gender. 

 

Administrator Race Distribution is defined as the percentage of administrator FTE by race/ethnicity. 

 
Novice Administrator Rate is defined as the percent of Administrator FTE with less than 2 FTE years of 

combined IL public school service.  

 

Novice Administrator Count is defined as the sum of Administrator FTE with less than 2 FTE years of combined 

IL public school service.  

 

High-Poverty Schools is defined as a school in which the percentage of “low-income” Fall Student Enrollment 

ranks at or above the 75th percentile.  

 

Low-Poverty Schools is defined as a school in which the percentage of “low-income” Fall Student Enrollment 

ranks below the 25th percentile.  
  

 

353



Page 248 
 

 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: Illinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/18-8.15  
Federal Statute/Guidance: EdFacts FS059 - Staff FTE 
 
Business Rules 

• All rate calculations are numerator ÷ denominator × 100 (rounded to 1 decimal point).  

• All averages are rounded to the nearest whole number.  

• For school level, work locations (schools) that do not receive a report card are excluded from 
all administrator metrics.  

• All Educator metrics are calculated on the work location level.  The district is the district/parent of the 
working location.  If Working location entityId is districtId (Category 2) then working location entityId is 
used to as district entityId. 

• For district level, include all schools in that district, regardless if the school receives a report card or not 

• For state level, include all schools and districts, regardless if the school receives a report card or not  

• Principal Turnover at the school level is reported as a count, but at the district and state level, it is reported 
as an average. 

• Identifying Metric Groups  
o Has an active Employment record and associated Position and Working Location details.  
o The Position record is associated with the School Year to be calculated.  
o The Position Time Frame is:  

▪ 1 - Regular School Year  
▪ 3 - Both   
▪ Note: Starting in the 2015-2016 both are being transitioned out, however needs to be 

included as not all records have been transitioned. Summer School only administrators are 
excluded.  

o An Administrator is identified in the Employee Information System (EIS) as:  
▪ The position has a Position Category Code of:  

• 1 – Administrative  

• Excluding ROEs (ISBE Funded Assignments) Position Codes of:  
o 122 – Regional Superintendent  
o 123 – Assistant Regional Superintendent  

o A Certified Staff member is identified in the Employee Information System (EIS) as:  
▪ Have an active Employment record and associated Position and Working Location details.  
▪ The Position record is associated with the School Year to be calculated.  
▪ The Position record has a Position Category Code of:  

• 1 – Administrative  

• 2 – Instructional  

• 3 – Ancillary Staff  

• Excluding ROEs (ISBE Funded Codes) Position Codes of:  
o 122 – Regional Superintendent  
o 123 – Assistant Regional Superintendent  

o A Principal is identified in the Employee Information System (EIS) as:  
▪ Those with a Position Category Code of:  

• 103 – Principal  

• Position Details  

354

http://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050Hprec%2E+Sec%2E+19-2&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=133600000&SeqEnd=135300000
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/edfacts/eden/non-xml/fs059-15-1.docx


Page 249 
 

o The following are collected at the Position level, which are utilized to calculate a Full-Time 
Equivalent (FTE) value for that position and is the value utilized to calculate their FTE Salary:  

▪ Salary  
▪ Percent Full Time  

o Position FTE is determined by the following:  
▪ IF a district has submitted “Contract Override Days” for their EIS records then Position FTE 

is: Percent Full time * (Days Paid / Contract Override Days for Full Time), otherwise  
▪ Position FTE is: Percent Full time * (Days Paid / Contract Days for Full Time)  

o Position FTE salary is determined by the following:  
▪ Base salary / Position FTE  

o Note Regarding Full Time vs Part Time and FTE:  
▪ A position’s Full-time /Part-time distinction is submitted by the district at the positions 

level. An educator can occupy two different positions based on the Position Category Codes 
(e.g. teacher and assistant principal) for the same district – they would be considered a part 
time teacher and a part time administrator. Each position’s “percent full time” would be 
less than 100% and the total percent full time for both positions cannot exceed 100%.  

▪ An educator can occupy one position based on the Position Category Code (e.g. Principal) 
and be assigned to multiple work locations. The FTE is determined at the position level and 
the work location FTE is determined by multiplying the work location “workload” value by 
the position FTE.  

▪ If an educator holds the same position at multiple employers (district) the educator’s FTE is 
determined at each employer.   

• Work Location Details  
o All Administrator and Certified Staff metrics are calculated based on the work location / school of 

the administrator.  
o An Administrator and Certified Staff can have more than one work location associated with an EIS 

Position. 
o Each Working Location detail:  

▪ Identifies the physical location / school the individual is assigned to.  
▪ The district is determined by the parent entity of the working location/ school.  
▪ Includes the Workload which represents the amount of time the educator is at the location  

o Work location FTE is the percent of their EIS Position Full-Time Equivalent value they are allocated 
to that work location or workload * position FTE.  

 
Formula (calculations) 
Administrator FTE Formula 

• Definition 
o  Administrator FTE is the sum of all Work Location FTE values for Administrators  
o The metric is computed at the District and State level, but is not displayed on the Report Card  

• Formula  
o ∑ (Work Location Workload Values × Position Full-Time Equivalent value)  

 
Certified Staff FTE (Not displayed on the Report Card) Formula 

• Definition  
o Certified Staff FTE is the sum of all Work Location FTE values for Certified Staff  
o This metric is not displayed on the Report Card  

• Formula  

355



Page 250 
 

o ∑ (Work Location Workload Values × Position Full-Time Equivalent value)  
 
Pupil Administrator Ratio Formula 

• Definition  
o Pupil Administrator Ratio is the Fall Enrollment Count divided by the Administrator FTE  

• Formula  
o (Fall Enrollment Count) ÷ (Administrator FTE) : 1  

 
Pupil Certified Staff Ratio Formula 

• Definition  
o Pupil Certified Staff Ratio is the Fall Enrollment Count divided by the Certified Staff FTE 

 

• Formula  
o (Fall Enrollment Count) ÷ (Certified Staff FTE) : 1  

 
Principal Turnover 6 Years Formula 

• Definition  
o At the School level, the Principal Turnover 6 Years is the number of different principals at the same 

school in the current year and the past 5 years, totaling 6 years, and is reported as a count.  
o At the District and State levels, the Principal Turnover 6 years is the number of unique principals in 

the current year and the past 5 years (total 6 year) divided by the number of schools, and is 
reported as an average.  

o In both calculations, the result is rounded to the nearest whole number  

• Formula  
o School Level:  

▪ Total Number of Principals that have been in the school in the current year and past 5 
years.  

o District and State Level:  
▪ Total Number of Principals in the current year and the past 5 years ÷ Number of Schools  

 
Average Administrator Salary Formula 

• Definition  
o Total of Administrators work location base salary divided by the Administrator FTE.  
o Note:   

▪ Administrators that have a Position FTE salary under the minimum amount indicated in the 
Minimum Salary field specified in the Position Code table are excluded from this metric as 
this data is considered erroneous  

▪ Administrators that have a Position FTE salary over the maximum amount indicated in the 
Maximum Salary field in the Position Code table are excluded from this metric as this data is 
considered erroneous  

▪ Minimum and maximum exclusions apply both the numerator and denominator of this 
metric.  

o Position FTE Salary is the Base Salary divided by the Position FTE  

• Formula  
o ∑ (Administrator’s Position Base Salary) ÷ (Total Administrator Position FTE)  

 

356



Page 251 
 

Administrator Gender Distribution Formula 

• Definition  
o Percent of Administrator FTE by Gender 

• Formula  
o ((Administrator FTE by Gender) ÷ (Administrator FTE)) × 100 

 
Administrator Race Distribution Formula 

• Definition  
o Percent of Administrator FTE by Race/Ethnicity 

• Formula  
o ((Administrator FTE by Race) ÷ (Administrator FTE)) × 100 

 
 
Novice Administrator Rate Formula  

• Definition   
o Percent of Administrator FTE with less than 2 full time equivalent years of combined IL Public 

Schools  

• Formula  
o ((Administrator FTE with less than 2 in the EIS In-State AdminTeaching Experience field) ÷ 

(AdminiistratorTeacher FTE)) × 100  
 
High Poverty Schools Formula 

• Formula  
o (Total Admin FTE with less than 2 in the EIS In-State Admin Experience field for high poverty 

schools) ÷ (Total Admin FTE for high poverty schools) × 100  
 
Low Poverty Schools Formula 

• Formula  
o (Total Admin FTE with less than 2 in the EIS In-State Admin Experience field for low poverty 

schools) ÷ (Total Admin FTE for low poverty schools) × 100  

• At State and District levels: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty 
schools.    

 
Novice Administrator Count Formula  

• Definition   
o Sum of Administrator FTE with less than 2 full time equivalent years of combined IL Public Schools  

• Formula  
o Σ (Administrator FTE with less than 2 in the EIS In-State Admin Experience field)  

• At State and District levels: This metric should be disaggregated by High Poverty and Low Poverty schools.  
 
Sources of Data 
Employment Information System (EIS) 
Student Information System (SIS)  
 
 
  

357



Page 252 
 

 

Civil Rights Data Collection (CRDC)  

SY 2023 

Civil Rights Data Collection (CRDC)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

358



Page 253 
 

Civil Rights Data Collection (CRDC)   
Definition 
The Civil Rights Data Collection (CRDC) is a biennial (i.e., every other school year) survey of public schools 
required by the U.S. Department of Education (ED) Office for Civil Rights since 1968. The CRDC collects data on 
leading civil rights indicators related to access and barriers to educational opportunity at the early childhood 
through Grade 12 levels. The CRDC collects data from public Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) and schools, 
including juvenile facilities, charter schools, alternative schools, and schools serving only students with 
disabilities. 
 

Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/report-card-guidance-final.pdf 
 

Business Rules 

• All states and districts are required to publish a subset of the data collected from the CRDC in their Report 
Cards.  

• The data is received from the CRDC https://ocrdata.ed.gov/resources/downloaddatafile 

• The CRDC data is imported into the Data Warehouse.  

• CRDC data was first represented on the Report Card in 2019.  

• CRDC data is typically released every other year, therefore data displayed can be either 2 or 3 years 
behind. 

o For CRDC data specifics, see http://ocrdata.ed.gov  

Report Card Year  
CRDC Data 

Year (every 2 
years)  

CRDC 
Data Available (every 

2 years)  

Data Delay  

2019 (first year)  2015-16  April 2018  3 years  

2020  2017-18  April 2020  2 years  

2021  2017-18  April 2020  3 years  

2022 2017-18 April 2020 4 years  

2023 2017-18 April 2020 5 years 

2024 2021-22 Summer 2023 3 years 

• Data will be reported as a percentage carried out 1 decimal place.  
o Exception to this will be for following metrics, which will be displayed as both a percentage carried 

out 1 decimal place and a number 
▪ Number and Percent Enrolled in Preschool  
▪ Number and Percent in Advanced Placement  
▪ Number and Percent in International Baccalaureate  
▪ Number and Percent in Dual Credit  

• When reporting as a number, should be presented as a whole number (no decimals)  

• “In School Suspensions” will be displayed as a rate (percentage)  

• “Out of School Suspensions” will be displayed as a rate (percentage)  

• “Expulsions” will be displayed as a rate (percentage)  
o For total school expulsions, the following are summed to get the numerator  

▪ Preschool children who receive expulsion  
▪ Students without disabilities who received an expulsion with educational services  
▪ Students without disabilities who received an expulsion without educational services  
▪ Students without disabilities who received an expulsion under zero tolerance policies  

359

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/report-card-guidance-final.pdf
https://ocrdata.ed.gov/resources/downloaddatafile
http://ocrdata.ed.gov/


Page 254 
 

▪ Students with disabilities who received an expulsion with educational services  
▪ Students with disabilities who received an expulsion without educational services  
▪ Students with disabilities who received an expulsion under zero tolerance policies  

• “School Related Arrests” will be displayed as a rate (percentage)  

• “Referral to Law Enforcement” will be displayed as a rate (percentage)  

• “Chronic Absenteeism” will be displayed as a rate (percentage)  

• “Incidents of Violence” will be displayed as a rate (percentage)  
o For this metric only, the rate will be expressed as incidents of violence per 100 students  
o The following are provided by counts for incidents of violence:  

▪ Incidents of rape or attempted rape  
▪ Incidents of sexual assault (other than rape)  
▪ Incidents of robbery with a weapon  
▪ Incidents of robbery with a firearm or explosive device  
▪ Incidents of robbery without a weapon  
▪ Incidents of physical attack or fight with a weapon  
▪ Incidents of physical attack or fight with a firearm or explosive device  
▪ Incidents of physical attack or fight without a weapon  
▪ Incidents of threats of physical attack with a weapon  
▪ Incidents of threats of physical attack with a firearm or explosive device  
▪ Incidents of threats of physical attack without a weapon  
▪ Incidents of possession of a firearm or explosive device  

o For the total count of incidents of violence, the numerator in our percentage should sum the 
counts, but then display the firearm and homicide indicators as separate data points  

• “Firearm Indicator” is a yes or no value answering the following question: Has there been at 
least one incident at your school that involved a shooting (regardless of whether anyone was hurt)?  

o For the School level, this will be a yes or no indicator  
o For the District level, this will be a count indicating the number of schools within the district that 

had a yes indicator  
o For the State level, this will be a count indicating the number of schools within the state that had a 

yes indicator  

• “Homicide Indicator” is a yes or no value answering the following question: Have any of your school’s 
students, faculty, or staff died as a result of a homicide committed at your school?  

o For the School level, this will be a yes or no indicator  
o For the District level, this will be a count indicating the number of schools within the district that 

had a yes indicator  
o For the State level, this will be a count indicating the number of schools within the state that had a 

yes indicator  

• “Number and Percent Enrolled in Preschool” will be displayed as a rate (percentage) as well as a number  

• “Accelerated Coursework” will be made up of the following  
o “Number and Percent in Advanced Placement” will be displayed as a rate (percentage) as well as a 

number  
o “Number and Percent in International Baccalaureate” will be displayed as a rate (percentage) as 

well as a number  
o “Number and Percent in Dual Credit” will be displayed as a rate (percentage) as well as a number  

• The following metrics will be displayed twice on the Classic PDF (one metric using CRDC data; one metric 
using ISBE calculated data)   

360



Page 255 
 

o Chronic Absenteeism  
o Number and Percent Enrolled in Preschool  
o Number and Percent in Accelerated Coursework (AP, IB, DC)  

 

Formula (calculations) 
CRDC - In School Suspensions Formula  

• (∑(Total number of students with in school suspensions) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - Out of School Suspensions Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students with out of school suspensions) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC – Expulsions Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students with expulsions) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - School Related Arrests Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students with school related arrests) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - Referral to Law Enforcement Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students with referral to law enforcement) ÷ ∑ (Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - Chronic Absenteeism – including both excused and unexcused absences Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students identified as chronically absent) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - Incidents of Violence – including bullying and harassment Formula 

• (∑(Total number of incidents of violence) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - Firearm Indicator Formula 

• N/A - This is a yes or no indicator answering the following question: Has there been at least one incident at 
your school that involved a shooting (regardless of whether anyone was hurt)?  

 

CRDC - Homicide Indicator Formula 

• N/A - This is a yes or no indicator answering the following question: Have any of your school’s students, 
faculty, or staff died as a result of a homicide committed at your school?  

 

CRDC - Number and Percent Enrolled in Preschool Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students enrolled in preschool) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - Number and Percent in Advanced Placement Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students in Advanced Placement) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - Number and Percent in International Baccalaureate Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students in International Baccalaureate ) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

CRDC - Number and Percent in Dual Credit Formula 

• (∑(Total number of students in Dual Credit) ÷ ∑(Total number of students)) × 100  
 

Sources of Data 
Civil Rights Data Collection (CRDC) 
  

361



Page 256 
 

 

District and School Legislative Districts 

SY 2023 

District and School Legislative Districts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

362



Page 257 
 

District and School Legislative Districts 
Definition 
ISBE entities (schools, districts, etc.) have two data elements associated with them related to legislative 
districts: 

• State Senate District Number  

• State House District Number  

• The data from these elements are pulled directly from ISBE’s Entity Profile System (EPS). 
 
Guidance Citation 
State Statute/Guidance: N/A 
Federal Statute/Guidance: N/A 
 
Business Rules 
ISBE entities (schools, districts, etc.) have two data elements associated with them related to legislative 
districts:   

• State Senate District Number  

• State House District Number  
 
The data is pulled directly from ISBE’s Entity Profile System for each entity, using data from the most recent 
information. 
 
Formula (calculations) 
The data is pulled directly from ISBE’s Entity Profile System, using data from the most recent populated 
information in EPS.  
 
Sources of Data 
Entity Profile System (EPS) 
 

363



10/3/23, 12:45 PM Public School Calendar

https://apps.isbe.net/SchoolCalendar/SchCalPrint.aspx?key=63851 1/1

2024-2025 Proposed Public School Calendar for Grant CHSD 124, Draft, as of 10/3/2023
Codes: X = attendance day; XHI, XHPT, XID, XDS, XHS, XHSW, XHIH, XHPH, XHSH = half attendance day; XH = holiday attendance waiver; FPT,
FPTH, WFPT = full day parent teacher conference; FI, WFI, FIH = teacher inservice; PI, TI, TIH = parent/teacher institute; ED = emergency day;
XED = proposed emergency day; HOL = holiday; NIA = not in attendance
  

Total Days of Attendance:  178  Regular Day:  7:40AM -  3:10PM   Instruct. Day Lgth: 

6 Hrs. 15 Mins.

July 2024

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

24
 

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
HOL

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

10
 

11
 

12
 

13
 

14
 

15
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

19
 

20
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

31
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

August 2024

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

29
 

30
 

31
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
TI

9
TI

10
 

11
 

12
X

13
X

14
X

15
X

16
X

17
 

18
 

19
X

20
X

21
X

22
X

23
X

24
 

25
 

26
X

27
X

28
X

29
X

30
X

31
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

September 2024

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

31
 

1
 

2
HOL

3
X

4
X

5
X

6
X

7
 

8
 

9
X

10
X

11
X

12
X

13
X

14
 

15
 

16
X

17
X

18
X

19
X

20
X

21
 

22
 

23
X

24
X

25
X

26
X

27
X

28
 

29
 

30
X

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

 July Atnd:  0          Accum:  0  Aug Atnd:  15          Accum:  15  Sept Atnd:  20          Accum:  35
October 2024

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

30
 

1
X

2
X

3
X

4
X

5
 

6
 

7
X

8
X

9
X

10
X

11
TI

12
 

13
 

14
HOL

15
X

16
X

17
X

18
X

19
 

20
 

21
X

22
X

23
X

24
X

25
FPT

26
 

27
 

28
X

29
X

30
X

31
X

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

10
 

November 2024

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

28
 

29
 

30
 

31
 

1
X

2
 

3
 

4
X

5
HOL

6
X

7
X

8
X

9
 

10
 

11
X

12
X

13
X

14
X

15
X

16
 

17
 

18
X

19
X

20
X

21
X

22
X

23
 

24
 

25
X

26
X

27
NIA

28
HOL

29
NIA

30
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

December 2024

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

1
 

2
X

3
X

4
X

5
X

6
X

7
 

8
 

9
X

10
X

11
X

12
X

13
X

14
 

15
 

16
X

17
X

18
X

19
X

20
X

21
 

22
 

23
NIA

24
NIA

25
HOL

26
NIA

27
NIA

28
 

29
 

30
NIA

31
NIA

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

 Oct Atnd:  21           Accum:  56  Nov Atnd:  17          Accum:  73  Dec Atnd:  15          Accum:  88
January 2025

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

30
 

31
 

1
HOL

2
NIA

3
NIA

4
 

5
 

6
X

7
X

8
X

9
X

10
X

11
 

12
 

13
X

14
X

15
X

16
X

17
X

18
 

19
 

20
HOL

21
X

22
X

23
X

24
X

25
 

26
 

27
X

28
X

29
X

30
X

31
X

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

February 2025

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

31
 

1
 

2
 

3
X

4
X

5
X

6
X

7
X

8
 

9
 

10
X

11
X

12
X

13
X

14
TI

15
 

16
 

17
NIA

18
X

19
X

20
X

21
X

22
 

23
 

24
X

25
X

26
X

27
X

28
X

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

March 2025

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

24
 

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

1
 

2
 

3
X

4
X

5
X

6
X

7
X

8
 

9
 

10
X

11
X

12
X

13
X

14
X

15
 

16
 

17
X

18
X

19
X

20
X

21
X

22
 

23
 

24
NIA

25
NIA

26
NIA

27
NIA

28
NIA

29
 

30
 

31
X

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

 Jan Atnd:  19          Accum:  107  Feb Atnd:  18          Accum:  125  Mar Atnd:  16          Accum:  141
April 2025

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

31
 

1
X

2
X

3
X

4
X

5
 

6
 

7
X

8
X

9
X

10
X

11
X

12
 

13
 

14
X

15
X

16
X

17
X

18
NIA

19
 

20
 

21
X

22
X

23
X

24
X

25
X

26
 

27
 

28
X

29
X

30
X

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

10
 

11
 

May 2025

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

28
 

29
 

30
 

1
X

2
X

3
 

4
 

5
X

6
X

7
X

8
X

9
X

10
 

11
 

12
X

13
X

14
X

15
X

16
X

17
 

18
 

19
X

20
X

21
X

22
X

23
XED

24
 

25
 

26
HOL

27
XED

28
XED

29
XED

30
XED

31
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

June 2025

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

31
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

10
 

11
 

12
 

13
 

14
 

15
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

19
HOL

20
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

 Apr Atnd:  21          Accum:  162  May Atnd:  16          Accum:  178  June Atnd:  0          Accum:  178

364

javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8941')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8942')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8943')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8944')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8945')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8946')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8947')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8948')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8949')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8950')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8951')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8952')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8953')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8954')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8955')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8956')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8957')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8958')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8959')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8960')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8961')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8962')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8963')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8964')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8965')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8966')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8967')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8968')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8969')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8970')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8971')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8972')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8973')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8974')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8975')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8976')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8977')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8978')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8979')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8980')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8981')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJuly','8982')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8976')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8977')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8978')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8979')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8980')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8981')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8982')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8983')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8984')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8985')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8986')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8987')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8988')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8989')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8990')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8991')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8992')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8993')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8994')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8995')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8996')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8997')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8998')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','8999')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9000')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9001')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9002')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9003')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9004')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9005')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9006')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9007')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9008')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9009')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9010')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9011')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9012')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9013')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9014')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9015')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9016')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarAug','9017')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9004')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9005')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9006')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9007')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9008')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9009')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9010')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9011')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9012')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9013')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9014')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9015')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9016')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9017')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9018')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9019')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9020')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9021')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9022')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9023')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9024')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9025')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9026')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9027')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9028')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9029')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9030')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9031')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9032')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9033')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9034')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9035')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9036')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9037')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9038')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9039')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9040')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9041')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9042')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9043')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9044')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarSept','9045')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9039')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9040')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9041')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9042')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9043')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9044')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9045')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9046')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9047')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9048')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9049')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9050')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9051')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9052')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9053')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9054')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9055')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9056')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9057')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9058')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9059')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9060')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9061')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9062')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9063')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9064')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9065')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9066')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9067')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9068')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9069')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9070')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9071')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9072')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9073')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9074')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9075')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9076')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9077')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9078')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9079')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarOct','9080')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9067')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9068')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9069')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9070')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9071')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9072')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9073')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9074')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9075')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9076')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9077')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9078')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9079')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9080')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9081')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9082')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9083')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9084')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9085')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9086')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9087')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9088')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9089')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9090')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9091')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9092')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9093')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9094')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9095')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9096')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9097')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9098')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9099')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9100')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9101')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9102')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9103')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9104')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9105')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9106')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9107')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarNov','9108')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9095')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9096')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9097')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9098')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9099')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9100')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9101')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9102')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9103')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9104')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9105')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9106')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9107')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9108')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9109')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9110')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9111')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9112')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9113')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9114')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9115')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9116')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9117')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9118')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9119')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9120')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9121')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9122')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9123')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9124')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9125')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9126')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9127')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9128')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9129')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9130')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9131')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9132')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9133')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9134')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9135')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarDec','9136')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9130')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9131')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9132')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9133')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9134')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9135')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9136')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9137')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9138')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9139')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9140')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9141')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9142')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9143')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9144')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9145')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9146')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9147')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9148')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9149')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9150')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9151')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9152')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9153')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9154')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9155')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9156')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9157')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9158')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9159')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9160')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9161')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9162')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9163')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9164')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9165')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9166')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9167')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9168')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9169')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9170')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJan','9171')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9158')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9159')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9160')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9161')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9162')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9163')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9164')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9165')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9166')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9167')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9168')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9169')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9170')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9171')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9172')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9173')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9174')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9175')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9176')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9177')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9178')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9179')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9180')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9181')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9182')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9183')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9184')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9185')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9186')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9187')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9188')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9189')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9190')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9191')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9192')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9193')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9194')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9195')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9196')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9197')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9198')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarFeb','9199')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9186')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9187')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9188')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9189')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9190')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9191')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9192')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9193')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9194')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9195')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9196')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9197')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9198')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9199')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9200')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9201')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9202')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9203')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9204')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9205')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9206')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9207')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9208')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9209')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9210')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9211')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9212')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9213')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9214')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9215')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9216')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9217')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9218')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9219')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9220')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9221')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9222')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9223')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9224')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9225')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9226')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMar','9227')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9221')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9222')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9223')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9224')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9225')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9226')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9227')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9228')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9229')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9230')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9231')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9232')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9233')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9234')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9235')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9236')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9237')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9238')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9239')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9240')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9241')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9242')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9243')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9244')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9245')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9246')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9247')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9248')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9249')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9250')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9251')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9252')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9253')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9254')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9255')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9256')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9257')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9258')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9259')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9260')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9261')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarApr','9262')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9249')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9250')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9251')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9252')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9253')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9254')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9255')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9256')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9257')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9258')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9259')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9260')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9261')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9262')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9263')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9264')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9265')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9266')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9267')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9268')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9269')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9270')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9271')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9272')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9273')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9274')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9275')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9276')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9277')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9278')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9279')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9280')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9281')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9282')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9283')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9284')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9285')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9286')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9287')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9288')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9289')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarMay','9290')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9277')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9278')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9279')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9280')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9281')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9282')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9283')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9284')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9285')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9286')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9287')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9288')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9289')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9290')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9291')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9292')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9293')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9294')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9295')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9296')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9297')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9298')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9299')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9300')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9301')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9302')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9303')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9304')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9305')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9306')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9307')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9308')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9309')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9310')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9311')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9312')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9313')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9314')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9315')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9316')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9317')
javascript:__doPostBack('CalendarJune','9318')


2023 Resolutions 
Committee Report

One Imperial Place 
1 East 22nd Street, Suite 310
Lombard, IL 60148-6120
(630) 629-3776
Fax (630) 629-3940

2921 Baker Drive 
Springfield, IL 62703
(217) 528-9688
Fax (217) 528-2831

For further information please contact 
Bryan Soady at (217) 553-1599

For the 2023 Delegate Assembly meeting  
on Saturday, November 18, 2023

SEPTEMBER 2023

365



2023 Resolutions Committee Report 1

Delegate Assembly Registration & 
Credentials for Attending Delegates
•	 All participants are strongly encouraged to pre-register using the 

online registration. Online registration can be completed by your 
district registrar at  www.iasb.com. If you have any questions 
regarding registration, please contact registrar@iasb.com.

•	 In-person registration will take place in the IASB Info Center on 
Friday, November 17 as well as in front of Regency A/B/C of the 
Hyatt West Tower on Saturday morning.  

•	 Credentials are required for delegates to be seated. Credentials 
will include the 2023 Delegate pin as well as a brightly colored 
sheet of cardstock with the word “Delegate” and your school 
district name on it. Credentials will be inside the delegate packet 
which can be picked up in the Info Center during Conference 
hours on Friday and in front of the Delegate Assembly location 
on Saturday morning. Once you have your credentials in hand, 
you can go directly into the Delegate Assembly. 

Webinar Scheduled Prior to Conference
Tuesday, October 31, 2023, Noon
Description: The annual Delegate Assembly is the meeting where school board members vote on 
the proposals submitted by local school boards. Each school board that is a member of the Associ-
ation is entitled to one voting delegate at the Delegate Assembly. Every member board is advised to 
select one individual board member to serve as its delegate, and to review proposed resolutions with 
the full board before determining its vote. Join the IASB Governmental Relations team on October 
31 at noon for a webinar to learn more about the proposed resolutions to be voted on, and to get 
your Delegate Assembly process questions answered.

Delegate Assembly
Saturday, November 18, 2023 
10:30 a.m.
Regency A/B/C, Hyatt West 
Tower

Voting at Delegate Assembly
The same vendor as last year has been chosen for the voting portion of the Delegate 
Assembly. Physical clickers will be handed out to all delegates. The device will have a button 
to vote yes and a button to vote no. The delegate will receive confirmation that their vote has 
been counted once received. 

366

mailto:registrar@iasb.com


September 2023

Board Presidents and Administrators,

This report outlines proposals to be acted upon at the annual meeting of the IASB 
Delegate Assembly on Saturday, November 18, 2023, in Chicago. Through the Resolutions 
Process and Delegate Assembly, IASB member districts provide critical direction as IASB 
represents members’ interests before state and national policymakers.

Every member district is entitled to one voting delegate. This year delegates will vote for 
the election of IASB officers and adoption of IASB Position Statements on issues that 
reflect the interests of boards of education across the state.

Please discuss with your board the topics that will come before the Delegate Assembly 
for action. Identify and prepare your district’s delegate representative to vote on behalf of 
your board. The decisions made by the Delegate Assembly will set the course for IASB’s 
legislative initiatives. 

We look forward to our work together in November.

Sincerely, 

 

Mark Harms, Resolutions Committee Chair

IASB is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation dedicated to excellence in local school governance

2921 Baker Drive
Springfield, Illinois  62703-5929
(217) 528-9688 • Fax: (217) 528-2831

One Imperial Place, 
1 East 22nd Street, Suite 310
Lombard, Illinois  60148-6120
(630) 629-3776 • Fax: (630) 629-3940

OFFICERS
Simon Kampwerth Jr., President
Mark Harms, Vice President
Thomas Neeley, Immediate Past President
Tim Custis, Treasurer
Kimberly A. Small, J.D., Executive Director

367



2023 Resolutions Committee Report 3

TABLE OF CONTENTS

2023 IASB Resolutions Committee ...............................................4

Delegate Assembly Agenda ............................................................5

Delegate Assembly Business Rules ................................................6

Resolutions Procedures ...................................................................7

IASB Advocacy Core Values ..........................................................8

Nominating Committee Report ....................................................9

New Resolutions .............................................................................10

Do Not Present ............................................................................... 14

Link to Current Position Statement ............................................15

My Board Recommendations ......................................................15

368



2023 Resolutions Committee Report 4

SERVICE OF THE FOLLOWING SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS ON THE 2023 
RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE IS ACKNOWLEDGED WITH SINCERE APPRECIATION

IASB PRESIDENT 
Simon Kampwerth Jr.  

CHAIR, 
RESOLUTIONS
IASB Vice President
Mark Harms

IMMEDIATE PAST 
PRESIDENT

Thomas Neeley 

ABE LINCOLN 
Amy Reynolds 

CENTRAL ILLINOIS 
VALLEY 
Jason Cowen 

BLACKHAWK 
Julie Wagner

EGYPTIAN 
Vacant

DUPAGE 
James Blair

CORN BELT 
Alex Williams

KISHWAUKEE 
Evelyn Meeks

KASKASKIA 
Dan Nichols

ILLINI 
Vacant

NORTHWEST 
Steve Snider  

NORTH COOK
Anna Klimkowicz 

LAKE 
Odie Pahl  

SOUTH COOK 
Wilbur Tillman  

SOUTHWESTERN 
Jeff Hewitt  

SHAWNEE
Vernon L. Stubblefield 

TWO RIVERS 
Lisa Schwartz

THREE RIVERS 
Chris Trzeciak  

STARVED ROCK   
Carol Alcorn

WABASH VALLEY 
Chad Weaver

WESTERN 
Scott Vogler

WEST COOK 
Jim Lima

369



5 2023 Resolutions Committee Report

DELEGATE ASSEMBLY AGENDA 

1. Call to Order
2. Report of the Credentials Committee
3. Approval of the Delegate Assembly Business Rules
4. President’s Report, Simon Kampwerth Jr.
5. Executive Director’s Report, Kimberly Small, J.D.
6. Financial Report, Tim Custis
7. Election of Officers

  A.  Nominating Committee Report, Thomas Neeley, Nominating Committee 
Chair

8. Resolutions Committee Report, Mark Harms, Resolutions Committee Chair 
  A.  Consent Agenda
  B.  New Resolutions

9. Adjournment

370



6 2023 Resolutions Committee Report

2023 DELEGATE ASSEMBLY BUSINESS RULES

1. Business Procedures — Robert’s Rules of Order 
Newly Revised shall govern.

2. Credentials — Delegates shall be registered 
with the Credentials Committee and must 
display their credentials.

3. Delegate Seating — Only those delegates seated 
in the reserved section will be permitted to 
participate in the business session.

4. Recognition by Chair — Delegates wishing to 
speak on a motion shall rise and be recognized 
by the Chair before speaking. They shall give 
their full name and the name of the board they 
represent.

5. Debate on the Floor — No delegate shall speak 
in debate more than twice on the same question 
and no longer than five minutes at one time. 
No delegate shall speak a second time on the 
same question until all persons have had an 
opportunity to speak at least once.

6. Calls for the Question — A delegate may “call 
for the question” to end debate on a motion. 
The delegate may not make such a motion if, 
immediately preceding the motion, he or she 
has engaged in discussion of the motion or 
otherwise participated in the debate. A motion, 
a second, and a 2/3 majority vote is required to 
end debate.

7. Consent Agenda — Use of a Consent Agenda to 
expedite the proceedings is authorized. Proposed 
resolutions which have been recommended “Do 
Adopt” by the Resolutions Committee may 
appear on a Consent Agenda.

8. Appeals — Those delegates wishing to appeal 
a “Do Not Adopt” recommendation of the 
Resolutions Committee, and have met the notice 
provisions required by Article IX, Section 5 of 
the IASB Constitution, shall have a period of 
time not to exceed five minutes in which to 
explain why the proposed action should be 
considered by the Delegate Assembly. Appeals 
shall only be accepted from the submitter 
of the proposed resolution that has received 
the negative recommendation of its proposal. 
Those proposed resolutions that have received 
a “Do Not Adopt” recommendation from the 
Resolutions Committee, and of which the 
committee has not received a timely written 
appeal of the negative recommendation from 
the submitting entity, will not be considered by 
the Delegate Assembly.

9. Other Recognition — Members of the 
Resolutions Committee and IASB staff shall be 
given the privilege of the floor at the discretion 
of the presiding officer.

10. Voting — The indications to signify voting 
shall be specified by the presiding officer.

11. Nomination — The consent of any nominee 
from the floor during the election of officers 
must be secured in writing prior to presentation 
to the Delegate Assembly, as required in Article 
IV, Section 1, of the IASB Constitution.

371



2023 Resolutions Committee Report 7

RESOLUTIONS PROCEDURES

1. Types of Resolutions — (Article IX, Section 
1) Resolutions should be in the form of a position 
statement. Position statements address issues affecting 
or concerning local boards of education; they direct the 
Association’s advocacy efforts

2. Proposals — (Article IX, Section 2) Resolutions for 
proposed position statements may be proposed by any 
Active Member, Association Division, the Association’s 
Board of Directors, or the Resolutions Committee. 
Resolutions to be published and distributed to the 
Active Members must be submitted to the Resolutions 
Committee at least 150 days prior to the Annual Meeting 
of the Delegate Assembly.

3. Presentation of Resolutions — (Article IX, Section 3) 
The Resolutions Committee shall review all proposed 
resolutions, distribute a final draft of proposed 
resolutions to the membership not less than 45 days 
prior to the Annual Meeting of the Delegate Assembly, 
and may recommend the approval or disapproval of any 
resolution to the Delegate Assembly. The Resolutions 
Committee has the prerogative to determine which 
resolutions are to be presented to the Delegate Assembly; 
and whether they are presented as position statements. 
However, all resolutions that are timely submitted to 
the Resolutions Committee according to Section 2 
above, must be distributed to Active Members not 
less than 45 days prior to the Annual Meeting of the 
Delegate Assembly. All proposals require a two-thirds 
affirmative vote by the Delegate Assembly for passage. 
Note, this Resolutions Committee Report fulfills Article 
IX, Section 3. 

4. Annual Review — (Article IX, Section 4) The 
Resolutions Committee shall annually review currently 
in force position statements to determine whether they 
are consistent with the current positions of Association 
members. The Resolutions Committee shall recommend 
that the Delegate Assembly amend or rescind any 
position statement that is not consistent with the 
current positions of Association members. All position 
statements currently in force will be published annually 
and distributed to Active Members prior to the Annual 
Meeting of the Delegate Assembly. 

5. Appeals — (Article IX, Section 5) Any Active Member, 
Association Division, or Association Board of Directors, 
that has submitted a proposal that has received a negative 

recommendation from the Resolutions Committee, 
shall have the right to appeal the decisions of the 
Resolutions Committee at the Annual Meeting of the 
Delegate Assembly. Notice of appeal must be submitted 
in writing to the Resolutions Committee. An appeal 
must be filed in accordance with the rules established by 
the Resolutions Committee and approved by the Board 
of Directors. All appeals require a two-thirds affirmative 
vote by the Delegate Assembly for consideration. 

6. Amendments to Resolutions — (Article IX, Section 6) 
Any proposed amendment to a resolution that does not 
meet the time requirements as set in Section 3 above 
shall be immediately remanded to the Resolutions 
Committee for consideration.

7. Late Resolutions — (Article IX, Section 7), Resolutions 
which are not presented to the Resolutions Committee 
at least 150 days prior to the Annual Meeting of the 
Delegate Assembly may be considered only by the 
following procedure: Such resolutions may be proposed 
by an Active Member, Association Division, Association 
Board of Directors, or the Resolutions Committee and 
submitted in writing to the Resolutions Committee. 
Any resolution which is not submitted in the manner 
described above shall not be considered by the Delegate 
Assembly. Late resolutions shall be considered for 
approval by the Resolutions Committee. The Resolutions 
Committee may recommend approval or disapproval of 
the late resolution to the Delegate Assembly. Any such 
resolution disapproved by the Resolutions Committee 
may be appealed by a seventy-five (75) percent majority 
vote of the delegates present. Delegates seeking authority 
to present late resolutions at the Annual Meeting of the 
Delegate Assembly shall provide copies for all delegates 
present at the meeting, including rationale and relevant 
supporting documentation.

8. Order of Resolutions — Each resolution to be adopted 
will be considered in the following order of categories: 
Educational Programs, Financing Public Education, 
Legislative Activity, Board Operations and Duties, Board 
Employee Relations, Local State Federal Relations, and 
District Organization and Elections. Amendment or 
deletion of existing positions will be done with a single 
motion unless a delegate wishes a particular position or 
positions to be considered separately.

372



8 2023 Resolutions Committee Report

ADVOCACY CORE VALUES

The Advocacy Core Values, legislative priorities, and Position Statements 
guide the IASB Advocacy agenda in support of its membership and 
ensure a strong collective voice on the highest priority issues and 
concerns.
 
IASB is committed to an advocacy program that
• Supports locally elected, non-partisan, and volunteer school board 

members in providing excellence in local school board governance 
based upon the Association’s Foundational Principles of Effective 
Governance.

• Supports and protects adequate and equitable funding necessary to 
provide all students with access to an excellent public education.

• Promotes excellence in student achievement for all Illinois students 
and fair accountability for academic progress.

• Advocates for legislation that supports the physical and emotional 
well-being of students and staff.

• Supports a safe and secure learning environment for all; including, 
but not limited to one in which all are free from bullying, harassment, 
discrimination, and violence.

• Supports the Association’s commitment to educational equity for 
every student.

• Promotes non-partisan member engagement and provides the tools 
to enhance advocacy efforts.

373



2023 Resolutions Committee Report 9

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT
AUGUST 2023

The 2023 Nominating Committee proposes the following  
officer slate for Delegate Assembly consideration,  

10:30 a.m., Saturday, November 18, 2023.

President Mark Harms 
Flanagan-Cornell Unit District 74

Vice President Tracie Sayre 
Triopia Community Unit School District 27

2023 Nominating Committee Membership
Tom Neeley, Chair 

Immediate Past President
Chris Buikema 

Director, Northwest Division
Mark Christ 

Director, Southwestern Division
Linda Eades 

Director, Kaskaskia Division
Alva Kreutzer 

Director, North Cook Division
Bob Geddeis, Alternate 

Director, Kishwaukee Division
Lisa Irvin, Alternate 

Director, Egyptian Division

374



10 2023 Resolutions Committee Report

NEW RESOLUTIONS
1. Industrial Construction

2. School Resource Officer Funding
3. Bus Driver Regulations

4. Employment History Review
5. Alternative Safe School Funding

LOCAL – STATE - FEDERAL RELATIONS
1. Industrial Construction
Submitting District: Pleasantdale School District 107

Statement of Resolution: Be it resolved that the Illinois 
Association of School Boards shall support and encourage 
legislation that prohibits the construction of industrial 
facilities near schools. Industrial facilities have negative 
consequences on schools that are three-fold:
1) The health and safety of all students, faculty, and staff,
2) The learning outcomes of students, and
3) The learning environment of students.
The health consequences and educational barriers associated 
with industrial zones near schools including, but not limited 
to pollution, noise, and hazardous diesel exhaust, are 
well-documented and can have serious long-term effects 
on the health and well-being of students, faculty, and 
staff. Furthermore, the presence of industrial zones near 
schools can negatively impact the quality of education by 
creating distractions and disruptions. Finally, learning 
outcomes also have shown to suffer as a result of industrial 
facility proximity to schools. We urge policymakers and 
stakeholders to take immediate action to ensure that schools 
are located in safe environments free from the risks posed 
by industrial facilities.
District Rationale: Numerous studies have proven that 
school proximity to industrial zones directly impacts 
student health risks, academic outcomes, and impedes 
the learning environment. 1, 2    
Specifically, studies have shown that schools located 
closer to highways and industrial facilities had higher 
risks of respiratory and neurological diseases than 
those located farther away. 3  
The health and safety of students, faculty, and staff as well 
as the promotion of an enriching, distraction-free learning 
environment is at the core of IASB advocacy. This proposed 
resolution meets two of the IASB Advocacy Core Values. 
It advocates for legislation that supports the physical well-
being of students and staff. It also supports a safe and 
secure learning environment for all. In 2011, the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) published, 
“School Siting Guidelines” that confirms, “The overriding 

purpose of a school building is provide a safe, healthy and 
supportive environment in which children can learn.” 4  
This environment includes both indoors and out. The EPA 
specifically lists industrial pollutants as a contaminant that 
should be avoided in proximity to a school in principles 1.4, 
2.2, 4.3.1, 5.2, 5.6.2, 5.7.2, 6.4, 8.11, 9.6 and refers to sites in 
close proximity to industrial facilities as “incompatible land” 
for a school location site. The potential hazards identified 
included air pollution, soil contamination, ground water 
contamination, surface water contamination, accidental 
releases/spills of hazardous chemicals, odors, and heavy 
vehicular traffic. 5  
Noise distraction due to high-traffic roads or roads with 
heavy diesel truck traffic were also cited as potential hazards 
regarding the siting of a school and the EPA recommended 
distancing schools from such distractions. 6 
Finally, studies have shown that performance rates of 
schools near industrial facilities also suffer. 7,8 
The negative impact of industrial facilities is well-
documented by both academics and government agencies. 
The need to protect the health, safety, performance and 
environment of our students, faculty and staff is great and 
we ask for the IASB’s support. Additional sources available 
upon request. 
1. Kweon, B. S., Mohai, P., Lee, S., & Sametshaw, A. 

M. (2018). Proximity of public schools to major 
highways and industrial facilities, and students’ school 
performance and health hazards. Environment and 
Planning B: Urban Analytics and City Science, 45(2), 
312-329. Sage Journals 

2. School Siting Guidelines. United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. Office of Children’s Health 
Protection.

3. Kweon, B. S., Mohai, P., Lee, S., & Sametshaw, A. 
M. (2018). Proximity of public schools to major 
highways and industrial facilities, and students’ school 
performance and health hazards. Environment and 
Planning B: Urban Analytics and City Science, 45(2), 
312-329. Sage Journals 

4. School Siting Guidelines. United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. Office of Children’s Health 
Protection. 

5. Id.
375



2023 Resolutions Committee Report 11

6. Id. at 57. 
7. Kweon, B. S., Mohai, P., Lee, S., & Sametshaw, A. M. 

(2018). Proximity of public schools to major highways and 
industrial facilities, and students’ school performance 
and health hazards. Environment and Planning B: Urban 
Analytics and City Science, 45(2), 312-329. Sage Journals 

8. Mohai, P., Kweon, B. S., Lee, S., & Ard, K. (2011). Air 
pollution around schools is linked to poorer student 
health and academic performance. Health Affairs, 30(5), 
852-862.

Resolutions Committee Analysis: The committee discussed 
how industrial construction does not affect most IASB 
members and some small communities depend on income 
from industrial facilities with space only available near 
schools, which would ultimately harm small communities 
that want the facilities. This should remain under local 
control. The committee also noted that if it is truly a health 
concern for children, the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) should be brought in to deliberate zoning.

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO NOT 
ADOPT.

BOARD-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
School Resource Officer Funding
Submitting District: Homer CCSD 33C

Statement of Resolution: The Illinois Association of School 
Boards shall request that the Illinois legislature consider 
legislation providing educational funding to all school 
districts to offset the cost of a school resource officer.
District Rationale: The safety of our students and staff is the 
number one priority of every school and an expectation of all 
parents who send their children to school each day. According 
to Education Week, there were 51 school shootings last year in 
K-12 institutions across the nation which resulted in injuries or 
deaths. This is an increase from the previous four years with 
35, 10, 24 and 24 school shootings, respectively. Illinois school 
districts are mandated to practice lockdown drills twice a 
year. One of those drills is required to be in conjunction with 
local law enforcement. Many schools take additional steps to 
ensure their buildings are secure and safe such as installing 
secured vestibules, security cameras, shatter-resistant film on 
doors and windows, and panic buttons to contact police in an 
emergency. Some schools have incorporated school shooting 
training such as ALICE or Run Hide Fight.
All of the above safety measures are important ways to deter 
or impede a school shooter. In many cases, these measures 
are not enough. A school resource officer on site who is 
trained in tactical measures is a critical measure to save lives. 
Unfortunately, the costs associated with resource officers 
prohibit schools from implementing this safety measure. If 
we all want to make safety a top priority, the state and federal 
governments should provide educational funding to allow 
schools to hire resource officers.

Resolutions Committee Analysis: The committee agreed 
that the presence of a School Resource Officer (SRO) helps 
protect the safety of the children and that there needs to be 
more funding to help offset the cost of hiring the SROs. Even 
with grant money to help cover the cost, school districts are 
left to pick up the remaining cost of the SRO and could use 
additional funding. 

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO ADOPT.

BOARD-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
Bus Driver Regulations
Submitting District: Mercer County SD 404

Statement of Resolution: The Illinois Association of School 
Boards shall support changes to the Federal and State school 
transportation regulations that return licensing requirements 
and driver trainer liability back to pre-February 2023 levels at 
minimum; allow LOCAL training and testing for bus driver 
candidates; and increase the transportation reimbursement 
rate from the State of Illinois to 100%. 
Regulations that need to be changed, improved, or eliminated 
altogether include: 
1. Local (in-district or ROE) “Behind the Wheel” and 

classroom required hours should be accepted, not just 
those from nationally recognized trainers that are only 
available in commercial driving programs. 

2. Remove liability that is borne by new driver trainers 
concerning the drivers they certify.

District Rationale: School transportation is an issue that 
varies widely across our state as well as the nation. Some 
districts are not required to offer bus transportation to 
their students, while others must transport most of theirs. 
Those districts who are very large in terms of square miles 
shoulder a huge physical and financial burden that others do 
not. Problems with school transportation disproportionately 
affect rural districts with a large geographic area. The most 
common problem facing transportation in school districts is 
the shortage of drivers.
Mercer County School District is the 5th largest district by 
area in the state of Illinois. Our buses travel 1,931 miles per 
day on average, totaling 337,965 miles per year. Driving that 
many miles can take you around the circumference of the 
earth 13.5 times! In order to get our routes completed by the 
start of the school day, we often have buses with their first 
pick-ups at 6:20 to 6:30 a.m. Those students are leaving home 
a full hour and a half before the first bell even rings. Why are 
our routes so long in miles and time? Because we cannot hire 
enough drivers.
Buses and equipment are not the issue. Our recent switch 
from owning buses to a leasing program has been extremely 
beneficial. If it was possible to recruit more drivers, we 
would simply increase the number of bus leases and shorten 
our routes that way. As most of you may know, there is a 
nationwide shortage of drivers, with one state going so far as 

376



12 2023 Resolutions Committee Report

to assign their National Guardsmen to driving a bus route 
for their local schools. Why is this happening across the 
country? What can the Federal and State government do to 
alleviate the problem?
Driving a school bus is an unusual career. The work is 
not year-round, and the hours are early but split into two 
shifts in one day. Between finishing a route in the morning 
and starting the drop off route in the afternoon doesn’t 
really allow time for a second job. Attracting people to this 
position requires a decent wage and a licensing process that 
isn’t insurmountable. Since February of this year, the process 
for licensing bus drivers has become MORE difficult.
Licensing is determined primarily at the federal level. 
Changes were implemented in February that required 
additional behind the wheel hours from nationally 
recognized trainers typically only available through 
commercial driving programs. This has not only affected 
bus drivers, but also the entire trucking industry as well. 
In the past, our Transportation Supervisor was able to give 
potential drivers their behind the wheel hours and work 
with them to learn and practice. That is no longer the case. 
We have been forced to seek out trainers who fulfill these 
new 2023 requirements outside of our district. With the 
increased liability placed on new driver trainers, many are 
hesitant to train candidates who they do not know well 
or can vouch for personally. Many ROE trainers have quit 
working with other districts due to this increased liability 
that makes them personally liable for any driver who 
trained with them and then has an accident in the future. 
Why, when there is a national shortage of bus drivers, 
are we making the process for licensing them much more 
complicated and out of reach for schools?
As for the transportation reimbursement rate issue also 
listed above - since the state requires school districts to 
transport any student living 1.5 miles away from their 
school building, it should also pay for 100% of the costs 
associated with bussing them. Busing in the school districts 
of Illinois varies wildly across the state. Many have $0 in 
transportation expenses, while others like Mercer County 
accrue costs in millions ($1.4 million at Mercer County 
in the 2022-2023 school year). Since the transportation 
burden is so vastly different between districts, and the 
requirements for such are mandated by the state of Illinois, 
the transportation costs should be the responsibility of the 
state as well.
Resolutions Committee Analysis: The committee agreed 
that the bus driver shortage is affecting most school districts 
and trying to find a way to help alleviate that is important. 
The committee felt that helping to ease the requirements 
and training to become a bus driver will help to improve the 
shortage that districts are facing.

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO ADOPT.

BOARD-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
Employment History Review
Submitting District: Unity Point School District 140

Statement of Resolution: Be it resolved that the Illinois 
Association of School Boards shall request the Illinois 
legislature consider using the Illinois Department of 
Child and Family Services (IL-DCFS ) Child Abuse and 
Neglect Tracking System (CANTS) as a means to fulfill the 
Employment History Review (EHR) (105 ILCS 5/22-94) of 
Faith’s Law.
District Rationale: As it will apply, Faith’s Law will require 
a district to contact employers listed in the EHR form 
and conduct a review for sexual misconduct allegations. 
This approach to hiring may prove time consuming and 
financially limiting for some districts, requiring the 
addition of personnel, or utilizing outside firms to complete 
the process. With no findings provided toward this end, 
another option needs to be considered. At this point 
there is no guidance on the due diligence process that 
will be completed for a district to have confidence they 
are approving an applicant for all employees, contractors, 
substitutes, and all those with direct contact with students. 
This lack of guidance could leave districts open for lawsuits 
based on an individual human resource officer’s choice to 
proceed or deny employment based on the verbal response 
of a prior employer.
Alternatively, the DCFS CANTS system is an established 
system that is currently required within the standard FBI and 
IL State police background checks for all DCFS background 
checks. The CANTS system would provide an unbiased 
system to examine allegations of sexual misconduct, giving 
districts a clear answer on prior misconduct. Additionally, 
this system could have documented cases outside of 
employment history, potentially providing a more thorough 
look into the applicant as a whole. Lastly, as this is a statewide 
database, employees and contractors that work in multiple 
districts will not have to reapply through the Illinois State 
Board of Education’s employment history check with each 
district they will work in. This could alleviate the time 
constraints that are anticipated with the EHR process.
Resolutions Committee Analysis: The committee 
understood and agreed that finding a way to help districts 
implement Faith’s Law is important, but they felt this was 
not the right system to use to fix the issue.

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO NOT 
ADOPT.

377



2023 Resolutions Committee Report 13

FINANCING PUBLIC EDUCATION - 
LOCAL

Alternative Safe School Funding
Submitting District: Geneseo CUSD 228

Statement of Resolution: Be it resolved that the Illinois 
Association of School Boards shall advocate for additional 
funding to be provided for regional alternative safe schools 
to allow for an elementary-appropriate program, additional 
funding and approved certification programs for board 
certified behavior analysts (BCBA) in school districts, and 
additional flexibility with student discipline to help local 
districts provide the safest learning environment possible. 
We also ask that the state legislature review SB100 and make 
any necessary changes to allow for more local control as it 
relates to student discipline post-Covid, especially at the 
elementary and middle school levels.
District Rationale: Area school districts are observing an 
increase in immature and aggressive behavior in students, 

especially at the elementary and middle school levels post-
COVID. Local districts are doing the best they can with 
the resources available but are not equipped to handle 
the rise in these student characteristics. The state has 
increased funding, awareness, and resources to address 
Social Emotional Learning (SEL) but has not done the same 
for these specific student characteristics or concerns.
Resolutions Committee Analysis: The committee discussed 
the current IASB Position Statement 2.33 that already states 
IASB will advocate using Evidence-Based Funding (EBF) 
to support funding for alternative schools. Members also 
discussed a possible review of SB 100, which encouraged 
limiting student suspensions and expulsions and established 
a parent-teacher advisory committee that would develop, 
with the school board, policy guidelines on pupil discipline.

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO NOT 
ADOPT.

378



14 2023 Resolutions Committee Report

DO NOT PRESENT
1. Delegate Assembly Mail-In Voting
2. Schools As Polling Place Choice

3. Fully Fund IDEA
4. Suicide Prevention Education 

Delegate Assembly Mail-in Voting
Submitting District: Fremont SD 79

Statement of Resolution: Be it resolved that the Illinois 
Association of School Boards shall support and amend that 
all delegates from all the school boards that are members of 
the Association are represented every year at the Delegate 
Assembly either by being in person or by their official 
signed ballots.
Resolutions Committee Analysis: The committee agreed 
that having more districts attend at the annual Delegate 
Assembly meeting is very important, but they had concerns 
about the proposed timeline to get the votes in, along with 
concerns that hearing floor discussion at the meeting could 
change some districts votes. Casting the vote before the 
meeting would not allow for the districts participating in 
mail-in ballots to hear deliberation in those discussions.
There was concern from the committee regarding the 
timeline proposed to receive the mail-in ballots along with 
concerns about solidifying quorum and validating the 
registered delegate is casting the vote for their corresponding 
district. Other concerns include how quorum would be 
established and the uncertainty of validating who was 
voting virtually. It was noted that it is not clear how many 
districts cannot afford to send a delegate to vote. The only 
way to make a change to Delegate Assembly voting would be 
through a Constitutional amendment.

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO NOT 
PRESENT.

Schools as Polling Place Choice
Submitting Districts: Wilmette SD 
39 and Wheeling CCSD 21

Statement of Resolution: Be it resolved that the Illinois 
Association of School Boards shall work to request that the 
Illinois General Assembly amend Illinois Compiled Statute 
10 ILCS 5/11-4.1 (from Ch. 46, par. 11-4.1) such that school 
districts will have the right to refuse to have their schools 
used as polling places during any election cycle.
Resolutions Committee Analysis: While the committee 
agreed and understood that it should be up to the schools 
whether their facilities are used as polling places, the 
committee pointed out that IASB already has Position 
Statement, 7.08, stating that IASB will support legislation 
that allows school districts to refuse to be used as a polling 
place.

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO NOT 
PRESENT.

Fully Fund Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act (IDEA)

Submitting District: Naperville CUSD 203

Statement of Resolution: The Illinois Association of School 
Boards will strongly advocate for increased federal funding 
for the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 
and full funding of IDEA in the next ten years.
Resolutions Committee Analysis: The committee agreed 
that more funding for IDEA is needed but they did not feel 
that having a time constraint of ten years was feasible. The 
committee felt that the current IASB Position statement, 
2.04, that already advocates for adequate funding for IDEA 
made this resolution redundant.

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO NOT 
PRESENT.

Suicide Prevention Education
Submitting District: Warren THSD 121

Statement of Resolution: Be it resolved that the Illinois 
Association of School Boards (IASB) shall advocate for the 
adoption of state legislation to strongly encourage and fund 
district suicide prevention education measures including 
but not limited to: 

• Legislation strongly encouraging and funding school 
district provision of education materials to K-12 families 
on safe gun storage and suicide prevention.

• Legislation strongly encouraging and funding schools 
and police authorities to provide no-cost or low-cost 
gun storage solutions to the community.

Resolutions Committee Analysis: The committee agreed 
that education on suicide prevention is important, but 
they do not feel that advocating for gun storage should be 
included in the language of this resolution.

The Resolutions Committee recommends DO NOT 
PRESENT.

379



2023 Resolutions Committee Report 15

MY BOARD’S RECOMMENDATION

    NEW RESOLUTIONS
 q q  1. Industrial Construction (Do not Adopt) 
 q q  2. School Resource Officer Funding (Do Adopt)
 q q  3. Bus Driver Regulations (Do Adopt)
 q q  4. Employment History Review (Do not Adopt)
 q q  5. Alternative Safe School Funding (Do not Adopt)

Ag
ree

Di
sag

ree

Click here for link to current Position Statements

380

https://www.iasb.com/about-us/leadership/position-statements/


One Imperial Place 
1 East 22nd Street, Suite 310
Lombard, IL 60148-6120
(630) 629-3776
Fax (630) 629-3940

2921 Baker Drive 
Springfield, IL 62703
(217) 528-9688
Fax (217) 528-2831

381



Principal’s Report to the Board of Education 

Jeremy Schmidt, Principal 

October 2023 

 

 

Keep it RED  

On October 3rd the 'Keep it RED' Leadership Team and the student representatives of the Alcohol 

Awareness Campaign conducted a student survey during lunch periods. This survey was a means 

of collecting data on student substance use as well as garnering feedback on the marketing tools 

utilized in the group’s alcohol prevention messaging.  Participants who completed the survey were 

given a T-shirt that supported the benefits of staying sober.  Staff members showed support for the 

cause by wearing campaign T-shirts on the day of the survey. 

 

Professional Development 

Institute Day Staff Development: On October 6, certified members participated in a full 

day of professional development activities focused on engaging them in exploring the 

importance of positive relationships in daily tasks and applying those to the big-picture 

projects that support student learning.  The theme of “Finding the Joy” from the Back-to-

School Institute Days was linked to the wide range of sessions and activities.  The morning 

included a presentation from Synergy consultants, PBIS data-sharing and celebrations, and 

operational rotations on Stop the Bleed training and using eHallpass.  The afternoon 

included sharing experiences from Evidence-Based Grading Pilot teachers and breakout 

sessions for PLT and team-specific workshops including SEL, Team-Based Challenges, 

Shifting Formative Assessment, Curriculum Design, Pathways/Dual Credit, and Student 

Services Groups Protocols. 

 

Instructional Leadership Team Development:  The building administrative team is 

embarking on a new inquiry project this year using Instructional Rounds as a process to 

have deeper conversations about learning. 

  

Instructional Rounds are non-evaluative and based on the medical model of doctor’s rounds 

used in learning hospitals. Last year team members participated in a book study on 

Instructional Rounds in Education. This year, we are implementing some practice rounds. 

  

Teachers have been solicited and have volunteered to host small groups of observers in 

their classrooms to notice and record how students are engaging in learning. Each round 

lasts 15-20 minutes, and then the observers move to another room to observe and the next 

pair comes in. After three observation rounds, the observers reconvene to discuss what was 

noticed and identify trends they observed. 

  

Instructional rounds are not walk-throughs, there is no specific instructional checklist, and 

there are no pre-identified “look-for’s” for observers.  Instructional rounds are not 

evaluative, and they are not part of the evaluation process.  Lastly, instructional rounds are 

not judgmental, as observers are recording only what is observed. 

 

382



This project supports our ongoing efforts to become a high-functioning learning 

community and speaks to our Leadership Team’s Commitment to improving our 

instructional practices.  Instructional rounds are an opportunity for us to set aside the 

evaluator hat, create an opportunity to experience some of the incredible instruction that 

happens at Grant, and have learning conversations among administrators on the Leadership 

Team.  

 

PSAT/NMSQT 

Testing:  October 11 marked the fall administration of the school-wide PSAT/NMSQT 

assessment to all freshmen, sophomores, and juniors. The school day began at 7:40 a.m. 

with students reporting to their assigned testing locations.  The majority of students’ test 

day ended at 11:30 a.m.  Most extended-time testing for students with accommodations 

concluded at approximately noon. 

 

This is the first year that the College Board offered the testing exclusively online.  There 

were initially some administrative challenges on the part of the College Board’s testing 

platform, but fortunately, the issues were resolved and we were able to successfully 

administer the exam as planned.   

 

Seniors were not in attendance on October 11.  Freshmen took the PSAT 8/9, and 

sophomores and juniors took the PSAT/NMSQT exam. These tests are provided to students 

free of charge, and taking these exams prepares students for the SAT they will take in April 

of their junior year as part of the State-required assessments. 

 

Student Recognition:  The National Merit Scholarship Corporation (NMSC) is a non-

profit organization that was established in 1955 specifically to conduct the annual National 

Merit Scholarship Program. Scholarships are underwritten by NMSC with its own funds 

and by approximately 400 business organizations and higher education institutions that 

share NMSC’s goals of honoring the nation’s scholastic champions and encouraging the 

pursuit of academic excellence.  

 

Commendable Scholar:  Congratulations to Khushi Viramgami on being named 

a Commended Scholar. About 34,000 Commended students throughout the nation 

are being recognized for their exceptional academic promise. Although these 

students will not continue in the 2024 competition for National Merit Scholarship 

awards, Commended Students placed among the top 50,000 students who entered 

the 2024 competition by taking the 2022 Preliminary SAT/National Merit 

Scholarship Qualifying Test (PSAT/NMSQT). 

  

Semifinalist:  Congratulations to Raidon Uy for being named a semifinalist in the 

National Merit Scholarship Program.  This achievement qualifies Raidon to 

participate in the final selection process for a Merit Scholarship.  We are impressed 

with this accomplishment and are optimistic about Raidon’s prospects of being 

named scholarship recipient later this school year. 

 

383



Non-Compliance with Health Records 

October 15 is the State-mandated deadline when all public schools are required to exclude students 

from campus activities via medical suspension if they have not received their required health 

documentation.  There has been a sustained communication effort with families since last spring 

and continuing through this school year to avoid medical suspensions.  Families who are not in 

compliance have received multiple physical and electronic letters, received at least one phone call, 

and students have been hand-delivered letters.  Our Dean’s Office and Attendance Office have 

stepped in again this year to assist the Nurse’s Office with communication as well as conducting 

home visits for some families that have not responded. 

 

As of October 12, 97 students have not provided the appropriate medical documentation. This 

number is in line with the year-over-year average, and fortunately, it is down from last 

year.  Before any students are excluded from campus activities, resources are provided to them 

regarding how to obtain the necessary medical services.  Our goal is to meet the requirements of 

the State, but we also work to find ways to keep students engaged and assist with families as much 

as possible. 

 

Elyssa’s Mission 

On Tuesday, October 24 the Student Services Team will continue our ongoing efforts to educate 

and screen students using the evidence-based program Signs of Suicide (SOS).  Since 2017, this 

program has been delivered twice a year to students in Health classes in concert with the non-profit 

group Elyssa’s Mission.   

 

The program serves the dual purpose of informing teachers and students about suicide prevention 

as well as teaching students how to ACT: Acknowledge the signs of suicide, Care by letting your 

friend know you care about him or her, and Tell a trusted adult.  The SOS program informs teens 

that depression is a treatable illness and empowers them to seek help from a trusted adult if they 

are concerned about themselves or a friend.  As a crucial part of the program, students complete 

the program’s screening tool that will identify at-risk students so those students and their families 

can be linked to services.  

 

Parent-Student-Teacher Conferences 

Parent-Student-Teacher Conferences will be held this year on the evening of October 26 and the 

morning of October 27.  Parents/guardians have the option to meet in-person or virtually with 

teachers.  The choice of in-person or virtual conferences allows families the conference type that 

best meets their personal preferences.  Communication to families with details of the event initially 

went out on October 1 and again on October 11 when signup via Skyward opened up.  All certified 

staff will be on campus for this community event, and we are looking forward to hosting this 

opportunity for parents to engage in their student’s education. 

 

 

384



Student Representative to the Board of Education
October Report

Activities

Choir
● Held their fall concert, on Thursday, October 12.

Speech Team
● The talking Bulldogs are holding a fundraiser with Antioch Pizza October 18 to raise

money for competition season.

National Honor Society
● Helped to volunteer at the Fox Lake Pumpkin Jubilee, where they carved pumpkins,

assisted individuals, and did other duties to help keep the festival going.

Academic Team
● Held the first meeting on October 12, beginning to prepare for the fast approaching

competition season

Environmental Club
● Held their annual Campus Cleanup event on October 4, cleaning up litter found around

Grant High School.

Future Business Leaders of America
● Held our bi-annual roadside cleanup on Sunday, October 8, which was very successful

and had a large turnout.
● Held the October activity night, where we completed chapter challenges, earning us

points on the way to become a gold chapter.

National Art Honor Society
● Volunteers face painted at the Pumpkin Jubilee, which was a big hit, and fun was had by

all.

Marching Band
● Brought home the first place trophy from the Dekalb High School Marching Band

Championship on October 7. They also won Best Percussion!

Color Guard

385



● Brought home the Best Color Guard award from the Dekalb High School Marching Band
Championship on October 7.

Canine Connections
● Went on a field trip, where members were able to see a dog training facility.

Sports

Dance Team
● Almost 100 participants and 11 programs are signed up to join the dance team for

Dancing with the Dogs, a fundraising event where various teams will compete against
each other in a dance competition on October 28th.

Girls Volleyball
● Varsity finished in second place in the Schaumburg Invite, while the Sophomore team

competed at the Johnsburg Invite and also took second.

Golf
● Girls Golf took home third place at the NLCC conference this year.
● Golf sent three individuals to Sectionals this year, congratulations to Riley Daniele, Eros

Rabor, and Diego Delgado for making this achievement!

Wrestling
● Held their second Championship Bags Fundraiser to raise money to help Grant wrestlers

travel to out-of-state tournaments, purchase new warmups and for new training
equipment.

● Ayane Jasinksi has been chosen to compete in the Illinois Matmen Test of the Best, the
second Grant Wrestler to be selected to compete in the history of this event. Good luck
Ayane!

Girls Tennis
● Took first place at the Spirit Tournament, bringing the trophy home. 1 doubles, 3 doubles,

and 4 doubles all placed first in their respective brackets as well.
● Girls tennis also competed at the NLCC conference, with many individual achievements

made that day.

Grant Cheerleading
● Held their annual Spaghetti Dinner on October 11, raising money for the upcoming

competition season.

386



Events

Homecoming Dance
● The Homecoming Dance was held on October 23, 2023. It was very successful, with

many students showing up at the Field House to dance the night away! The night before,
Grant beat Round Lake by a large margin at the Homecoming football game.

387



 
 

WINTER COACHING STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 2023 - 2024 
 
 

Head Varsity Wayne Bosworth Boys Basketball 

Assistant Daniel Brito  

Assistant John Eiduke  

Assistant Matt Mueller  

Assistant  Logan Weber  

Head Varsity  Andrea Weaver Girls Basketball 

Assistant Chris Callahan  

Assistant Roger Lass  

Assistant Ashlyn Santos  

Assistant Lemar Wilson  

Head Varsity Tim Viscioni Boys Bowling 

Assistant Steve Brugioni  

Head Varsity Beth Miller Girls Bowling 

Assistant Sheryl Dempsey  

Head Varsity Marissa Kelley Cheerleading 

Assistant Sarah Brezinski  

Assistant Katie Boyd  

Assistant Nick Peterson  

Head Varsity Victoria Shifley Dance 

Assistant Julia Beard  

Assistant (.50 stipend) Paige Gruber  

Head Varsity Mark Jolcover Wrestling 

Assistant Jim Cramer  

Assistant John Deneen  

Assistant Michael Gaughan  

Assistant Anthony Johnson  

Assistant Jason Montemayor  

388



FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM 
 
 
 

Name:  Jordan Alexander 
 
Title: Special Education Teacher 
 
Seniority Date: August 2, 2022 
 
Date of Request: September 18, 2023 
 
 
PURPOSE OF LEAVE (check one): 
 
  Birth of Child 
  
  Expected placement of child for adoption 
 
  Expected placement of child for foster care 
 
  Serious illness of family member 

  Name of family member:   

  Relationship to employee:   

 

  Employee's serious illness 
 
 
LEAVE DATES Beginning: January 8, 2024       Ending: February 5, 2024                    
 
 
TYPE OF LEAVE (check one): 
 
  Continuous 
 
  Intermittent basis 
  Schedule requested:   
 
  Reduced schedule 
  Schedule requested:  ___________________________________  
 
 
This form is to be completed either by the employee requesting leave or the employer's 
designated representative to whom the request is made.  Attach any written leave 
requests from the employee to this form. 
 

  

✓ 
 
 

 

 

 

✓ 
 

 

 

389



 

 
 
 
 

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST APPROVAL FORM 
 
 
TO:    Jordan Alexander 
 
The Board of Education is in receipt of your request for a leave pursuant to the federal 

Family and Medical Leave Act (the “Act”) of 1993.  This is to notify you that your leave 

request has been granted.  Your leave is scheduled to begin on January 8, 2024 and is 

scheduled to end on February 5, 2024.  The stated purpose for your leave is birth of a 

child and it will be taken on the following basis: 

 Continuous basis 

 Intermittent basis 
  Schedule of leave:   
 
 Reduced schedule 
  Schedule of leave:   
 
 
This is also to notify you that the Board will require you to substitute n/a (days) (weeks) 

of your accrued paid n/a time for n/a (days) (weeks) of your unpaid FMLA leave. 

 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ ______________________ 
President, Board of Education    Date 
 

Grant Community High School District 124 
  

285 East Grand Avenue, Fox Lake, Illinois  60020    

847 - 587 - 2561   ·     fax 847 - 587 - 2991   

Christine A. Sefcik, Ed.D.  
                                              Beth A. Reich 

                                                 Jeremy N. Schmidt 
  

            Superintendent 
                                                                                                                 Principal 

  

✓ 
 

 

 

    Business Manager 

390



FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM 
 
 
 

Name:  Peggy Gigliotti 
 
Title: Transitions Program Paraprofessional 
 
Seniority Date: January 18, 2011 
 
Date of Request: October 10, 2023 
 
 
PURPOSE OF LEAVE (check one): 
 
  Birth of Child 
  
  Expected placement of child for adoption 
 
  Expected placement of child for foster care 
 
  Serious illness of family member 

  Name of family member:   

  Relationship to employee:   

 

  Employee's serious illness 
 
 
LEAVE DATES Beginning: October 30, 2023       Ending: November 3, 2023                    
 
 
TYPE OF LEAVE (check one): 
 
  Continuous 
 
  Intermittent basis 
  Schedule requested:   
 
  Reduced schedule 
  Schedule requested:  ___________________________________  
 
 
This form is to be completed either by the employee requesting leave or the employer's 
designated representative to whom the request is made.  Attach any written leave 
requests from the employee to this form. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

✓ 
 

✓ 
 

 

 

391



 

 
 
 
 

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST APPROVAL FORM 
 
 
TO:    Peggy Gigliotti 
 
The Board of Education is in receipt of your request for a leave pursuant to the federal 

Family and Medical Leave Act (the “Act”) of 1993.  This is to notify you that your leave 

request has been granted.  Your leave is scheduled to begin on October 30, 2023 and 

is scheduled to end on November 3, 2023.  The stated purpose for your leave is 

employee’s serious illness and it will be taken on the following basis: 

 Continuous basis 

 Intermittent basis 
  Schedule of leave:   
 
 Reduced schedule 
  Schedule of leave:   
 
 
This is also to notify you that the Board will require you to substitute n/a (days) (weeks) 

of your accrued paid n/a time for n/a (days) (weeks) of your unpaid FMLA leave. 

 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ ______________________ 
President, Board of Education    Date 
 

Grant Community High School District 124 
  

285 East Grand Avenue, Fox Lake, Illinois  60020    

847 - 587 - 2561   ·     fax 847 - 587 - 2991   

Christine A. Sefcik, Ed.D.  
                                              Beth A. Reich 

                                                 Jeremy N. Schmidt 
  

            Superintendent 
                                                                                                                 Principal 

  

✓ 
 

 

 

    Business Manager 

392



MEMORANDUM 

To:   Dr. Christy Sefcik, Superintendent 

From:  Beth Reich, Business Manager/CSBO 

Re: Estimated 2023 Property Tax Levy 

Date: October 19, 2023 

 

Background 

 

Annually the Board of Education is asked to consider and adopt a tax levy. A tax levy is a 

request for property taxes to fund the school year that starts the following July. While the board 

can levy or “ask” for any amount it desires, the amount of revenue actually received is limited by 

a formula contained in the Property Tax Extension Limitation Act (PTELL).  There are two main 

components to the formula.  One is the December year-over-year Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

number that determines the aggregate allowable increase in property taxes on existing 

construction. That number is already known and is 6.50%, but PTELL caps it at 5.00%.  

The second component is the value of property within the district (Equalized Assessed Value or 

EAV). That number will not be known in finality until next spring, and is split between existing 

property value and new construction values.  

We received estimated Equalized Assessed Value from Lake County’s Chief Assessment 

Officer which is $1,187,807,931 which is an increase of 7.80% over last year.  New construction 

from Lake County is estimated at $9,667,389, which is an increase of 12.42% over last year.   

I’ve attached the tentative Certificate of Tax Levy for this year.  In December, we will need to 

hold a hearing, and I will bring the Final Levy and Resolutions for your approval. 

393



ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

Original: x School Business and Support Services Division

Amended: (217) 785-8779

A copy of this Certificate of Tax Levy shall be filed with the County Clerk of each county in which the school district is located 

on or before the last Tuesday of December.

District Name District Number County

Amount of Levy

Educational $ Fire Prevention & Safety  * $

Operations & Maintenance $ Tort Immunity $

Transportation $ Special Education $

Working Cash $ Leasing $

Municipal Retirement $ 0 $

Social Security $ SEDOL IMRF Extension $

Total Levy $

*  Includes Fire Prevention, Safety, Energy Conservation, Disabled Accessibility, School Security, 

See explanation on reverse side.    and Specified Repair Purposes.

Note:     Any district proposing to adopt a levy must comply with

the provisions set forth in the Truth in Taxation Law.

We hereby certify that we require:

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for educational purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for operations and maintenance purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for transportation purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for a working cash fund; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for municipal retirement purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for social security purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for fire prevention, safety, energy conservation,

disabled accessibility, school security and specified repair purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for tort immunity purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for special education purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for leasing of educational facilities 

or computer technology or both, and temporary relocation expense purposes; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for ; and

the sum of dollars to be levied as a special tax for 

on the taxable property of our school district for the year 2023

Signed this 21st day of December 2023 .

(President)

(Clerk or Secretary of the School Board of Said School District)

When any school is authorized to issue bonds, the school board shall file a certified copy of the resolution in the office of the county clerk of each county in which the district is

situated to provide for the issuance of the bonds and to levy a tax to pay for them.  The county clerk shall extend the tax for bonds and interest as set forth in the certified copy

of the resolution, each year during the life of the bond issue.  Therefore to avoid a possible duplication of tax levies, the school board should not include a levy for bonds and

interest in the district's annual tax levy.

Number of bond issues of said school district that have not been paid in full 0 .

This is to certify that the Certificate of Tax Levy for School District No. 124 , County,

Illinois, on the equalized assesed value of all taxable property of said school district for the year 

was filed in the office of the County Clerk of this County on , .

In addition to an extension of taxes authorized by levies made by the Board of Education (Directors), an additional extension(s)

will be made, as authorized by resolution(s) on file in this office, to provide funds to retire bonds and pay interest thereon.  

The total levy, as provided in the original resolution(s), for said purposes for the year , is $ .

ISBE Form 50-02 (07-2022) CTL2022.xlsx

25,875,575

18,275,000

Lake

0

0

320,000 0

0410,000

500,000 20,575

410,000

500,000

18,275,000

4,700,000

1,650,000

320,000

2023

2023

(Signature of County Clerk)

(County)(Date)

CERTIFICATE OF TAX LEVY

0

0

0

LakeGrant Community High School 124

4,700,000

1,650,000

2023

(Detach and Return to School District)

0

0

0

20,575 SEDOL IMRF Extension 

394



Legend

District Assumptions & Data Entry

Calculated Values

Original Assumptions from Calculations Tab Review Needed Taxpayer Impact

Estimated Existing EAV % Change for 2023 10.11% 2022 Fair Cash / Market Value Home $250,000

Estimated Existing EAV Value for 2023 $1,187,802,911

Estimated 2023 Fair Cash Value Home $275,275 Includes EAV % Change

Estimated New Property for 2023 $9,667,389

Estimated Total EAV for 2023 $1,197,470,300  Includes New Property Total Assessed Value $91,758 33.3%

State Equalization Multiplier $91,758 1.0000

2022 Operating Rate $2.2472

Estimated 2023 Operating Rate $2.1429 Homestead Exemption LY22 $6,000.00

Estimated 2023 Bond & Interest Tax Rate $0.0000  Includes Loss Cost Homestead Exemption LY23 $8,000.00

Bond & Interest Lost Cost (%) 0.00% Net Equalized Assessed Value $83,758.33

Bond & Interest Abatement $0 Enter debt service to be abated Estimated Change in Tax Payment for 2023 $54.67

Bond & Interest Rate Abatement $0.0000 Cannot exceed estimated B&I Tax Rate

Note, the calculator is intended to estimate the Grant Community High School 124 portion of the tax bill.

Net 2023 B&I Tax Rate $0.0000

Estimated SEDOL IMRF Rate $0.00 Lake County only

Total 2023 Tax Rate $2.1446

Total Prior Year's Tax Rate $2.2521

2023 Taxpayer Impact Calculation Page

Note, if the B&I levy on the "Calculations" tab 

was reduced by an expected abatement, it will 

need to be removed to prevent double 

counting the abatement.

It does not include property taxes paid for other District purposes and to other 

governments. Actual tax rates and payments may vary based on District-wide 

EAV growth, individual homeowner reassessment, State Law changes, property 

tax rate initiatives and other factors.

Based on County 1 on the 

input tab

395



10/12/23, 5:05 PM School Maintenance Project Grants - Work Items Listing

https://apps.isbe.net/SMPG/ScheduleWorkItems.aspx?ApplicationId=5161 1/1

Add Item to Schedule

1. COUNTY CODE
049, Lake

2. DISTRICT CODE/NAME
34049124016, Grant CHSD
124

3. APPLICATION
YEAR/ROUND
2024, 1

 Item
I.D. Facility Name Facility Address Facility Description Project Description Project

Location
Priority
Code

Category
Code Est. cost Est. Start

Date
Est.

Completion
Date

Open 1 Benedetti Center Field
House

110 Devlin Road, Fox
Lake

The Benedetti Center
Field House was built in

2009 and is
approximately 57,000

square feet. The
building houses

approximately 1800
students every day.
Physical Education

classes are held there
every period of every

day.

This is an addition onto the
field house of

approximately 8,000
square feet. The addition is

a weight room to
accommodate the 700%
increase in enrollment in
our physical education

classes whose curriculum
is focused on strength and
conditioning. There are 3

classes running every
period of every day. The

current weight room cannot
hold the number of

students that are enrolled.
This work includes new

construction of the space
and all equipment to go in

it.

Location
of the
work is
at the
north
end of
the
building
towards
the east
side.
Addition
would go
into the
parking
lot that
currently
exists.

D OTHR $5,300,000.00 01/01/2024 05/01/2025

Total Estimated Project
Cost $5,300,000.00

Total Requested Grant
Amount     $50,000.00

Total Reserved Local
Funds(District
Responsibility):

$50,000.00

Total Reserved
Remaining Funds
(District Responsibility):

$5,200,000.00

396

https://apps.isbe.net/SMPG/EditWorkItem.aspx?ApplicationId=5161
https://apps.isbe.net/SMPG/EditWorkItem.aspx?ApplicationId=5161%20&&ScheduleItemId=12092


10/12/23, 5:06 PM Illinois State Board of Education

https://apps.isbe.net/SMPG/PrintableDistCertification.aspx?ApplicationId=5161 1/2

SCHOOL MAINTENANCE PROJECT GRANT

FY 24 Application Cycle - Round 1

District Certification

Name : Grant CHSD 124

RCDT #: 34-049-1240-16

TIN #: 366004900

The submissions made to the Illinois State Board of Education by the applicant and
the terms and conditions described in the Grant Application Certifications and
Assurances and the Program Specific and Financial Assurances of this application
shall constitute the grant agreement between the applicant and the Illinois State
Board of Education for the use of the funds to complete the projects described in the
“Work Item Listing” section of the School Maintenance Project Grant Application.
This grant agreement shall be deemed to be entered into when the application has
been approved by the Illinois State Board of Education. This grant agreement
constitutes the entirety of the agreement between the parties and supersedes any
other agreement or communication, whether written or oral, relating to the award of
the grant funds. The person submitting this application on behalf of the applicant
certifies and assures the Illinois State Board of Education that he or she has been
duly authorized to file this application for and on behalf of the applicant, is the
authorized representative of the applicant in connection with this grant agreement,
and that he or she is authorized to execute these Certifications and Assurances and
Standard Terms of the Grant on behalf of the applicant. Further, the person
submitting this application on behalf of the applicant certifies under oath that all
information in the grant agreement is true and correct to the best of his or her
knowledge, information and belief, that grant funds shall be used only for the
purposes described in this agreement, and that the award of this grant is conditioned
upon this certification.  

The authorized representative of the applicant who will affix his or her signature
below certifies that he or she has read, understood and will comply with all of the
provisions of the following certifications and assurances.

The person approving these Certifications, Assurances and Standard Terms of the
Grant hereby certifies and assures the Illinois State Board of Education that the
person submitting the final application on behalf of the applicant (and thereby
executing the grant agreement with the Illinois State Board of Education) has the
necessary legal authority to do so. (v2.23.2017)

The person approving this application certifies (1) to the statements contained
in the list of certifications, and (2) that the statements herein are true,
complete and accurate to the best of his/her knowledge. He/she also provided
the required assurances titled “Grant Application Certifications and
Assurances, and Standard Terms for the School Maintenance Project Grant”
and “Program Specific and Financial Assurances for the School Maintenance
Project Grant” (found within the application under “Application Certifications
and Assurances”) and agrees to comply with any resulting terms if an award is
accepted. He/she is aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or
claims may subject him/her to criminal, civil or administrative penalties. (U.S.
Code, Title 18, Section 1001). The list of certification and assurances is
included below.

397



10/12/23, 5:06 PM Illinois State Board of Education

https://apps.isbe.net/SMPG/PrintableDistCertification.aspx?ApplicationId=5161 2/2

By submitting this form, I certify to the above and that the local board of education or
other school governing authority has authorized the school maintenance project
during a duly convened meeting, and has reserved local funds to meet the local
match requirement. In addition, the applicant has not obligated funds or begun work
on any of the projects listed on this application prior to the submission of this
application. Signing below certifies that he or she has read, understood, and will
comply with all the provisions of the following:
• Grant Application Certifications and Assurances, and Standard Terms for the
School Maintenance Project Grant, and
• Program-Specific and Financial Assurances for the School Maintenance Project
Grant.

Signature of President of Board of Education             Date            

Name of Board President (type or print)

A copy of this form signed by the President of the Board of Educa�on AND the Taxpayer Iden�fica�on
Number Form MUST be printed, signed, and a�ached as a PDF under the Applica�on Required
A�achments before your applica�on can be approved. No applica�on will be processed without these
two signed a�achments.

(SMPG Dist. Cert. - Rev. 8/2023)

398



BOE MEETING OCTOBER 19, 2023 
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUESTS FULFILLED 

 

Date of 
Request 

Requestor Documents Requested Date of 
Response 

9/22/2023 Janine Asmus Identify name and work email for District 
employee who is certified as a school 

librarian 

9/22/2023 

9/27/2023 Jake Griffin, Daily 
Herald 

Copies of documents to show district’s 
radon testing/retesting and remediation 
of radon between 2018 through today. 

9/28/2023 

9/29/2023 Sheri Reid, 
SmartProcure 

Purchasing records from 5/18/2023 to 
current. 

9/29/2023 

 

399


	Agenda
	I. Call to Order
	II. Pledge of Allegiance
	III. Roll Call
	IV. Consent Agenda **
	September 21 - Minutes - Open
	October 19 bills
	2023 OCTOBER Bill Detail
	Consent Agenda - Revenues by Fund 9.30.23
	Consent Agenda - Expenses by Fund 9.30.23
	Consent Agenda - Taxes Received through 9.30.23
	Consent Agenda - Investments Through 9.30.23
	Quarterly List

	V. Superintendent’s Report – Recognition and Informational Items
	A. Student Recognition
	Profile - Little, Isabella

	B. Curriculum Changes for 2024/25
	BoE Proposed Curriculum Changes 24-25
	Mobile App Design I Course Revision
	Mobile App Design II Course Revision
	English 10 Course Deletion
	Advanced English 10 Course Revision
	Applied Math II Course Revision
	AP Biology Course Revision
	AP Chemistry Course Revision
	AP Environmental Science Course Revision
	AP Physics I Course Revision
	AP Seminar Biotechnology Course Revision
	Honors Anatomy Course Revision
	Honors Biotechnology I Course Revision
	Honors Earth Science Course Revision
	Honors Physics Course Revision
	Physics Course Revision
	General Chemistry Course Proposal

	C. School Report Card Timeline
	ISBE 2023-Accountability-Indicators
	Public-Business-Rules-2023-Report-Card-Metrics

	D. Calendar DRAFT – 2024/25
	Public School Calendar Draft 24-25

	E. Homecoming – 2024
	F. Illinois Association of School Board Recognition – Established Board Leader
	G. Joint Conference Planning
	IASB 2023 Resolutions Committee Report

	H. Principal’s Report
	October 19 - Principal's Report

	I. Student Representative’s Report
	October 19 - Student Rep. to the BOE


	VI. Public Comment
	VII. Superintendent’s Report – Action Items
	A. Course Changes 2024/25 **
	B. Winter Coaches **
	Winter Coaches List 23 24

	C. Personnel **
	FMLA - Alexander, Jordan
	FMLA - Gigliotti, Peggy


	VIII. Business Affairs
	B. School Maintenance Project Grant **
	Item B - School Maintenance Project Grants - Work Items Listing
	Item B - School Maintenance Project Grant - District Certification


	IX. Other Business
	A. FOIA
	October 19 - FOIA List


	X. Closed Session
	A. Student disciplinary cases 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(9)
	B. Other matters relating to individual students 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(10)
	C. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) **

	XI. Action items from closed session discussion
	A. Potential Board action regarding personnel **

	XII. Adjourn
	Item A - Levy Board Memo October 2023
	Item A - Certificate of Tax Levy 2023
	Item A - Estimated Impact of Levy to Taxpayer

